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Experian Finance plc

Directors’ report
for the year ended 31 March 2007

The directors present their report and the audited financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2007
Change of name

On 12 December 2006, the Company changed i1ts name from GUS plc to Experian Finance ple

Principal activity

At the start of the financial year the Company was the parent company of the GUS group with 1ts shares listed on the
London Stock Exchange’s market for listed securities (the ‘London Stock Exchange’) GUS was a retail and business
services group and 1ts activities comprised general merchandise retalling through Argos Retail Group and the provision
of information solutions services through Experian

Plans for the demerger of Argos Retail Group and Experian had been announced in March 2006 and the demerger
proposals were approved by the Company’s shareholders at an Extraordinary General Meeting on 29 August 2006 The
demerger was completed on 10 October 2006 During the demerger process, Argos Retail Group adopted the name
Home Retail Group As part of the demerger process an internal reorganisation took place as a result of which the
Company became a wholly owned subsidiary of Experian Group Limited, a company that was incorporated during the
year The shares of the Company ceased to be listed on the London Stock Exchange on 6 October 2006 and trading in
the shares of Experian Group Limited and Home Retail Group plc commenced on 11 October 2006

The Company has continued to act as a holding and finance company and has also provided certain corporate services to
other companies within the GUS group and, after the demerger, to subsidiary undertakings of Experian Group Limited

Business review

The Company has continued to trade satisfactorily during the year in the activities indicated above and, since demerger, 1t
has continued to act as a major holding company for Experian undertakings

The directors anticipate that the Company will continue to act as a major holding and finance company for the Experian
group and provider of certain corporate services within that group

As the relevant risks of the Company are managed on a group or divisional basis, the directors believe that analysis using
key performance mdicators for the Company 1s not necessary or appropriate for an understanding of 1ts development,
performance or position The development, performance and position of the Experian Group, mcluding the Comparny and its
subsidiary undertakings, 15 discussed on pages 16 to 35 of the group financial statements of Experian Group Limited

Principal risks and uncertainties

The principal operational risks and uncertainttes facing the wider Experian group are set out on page 35 of the group
financial statements of Experian Group Limited (see note 29} As the Company 1s a major holding and finance company, its
own principal nisks and uncertainties are only indirectly related to such risks but are more directly related to the treasury,
currency and other risks that are 1dentified and discussed n the financial review on pages 30 to 34 of the group financial
statements of Experian Group Limited Such risks are managed on a group basis Further informatien on financial risk
management policies and procedures 15 set out 1n note | to the financial statements of the Company

Results and dividends

The Company’s profit and loss account on page 7 shows a profit for the financial year of £5,660m (2006 £6m) The profit
for the year 1s after charging exceptional items of £41m (2006 £3m} in connection with the demerger On 4 August 2006,
the Company paid 2 final dividend m respect of the year ended 31 March 2006 of 21 9p per ordinary share at a cost of
£187m to shareholders on the register of members on 7 July 2006 In the year ended 31 March 2006, the Company paid a
total dividend of 30 1p per ordinary share at a cost of £284m  These dividends were recerved by GUS plc shareholders
Since the demerger, an interint dividend of £8m has been paid to Experian Group Limuted shareholders pursuant to the
income access share arrangements which were put in place as part of the demerger and which are explained in the group
financial statements of Expenian Group Limited A further dividend of £21m was pard in March 2007 to Experian
Investment Holdings Limited, the Company’s immediate parent undertaking




Experian Finance plc

Directors’ report
for the year ended 31 March 2007 (continued)

Results and dividends (continued)

Additionally, in the year ended 31 March 2007 GUS plc shareholders at 6 October 2006 recetved a dividend in specie in
relation to the demerger of Home Retail Group, 1n the year ended 31 March 2006 GUS plc shareholders received a
dividend n specie in relation to the demerger of Burberry Group PLC

Directors

The directors holding office during the year were

D Robert

PT CBrooks  (appomnted 11 December 2006)
P ] Blythe (appointed 11 December 2006)
C B Brown (appomnted 11 December 2006)

P A Atkinson  (appomted 11 December 2006)
Al W Barnes  (appownted 11 December 2006)

M Pepper (appomnted 25 January 2007)
Sir Victor Blank (resigned 11 December 2006)
J W Peace (resigned 11 December 2006)
] D Coombe (resigned 11 October 2006)
T Duddy (resigned !1 October 2006)

A H Homnby (resigned {1 October 2006)
F N Newman (resigned 11 October 2006)
Sir Alan Rudge (resigned 11 October 2006)
O HJ Stocken  (resigned 11 October 2006)
D A Tyler (resigned 31 March 2007)

Mr M Wells was appointed as a director on 10 Aprd 2007

Of the directors holding office at 31 March 2007, Mr Robert and Mr Brooks are also directors of the Company’s
ultimate parent undertaking

Share capital

Details of changes to the Company’s share capital during the year ended 31 March 2007 are set out in note 20 to the
financial statements

Corporate governance

The corporate governance principles followed by the Company are set out in the statement on corporate governance
included on pages 42 to 46 of the Experian Group Limited annual report

Corporate responsibilities

The Company’s corporate responsibility reporting 1s included 1n the corporate responsibility report of Experian Group
Limited That report 1s published on the Experian website at www experiancrreport com and 1s summarised on pages 36
and 37 of the Experian Group Limited annual report

Donations

Prior to the demerger, the GUS Group’s support for charitable donations was maimnly channelled through the work of the
GUS Charitable Trust and the Company made payments to that trust of £0 Im in the year ended 31 March 2006 There
were no such donations in the year ended 31 March 2007 but, as indicated in the annual report of Experian Group
Limited, the GUS Charntable Trust continued to support charitable causes by cash donations as part of a wide ranging
programme of support for such causes within Expenan

The Company made no political donations and incurred no ttems of political expenditure 1n the year (2006 nil}




Experian Finance ple

Directors’ report
for the year ended 31 March 2007 (continued)

Employment of disabled persons

Disabled persons, whether registered or not, have equal opportunities when applying for vacancies, with due regard to
ther aptitudes and abihties In addition to complying with legislative requirements, procedures are in place to ensure
that disabled employees are fairly treated and that their traiming and career development needs are carefully managed
For those employees becoming disabled during the course of their employment, the Company s supportive, whether
through retraining or redeployment, so as to provide an opportumty for them to remain with the Company

Employee involvement

The Company 1s intent on motivating and keeping staff informed on matters that concern them in the context of their
employment and involving them through local consultative procedures Information on matters of concern to employees
and about the financial and economic factors affecting the Group’s performance 15 also disseminated through
management channels, conferences, meetings, publications and internet sites

Prior to the demerger, employees were actively encouraged to become shareholders in GUS through the provision of a
Save As You Earn share option scheme Since demerger an equivalent Expertan scheme has been introduced together
with an All Employee Share Plan and these arrangements are intended to align the interests of employees with those of
shareholders

Creditor payment

The Company has no trade creditors Its policy 1s to pay amounts due to all its suppliers and service providers in
accordance with the agreed terms of each transaction

Statement of directors’ responsibilities

The directors are responsible for preparing the annual report and the financial statements 1n accordance with applicable
law and regulations

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statemnents for each financial year Under that law the directors
have elected to prepare the financial statements n accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice {United Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicable law) The financial statements are required by law to
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the profit or loss of the Company for that peniod

In preparing those financial statements, the directors are required to
*  select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently,
*  make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent,

e state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any matenial departures
disclosed and explained in the financial statements, and

s prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless 1t 1s inappropnate to presume that the Company
will continue in business, in which case there should be supporting assumptions or qualifications as necessary

The directors confirm that they have complied with the above requirements in preparing the financial statements

The directors are responstble for keeping proper accounting records that disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time
the financial position of the Company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the
Companies Act 1985 They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Company and hence for taking
reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregulanties




Experian Finance plc

Directors’ report
for the year ended 31 March 2007 (continued)

Statement of disclosure of information to auditors

As at the date this report was signed, so far as each director 1s aware, there 15 no relevant audit information of which the
auditors are unaware and each director has taken all steps that he ought to have taken as a director in order to make
himself aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the auditors are aware of that information

Auditors

The Company’s auditors, PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, have indicated therr willingness to continue m office and a
resolution concerning their reappointment will be proposed at the Annual General Meeting

By Order of the Board

Yot

M Pepper
Dhrector

25 September 2007




Independent auditors’ report to the members of Experian Finance ple

We have audited the financial statements of Experian Finance plc for the year ended 31 March 2007, which comprise the
profit and loss account, the statement of total recognised gans and losses, the reconciliation of movement 1n total equity
shareholders’ funds, the balance sheet and the related notes These financial statements have been prepared under the
accounting policies set out therein

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

As described in the statement of directors’ responsibihities the Company’s directors are responsible for the preparation of
the financial statemenis in accordance with applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice)

QOur responsibility 1s to audst the financial statements 1n accordance with relevant legal and regulatory requirements and
International Standards on Auditing (UK and [reland) This report, including the opinion, has been prepared for and only
for the Company’s members as a body in accordance with Section 235 of the Companies Act 1985 and for no other
purpose We do not, in giving this optnon, accept or assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person
to whom this report 15 shown or into whose hands 1t may come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent 1n
wring

We report to you our opinion as to whether the financial statements give a true and far view and are properly prepared
in accordance with the Companies Act 1985 We report to you whether in our opimon the information given n the
directors’ report I1s consistent with the financial statements

In addition we report to you if, in our opimion, the Company has not kept proper accounting records, 1f we have not
received all the information and explanations we require for our audit, or if information specified by law regarding
directors’ remuneration and other transactions 1s not disclosed

We read the directors’ report and consider the implications for our report if we become aware of any apparent
misstatements within it

Basis of audit opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) 1ssued by the Auditing
Practices Board An audit includes examination, on a test basis of evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures 1n the
financial staternents It also includes an assessment of the sigmificant estimates and judgments made by the directors in
the preparauien of the financial statements, and of whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the Company’s
circumstances, consistently applied and adequately disclosed

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the mnformation and explanations which we considered necessary
1n order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from
material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or other wregularity or error In forming our opimon we also evaluvated
the overall adequacy of the presentation of information in the financial statements

Opinion
In our opinion

« the financial statements give a true and fair view, n accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice, of the state of the Company’s affawrs as at 31 March 2007 and of 1ts profit for the year then
ended,

¢ the financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 1983, and

e  the information given in the directors’ report 1s consistent with the financial statements

W«/&}Z@«»——A—Cy:ru} L P

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Registered Auditors
London

25 September 2007




Experian Finance plc

Profit and loss account
for the year ended 31 March 2007

Notes 2007 2006
£m £m
Administrative expenses 15 3
Operating loss (15) an
Exceptional items 3 (41) 3
Income from fixed asset investments 7 5,781 2
Impairment of loans to subsidiary undertakings 8 (78) -
Profit/(loss) on ordinary activities before finance items
and taxation 5,647 (32)
Finance income - group undertakings 194 308
Other finance income 9 90 66
Finance expense — group undertakings (163) {190)
Other finance expense 9 (142) (142)
Profit on ordinary activities before taxation 5,626 10
Tax credit/(charge) on profit on crdinary activities 10 34 (4)
Profit for the financial year 21 5,660 6

The profit on ordinary activities before taxation 1s derrved from continuing operations

There 15 no matenial difference between the profit on ordinary activities before taxatton and the profit for the financial

year stated above and their historical cost equivalents




Experian Finance plc

Statement of total recognised gains and losses
for the year ended 31 March 2007

2007 2006
£m £m
Profit for the financial year 5,660 il
Actuarial gain in respect of defined benefit pension scheme (note 26) 30 8
Movement on deferred tax relating to pension asset (8) (2)
Tax (charge)/credit in respect of other items taken directly to equity @) 3
Total recognised gams and losses relating to the year 5,680 15
Reconciliation of movement in total equity shareholders’ funds
for the year ended 31 March 2007
2007 2006
£m £m
Profit for the financial year 5,660 6
Equity dividends paid during the year (216) (234)
Dividend 1n specie relating to the demerger of Home Retail Group (5,050) -
Dividend 1n specie relating to the demerger of Burberry Group plc - (437)
Proceeds from shares allotted under share option schemes 47 30
Actuarial gam in respect of defined benefit pension schemes (note 26) 30 8
Credit 1n respect of share incentive schemes 35 28
Transfer of ESOP shares at fair value 63 -
Purchase of ESOP shares (6) (16)
Tax (charge)/credit m respect of items taken to equity (16) 1
Cumulative adjustment for the implementation of FRS 26 - 7
Net increase/(decrease) in equity shareholders’ funds in the financial year 553 (657)
Opening total equity shareholders” funds 1,507 2,164
Closing total equity shareholders’ funds 2,060 1,507




Experian Finance plc

Balance sheet
at 31 March 2007

Notes 2007 2007 2006 2006
(Represented)  (Represented)
(Note 1) (Note 1)
£m £m £m £m
Fixed assets
Tangible assets 12 1 3
Investments in group undertakings 13 6,193 6,193
6,194 6,196
Current assets
Debtars - due within one year 14 2,691 3,332
- due after more than one year 14 48 2,739 83 3,415
Cash at bank and n hand 319 -
3,058 3,415
Current habilities
Creditors - amounts due within one year 15 (6,503) (6,241)
Net current habilities (3,445) (2,826)
Total assets less current liabihities 2,749 3,370
Creditors - amounts due after more than one year 16 (707) (1,851)
Retirement benefit asset/(obligations) 26 18 {(12)
Net assets 2,060 1,507
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 20 258 256
Share premium account 20 50 97
Profit and loss account 21 £,755 1,154
Total equity shareholders’ funds 2,060 1,507

The financial statements on pages 7 to 36 were approved by the Board of Directors on 25 September 2007 and were

signed on s behalf by

' Mt

M Pepper
Director




Experian Finance plc

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2007

1 Basis of preparation and significant accounting policies
(a) Basis of preparation

The Company’s financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis and under the historical cost
convention, modified by the revaluation of certain financial instruments, and in accordance with the Companies Act
1985 legislation 1n force and applicable Accounting Standards in the United Kingdom, which have been consistently
applied

The Company has received a letter of support from the ultimate parent undertaking, Experian Group Limited, which
contfirms the intention to provide financial support over a period of at least 18 months from 18 September 2007 As a result
of the continued financial support, the directors of the Company are satisfied that the gong concern basis remains
appropriate

The Company prepared group financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2006 as 1t was the ultimate parent
undertaking of the GUS Group throughout that year Those financial statements, which comprised the balance sheet and
the related notes, were presented tn the GUS annual report for that year Under section 228 (1) of the Companies Act
1985, the Company 1s now exempt from the requirement to prepare group accounts on the grounds that it 1s a wholly
owned subsichary, whose results are consohdated into the group financial statements of Experian Group Limited which
are publicly available Accordingly the Company’s financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2007 include a
profit and loss account, a statement of recogrised gains and losses and a reconcthation of movement in total equity
shareholders’ funds together with comparative information  The Company has however taken advantage of the
following exemptions i preparing these financial statements

¢ Cash flow statement As the Company 1s a wholly owned subsidiary of Experian Group Limuted and its cash
flows are tncluded 1n that company’s consolidated cash flow statement, 1t 15 exempt under the terms of Financial
Reporting Standard | (Revised 1996) ‘Cash Flow Statements” from publishing a cash flow statement

o The Company 1s also exempt under the terms of Financial Reporting Standard 8 ‘Related Party Disclosures’
from disclosing transactions with other members of the Expertan Group

¢ The Experian Group Limited group financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2007 contain financial
instrument disclosures which comply with Financial Reporting Standard 25 ‘Financial Instrument Disclosure
and Presentation’ Consequently, the Company has taken advantage of the exemption in Financial Reporting
Standard 25 not to present separate financiai instrument disclosures for the Company

The Company’s financial statements are presented in Sterling as this 1s the most representative currency of its operations

An amount of £2,950m advanced to a subsidiary undertaking, formerly reported within debtors as an amount owed by
subsidiary undertakings, has been reclassified as an investment in group undertakings and this reclassification is reflected
within the net assets shown in the balance sheet at 31 March 2006 The impact of the reclassification 1s to reduce debtors
and increase investments in group undertakings by £2,950m from the balances previously presented The directors are of
the opinion that the reclassification more appropriately reflects the long term funding arrangement with the subsidiary
{b) Significant accounting pohicies

The significant accounting policies, applied on a consistent basis with previous years, are noted below

Tangible fixed assets

Land 15 not depreciated Frechold properties are depreciated over 50 years by equal annual instalments Leasehold
prenuses with unexpired lease terms of 50 years or less are depreciated by equal annual instalments over the remaining
period of the lease Plant, vehicles and equipment are depreciated by equal annual instalments over two to ten years
according to the estimated hfe of the asset

Operating leases

Gross rental income and expenditure in respect of operating leases are recogmised on a straight line basis over the
pertods of the leases

Investments in group undertakings

Investments in group undertakings are stated at cost less any provisions necessary for permanent diminution 1n value
Such investments include both investments 1n shares 1ssued by subsidiary undertakings and other parent entity interests

10




Experian Finance plc

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2007 (continued)

[ Basis of preparation and sigmificant accounting policies {continued)

{b) Significant accounting policies (continued)

Investments in group undertakings (continued)

that in substance form part of the parent entity’s imvestment in the subsidiary undertakings These include investments in
the form of interest-free loans which have been provided to substdiaries as an additional source of long-term capital
Trade amounts receivable from subsidiaries in the normal course of business and other amounts advanced on commercial
terms and conditions are included 1n debtors

Investments in assocrated undertakings

Investments in associated undertakings are stated at cost less any provisions necessary for permanent diminution m
value

Impairment of fixed assets

Where there 1s an indication of impairment, fixed assets are subject to review for impairment in accordance with
Fmancial Reporting Standard 11 ‘Impairment of Fixed Assets and Goodwill’ Any impairment ts recogmsed 1n the year
in which it occurs

Cash
Cash includes cash on hand, term and call deposits held with banks and other short-term highly hquid investments
Financial instruments

Borrowings and borrowing cosis

Borrowings are recognised imitially at fair value, net of transaction costs meurred Borrowings are subsequently stated at
amortised cost unless they are part of a fair value hedge accounting relationship Initsal differences between the proceeds
of fixed rate borrowings and the redemption values are recognised in the profit and loss account over the period of the
borrowings using the effective interest rate method Borrowings that are subject to a fair value hedge accounting
relationship are measured at amortised cost adjusted for the fair value attributable to the risk being hedged

Incremental borrowing costs which are directly attributable to the 1ssue of debt are capitalised and amortised over the
expected hife of the borrowing using the effective interest rate method All other borrowing costs are expensed 1n the
year in which they are incurred

Derwvatwve financial instruments

The Company uses derivative financial instruments to manage 1ts exposures to fluctuations in foreign exchange rates,
interest rates and social security obligations in respect of share-based payments Denvative instruments utilised by the
Company nclude interest rate swaps, currency swaps, forward foreign exchange contracts and equity swaps

Derivatives are initially accounted and measured at fair value on the date a derivative contract 1s entered into and
subsequently measured at fair value The accounting treatment of derivatives classified as hedges depends on ther
designation, which occurs on the date that the derivative contract 15 commutted to The Company designates derivatives
as a hedge of the fair value of an asset or hability (‘fair value hedge’)

For an effective hedge of an exposure to changes in the fair value, the hedged item is adjusted for changes in fair value
attributable to the nisk being hedged with the corresponding entry in the profit and loss account Gains or losses from
re-measuring the corresponding hedging instrument are recognised in the profit and loss account

Changes in the fair value of dertvauves or other hedging instruments transacted as hedges of financial items, but for
which hedge accounting has not been apphed, are recogmsed in the profit and loss account as they arise

In order to quahfy for hedge accounting, the Company documents in advance the relationship between the item being
hedged and the hedging nstrument The Company also documents and demonstrates an assessment of the relationship
between the hedged item and the hedging instrument, which shows that the hedge will be highly effective on an ongoing
basis The effectiveness testing 1s re-performed at each period end to ensure that the hedge remains highly effective

Hedge accounting 1s discontinued when the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated, or exercised, or no longer
qualifies for hedge accounting

11




Experian Finance plc

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2007 (continued)

1 Basis of preparation and significant accounting pelicies (continued)
(b} Sigmficant accounting pohicies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Derivatives embedded in other financial nstruments or other host contracts are treated as separate derivatives when their
risks and characteristics are not closely related to those of host contracts, and the host contracts are not carried at fair
value with unrealised gamns or losses reported in the profit and loss account

Financial risk management

The Company’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks market risk including currency rnisk and interest rate
risk, credit risk and hiquidity sk The Company’s overall risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability
of financial markets and seeks to munimse potential adverse effects on the Company’s financial performance The
Company uses derivattve financial instruments to hedge certain risk exposures

The Company seeks to reduce its exposure to foreign exchange, interest rate and other financial nisks It also ensures
surplus funds are managed and controlled 1n a prudent manner which will protect capital sums invested and ensure
adequate short-term hiquidity, whist maximising returns

Market risk
Foreign exchange risk

The Company has investments in foreign operations, whose net assets are exposed to foreign currency translation risk
Currency exposure anising from the net assets of the Company’s foreign operations 1s managed primarily through
borrowings denominated n the relevant foreign currencies and the use of forward foreign exchange contracts

Interest rate risk

The Company has a policy of normally maintaining between 30% and 70% of net debt at rates that are fixed for more
than one year The Company’s interest rate exposure 1s managed by the use of fixed and floating rate borrowings and by
the use of interest rate swaps to adjust the balance of fixed and floating rate liabtlities It also mixes the duration of its
borrowings to smooth the impact of interest rate fluctuations

Credit risk

In the case of deposits and derivative financial instruments, the Company 1s exposed to a credit risk, which results from
the non-performance of contractual agreements on the part of the contract party This credit risk 1s mimimised by a policy
under which the Company only enters into such contracts with banks and financial institutions with strong credit ratings,
within himits set for each organisation Dealing activity 15 closely controlled and counterparty positions are monitored
regularly The general credit risk on derivative financial instruments utilised by the Company 15 therefore not considered
to be significant The maximum credit risk of financial assets 15 represented by the carrying value of the asset net of any
applicable provision for impairment

Liquedity nisk

The Company maintains long-term commtted facilities that are managed to ensure 1t has sufficient available funds for
operations and potential acquisitions

Deferred taxation

Deferred taxation has been recogmsed as a hability or asset 1f transactions have occurred at the balance sheet date that
give rise to an obligation to pay more taxation, or a right to pay less taxation, in the future A deferred tax asset is not
recognised to the extent that the transfer of economuc benefits in the future 1s uncertain Deferred tax assets and liabilities
recogmsed have not been discounted




Experian Finance plc

Notes to the financial statements

for the year ended 31 March 2007 (continued)

1. Basis of preparation and significant acceunting policies (continued)
(b) Significant accounting poheies (continued)

ESOP Trust and Treasury shares

The Company has adopted a policy of holding interests in its own shares m a separately administered Employee Share
Ownership Plan Trust (the ‘Trust’) with the Trust’s liabilines guaranteed by the Company and the Trust’s assets mainly
comprising shares 1n the Company and, after demerger, shares 1n Experian Group Limited and Home Retail Group plc
The assets, Labtlities and expenses of the Trust are included i the Company’s financial statements as 1f they were the
Company’s own

Own shares held by the Trust, together with treasury shares repurchased by the Company, are shown as a deduction from
equity shareholders’ funds at cost

Share-based payments

The Group has a number of equity settled, share-based compensation plans These include awards in respect of shares in
Experian Group Limited made at or after demerger together with awards previously made in respect of shares in the
Company which were rolled over into awards in respect of shares in Experian Group Limited at demerger The 1ssuance
by the Company of share incentives to employees of 1ts subsidiaries prior to demerger represents additional capital
contributions and therefore an increase to the Company’s mvestment in group undertakings with a corresponding
increase 1n equity shareholders’ funds

The far value of options and shares granted 1s recognised after taking into account the best estimate of the number of
awards expected to vest The vesting estimate 1s revised at each balance sheet date and non market performance
conditions are included 1n the vesting estimates  Expenses are incurred over the vesting period Fair value 1s measured at
the date of grant using whichever of the Black-Scholes, Monte Carlo model and closing market price 1s most appropriate
to the award Market based performance conditions are included mn the fair value measurement on grant date and are not
revised for actual performance

Employee benefits
(a) Defined benefit pension arrangements

Penston arrangements for the Company’s employees are operated principally through the Experian Pension Scheme
(formerly the ‘GUS Pension Scheme’) which 1s a defined benefit pension scheme, whose assets are held in an
independently administered fund The pension liabilhity recognised 1n the balance sheet in respect of this arrangement 15
the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the balance sheet date less the fair value of plan assets, together with
adjustments for past service costs The defined benefit obligation 1s calculated annually by independent actuaries using
the projected unit credit method

The present value of the defined benefit obligation 15 determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows using
market yields available at the assessment date on high-quality corperate bonds that are denominated in the currency i
which the benefits will be paid, and that have terms to maturity consistent with the estimated average term of the related
pension hability

Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised 1n
the statement of total recognised gains and losses

Past service costs are recognised immediately in the profit and loss account, unless the changes to the pension plan are
conditional on the employees remaming n service for a specified period of ume (the vesting peried) In this case, the
past service costs are amortised on a straight line basis over the vesting period

The pension cost recognised in the profit and loss account comprises the cost of benefits accrued plus interest on the
defined benefit obligation less expected return on the plan assets over the year

(b) Defined contribution pension arrangements

The Company’s employees also participate in the Experian Money Purchase Pension Plan (formerly the ‘GUS Money
Purchase Pension Plan’), whose assets are also held in an independently administered fund The pension cost recogmsed
wn the profit and loss account represents the employer contributions payable to the scheme 1n respect of the year




Experian Finance plc

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2007 (continued)

1. Basis of preparation and significant accounting policies (continued)
(b) Significant accounting policies (continued)

Employee benefits (continued)

{(c) Other post-employment obligations - Post-retirement healthcare costs

The Company provides post-retirement healthcare benefits to certain retired employees and their dependent relatives
Under this arrangement, the Company has undertaken to meet the cost of post-retrement healthcare insurance for all
ehgible former employees and their dependants who retired prior to 1 Apnil 1994

The expected cost of these benefits 1s calculated using an actuarial methodology simlar to that for defined benefit
pension arrangements Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustments, and changes in actuarial
assumptions, are recognised in the in the statement of total recognised gamns and losses The obligations are valued
annually by independent qualified actuaries

Dividend distribution

Interim dividends are recogmised in the Company’s financial statements when pard Other dividend distributions are
recogmsed 1n the Company’s financial statements in the year in which the dividends are approved in general meeting by
the Company’s shareholders

2. Segmental information

A business segment 1s a group of assets and operations engaged 1n providing products or services that are subject to risks
and returns that are different from those of other business segments A geographical segment 1s engaged in providing
products or services within a particular economic environment and 1s subject to risks and returns that are different from
those of segments operating in other economic environments The Company operates in one business and regards that as
its primary segment The Company also operates in one geographical territory, the Umited Kingdom, which forms its

secondary segment Accordingly no additional segmental information 1s provided wrthun these financial statements

3. Exceptional items

2007 2006

£m £fm

Charge on early vesting and modification of share awards at demerger of Experian
and Home Retail Group 3 -
Other costs incurred relating to the demerger of Experian and Home Retail Group 55
Profit on disposal of shares in Burberry - (5)
Costs incurred relating to the demerger of Burberry - 5
Warver of loan due to Home Retail Group 7 -
Foreign exchange gain on loan due to subsidiary undertaking (10
Total 41 3

During the year ended 31 March 2007 costs of £55m (2006 £3m) were incurred in relation to the demerger of Expertan and
Home Retail Group, a fundamental reorgamsation of the Company’s subsidiary undertakings These costs comprise legal
and professional fees 1n respect of the transaction, together with costs in connection with the restructuring of the corporate
functions of GUS plc in the year [n connection with the demerger, a loan due to Home Retail Group of £7m was waived in
the year ended 31 March 2007 (2006 ml) A further gan of £10m on the revaluation of a loan due to a subsidiary
undertaking following a group reorganisation has been recognised in the year ended 31 March 2007 (2006 nil)
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Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2007 (continued)

4 Expenses
{1) Staff costs
Operating loss 1s stated after charging
2007 20006
£m im
Wages and salaries 7 7
Social security costs 1 2
Share-based payments 6 7
Pension costs - defined benefit plans (note 26} 2 4
Total 16 20
(11) Fees payable to the Company’s auditor and 1ts associates
The Company audit fee was £0 4m (2006 £0 3m)
Fees in respect of non-audit services comprised
2007 2006
£m £m
Taxation services 1 2
Services in respect of the demerger 10 2
Total fees payable to the Company’s auditor and 1ts associates for other services 1 4
(11} Other items
2007 2006
’ £m £m
Net operating lease rental expense, other than plant and machinery 1 l
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment - owned assets 2 -

As a result of the demerger, the Company has adopted a policy of recharging costs based on services provided by the
Company to fellow group undertakings The amount recharged 1n the year ended 31 March 2007 was £11m (2006 nil)




Experian Finance plc

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2007 (continued)

5 Directors’ emoluments
2007 2006
£m £m
Aggregate emoluments 6 5

Aggregate value of Company contributions to defined contribution pension arrangements - 1

During the year there have been a number of changes 1n the directors of the Company and the emoluments, exercise of
share options and vesting of share awards reported within this note are in respect of periods to the date of resignation or
from the date of appointment as apppropriate

Retirement benefits are accruing to 6 directors holding office at the end of the year (2006 4 directors) under defined
benefit pension arrangements Benefits accrued during the year to three further directors Retirement benefits are
accruing to one director holding office at the end of the year (2006 3 directors) under defined contribution pension
arrangements

A number of former directors receive pensions from the Company under unfunded arrangements and such pensions paid
1n the year totalled £0 4m (2006 £0 4m)

During the year 7 directors exercised options over the ordinary shares of the Company In the year ended 31 March
2006, one director exercised options over the ordinary shares of the Company No director exercised any options n
respect of the ordinary shares of Experian Group Limited, the Company’s ultimate parent undertaking, in the period from
the date of demerger until 31 March 2007

During the year no awards m respect of ordinary shares of Experian Group Limited under long-term incentive plans were
released to directors Prior to the demerger, share awards in respect of ordinary shares of the Company under long-term
incentive plans were released to 4 directors (2006 3 directors)

Highest paid director 2007 2006
£m £fm

Total amount of emoluments and amounts (excluding shares) receivable under

long-term incentive plans 1.2 13

Defined benefit pension arrangement accrued pension at year end 0.5 01

The highest paid director in the year ended 31 March 2007 was Mr J W Peace, the highest paid director in the year
ended 31 March 2006 was Mr D Robert Both are directors of Expertan Group Limited and further details of their
remuneration are given in the financial statements of that company

The accrued pension under defined pension arrangements n respect of the year ended 31 March 2007 represents the
pension in payment at 1 Apru 2007 as Mr Peace retired from the Experian Pension Scheme on 31 March 2007 The
accrued pension under defined pension arrangements in respect of the year ended 31 March 2006 represents the deferred
penston to which Mr Robert would have been entitled had he left the Company at 31 March 2006

In the year ended 31 March 2007, Mr Peace did not exercise options over ordinary shares of Experian Group Limited
but, prior to the demerger, he exercised options over ordinary shares of the Company In the year ended 31 March 2006,
Mr Robert exercised options over ordinary shares of the Company

in the year ended 31 March 2007, no awards in respect of ordinary shares of Experian Group Limited under long-term
incentive plans were released to Mr Peace In the period from 1 April 2006 to the date of demerger, awards 1n respect of
ordinary shares of the Company under long-term incentive plans were released to Mr Peace In the year ended 31 March
2006, no awards 1n respect of the ordinary shares of the Company under long-term incentive plans were released to Mr
Raobert

6. Employee information

The Company employed a monthly average of 62 (2006 65) employees, including executive directors, during the year
All the Company's employees were employed n administrative roles
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Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2007 (continued)

7. Income from fixed asset investments
2007 2006
£m £m
Dividends received from subsidiary undertakings 5,781 2

Dividends received from subsidiary undertakings in the year ended 31 March 2007 include £5,000m in respect of the
transfer of shares in a subsidiary undertaking in settlement of an obligation by another subsidiary undertaking to pay a
dividend of that amount to the Company (see note 13) A further divided of £781 m was received n the year (2006
£2m)

8. Impairment of loans to subsidiary undertakings

The charge 1n respect of the impairment of loans to subsidiary undertakings followed a review of their recoverability in
accordance with the requirements of FRS 11

9 Other finance inconte and expense
(1) Other finance income

2007 20006

£m £m

Interest income
Bank deposits 6 -
Loan notes - 8
Interest on derivatives 3 26
Return on pension scheme assets 22 20
Interest income 3t 54
Financing fair value gains
Farr value gains on non hedging derivatives S0 12
Foreign exchange transaction gains 9 -
Financing fair value gains 59 12
Other finance income 90 66
(1) Other finance expense

2007 2006

£m £m

Interest expense
Bank loans and overdrafts 45 38
Eurcbonds and notes 62 63
Commitment and facility utilisation fees 1 1
Return on pension scheme liabilities 17 17
Interest expense 125 119
Financing fair value losses
[neffective portion of fair value hedges of borrowings 3 1
Fair value losses on non-hedging derivatives 14 2
Foreign exchange transaction losses - 20
Financing fair value losses 17 23
Finance expense 142 142
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Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2007 (continued)

10. Tax on profit for the year

(1) Analysis of (credit)/charge recognised 1n the year 2007 2006
£m £m

UK Current tax

UK Corporation tax (credit)/charge on income for the year (18) 1

Adjustments in respect of prior years - ()

Current tax credit (18) -

Deferred taxation

Ornigination and reversal of temporary differences (16) !

Adjustments in respect of prior years - 3

Total deferred tax {credit)/charge for the year (16) 4

Total tax (credit)/charge (34) 4

(1) Tax reconcihation

The current tax (credit)/charge for the year 1s lower (2006 Jower) than the standard rate of corporation tax in the Umited
Kingdom of 30% (2006 30%) The differences are explained below

2007 2006
£m £m

Profit on ordinary activities before taxation 5,626 10
Profit on ordinary activities before taxation multiplied by the standard rate of
Corporation tax 1n the UK of 30% 1,688 3
Effects of
Operating expense and exceptional costs not deductible for UK Corporation tax 12 3
Dividends and other income not liable to UK Corporation tax (1,734) n
Group relief surrendered not paid for - (3)
Movement in short term and other iming differences 16 (D
Adjustments 1n respect of prior years - (n
Current tax (credit)/charge for the year (18) -

The directors have considered the taxation effect of UK to UK transfer pricing legislation on nen interest bearing inter
group loans and are satssfied that any associated tax charge/(credit) arising will be offset by compensating adjustments
from other group companies such that no additional taxation asset or Liability should arise Therefore no entries in
respect of these items have been reflected within these financial statements as the net impact on both the tax charge and
net assets 15 nil

{mm) Factors that may affect future tax charges

In the foreseeable future, the Company’s tax charge will continue to be influenced by the nature of its income and
expenditure in subsequent accounting periods, and could be affected by changes n tax law
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Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2007 (continued)

11 Dividends

2007 2006

£m £m

Amounts recognised and pard as distributions to equity holders during the year
Dividends paid prior to demerger
Interim - 82
Final 187 202
Total 187 284
Dividends paid after demerger
Interim dividend paid pursuant to the income access share arrangements 3 -
Interim dividend paid to Experian Investment Holdings Limited 21 -
Total 29 -
Ordinary dividends paid on equity shares 216 284
Dividend in specie relating to the demerger of Home Retall Group 5,050 -
Dividend 1n specie relating to the demerger of Burberry Group plc - 437

On 4 August 2006, the Company paid a final dividend 11 respect of the year ended 31 March 2006 of 21 9p per ordinary
share at a cost of £187m to shareholders on the register of members on 7 July 2006 In the year ended 31 March 2006, the
Company paid a total dividend of 30 1p per ordinary share at a cost of £284m These dividends were recerved by GUS plc
shareholders Since the demerger, an interim dividend has been paid to Experian Group Limited shareholders pursuant to
the income access share arrangements which were put in place as part of the demerger and which are explained n the group
and parent financial statements of Experian Group Limited

Additionally, in the year ended 31 March 2007 the GUS plc shareholders at 6 October 2006 received a dividend in specie 1n
relation to the demerger of Home Retail Group, in the year ended 31 March 2006 GUS plc shareholders received a dividend
1n specie 1 relation to the demerger of Burberry Group ple

12 Tangible fixed assets

Freehold Short Plant & Total

property teasehold equipment

properties
fm £m £m £m

Cost
At 1 Apnl 2006 1 1 2 4
Disposals - Q)] - (1)
At 31 March 2007 1 - 2 3
Accumulated depreciation
At I Apnl 2006 - - 1 1
Charge for the year - 1 1 2
Disposals - () - (1)
At 31 March 2007 - - 2 2
Net book value at 31 March 2006 1 1 1
Net book value at 31 March 2007 1 - - 1

There 15 no matenat difference between the net book value of properties carned at valuation and their historical cost
equivalents

The Company did not hold any tangible fixed assets under finance leases at 31 March 2007 or 31 March 2006
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13. Investments

Shares in Other Total

group  nvestments n

undertakings group

undertaking
£m £m £m

Cost less proviston for permanent diminution n value

At 31 March 2006 — as previously reported 3,243 - 3,243
Reclasstfication of advance to subsidiary undertaking (note 1) - 2,950 2,950
At 31 March 2006 — as reclasstfied 3,243 2,950 6,193
Additions 5,062 - 5,062
Disposal of Home Retail Group by dividend 1n specie (5,050) - (5,050)
Other disposals (12) - (12)
At 31 March 2007 3,243 2,950 6,193

Additions for the year include £5,000m 1n respect of the transfer of shares in Hampden Group Limited, a subsidiary
undertaking, m settlement of an obhgation by another subsidiary undertaking to pay a dividend of that amount to the
Company This transaction was carried out in connection with a group reorganisation prior to the demerger Pursuant to
the same reorganisatton, the Company acquired the whole of the 1ssued share capital of All Counties Insurance Company
Limited, ARG Insurance Services Limited, Global (Guernsey) Limited, Whiteaway Laidlaw Bank Limited, Motorfile
Limited, and Vehicle Mileage Check Limited from subsidiary undertakings for a total of £40m and became their direct
parent undertaking A capital contribution of £22m was recognised 1n respect of share incentives 1ssued to employees of
subsidiary undertakings in the pericd prior to the demerger

The Company also acquired, from a subsidiary undertaking, and disposed of, to a subsidiary undertaking, the Group’s
interest in AA GUS NV, an associated undertaking The consideration for both these transactions was £5m

With the exception of the mterests i Motorfile Limited and Vehicle Mileage Check Limited, the interests 1n these
companies formed part of the net assets distributed by way of dividend in specie on the demerger of Home Retail Group
Capital contributions to Home Retail Group of £50m arising 1n respect of share incentives 1ssued to its employees n the
periods prior to the demerger were cluded in the net assets distributed by way of dividend in specie

The principal subsidiary and associate undertakings of the Company at 31 March 2007 are hsted below A full hst of the
Company’s substdiary undertakings and other significant holdings will be annexed to the next Annual Return of the
Company

Country of % of Nature of business
meorporation ordinary
shares held

Experian Holdings Limited England and Wales 100% Holding company
Experian Limited England and Wales 100% Information services
ClarityBlue Limited England and Wales 100% Information services
QAS Limited England and Wales 100% Information services
Experian A/S Denmark 100% Information services
Expenan Holdings France S A France 100% Information services
Creditinform AS Norway 100% Information services
Expenan North America, Inc USA 100% Information services
Consumerlnfo com USA 100% Information services
PriceGrabber com USA 100% Information services
LowerMyBills com USA 100% Information services
Experian [nformation Selutions Inc USA 100% Information services
Experian Services Corporation USA 100% Information services
Experian Marketing Solutions In¢ USA 100% Information services
Associate

First American Real Estate Solutions LLC USA 20% Information services

None of the above undertakings 1s held directly by the Company
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14 Debtors

Due within Due after  Due within one Due after
one year more than year more than
one year one year

(Represented)

(Note 1}
2007 2007 2006 20006
£m £m £m £m
Amounts owed by subsidiary undertakmgs 2,660 - 3,161 -
Taxation recoverable - - 22 -
Deferred tax assets (note 19) - 20 - 7

VAT recoverable - - 1
Deferred consideration receivable - - 140 -
Prepayments and accrued income 4 - 4 -
Other financial assets (note 13) 27 28 4 76
2,691 48 3,332 83

As indicated 1n note 1, the amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings due within one year has been represented An
amount of £2,950m advanced, formerly reported within amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings, 1s now reported as an
mvestment in group undertakings with comparative figures reclassified accordingly This reduced the reported amounts
owed by subsidiary undertakings from £6,111m to £3,161m at 31 March 2006

The deferred consideration of £140m in respect of the disposal of the home shopping and Reality businesses was
received by the Company i April 2006 from March UK Limited

15 Creditors — amounts due within one year

2007 2006
£m £m
Loans and overdrafts (note 17) 605 218
Amounts due to subsidiary undertakings 5,869 5,954
Taxation payable 7 -
Accruals 16 28
Other creditors 6 20
Other financial habihoes {note 18) - 21
6,503 6,241

16 Creditors ~ amounts due after more than one year
2007 2006
£m £m
Loans (note 17) 686 1,843
Other financial habities (note 18) 21 8
707 1,851
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17. Loans and overdrafis

2007 2006
£m £m
Repayable wholly within five years
€548m 4 125% Eurobonds 2007 382 395
£350m 6 375% Eurobonds 2009 367 356
Bank loans - 750
Overdrafis 223 218
972 1,719
Repayable after more than five years
£334m 5 625% Eurobonds 2013 318 342
1,291 2,061
The amounts due to be repaid within five years are repayable as follows
2007 2006
£m £m
Within one year 605 218
Between one and two years - 775
Between two and five years 367 726
972 1,719

During the year ended 31 March 2007, 4 125% Euronotes 2007 with a notional value of €20m and 5 625% Euronotes
2013 with a notional value of £16m were redeemed There were no such redemptions during the year ended 31 March
2006

The effective interest rate of Euronotes and Eurobonds approximates to the nominal rate indicated above
All borrowings of the Company are unsecured

On 12 July 2006, the Company entered nto a 5-year multi-currency revolving credit facihty of £1,247m  On 17
November 2006, Experian Group Limited acceded to this facility as a borrower and a guarantor At the balance sheet
date there were no drawings made under this facility

At 31 March 2007, the Company had undrawn committed borrowing facilties of £1,247m (2006 £530m) of which £nil
(2006 £100m) expires within one year of the balance sheet date and £1,247m (2006 £430m) expire more than two years
after the balance sheet date These facilities are i place for general corporate purposes, including the financing of
acquisilons
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18 Other financial assets and habilities

Due within Due after Due within Due after
one year more than one one year more than
Year one year
2007 2007 2006 2006
£m £m £m £m
a) Other financial assets
Derivative financial instruments
Interest rate swaps 1 18 2 41
Foreign exchange contracts 1 - - -
Currency swap 15 - - 27
Equity swaps - - 2 2
Available-for-sale assets
Listed investments - 10 - 6
Total other financial assets 27 28 4 76
b) Other financial liabilities
Derivative financial instruments
[nterest rate swaps - 21 2 8
Foreign exchange contracts - - 19 -
Total other financtal labilittes - 21 21 8

Listed investments are held in respect of arrangements put in place during the year ended 31 March 2006 to secure
unfunded pension benefit arrangements already in place for certam directors and senior managers of the Company by
granting charges to an independent trustee over independently managed portfolios of marketable securities owned by the

Company (see note 26)

Additiona! disclosures 1n respect of the financial instruments of the Company are included within note 26 to the group

financial statements of Experian Group Limited, the Company’s ultimate parent undertaking

19. Deferred taxation

Deferred  Pension deferred

taxation taxation

asset asset/(llability)

£m £m

At 31 March 2006 7 -
Reclassification of deferred tax on pension obligations (4) 4
3 4

Profit and loss account 19 (3)
Statement of total recogmised gans and losses (2) (8)
At 31 March 2007 20 (7)
Deferred taxation 1s recognised in full on pension assets The deferred taxation asset in respect of other items 1s analysed

as foltows

Provided Provided

2007 20006

£m £m

Short term timing differences 4 3

Tax losses 16 -
20 3

The Company has not recognised a deferred tax asset of £2m (2006 £2m) i respect of capital losses that can be carried

forward against future taxable gains These losses are available indefinitely

23




Experian Finance plc

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2007 (continued)

20 Share capital and share premum

Number of  Share capital  Share premum
ordinary
shares
m £m £m
Year ended 31 March 2007
At | Apnl 2006 879.2 256 97
Allotted under share option schemes prior to demerger 72 2 38
Cancellation of treasury shares 89 3) (92)
8775 255 43
Cancellation of share capital (877.5) (255) -
Issue of new ordinary shares to Experian Group Limited 8775 255 -
Allotted under share option schemes afier the demerger 12 - 7
At 31 March 2007 878 7 255 50
Year ended 31 March 2006
At1 Aprl 2005 1,017.2 254 69
Allotted under share option schemes 48 2 28
Share consohdation {142 8) - -
At 31 March 2006 8792 256 97

At 31 March 2006 the authorised share capital of the Company amounted to £313m, being 1,075,000,000 ordinary shares of

29 3/43p In October 2006 the Company reclassified one authorised but umissued ordinary share as a deferred share and

1ssued 1t to Expertan Group Limited  The Company also 1ssued 8,360,864 ordinary shares of 29 3/43p each during the year,

including 1,237,443 ordinary shares of 29 3/43p 1ssued after the demerger The Company cancelled 8,919,334 ordwmary

shares of 29 3/43p each held in treasury prior to the demerger

In connection with the demerger in October 2006, and under the terms of a Scheme of arrangement pursuant to the

provisions of Section 425 of the Companies Act 2005, the Company cancelled its then 1ssued 877,444,999 ordimnary shares

of 29 3/43p each and 1ssued 877,444,999 new ordinary shares of 29 3/43p each to Experian Group Limsted which in turn

issued an equa! number of its ordinary shares to the public shareholders of the Company As a result the Company became a

wholly owned subsidiary of Experian Group Linuted

The Company subsequently reclassified one authonsed but unissued ordinary share as an income access share and 1ssued
that share At 31 March 2007 the authonsed share capital of the Company amounted to £313m, being 1,074,999,998
ordmary shares of 29 3/43p each, one deferred share of 29 3/43p and one income access share of 29 3/43p At 31 March
2007 878,682,442 ordinary shares, one deferred share of 29 3/43p each and one income access share of 29 3/43p each

(2006 879,240,912 ordinary shares of 29 3/43p each) had been allotted, called up and fully paid Since the balance sheet

date a further 6,743 ordinary shares have been allotted All of the Company’s allotted share capital has been fully paid

In the year ended 31 March 2006, there was a share consolidation, in connection with the demerger of Burberry Group plc,

whereby the par value of the Company’s shares was changed from 25p to 29 3/43p

The share premium account 1s not available for distribution
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21 Reserves

Treasury and  Profit and loss Total profit Other
ESOP shares account and loss reserve
reserve
£m £m £m £m

At 31 March 2006 (264) 1,418 1,154 -
Profit for the financial year - 5,660 5,660 -
Equity dividends paid during the year - (216) (216) -
Creation of other reserve on cancellation of share
captal (note 20) - - - 255
Utilisation of other reserve on 1ssue of share capital
to Experian Group Lamited (note 20) - - - (255)
Dividend in specie relating to the demerger of Home
Retail Group - (5,050) (5,050) -
Actuarial gain in respect of defined benefit pension
schemes - 30 30 -
Credit in respect of share incentive schemes 35 35 -
Cancellation of treasury shares 95 - 95 -
Purchase of ESOP shares (6) . 6) -
Shares released from ESOP Trust 95 (935) - -
Transfer of ESOP shares at fair value 80 (in 63 -
Tax charge in respect of 1tems taken to equity - (10) {10) -
At 31 March 2007 - 1,755 1,755 -

Treasury and ESOP shares represent the cost of shares in the Company purchased by the ESOP Trust to satisfy the Group's
obligations under 1ts share incentive plans and shares purchased in share buy-backs During the year ended 31 March 2006,
the ESOP Trust purchased 4,082,187 shares at a cost of £36m During the year ended 31 March 2007, the Company’s

interest in this ESOP Trust was transferred to Experian Group Limited

22 Commitments

(1) Capital commitments

There are no significant capital commitments (2006 nil) relating to the Company

{1} Operating lease commitments

Annual commitments for land and buildings, where the commitment expires in more than five years, amounted to nil
(2006 £1m) During the year the Company assigned 1ts leasehold mterest in the former GUS corporate headquarters in

London

23 Contingencies

In the United States, there are a number of pending and threatened Iitigation claims involving subsidiary undertakings of
the Company which are being vigorously defended The directors do not believe that the outcome of any such pending

or threatened litigation will have a material adverse effect on the Company’s financial position  However, as 15 iherent
1n legal proceedings, there 15 a risk of outcomes unfavourable to the Company In the case of unfavourable outcomes the
Company would benefit from applicable mnsurance recovenes
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24 Options and awards in respect of the Company’s shares

As indicated 1n note 1, the majonty of options and awards in respect of the Company’s ordinary shares were rolled-over
inic Experian equivalent awards at the time of demerger A small number of options in respect of the ordinary shares of
the Company remained outstanding at 31 March 2007 and these were either exercised or lapsed in April 2007 Details of
the number of unexercised options and awards are shown below

(1) Options and awards cutstanding in respect of the ordinary shares of the Company at 31 March 2006

2006

Number (m)

The GUS plc Performance Share Plan 2
The GUS plc Co-Investment Plan 6
The 1998 Approved and Non-Approved Executive Share Option Schemes 14
The North America Stock Option Plan 5
The GUS plc Savings Related Share Option Scheme 9
36

Options and awards outstanding in respect of the ordinary shares of the Company at 31 March 2007 are disclosed below
{11} Awards under the GUS plc Performance Share Plan

During the year ended 31 March 2007, awards were made under this plan in respect of 1,542,619 (2006 767,507) ordmary
shares in the Company At 31 March 2007 awards in respect of nil (2006 2,111,640 ordinary shares remained cuistanding

During the year ended 31 March 2007, 1,254,072 (2006 569,827) ordinary shares were released to beneficiaries of the GUS
plc Performance Share Plan from the GUS Employee Share Ownership Plan Trust

{ur) Awards under the GUS plc Co-Investment Plan

During the year ended 31 March 2007, awards were made under this plan in respect of 1,269,598 (2006 1,654,305)
ordinary shares tn the Company At 31 March 2007 awards in respect of nil (2006 6,050,860) ordinary shares remained
outstanding

During the year ended 31 March 2007, 1,408,978 (2006 910,880) ordinary shares were released to beneficiaries of the GUS
plc Co-Investment Plan from the GUS Employee Share Ownership Plan Trust

(1v) Options under the 1998 Approved and Non-Approved Executive Share Option Schemes

Unexercised options granted under these schemes 1n respect of ordinary shares in the Company are as follows

Number of Number of Exercise Pertod of exercise
shares 2007 shares 2006 price
- 182,625 3757p From 07 04 2003 to 06 04 2010
- 1,016,274 612 7p From 11 06 2004 to 10 06 2011
- 130,707 635 0p From 17 122004 t0 16 12 2011
- 1,106,158 653 0p From 06 06 2005 to 05 06 2012
- 181,226 554 0p From23 122005t022 12 2012
- 3,234,502 675 5p From 19 06 2006 to 18 06 2013
- 72,481 757 Op From 02 12 2006 to 01 12 2013
6,207 3,245,338 809 2p From 01 06 2007 to 31 052014
- 146,506 867 Op From24 11 2007t0 23 11 2014
- 3,883,511 858 5p From 31 05 2008 to 30 05 2015
- 526,756 381 0p From22 1120081t0 21 i1 2015
6,207 13,726,084

During the year ended 31 March 2007, options were granted under these schemes n respect of 4,023,640 (2006
4,544,943) ordinary shares in the Company

During the year ended 31 March 2007, 2,845,954 (2006 3,603,506) ordinary shares were 1ssued following the exercise of
such share options
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24, Options and awards in respect of the Company’s shares {(continued)
(v) Options under the North America Stock Option Plan

Unexercised options granted under these schemes in respect of ordinary shares in the Company are as follows

Number of Number of Exercise Period of exercise
shares 2007 shares 2006 price

- 27,057 381 3p From 14 06 2001 to 13 06 2006

- 6,983 526 Op From 06 12 2001 to 05 12 2006

2,054 421,964 612 7p From 11 06 2002 to 10 06 2007

- 854,905 653 Op From 06 06 2003 to 05 06 2008

- 42,206 554 0p From 23 12 2003 t0 22 12 2008

3,079 1,292,235 675 5p From 19 06 2004 to 18 06 2009

- 28,054 757 Op From 02 12 2004 to 01 12 2009

3,776 1,270,788 809 2p From 01 06 2005 to 31 05 2010

- 23,689 867 0p From 24 11 2005 t0 23 11 2010

1,381 1,353,910 858 5p From 31 05 2006 to 30 05 2011

- 39,835 881 0p From22 112006 to 21 11 2011

10,290 5,361,626

During the year ended 31 March 2007, options were granted under this plan 1n respect of 3,597,013 (2006 1,448,483)
ordinary shares 1n the Company All such options are to be satisfied by the transfer of aiready 1ssued ordinary shares

During the year ended 31 March 2007, 925,530 {2006 1,221,312) ordinary shares were released to beneficianies from the
GUS Employee Share Ownership Plan Trust following the exercise of such share options

{v1) Options under savings related share option schemes

Unexercised options granted under these schemes i respect of ordinary shares in the Company are as follows

Number of Number of Exercise Period of exercise
shares 2007 shares 2006 price
- 2,119,222 384 Op From 01 052006 to 31 10 2006
- 1,090 523 0p From ¢1 09 2005 to 28 02 2006
- 617,146 523 0p From 01 09 2007 to 29 02 2008
- 1,247,888 508 Op From 01 09 2006 to 28 02 2007
2,275 746,151 508 Op From 01 09 2008 to 28 02 2009
3,097 1,739,952 648 Op From 01 09 2007 to 29 02 2008
- 520,873 648 Op From 01 09 2009 to 28 02 2010
658 1,531,485 687 Op From 01 09 2008 to 28 02 2009
713 588,648 687 Op From 01 092010 1o 28 62 2011
6,743 9,112,455

During the yvear ended 31 March 2007, options were granted under these schemes 1n respect of ml (2006 2,341,872)
ordinary shares in the Company

During the year ended 31 March 2007, 5,513,310 (2006 1,114,705) ordinary shares were 1ssued following the exercise of
such share options

In addion 1,598 shares (2006 152,148) were 1ssued in connection with savings based share schemes 1n France and the
United States At 31 March 2006, savings of £710,000 were held in these schemes giving a right to acquire 84,031
ordiary shares in the Company
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for the year ended 31 March 2007 (continued)

25 Share-based payment arrangements

Prior to demerger, the Company’s employees participated 1n share-based incentive plans in respect of ordinary shares of
the Company On demerger, certain GUS awards vested early and the Company mcurred a charge of £2m on the
acceleration of these awards

On demerger, the majority of the outstanding GUS share and option awards held by the Company’s employees rolled-
over 1nto Experian equivalent awards Expernan rolled-over awards are share-based incentive plans in respect of
ordinary shares in Expertan Group Limited The quantity and exercise price of grants were modified to adjust for the
difference between GUS and Experian share prices The roll-over resulted in an incremental change i fair value of
£1m, which was charged to the profit and loss account n the year The incremental fair value was primarily as a result
of an assumption i respect of the higher volatility of the Experian share price

The following information relates to options and awards held by the Company’s employees

{1) Optrons n respect of ordinary shares
(a) Summary of arrangements and information relating to option valuation techniques
Experian demerger plan - Experian Share Option Plan

For a summary of the terms of the Experian Share Option Plan, refer to note 31{a)(1) to the Experian Group Linited
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2007 Experian Group Limited 1s incorporated n Jersey and its financial
statements are available from the Company Secretary, Experian Group Limited, Newenham House, Northern Cross,
Malahide Road, Dublin 17, Ireland

The Company uses the Black Scholes model to determine an appropriate value of the option grants For a description of how
the inputs mto the model are calculated, refer to note 31(a){in) to the Experian Group Limited financial statements

The weighted average estimated fawr values and the inputs mto the Black-Scholes models, for the Experian Share Option
Plan, are as follows

Werghted average

2007

Fair value (£) 126
Share price on grant date (£) 562
Exercise price (£) 561
Expected volatility 28 0%
Expected dividend yield 33%
Risk free rate 4 8%
Expected option life to exercise (years) 4 43 years

Experian Roll-over plans (formerly GUS plans)

For a summary of the terms of The 1998 Approved and Non-Approved Executive Share Option Schemes and Savings
related share option schemes, refer to note 3 1(a)(1) of the Experian Group Limited financial statements

The Company uses the Black Scholes model to determine an appropriate value of the option grants For a description of
how the mputs into the model are calculated, refer to note 31(a)(1u) to the Experian Group financial statements

28




Experian Finance plc

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2007 (continued)

25. Share-based payment arrangements {(continued)

The weighted average estimated fair values and the inputs into the Black Scholes models, for the former GUS plans, are as
follows

Arrangements The 1998 Approved and
Non-Approved Executive

5 lated
Share Option Schemes avings relate

share option schemes

Weighted Weighted Weighted Weighted

average average average average

2007 2006 2007" 2006
Fair value (£) 206 160 n/a 2 46
Share price on grant date (£) 935 853 n/a 896
Exercise price (£) 926 86l n/a 687
Expected volatility 29.4% 27 8% n/a 25 5%
Expected dividend yield 35% 4 0% n/a 38%
Risk free interest rate 4 7% 4 3% n/a 4 1%
Expected option life to exercise 4 years 4 years n/a 3 56 years

1 Weighted average for the peniod up to demerger

Options over GUS plc shares granted n the period up to demerger had a weighted average fair value of £2 06 (2006 £1 61)

(b) Weighted average share price

2007 2006

£ £

Weighted average share price of Experian Group Limited ' 590 n‘a
GUS plc share price at demerger 990 n/a
Weighted average share price of GUS plc? 982 932

1 Expenan's weighted average share price for 2007 1s for the peniod from the lising date, of 11 October 2006, to 31
March 2007

2 Weighted average share price for 2007 15 1n respect of the pertod up to demerger

Options 1n respect of ordmary shares in Expenian Group Limited and GUS plc were exercised on a regular basis throughout
the periods that the respective shares were in 1ssue
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25 Share-based payment arrangements (conitnued)
{c) Reconciliation of movement in the number of share options
Number of Weighted
options average
exercise
price
2006 2006
m £
Options in respect of shares in GUS plc outstanding at the beginning of the year 2 622
New grants 1 804
Forfeitures' () 640
Options i respect of GUS plc shares outstanding at the end of year 2 678

Options m respect of GUS plc shares exercisable at the end of the year

| For the Savings related share option schemes, this includes non-leavers whao have failed the savings requirement

Number of Weighted
options average
2007 exercise
m price
2007
£
Options 1n respect of shares in GUS plc outstanding at begmning of the year 2 678
New grants 1 926
Options tn respect of shares in GUS plc at demerger 3 764
GUS options rolled into Experian equivalent awards 3 7 86
Conversion to Expenan Group Limited awards at an average roll-over ratio of
176 ]
Experian equivalent roll-over awards 4 445
Opuions in respect of shares in Expenan Group Limited shares granted on or
after demerger to Company employees 1 561
Options 1n respect of shares in Experian Group Lunited outstanding at the end
of the year 5 471
Optiens 1n respect of Experian Group Limited shares exercisable at the end of
the year ] 368
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25, Share-based payment arrangements (continued)

(d) Options outstanding at the end of the year

Share options in respect of Experian Group Limiuted shares outstanding at the end of the year had the following exercise
prices and remaining contractual lives

Number of Weghted average  Weighted average remaining hves

Range of exercise prices (£) options exercise price

m £ Expected years Contractual years
34 1 369 01 35
4-5 2 471 18 78
5-6 2 535 35 93

1 To the extent that options have been rolled into Experian demerger plans, the 2007 puts for share price at grant date and
exercise price have been rebased to be comparable with the Experian Group Limited share price at demerger and reflect the
consequent changes to option terms

Options in respect of GUS plc shares outstanding as at 31 March 2006 had the following exercise prices and remaining
contractual lives

Number of Weighted average  Weighted average remaining hives

Range of exercise prices (£) options exercise price

m £ Expected years  Contractual years
6-7 1 659 09 63
§-9 1 8 40 45 65

{11} Share awards n respect of ordinary shares
Summary of arrangements

Experian demerger plans

For a summary of the terms of the Experian Performance Share Plan, Experian Free Shares Plan, Experian UK Approved
All-Employee Plan and Experian Remvestment Plan please refer to note 31(b)(1) to the Experian Group financial statements
For the share grant valuation assumptions please refer to note 31(b)(u} to the Experian Group financial statements

Former GUS share plans

For a summary of the terms of the Co-investment Plan and Performance Share Plan, refer to note 31(b)(1) to the Experian
Group Limited financial statements For the share grant valuation assumptions please refer to note 31(b)(n) to the Experian
Group financial statements

For Experian demerger plans there were 4,691,228 shares granted in 2007 te Company employees, with a weighted
average award fair value of £5 62 For former GUS plans there were 429,517 shares granted 1n 2007 (2006 946,763) to
Company employees, with a weighted average award fair value of £6 28 (2006 £7 22)

() Summary of the total cost of share-based compensation 1n respect of ordnary shares

2007 2006

£m £m

Share option awards 2 ]
Share grant awards 11 6
Total expense recogmsed (all equity settled) 13 7
Associated National Insurance cost 1 |
Total expense recognised 14 8
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Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2007 (continued)

26 Pensions and other post-retirement benefits

The Company’s employees participate 10 both defined benefit and defined contribution pension plans In addition the
Company provides post-retirement healthcare insurance benefits to certain former employees of the Company and its
subsidiary undertakings

The Company's defined benefit pension plan i1s the Experian Pension Scheme (formerly the ‘GUS Pension Scheme’) and its
defined contribution pension plan 1s the Experian Money Purchase Pension Plan (formerly the ‘GUS Money Purchase
Pension Plan’)

A defined benefit plan 1s a pension plan that defines an amount of pension benefit that an employee will receve on
retirement, usually dependent on one or more factors such as age, years of service and compensation A defined
contribution plan 1s a pension plan that defines the amount of contributions that are patd by the Company into an
independently administered fund

(1) Defined benefit scheme

The Experian Pension Scheme has rules which specify the benefits to be paid and are financed accordingly with assets being
held in independently admimistered funds A full actuarial funding valuation of this scheme 1s carried out every three years
with mterim reviews In the intervening years

The latest full actuarial funding valuation of the scheme was carried out as at 31 March 2004 by independent, qualified
actuaries, Watson Wyatt Limited, using the projected unit credit method  Under this method of valuation the current service
cost will increase as members approach retirement due to the ageing active membership of the scheme

Following changes introduced by the Finance Act 2004 that took effect fram 6 April 2006 (A-Day}), the Experian Pension
Scheme implemented revised terms for members exchanging pension at retirement date for a tax-free lump sum The impact
of the consequent update in assumptions had no material impact on the charge to the profit and loss account for the year
ended 31 March 2007 but increased the actuarial gamn recognised in the Company’s statement of total recogmsed gains and
losses by £1m

The net liability 1n respect of the defined benefit scheme and the provision of post retirement healthcare msurance benefits 1s
recognised in the Company's balance sheet in accordance with the requirements of FRS 17

(a) The amounts recogmised 1n the Company's balance sheet are determined as follows

2007 2006

£m £m

Fair value of schemes' assets 359 347
Present value of funded schemes' habilities (311) (332)
Surplus n the funded schemes 48 15
Present value of unfunded pension arrangements (13) (15)
Liabtity for post-retirement healthcare (10 {12)
Reurement benefit asset/(liability) recogrused in the Company balance sheet 25 (12)
Less deferred tax (asset}lability (note 19) (7 4
18 (8)

The retirement benefit asset at 31 March 2007 1s shown on the balance sheet after the related deferred tax At 31 March
2006 the deferred tax asset was included in debtors (note 14}

During the year ended 31 March 2006 the Company put in place arrangements to secure unfunded pension benefit
arrangements already i place for certain directors and senior managers by granting charges to an independent trustee over
an independently managed portfolios of marketable securities  The amount of assets charged in this way will be adjusted
annually to keep the ratio of assets charged to the discounted value of the accrued benefits secured 1n this way as close as
possible to the corresponding ratio in the Company's registered pension scheme  The total value of the assets charged in this
way at 31 March 2007 was £10m (2006 £6m)
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26. Pensions and other post-retirement benefits (continued)

(b) The movements during the year in the net (asset)/hability recogrused in the Company's balance sheet were as follows

2007 2006
£m fm
At ] April 12 2
Total amounts recognised 1n the profit and loss account
Current service cost 2 4
Amount credited to other finance income (5 (3)
Amount recognised m the profit and loss account ()] {
Actuarial gain recognised 1n the statement of total recognised gains and losses (30) (8)
Contributions paid (4) (2)
Net (asset)/hability at 31 March (25) 12
(c) The amount charged to operating profit was as follows
2007 2006
£m £m
Current service cost 2 4
(d) The amount credited to other finance income comprised
2007 2006
£m £m
Interest on scheme habilities 17 17
Expected return on scheme assets (22) (20)
Net return (5) (3)
{e) The amount recogmised 1n equity was
2007 2006
£m £m
Gan on assets 7 41
Experience loss on Labilities - (2)
Gamn/(loss) on change of assumptions 23 (31
Total gain recognised in equity 30 3
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26. Pensions and other post-retirement benefits (continued)

{f) The hustory of experience gams/(losses) on the Company's defined benefit scheme 15 as follows

2007 2006 2005
Difference between the actual and expected return on schemes' assets i
Amount (£m) 7 4] {15) |
Percentage of schemes’ assets 1.9% 11 8% 57% |
Experience gains/(losses) on schemes’ liabilities !
Amount (£m) - (2) 51
Percentage of the present value of schemes' habilities - 05% 17 8%
Total gain recognised m the statement of total recognised gains and losses
Amount (£m) 30 8 16 !
Percentage of the present value of schemes' liabilities 9 6% 22% 56%
(g) Analysis of the movement n the surplus/{deficit) in the scheme n the year
2007 2006
£m £m
Deficit at beginning of year (12) 20
Contributions paid by the Company 4 2
Current service cost (2) 4
Other finance income 5 3
Actuartal gain 30 8
Surplus/(deficit) at end of year 25 {12)
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26. Pensions and other post-retirement benefits (continued)

{h) Principal actuarial assumptions

The valuations used for FRS 17 have been based on the most recent actuarial funding valuations and have been updated by
Watson Wyatt Limited to take account of the requirements of FRS 17 in order to assess the habilities of the scheme at 31
March 2007 The principal actuarial assumptions used to calculate the present value of the defined benefit obligations were
as follows

2007 2006 2005

Yo % Yo

Rate of inflation 31 29 29
Rate of increase for salaries 49 47 47
Rate of increase for pensions mn payment and deferred pensions 3t 29 29
Rate of increase for medical costs 6.5 65 65
Discount rate 54 49 54

The main financial assumption 1s the real discount rate, 1e the excess of the discount rate over the rate of inflation If this
assumption increased/decreased by 0 1%, the Company’s defined benefit obligation would decrease/increase by
approximately £6m and the annual current service cost would decrease/increase by approximately £0 5m  The discount rate
15 based on the market yields on high quality corporate bonds of equivalent currency and term to the defined benefit
obligations

The FRS 17 valuation assumes that mortality will be in line with current standard tables for males and females as used at the
last actuarial valuation An allowance 1s also made for anticipated future improvements in life expectancy, by assuming that
the probability of death occurring at each age will decrease by 0 25% each year If this assumption decreased by a further

0 25% per annum then the defined benefit obligation would increase by £15m and the annual current service cost would
increase by approximately £0 Im

Overall, the average expectation of life on retirement (n normal health 1s assumed to be
- 19 | years at age 65 for a male currently aged 65

- 22 2 years at age 65 for a female currently aged 65

- 19 8 years at age 65 for a male currently aged 50

-23 | years at age 65 for a female currently aged 50

The assumpticns in respect of discount rate, salary increases and mortality all have a sigmificant effect on the FRS 17
accounting valuation Changes to these assumptions 1 the hight of prevailing conditions may have a significant impact on

future valuations

The FRS 17 valuation, in respect of post-retirement healthcare insurance benefits provided to certain former Company
employees, additionally assumes a rate of increase for medical costs 1f this assumption increased/decreased by 1 0% per
annum then the obligation would increase/decrease by £1m and the Company’s annual current service cost would remain
unchanged
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26. Pensions and other post-retirement benefits (continued)

(1) The assets of the defined benefit scheme and the expected rates of return are summansed as follows

Fair value  Expected Fair value Expected Fair value Expected
long term long term long term
rate of rate of rate of
return retum retum
2007 2067 2006 2006 2005 2005
£m % p.a. fm %pa £fm %pa

Market value of schemes'

assets

Equities 246 8.1 240 79 181 80
Fixed mnterest securities 113 54 103 45 R0 50
Other - n/a 4 37 4 37
Total 359 73 347 68 265 70

The expected return on plan assets has been deternuned by considering the muix of returns anticipated on the assets held
n accordance with the current mvestment policy Expected yields on fixed interest investments and securities are based
on gross redemption yields as at the balance sheet date Expected returns on equity and other investments reflect the
long-term real rates of return experienced in the respective markets

(11) Defined contribution scheme

The pension cost, which represents contributions payable, in respect of the Company's participation 1 the Expenian
defined contribution scheme amounted to £29,000 (2006 £39,000)

27. Related party transactions

The Company has taken advantage of the exemption under the terms of Financial Reporting Standard 8 from disclosing
the details of any transactions with other entities that fall within the group of companies owned 90% or more by the
ultimate parent undertaking

Under the terms of the demerger agreement entered mnto in August 2006, the Company contracted to provide certain
services to Home Retail Group on a transitional basis for a period of not more than two years after the date of the
demerger The fees payable for these services are determined on an arm's length basis [n the penod from the date of
demerger to 31 March 2007, the Company charged £0 3m to Home Retail Group 1n respect of these services As
indicated 1n note 3, there was a credit in the year ended 31 March 2007 of £7m (2006 ml) in respect of the waiver of
balances owed to Home Retail Group undertakings at the date of demerger

28. Post balance sheet event
In May 2007, in connection with the acquisition of Hitwise by a fellow subsichary of Experian Group Limted, the
Company patd a dividend of £132m to 1ts immediate parent company, Experian Investment Holdings Limted

In July 2007 the Company repaid its €548m Eurobond at a cost of £365m  This was funded by borrowings under
commutted bank facilities

29. Parent and ultimate parent undert;ikmg :

The Company’s immediate parent undertaking 1s Experian Investment Holdings Limuted, a company mcorporated m
England and Wales That company 1s a wholly owned subsidiary of Experian Group Linuted, a company mcorporated 1n
Jersey Experian Group Limted 15 the smallest and largest group tn which the results of the Company for the year were
consohdated Copaes of that company’s consolidated financial statements may be obtained from the Company Secretary,
Expernan Group Limuted, Newenham House, Northern Cross, Malahide Read, Dublin 17, Ireland
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At the heart of Experian lies a vast store of
information - about consumers and how they
behave, about businesses and how they
perform, and about motor vehicles, insurance
policies and other valuable assets.

Over the years, we have developed exceptional
skills in the management and safeguarding of
this information. We have also gained a unique
understanding of the significance and value of
different types of information, and the ability to
apply this insight to everyday decisions. It has
opened up almost limitless possibilities.

At Experian, we harness information and use it
to empower businesses and consumers.
Whatever they want, however they want it,
we figure it out.
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Experian at a glance

Principal activities

Experian 1s dedicated to helping

organisations and consumers make Credit
important and often time-critical

Helping organisations
10 evaluate the risks
and rewards associated
with providing credit to
consumers and
businesses

Services
decisions with increased confidence
and control
Organisations rely on us for help
in finding new customers and
developing successful relationships Decision

with their existing customers
Consumers turn to us for help in Analytics
making more informed financial
and purchasing decisions

We employ more than 13,000

Providing the analytical
skills and specialist
software products that
enable orgarsations to
increase the speed and
quality of therr
decision-making

people through offices in 36
countries and support clents in Marketing
over 60 countries Our products Solutions
and services are grouped under four
principal activities Credit Services,
Decision Analytics, Marketing
Solutions and Interactive

Helping orgamisations
to find new customers
and to take advantage
of opportunities for
expanding existing
relationships

Interactive

Providing personal
credit information
to consumers and
helping guide them
to the best deals an
milliens of products
and services

On an average day, we process two  *
milhon credit reference enquines
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20bn

We delivered 20
bithon emails
in 2007




£1.50n

Our fraud prevention

tools helped chents in the
. UK to identuify over

£1 5 bilhon of potenyial -

.

Contribution to Group sales

Highlights of 2007 fraud last year

Sales by region

-

Sales up 4% to $1,520m, organic growth of 3%

EBIT up 11% to $420m, with margin up
150 basis points

Acgurred credit bureaux in Canada and Estorwa

Resilience of business model demonstrated 1n
UK and US

All finangial numbers relafe 1o continuing actranes only with growth rales a1 canstant exchange rates

Sales up 16% to $392m, organic growth of 15%

EBIT up 27% to $136m, with margin up
320 basis points

Further contract wins during the year with established
chents such as H3BC and Bank of America

Buillding our presence 1in emerging markets such as
India and Russia

All fimancial numbers relate 1o contnuing ctvibes only with growth rates at constant ecchange ratey

Sales up 13% to $728m, organic sales unchanged

EBIT up 24% to $73m, with margin up
90 basis points

Repositioning 1nto digital media continues

Product innovation accelerated

All fimancial numbers relate to conbinuing acthwues only with growth rates al constant exchange rates

Sales up 40% to $784m, organic sales up 23%
EBIT up 50% ta $173m, with margin up 110 basis ponts

Consumer Direct and PriceGrabber performed strongly,
LowerMyBills impacted by weakness in US sub-prime
mortgage market in {atter part of year

Businesses working closely together to optimise returns on
marketing spend, Interactive’s largest cost

AN financal aumbers relate 1o contnuing acimues only wath growih sates a1 constant exchange rates

Each month, 24 million :
people visit our

Interactive websites
Expenian Annual Report 2007 | 03
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Credit Services

Credit Services helps
organisations to evaluate the
risks and rewards associated
with providing credit to
consumers and businesses. We
enable clients to take better
informed lending decisions and
to make it easier and quicker
for their own customers to
obtain finance.

Our credit databases hold information about the
credit status of more than 300 million consumers
and about 30 millon businesses around the world
The mformation 1s collected from publicly available
sources and from lending orgarusations 1t 1s used
by our chients to confirm the identity of applicants
and to help them deade whether to provide credit
and on what terms It also assists them in
determining what measures to take when a
customer fails to fulfil the terms of a credit
agreement or other obligation

The collection and use of credit information,
particularly about individuals, 15 strictly controlled
by law We go to greal lengths to ensure that we
comply fully wath the regulations that apply within
each of the countnes in which Experian cperates
We also play a leading role in helping consumers
to understand how credit information 1s used

and how to avoid the perils of fraud

and over-indebtedness

Our long experience of managing very large credit
databases has resulted in us becoming the host for
other types of information too In the US and UK,
for example, we maintain information on over 600
millon motor vehicles, enabling consumers, traders
and lenders to establish the true history of used
vehicles We also support the UK insurance
industry with a database of previous insurance
claims, allowing companies to confirm instantly
the claims history of new applicants In France,

we help organisations wanting to outsource
activities such as the processing of cheque and
debit card transactions
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Case study

3 is the UK's leading mobile media It takes Experian, on average, less than two seconds to
confirm an apphcant’s identity and to provide 3 with a

decision, based on their lending cntena

company, and the group has over 10
million customers worldwide. In
2003, 3 launched the first 3G
network in the UK, to support the
new generation of mobile phones.
Four years on, the company is the
market leader in 3G, providing
customers with access to an
unrivalled range of voice, video,
Internet and information services
through a single mobile device

3’5 services are sold through a network of almost 9,000
retail outlets, including their own high street shops,
Internet and many independent retalders  To support its
rapid growth, 3 needs the confidence of knowing that 1t
15 taking on new customers who will fulfil their credit
commitments In the competitive mobile phone market,
custamers expect instant credit decisions, with immediate

access to the mobile network and to leave the shop with “With over 500,000 appiications for credit each year we

a highly valuable 3G mobile phone

have to be confident in our ability to make the night
deasions, quickly”, explains Mike Elliott, Head of Credit

Expenian provides 3 with a range of senaces to support Risk “Expenan has become an imgortant partner 10 us
its need for rapid decision-making at the paint of sale helping us 1 grow our business and bring new and

Central to this 1s Expenians credit database, which better serdces to the mobile media market *
i

combines publicly available imformation, such as the
electoral register, with detalled histoncal information
from lending organssations about how consumers have
fulfilled their past and current obligations New
customers are checked against this database to confirm
their identity and, with the help of Experian’s Delphi
scoring system, to predict the likelihood of them
becoming a 'goad’ account If the application 15 accepted

As with all instant credit’ industnes, fraud 15 an ever-

present danger and understanding the apphicani’s

abilty to pay 1s wvitat nfermation for 3 Using :
Experian’s fraud prevention tool, Detect, 315
able 10 highlight potential frauds at the
same tme that the apphcation 1s

processed Detect uses an extensive ;
database of previous credit P
applications to identify

discrepancies in new apphcations,

providing 3 with the imnformation
ta be able to further validate
higher nsk applications '
¢

3 receves over 500,000
applcations for credit each year
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Decision Analytics

Decision Analytics provides the
analytical skills and specialist
software products that enable
organisations to increase the
speed and quality of their
decision-making.

Using Experian’s products, clients are able to assess
very quickly the potential nsks and rewards
associated with particular actions They ¢an
determine, for example, the suitability of a
customer for additional loan products or the
probability of an indwidual responding to a
particular credit offer They can also assess the
ikelthood of a customer account falling into arrears
if @ credit it 1s increased

Experian’s credit scorecards use well-proven
statistical techniques to predict the behaviour of
consumers based upen therr histoncal performance
and the charactenstics declared on therr application
forms This helps to ensure that decisions are taken
farly and impartially Used in conjunction with our
specialist software, clients can test and fine-tune
different lending strategies Changes in strategy
can then be implemented quickly, with the
confidence that they will be reflected in dealings
with all customers throughout the organisation

Expenan also supports clients in the constant fight
against fraud Consumers today expect to be able
to make instant purchases wath their credit and
debit cards, even remotely over the Internet or by
telephone They also want fast decisions when
applying for credit facilities, persenal loans or other
sarvices We help by instantly venfying a customer’s
identity and alerting our chients to discrepancies in
the nformation provided
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Case study

HSBC is one of the world’s largest
banking and financial services
organisations, with over 125 million
customers in 82 countries and
territories

Everyday, HSBC makes millions of decisions in the
management of Its customers’ accounts and applications
it may be to authorise a payment to faclitate an Internet
or in-store purchase, to consider an application for a new
or increased credit imit, to determine the most
appropriate product to offer, or to deade whether a
customer can access money frem a cash machine

The ability to take those decisions quickly and accurately
15 cntical to the success of HSBC's different dehvery
channels and operations around the world Just as
important is that each decision 1s taken in a timely,
consistent and fair manner, wherever they are made and
whatever the circumstances

Faced with increasingly complex requirements and
custemer demands, HSBC chose Experian’s Strategy

Management software to assist in the dehivery of mission-

crihical solutions Strategy Managament 1s a saphisticated
business tool, already used by over 600 arganisations
worldwide, which enables organisations to automate ar
simplify large volumes of decisions 1t does this by
assessing relevant information and customer reguests
against a wide array of regulatory, business and
commercial requirements and objectives

“Experian’s Strategy Management solution will become
an sntegral part of our global business”, explains Chris
Hawkes, Head of Group Retall Credit & Risk at HSBC "It
15 enabling us to achieve consistency In decision-making
across HSBC's diverse operations, whilst improving the
speed and guality of our decisions For our customers, it
means that we can provide quicker decisicns, offer a
wider range of products and provide options that are
more relevant to their particular needs and
arcumstances In short, 1t 1s an essential component to
delivering high quality custamer service ”

"Once we have rofled it out fully across our business,
Strategy Management will be helping us make the
billions of decssions we need to make each year”

Chris Hawkes, Head of Group Retaill Credit & Risk, HSBC

Experian and HSBC have a longstanding relationship
spanning 21 years and six continents

“Like HSBC, Expenan operates globally, tut with a strong
local focus on the markets in which 1t operates in order
to provide local solutions”, says Chris Hawkes “In
Experian we have a trusted global partner with the
experience and technology to support our business going
forward ”

Experian’s Strategy
Management software 15
already being used by 600
organisations warldwide
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Marketing Solutions

Marketing Solutions helps
organisations to find new
customers and to take
advantage of opportunities for
expanding existing
relationships. We enable our
clients to communicate with
prospective customers in the
most effective way and with the
most appropriate offer. It might
be by email, post, telephone,
direct response television or
even text messaging.

Experian owns and manages very large databases of
information about the location, lifestyle and attitudes
of consumers These databases include publicly
avallable information, as well as the results of
large-scale consumer surveys The information
provides clients with considerable insight into the
purchasing preferences of consumers In total,
Experian holds consumer marketing information on
about 130 milhon households globally

Experian assists clients in planning and executing
campaigns across all forms of media channel, from
ematling to newspaper and television advertising

By combining cur infermation resources with our
skills In data analysis, we can help clients predict who
15 most [ikely to respond to a given offer and the
best channel through which to communicate

As well as managing our own databases, we build
and maintain marketing databases for ckents These
combine the clients own customer records with
Experian data to provide a comprehensive profile of
each customer They enable orgamsations to
communicate with their customers in a very personal
and relevant way, as well as helping them identify
individuals with similar charactenstics who have the
potential to become new customers

Experian also keeps clients abreast of changes in the
wider marketplace through our research and
forecasting services We help them 1o measure the
potential market opportunity for particular products
and services, and to dentify profitable locations for
new branches or new sales initiatives




Case study

Crate and Barrel is recognised across
the United States as a leading multi-
channel retailer of housewares and
furniture. The company was
founded in 1962 as a family business
and today has more than 150 stores
and over 7,000 associates
nationwide. During this time, it has
also become a major catalogue and
Internet retailer.

Direct marketing has been a key ingredient in Crate and
Barrel's success and, for mare than 15 years, the
company has looked to Experian to help drive its
catalogue and retall campaigns

Underpinning these campaigns 1s the cenfidence that
Crate and Barrels customer database s operating
effectivety and that 1t 1s successtully reaching the nght
customers Experian provides a range of list processing
services to ensure that the company’s mailing hsts are
accurate and up-to-date, as well as being comphant with
postal regulations and properly formatted for quick and
easy processing through the mail

Prospecting for new customers 1s a key prionty Crate and

Barrel needs access 10 potentia! customers with similar
behawiours and lifestyles as 1ts own, as well as a good
understanding of these cusiomers so that it can market
to them m the most effective way By partiapating n
Experian's Z-24 cooperative database, Crate and Barrel
has access to informatian about millions of avid
catatogue shoppers enabling the company 1o continue
growing its customer base Its prospecting efforts have
also been supported by expert analysis from Experian of
the responses to campaigns This helps Crate and Barrel
to identify those consumers that wilt be most responsive
1o its direct markettng and to determine the most
appropriate messages and offers

with the adoption of new online sales channels, Crate
and Barrel has also needed an email service delivery
solution that can help drive the same success in the
digital world that it has experienced with direct mail The
company has therefore adopted Experian’s CheetahMail
services to deliver all of its email

marketing offers

Experian has supported
Crate and Barrel for
more than 15 years

“The partnership with Expenan has been a long and
successful one”, said Gordon Segal, Founder and CEQ
of Crate and Barrel "Expenan has helped Crate and
Barre! maintain a strong relationship with lifeleng
customers, while ensunng that we continue to grow our
customer base “
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Interactive

Interactive is a trusted
intermediary on the Internet,
helping to guide consumers to
the best deals on millions of
products and services. We also
offer consumers the ability to
view their credit report on line
and to monitor changes to their
credit records. Each month, we
attract over 24 million visitors
to our consumer websites.

Expenan owns a number of Internet husinesses that
assist consumers in securing the nght deal
LowerMyBills com, for example, helps consumers to
identify the most appropriate offers on mortgages
and other financial products PriceGrabber com
provides information that compares millions of
different products, from computers and cameras to
clothing and furniture ClassesUSA guides
consumers to the most appropriate online education
courses These websites provide a free service that
helps people to lower the cost of daily living We
earn our revenues from clients, who pay us for each
sales lead we generate for them

Experian also provides consumers with the ability to
view their credit file securely over the Internet This
file contains the information that lenders see when
deciding whether to give someone a loan, mortgage
or credit card Consumers can check therr file at any
time to ensure 1t accurately reflects their credit
history Regular alerts from Expenan keep them in
touch with changes to the file and help protect
them from becoming a vichm of identity theft

Interactive businesses

Consumerinfo com PriceGrabbhercom
www consumerinfo com www pricegrabber com

LowerMyBills com www pricegrabber co uk

www lowermybills com FreeCreditReport com
ClassesUSA www freecreditreport com

www Classesusa com CreditExpert
www creditexpert ¢o uk
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Case study

MSN is one of the world’s largest
Internet portals, giving millions of
people access to a range of specialist
sites and services. Its financial
section, MSN Money, is one of the
most popular personal finance
websites in the UK.

in 2004, MSN Money became a partner for Experian's
online CreditExpert service, expanding on a successful
and established relationship with Expenan in the
United States

CreditExpert gives consumers unlimited online access to
therr Expenan credit report, enabling them to see the
same information that finanaal organisations use when
making decisions about lending money

In return for a monthly subscription fee, CreditExpert
users can monitor changes in their report and check that
the information 1t contains 1s up to date and accurately
reflects their situation Email or text message aleris are
sent 10 them if a significant change occurs that might
indicate attempted identfy fraud

Subscribers also have access 1o helplines staffed by
experts In credit matters and identity fraud, as well as a
hbrary of information about credit-related and dentity
fraud issues

"Credit monitonng s stifl a relatively new concept for
consumers (in the UK, but with rising persona! debt,
soanng house prices and wide publicity around the nisk
of 1D fraud, 1t 1s set to become part of everyday hfe”,
says Alastarr Bruce, Senvor Content Manager for

MSN Money

“CreditExpert 15 a logical exiension of the services we
provide through MSN Money Visitors to our site can now
learn how to take control of their credit history, which
helps them to get the credit they need in {uture and,
more importantly, guard aganst identity fraud *

MSN 15 one of several partners with whom Expernan
works to find new ways to spread the message about the
importance of credit report monitening More than 2,000
websites have agreements to promote CreditExpert in
the UK

Alastair Bruce, Senior Content Manager, MSN Money

2,000

Over 2,000 websites In the
UK have agreements to
. promote CreditExpert
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Chairman’s statement

Experian has made a good start in 1ts
new life as an independent company
The demerger last October was well
received by shareholders, while the
£800m of new equity that we raised
from investors will provide the
flexibihty to fund future growth
opportunities Since then, we have
made progress operationally and
strategically, while delivering a fifth
consecutive year of double-digit
revenue and profit growth

Your Board has announced a dividend of 11 5 cents,
gving a full-year dwidend of 17 cents

At the time of demerger, we talked about Expenan’s
strategy for achieving long-term, sustainable growth Cur
aim Is to continue 1 deliver mid to high single-dign
organic sales growih each year and to accelerate this
through complementary acquisthons We also remain
firmly focused on tight cost cantrol throughout our
operattons, in order to reinvest the savings In new
products and new markets, while maintaining or
improving cur profit margin

t am pleased to say that we successfully harnessed all our
key drivers of growth this year For example, wa won
significant new contracts with clients such as Bank of
America, HSBC and GE Money We developed more than
20 new products, covering all areas of our business We
strengthened our position In neww market sectors, including
government, healthcare and telecommuntcations We
extended our operations inta other countries such as India
and Poland And we acquired further complementary
businesses to acceterate our entry Into new markets and
new product areas

We also contnued to attract and retain talented people
throughout all parts of the business | am especially
pleased that we have been able to appoint such a strong
Board to take the Group forward Our recent
appointments have ensured that the Board has an
excellent blend of skills and experience, gained
internationally and across a wide range of market sectors

One of our other early actions as an independent company
was 1o set out explicitly our socal responsibilities These
range from ensuring that our data 1s protected effecuvely
to reducing our greenhouse gas emissions We believe that
Expertan’s products and services contribute strongly to a
healthy economy, by helping businesses to build successful
customer relationships and enabling consumers to make
more informed purchasing decisions

Ultimately, Experian's success lies in the skills and energies
of the people who work for us and 1 would like 1o
acknowledge therr achievements and to thank them for
therr tremendous support In particular, | would ke to
recognise the extraordinary contribution of John Saunders,
our Chief Executive of Glabal Operations, who has recently
retired after 24 years with the business

I hope you will enjoy reading thus first annual report from
Expenian and that, ke me, you wiil be pleased with our
progress this year

John Peace
Chawrman

22 May 2007
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Highlights of our year

Demerger completed

Experian became an independent
company, listed on the

London Stock Exchange,
successfully raising

£800m to support

future growth

nitiatives

Deepening chient

relationships

HSBC and Bank of America were
among many long-established clients
to award major new contracts to
Experian

Expanding
geographically

Expenan now
has offices In
36 couniries
around the
world following
the opening of
our first office
in India

Product innovation

TrueTouch was one of more than

20 new products launched during the
year, 1t dlassifies the UK's 46 million
adutts according to their likely
response to different methods of
communtcation

Developing
new sectors

Our CreditExpert service,
which enables consumers
to manage their own
personal credit
information, provided
over three million

credit reports to UK
subscnbers last year
following its introduction
from the US in 2003

Complementary
acquisitions

We made several acquisitions during
the year, including credit bureaux in
Canada and Estonia and marketing
businesses around the world, in order
1o complement our existing businesses
and accelerate

their growth

Investing in people

As part of the demerger, Experian
employees were granted shares to
enable them 1o associate even more
closety with our goal of building
shareholder value over the long term

Investing In data

information 1s at the

heart of what Expenan

does and we are

always looking to

acquire new sources In

Aprl 2007, we agreed

to acquire Hitwise, which

provides data on how people use the
Internet

Investing in technology

Secure and efficient data processing 15

wital to our success and last year we

began consolidatng our three major US

data centres into two, including the

bunkered, secure state-of the-art centre
In McKinney,
Texas
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Interview with Don Robert, Chief Executive Officer

“We have so many great
opportunities that probably
our biggest challenge is deciding
which ones to focus on next.”
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How have things changed for Experian since
gamning independence?

For the great majonty of us at Expenan it has been
business as usual We have a clear strategy for growth,
which we're continuing t¢ implement with enthusiasm
and confidence The only significant change 15 that most
of our employees are now shareholders, which was the
result of a grant of shares at the time of the demerger
For me this was one of the best outcomes of Expenian’s
independence it means that our people have a real stake
in the future of the company and can align themselves
even more closely to our goal of creating value for
sharehclders through sustarned profitable growth

Were you pleased with the Group’s performance
last year?

Yes, | was dehlighted with our performance It was our
fifth consecutive year of double-digit sales and profit
growth, which s a significant achievement by any
standards We did exactly what we said we would do
We delivered strong organic growth, we mmproved our
margins, we achieved strong cash generation and we
continued to deliver against our strategic objectives Just
as important 1s that it was a balanced performance,
which came from all our pnincipal gecgraphies

Where do you see the best future growth
opportunities for Expenan?

Experian 1s well positoned to take advantage of many
long-term growth trends In our core credit markets, we
are seeing government departments and campanies in
sectors such as telecommunications and healthcare
wanting to make use of the expertise we first developed
in financia!l services Fraud preventicn 1s one example of
how we are successfully transfernng this expertise to
different market segments We are also seeing chenis
wanting to communicate with their own customers over
multiple communication channels and to switch more of
their advertising expenditure to new media This IS good
for our marketing businesses and enables us to capitalise
on investment in services such as email delivery and
market research The continuing growth of the Internet s
creating tremendous opportunities for our Interactive
businesses as consumers make greater use of this
medwm for information and purchasing And, of course,
we are also seeing increasing demand for our skills from
emerging markets such as Ching, India, Latin America
and Russia, which 1s helping to drive our geographic
expanston Experian s a business with multiple

growth dnvers

. Last year alone we rolled out

What are going to over 20 new products

be the main challenges

for Expenan geing forward?

We have 50 many great opportunities that probably cur
biggest challenge 1s deciding which ones to focus on
next As with any business, 1ssues can cccasionally
surface that are beyond our control, but we have the
advantage of not being overly dependent on any one
geography, client, channel er economy for our success
One challenge we face all the time though s the need
for talented people ta support our growth plans We are
a people business in the real sense of that word and we
pnde ourselves on being able to attract employees with
the skills and ambition necessary to develop and grow
our business Tatent management is one of our top
pnorities and |ndeeg our talent plans are regularly
reviewed by the Group Board

How 1s Expenian preparing for the future?

By baing In the nght markets with the nght preducts and
the nght peopte leadership Innovation Is key to our
business and ensures that we continue to provide clients
with market-leading selutions Last year alone we rolled
out over 20 new products We are also expanding into
new geographies to create future platforms for growth
and to enable us to support clients on a glgbal basis We
are continually ivesting in our future - in pecple, In
products, in acquisttions and in our infrastructure

What do you think Expenan will look hke in

five years’ time?

we'll be bigger, with a greater presence in more
countries Our clients will be even more diverse and we
will be firmly established in many different sectors
beyond our oniginal financial services and retailing
markets We will have an increasing number of clienis
who rely on us to deliver wide-ranging sclutions across
many different geographies Our Decision Analytics
products will have become the global standard in

their respective niches and will be deeply embedded
within our clients’ decision-making processes at an
enterprise-wide level We will be a recognised leader in
all types of customer acquisition through our Interactive
and Marketing businesses And many more consumers
will have Expenan websites “bookmarked” as therr
favounite sites for saving meney and making important
financial decisions

What is it about Expenan that makes you

feel most proud?

Without question, our people Whenever | visit an
Expenan office, wherever it1s 1n the world, | am struck
by the energy and enthusiasm of the employees | meet
we are fortunate in having a great team of committed
people, who | know share my optimism about the future
for Expenan
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BuUsiness review
Overview

Nature of business

Expenan 1s a global leader in providing
information solutions to business clients
and consumers

We help organisations to find new customers and develop
and manage existing relationships by providing data,
decision-making sofutions and processing services We also
help consumers to understand, manage and protect ther
personal information and help them make more informed
purchasing decisions

Experian's vision (s that our people, data and technology
become a necessary part of every major consumer
economy around the world

Data At the core of Experian are comprehensive databases
of credit and marketing infermation on both consumers
and businesses These databases, derived from both pubhe
and private sources, contain extensive nigh quatity
information that not only has histonical depth, but also
significant breadth across various types of data The
comprehensive portfolia of data maintained by Expenan
makes us a partner of choice for many chients as we offer
more Information than any single competrtor

Decisions Bulding on this foundation of data, Experian
uses propnetary analyucal tools to analyse and interpret the
data and ta help business clients to turn raw data into
cntical decisions in @ timely and consistent manner Qur
tools also help consumers to make mere informed financial
and purchasing decisions more gutckly

Distnibution  Expertan has a very broad distribution network
helping both business chents and consumers We sell to
chents in over 60 countnes around the world, In many
different markets including the financial services, retall,
telecommunications, automotive and public sectors This
broad distributian platfarm is unmatched within the global
information solutions industry

As described on pages 4 to 11, Expenan has four principal
activities Credit Services, Decision Analytics, Markeung
Sclutions and Interactive Our business 1s managed on a
geagraphic hasis with the three key regions being the
Americas, the UK and lreland, and Europe, Middle East,
Afnca and Asia Paafic (EMEA/Asia Pacific) This structure
enables Expenan to understand the different needs and
constraints of each local market and to serve both domestic
and international clients effectively within each region

Addiuonal detaled information on Expenan s avallable in
“Explaining Expenan” which can be viewed on our Group
website at www experiangroup com

Markets in which Expenan operates

Expenan has a widespread and balanced porifolio by
product type, by vertical market served and by country
served As examples

= |n the year to 31 March 2007, 44% of safes came
from Credit Services, 12% from Decision Analytics,
21% from Marketing Solutions and 23%
from Interactive

* In the year to 31 March 2007, 58% of sales came
from the Amencas, 25% from UK and Ireland and
17% from EMEA/AsIa Pacific

* Finanaal services clients account for 53% of our sales,
followed by 14% in direct-to-consumer, 11% for retail
and home shopping, 7% from telecommunications,
utthttes and insurance and the balance from
government, publishing and media and automotve
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* We have over 100,000 clients, of which the top ten
account for 17% of sales and the top 50 dlients 36%
of sales

* We employ more than 13,000 people with offices
in 36 countries

* We own and operate consumer credit bureaux in 14
countries and business credit bureaux in 7 countries

We classify one billon consumers globally by
socio-demograpic type in over 25 countries
around the world

As a result of this diversity, Experian is not overly
dependent on any one geography, client, channel or
economy While Experian as a whole is clearly dependent
on the economic environments in which we operate, our
broad portfolio of products and markets served gives us
same resilience when our major markets weaken New
products also affect Experian’s performance, as does our
success in gairmng share in our chosen markets
“Explaining Expenian” details some of the economic
Iindicators that Expenan monitors

Competitive position
Although we have .

competitors in each of our

pringipal activities, there 1s no

single competitor capable of

offering the broad range of products

and sclutions that Expenan 15 able to

provtde to domestic and multinational clients
around the world on the same scale

;
i 8
H
.

85% of our top 50
clients have been
doing business with
Experian for at least
five years

There 1s imited, if any, public information avalable on
the market share of each of Experian’s competitors in
each gecgraphic region and acrass each prinapal activity
In particular, because of the breadth of Expenan’s
products offered around the world, we often compete

agamst niche local providers of serwices 1n our

markets

However, there are a number of larger and readily

identifiable companies that we view as our ke
competitors, which are summarised below

Credit Services there are two other national ¢
credit bureaux in the US {(Equifax and TransUn

y

onsumer
ion} In the

UK, Expernian is the clear market leader in consumer
credit with mainly local competition elsewhere Dun &
Bradstreet is the only glabal business credit competitor

Decision Analytics the market leader in the US 1s Farr
Isaac, outside the US, Experian 1s the major player, facing

mamly fragmented local competition

Marketing Solutions there are some large competitors 1n

the US (such as Aonom and Harte-Hanks) but

competitton elsewhere 1s local, fragmented and often

specialist

Interactive Expenan 1s the clear market leader in selling
credit reports and services direct to consumers ahead of
Equifax, TransUnion, Fair 1saac and other specialist
providers Qur sales are more than twice the size of any
of our competitors The online lead generation market Is
fragmented and Expenian has strong market positions in

our chosen areas of operation

5%
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Overview cont

Growth dnivers
Experian 1s well positioned to benefit from a number of
key drivers of long-term growth These include

¢ Global growth In consumer credit this leads to
mncreased demand for data from our credit bureaux
and increased use of our Decision Analytics' tools to
help clients control credit nisk and prevent fraud

» Increased use of the Internet by consumers and
businesses 1o both research and buy products and
services, companies are switching more of thew
marketing spend to the Internet, which helps our
Interactive and Marketing Solutions activities

* Increase i multi-channel

All acquisitions must deliver a
miimum 10% post-tax return

marketing comparnies are using over ume

mare channels to communi¢ate

with their customers - away from mass

media such as broadcast and print and

towards email, the Internet, SMS and Iinteractive TV
Cur newer Marketing Solutions activivies benefit from
this rend as we help clients to target the nght
customer, with the right message, through the

nght channel

N

Increase In demand from new vertical markets chents
In sectors such as telecommunications, automotive and
government want to use the same data and tools that
Expenan has successfully developed for the financial
services industry

* Increase n demand from new and emerging high
growth geographies as the use of consumer credt,
for example, increases in areas such as Eastern Europe,
Asia Pacific and Latin America, this will drive demand
for Expenan’s data and decision tools, although 1t 15
difficult 10 gauge the ultimate size of some of
these markets
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Corporate objectives and strategy

To fulfill Expernan’s vision and to
capitalise on the growth opportunities
described above, we are focusing on
the following initiatives

* Driving organic growth through
- Deeper client relationships
- Gepgraphic expansion
- Product innovation
- Vertical expansion
We aim to deliver mud to high single-digit organic sales
growth each year

Accelerating growth through complementary
acquisitions, which bring us new data, technology,
products or clients, or enable us 1o grow In new verticat
and geographic markets Our goal 15 to have about half
of our sales growth each year from acquisitions, subject
to targets meeting our strict strategic and financial
cnteria All acquisitions must deliver a mimimum 10%
post-tax return over time

Delivering operating leverage to maintain or iImprove
EBIT margins We focus on cost control throughout our
operations, with the savings then reinvested in new
products and new markets We look to drive both
revenue and ¢ost synergies across the Group

The key performance indicators on pages 20 and 21 show
a histonical perspective on how Expenan has performed
against these initiatives, while the operational review on
pages 22 to 29 discusses how Expenan has done in 2007

Key resources

Key to delivening these corporate objectives 1s our ability
to continue to 1nvest In our three key resources ~ people,
data and technology

People

We employ more than 13,000 people with offices in 36
countries We pride curselves on attracting, developing

and retaining talented, ambitious people who deliver a

qualty service for our clients and grow our business

Experian invests heavily in ensuring our employees have
the night environment and skills to do their best work We
also endeavour to create the right opportunities for them
10 apply and develop these skills The management of
talent is one of our top priorties

Succession planning s used to ensure that apprapriate
leadership resources are in place to achieve our objectives,
the plans are regularly reviewed by the Group Board Two-
way communication Is also central to our business
Employees have a regular opportunity to give therr views
through the annual employee survey, which Is reviewed by
senior leaders and local teams and acted on accordingty

Data

At the core of Experian are comprehensive databases of
credit and marketing information on both consumers and
businesses The broad portfolio of data maintained by
Experlan makes us a partner of choice for many clients as
we offer more information than any single competitor

We invest heavily each year in maintaining complete,
accurate and up-to-date information, while adding new
data sources, where possible, which will further help
chents Experian has a leadership position as the trusted
steward of much sensitive information and we have an
cbligation to protect this - both to clients who are the
source of much of this data and to ¢consumers who are
the subjects of the data As a result, we operate very
ngorous security and control policies

Technology

Expenan’s informatien technology systems are
fundamental to our success They are used for the
storage, processing, access and delivery of the data that
forms the foundation of our business, and for the
development and delivery of the value-added solutions
provided to clients

Much of the technology used by Experian and provided
to chents 1s developed, maintained and supported by in-
house teams across our vancus locaticns We operate
continual maintenance and management of our
information technology systems, including the need to
Integrate existing and acquired businesses

13,000

We ermnploy more
than 13,000 people
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Key performance indicators

As explained in more detail on page
19, Experian’s objectives are to drive
organic growth, accelerate this growth
through complementary acguisitions
and maintain or improve margins The
following indicators are the key ones
that the Board and management team
montor to assess our success In
achieving our objectives

Drive organic growth

Organuc growth increased by 8% n the year to 31 March
2007, with strong sales growth across alt three regions,
reflecting the benefits of Experian’s portfolio of activities
argund the world

Make complementary acquisitions

In the year to 31 March 2007, Expenan increased I11s sales
from continuing activities by 14% at constant exchange
rates Acgquisiions accounted far 6% of the sales growth,
largely reflecting the coniribution from PriceGrabber

and ClantyBlue

Maintain or improve margins

In the year to 31 March 2007, Expenan increased 1ts £8IT
by 11% at constant exchange rates to $825m ESIT
margin Increased by 80 basis points to 21 8%, a further

year of progress

We achieved
8% organic
sales growth in
the year
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Maximise EBIT converston to cash

Experian aims to convert at least 85% of its EBIT into
operating cash flow each year, even after significant
investment In growth opportunties In the year to 31
March 2007, Expenian converted 87% of EBIT to
operating cash flow

Increase sales per employee

Our people are one of our key resources and sales per
FTE is a key measure of our productivity iIn the year to
31 March 2007, sales per FTE increased by 12%

Expenan acquired two
consumer credit bureaux
dunng the year, bringing
the total 1o 14

Expand geographic reach

Expenian currently serves both local and multinational
clients in over 60 countries around the world To aid this,
Experian acqurred twe consumer credit bureaux during
the year (In Canada and Estonia) bringing the total to 14,
and opened additional offices in Belgium, India and
Chile, among others, to improve the level of service
offered to chents

We are also fully aware of our wider responsibiities to
our stakeholders and society as a whole - the way we
achieve growth is as important as the growth itself To
check how our activities iImpact seciety, we have evolved
a set of measures speafic and relevant to our business
These include monitonng our HR practices, our data
management Integrity, cur direct interactions with
consumers, the expected carbon footprint of our Group
and a review of our involvement in the commumities In
which we aperate In addition, we carefully examine our
preduct pertfolio and its direct and indirect benefit to
society An overview of this year's achievements ts on
page 36 to 37 and all measures are reported in full In our
online corporate responsibility report at

WwWw experiancrreport com

127
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Progress in 2007

We have made excellent progress
during the year against our strategic,
operational and financial objectives
The demerger from GUS was a
significant milestone In the
development of Experian, allowing
Investors to benefit directly from the
future growth of the company and
our employees to become
shareholders The £800m raised from
both new and existing shareholders
provides us with financial flexibility
and will help to underpin our growth

Delivery against financal objectives
Over the past year, we have delivered against our key

financial objectives We have drven growth 1n both sales

and profits, with organic sales growth of 8% and a
further tmprovement 1 EBIT margins in our continuing
husiness, excluding FARES All three regions delivered

good crganic sales growth, reflecting the strength of our

portfolic Qur cash flow was strong and we converted
97% of EBIT into operating cash flow, ahead of
our target

Acquistions made in the four years to March 2006
together delivered double-digit post-1ax returns n the
year to March 2007 The more recent acquisitions are
trading to plan

Clear strategic progress

Our strategic priority at Expenan 15 to continue to deliver
sustainable growth In order to create lasting sharehglder
value To facilitate this, we focus on our pnmary growth
drvers, and good progress was made against these over
the past year

» Deeper client relationships - we won a number of new
mandates from existing clients For example, we
renewed and expanded contracts with seven of the
top ten US banks

Gecgraphic expansion - we have continued to expand
in markets outside the US and the UK, with significant
new chent wins in many countnes, including Spain,
France, Japan, China and South Africa

* Product innovation - we continue tc focus on product
innovation, introducing over 20 new products during
the year, including Precise ID, a new fraud detection
platform, MicroMarketer G3, the latest generation of
Experian’s global market segmentation system, and
Simmons online market research

Vertical expansion - we have strengthened our position
in new and expanding market sectors, including
telecommunications, government, retail and media

For example, Expenan 15 now a provider of credit

and decisioning services to all top five wireless
telecommunications companies in the UK

$82m

We spent $82
million on
acquisitions
dunng the year
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Continued investment in business

We continue to invest organically in the business to drive
growth During the year, this included development in
emerging markets, spedfically Asia Pacfic, and new
product initiatives Future organic investment will include
further emerging markets development, the establishment
of a near-shore faciity in Chile, and investment in the
Canadian bureau In the year to March 2008, much of
this investment will be weighted towards the first half

Capnal expenditure In the year was $275m (2006
$212m) Of this, $20m relates to an accelerated
technology spend on data centre consolidation in the US,
which will enhance efficency and productivity We expect
capital expenditure in the current year to be broadly in
line with last year

We also take advantage of opportunities to accelerate
growth and improve productivity through selective,
targeted acquisttions In the year under review, we made
a number of small acquisitions which complement our
existing portfoho Acquisition spend in the year was
$82m, excluding deferred consideration paid, and
included

¢ Two new credit bureaux, in Canada and Estonia,
expanding our geographic footpnnt

e An additional US credit bureau affihate
» Three new Marketing Solutions businesses

» A minonty stake (n SIngtrust, a business information
and market research company in China

Since the year-end, we have agreed to acquire Hitwise, a
leading cnline marketing inteltigence company, for
$240m This acquisition, which forms part of our strategy
to reposition Marketing Solutions, will bring a rapidly
growing, successful business to Expenan, and new unique
data Other acguisitions since the year end include
Informarketing, a direct marketing services provider in
Brazl, Emailing Solution, a leading French permission-
based emall marketing company, and Tallyman, a
collections management software business We expect a
low single-digit contribution {o sales growth from
acquisitions In the year to March 2008

Evolution of leadership to drive

future success

Expenan has considerable opportunities for
future growth, in particular as demand
increases for our services from multinational
companies and within emerging markets [n order

to give sharper focus to all aur regions of operaticn, we
have created a number of new senior leadership roles In
addition 1o our two major regions in the Amencas and UK
and Ireland, we now have dedicated senior managers for
EMEA, Asia Pacific and India respectwely (although for
reporting purposes these regions will continue to be
combimed} Qur new leaders iIn EMEA and Asia Pacific are
tasked with driving our presence in these important areas

Experians full year dwvidend
was 17 cents per share

Foliowing 24 years of strong leadership contribution, John
Saunders, Experian's Chief Executive Officer of Global
Operations, has announced his retirement after a
transitional handaver period John's achigvements within
Experian have been considerable, having created a chent-
driven orgarisation focused on innovation, and we thank
John for ks enormous contribution

Second diwidend of 11 5 cents, to give

full-year dividend of 17 cents

The Board of Expenan has announced a dividend of 115
cents per share to give a full year dwidend of 17 cents per
share Based on continuing pro forma Benchmark EPS this
represents cover of just over three times
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Experian Americas

Operational review

Experian Americas delivered a strong
performance, more than offsetting
challenges In some markets There
was excellent EBIT margin
progression, with all principal
actvities improving year-over-year

Credit Services

Includes consumer credit and business information
bureaux in the US and Canada, commercial lending
software and automotive services

Sales in Credit Services were up 5% in total during the
year, up 3% on an organic basis Against tough
comparatives in 2006 (H1 2005/6 +18%, H2 +9%),
consumer credit services performed well, improving as
the year progressed During the year, the business
demonstrated its resilience as clients shifted spend
towards account management and ccllections Latterly
there has been improvement In customer acquisition
activity Business information delivered a goed
performance, reflecting expanded relationships with
several top ten banks and robust double-digit growth in
portfollo management products Autometive did well on
the back of increased traction of its AutoCheck vehicle
history report and Autocount products AutoCheck, for
example, secured a significant renewal from eBay
Motors There was strong double-digit growth from
Baker Hill's commeraial lending software as tt leveraged
Experian's business information relationsnips

VantageScore, the new credit score jointly developed by
the three US credit bureaux, has performed well In 1its first
year of deployment and to date has secured over 1,300
chents in test The integration of the Canadian consumer
database, acquired in September 2006, ts proceeding well
and 1s on track for launch later this year While small, this
wili enhance the service offered to Expenan's US dients,
many of whom are actwe in Canada

Organic sales grawth

29"

Sales in Decision
Analytics in Experian
Americas were

up 29%

Decision Analytics
Includes credit analytics, decision support
software and fraud solutions

Decision Analytics performed particularly well over the
year, with sales up 29%, reflecting increased market
penetration of both deciston support scftware and fraud
prevention tools The relationship with Bank of America
has continued to develop, as Expenan becomes a
provider of enterprse-wide solutions, supperting Bank of
Amertca across Its credit and deposit products

Fraud prevention delivered very strong double-digit
growth, as demand for Expenan’s identity venfication
solutions has increased, driven by the launch of Precise
ID, its new fraud detection product There was increased
adopticn amongst finanoal services companies and a
major client win In the Internet payment space

Marketing Solutions

includes data and data management {consumer data,
list processing and data integnty (including QAS),
database management and analytics), digital services
(CheetahMatl), research services (Simmons and Vente),
and business strategies

Sales in Marketing Solutions were flat year-on-year and
marginally down (2%} on an arganic basis Marketing
Solutions continues to show divergent trends, with
declines in the traditional activities (consumer data, list
processing and database management), offsetting very
strong double-digit sales growth across Digital Services,
Research Services and QAS Traditional activities, which
In the year stll accounted for over 50% of Marketing
Solutions sales, have been impacted by the secular shift
in marketing spend 1o new digital channels

Progress in the newer marketing areas 1s hughly
encouraging For example, CheetahMail delivered record
email volumes dunng the year (20 billion permission-
based messages), Simmons delivered strong growth in
syndicated research sales following new client wins and
QAS' early foothold in the US has expanded rapidly

Total sales growth
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Interactive

Includes Consumer Direct {online credit reports, scores
and monttoring services) and lead generation businesses
LowerMyBills (mortgages), PriceGrabber (comparison
shopping) and ClassesUSA (online education}

Sales In Interactive grew by 37% during the year,
contributing 38% of total Americas sales from contunuing
actwvities Organic growth was 20%, with the balance of
17% from acquisitions (mainty PriceGrabber)

Consumer Direct delivered excellent grawth throughout
the period with strong demand from consumers for
credit monitering services, which led to hugher
membership rates Meanwhile, increased focus on
enhancing the customer expenience resulted In
significantly reduced churn rates PriceGrabber delivered
very strong growth year-on-year, including a seasonal
boost in December, at which point unigue wisitors hit
record numbers In the education vertical, growth at
ClassasUSA accelerated over the year, as it benefited from
shared expertise in cnline advertising with our other lead
generation properiies

Sales at LowerMyBils were impacted in the final quarter
by the downturn in US sub-pnme lending, as fenders
either exited the market or considerably tightened lending
criteria (Q3 sales unchanged, Q4 down 8%) LowerMyBills
traditionally derives some 80% of sales from the sale of
morigage leads to sub-pnme lenders However, there was
double-digit growth in EBIT in the year as a whole, as
LowerMyBills opurmised marketing spend to generate
more profitable leads In this challenging environment,
LowerMyBills continues to focus on marketing spend
efficiency and 1s driving sales through sales of higher
guality leads and diversification inte both non sub-prime
and non mortgage-related products

Sales by activity

Volume of consumer credit reports (indexed)

Financial review

Sales from continuing activitres were $1,990m, up 15%
compared to the same penod last year, with arganic
growth of 8% Acqusitions, predominantly in the
Interactive segment, contnibuted 7% to sales growth

EBIT from direct businesses was $508m (2006 $404m), an
increase of 269 in the year, giving an EBIT margin of

25 5% (2006 23 3%) Margins mproved across all
business segments, reflecting growing scale in Decision
Analyucs and the newer areas of Marketing Solutions,
continuing operating efficencies and the positive impact
of last year's affiliate credit bureau acquisitions

EBIT from FARES, the 20%-owned real estate information
assaciate, reduced In the period to $61m, compared to
$69m last year This was pnmarnily due to the decline in US

mortgage onginations The improved profit performance in

the second half of the year is attnbutable to a less difficult
mortgage origination market and continued cost action
by FARES

12 months to 31 March 2007 2006 Growth Organic
$m $m %  growth
Y%
Sales
Credit Services 804 766 5 3
Decision Analytics 82 63 9 29
Marketrng Solutions 353 355 - (2)
Interactive 751 547 37 20
Total - continumng activities 1,990 1,731 15 8
Discontinuing activities’ 4 73 na
Total Americas 1,994 1,804 10
EBIT
- Direct business 508 404 26
- FARES 61 69 (n
Total - continuing activities 569 473 20
Discontinuing activities' {7) 6 na
Total Americas 562 479 18
EBIT margint 255% 233%
1 Dlscontlnuing activities include MetaReward
2 EBFT margin is for continulng direct business only and excludes FARES

Volume of emails delivered {indexed)

Expenian Annual Repart 2007 |

25




Introduction | Business review | Governance | Financial statements

Experian UK and Ireland

Operational review

Experian UK and Ireland delivered a
good performance during the year,
even though market conditions were
challenging This further demonstrates
the resilience of the portfolio and
underscores 1ts countercyclical qualities

Credit Services
includes consumer credit and business information
bureaux and automotive and insurance services

Sales in Credit Services increased by 3% aver the year
The consumer credit envirgnment in the UK remained
challenging, reflecting concerns aver levels of consumer
Indebtedness and nsing interest rates Expenan benefited
as clients shifted spend from customer acquisition
towards crass-selling to existing customers, and to
portfolio and nisk management There was also good
growth in Expenan'’s business information activities,
driven by product innovation and market share gains
Elsewhere, diversification into sectors outside financial
services continues to be highly successful, with further
expansion In both the telecommunications and public
services sectors

Grganic sales growth Total sales growth

Decision Analytics
Includes credit analytics, decision support software and
fraud sofutions

Sales in Decision Analytics showed good growth,
increasing by B% during the year Product innovation has
been a driver of this success, as illustrated by good
performances in originatien and N customer
management sofutions, with new software hcensing wins
and significant client renewals For example, Experian
further extended ts relationship with HSBC, signing a
global contract 1o debwver Basel [l models through nis
Strategy Management decision support software

Demand for fraud prevention soluttons continues to nse,
as financial institutions further focus on reducing fraud-
related losses Experian's Hunter solution has seen
considerable success and has secured severat significant
new client wins, Including RBS Group, which selected
Hunter for use across multiple brands and product lines

Marketing Solutions

Includes data and data management (consumer data,
data integrity (QAS and Eiger Systems), database
management (including ClarityBlue) and analytics), digital
services (CheetahMail) and business strategtes (including
Mosaic consumer segmentation, economic forecasting
and FootFall)

Total sales in Marketing Sofutions were up 31%, with
organic growth of 1% The latter was held back by the
weak environment for financial services in the UK, and
tough comparables for QAS, attnbutable to large public
sector contract wins last year CheetahMail delivered an
excellent performance, benefiting from volume growth of
emall campaigns and new client wins

The contributton 1o growth from acquisitions of 30%
was primanly attributable to ClartyBlue and Eiger
Systemns, both of which performed well during the year
ClartyBlue secured a sigmificant client win to provide
relatianship marketing services globally to a major home

EBIT {(5m) and margin
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Sales from continuing actmaties
- in the UK and Iretand
were up 17%

gaming and entertainment provider, and Eiger Systems Financial review .
has been successfully integrated, following its acquisition Total sales from cantinuing activities were ) )
In June 2006 $843m, up 17% at constant exchange rates

compared to the same penod last year Organic growth
was 7% The contribution to sales growth from
acquisitions dunng the year was 10%

We have previously announced our intention to integrate
UK marketing data, processing and database
management activities into a single business unit,
Expenan Integrated Marketing This will prowide a single
point of sale for Experian’s services, an improved
customer propostiion and significant cost savings
Restructunng costs, which will be charged against EBIT,
are expected to be about $12m, of which about $8m
was Incurred In the year, with the balance in the year to
March 2008 We expect full payback of the
reorganisation costs in the year to March 2009

EBIT from centinuing activities was $221m, an increase
of 16% at constant exchange rates over last year, prior
to the restructuring charge of $8m The EBIT margin,
before the restruciuring charge, was 26 2% (2006

26 4%), with the shight decline reflecting the first time
inclusion of ClarntyBlue, which has margins below the
average for Expenan UK and Ireland Improved operating
leverage and ongoing cost containment otherwise drove

margin enhancement in the other principal activitres
Interactive 9 P P

Compnses CreditExpert (onhne credit reports, scores and
menitoring services sold direct to consumers)

12 months to 31 March 2007 2006 Growth' Organic
Interactive grew sales by 176% over the year This ar $m $m % gr(?wth,
excellent performance reflects the strength of demand o,
for CreditExpert, which benefited from growth m
membership and higher volumes of credit reports Sales
delivered, dniven by telewision and radio advertising and - Credit Services 266 245 3 3
he strength of marketing partnerships, for example with - Decision Analytics 215 185 ? 8
the streng gp Ps. P - Marketing Solutions 329 236 31 i
AOL, Yahoo and MSN Interactive 33 1 176 176

Total - continuing activities 843 677 17 7

Discontinuing activities’ 64 81 na

Total UK and Ireland 907 758 13

EBIT — UK and frefand 221 179 16

Restructuring charge (8} na

EBIT - continuing activities 212 179 12

Discontinuing activities!' 24 36 na

Total UK and Ireland 236 215 4

EBIT margiy’ 262% 264%

1 Discontinuing actlvities incdude UK account processing

1 E8IT margln for continuing activitles only before restructuring charge

3 Grawth at constant FX rates

Sales by activity! Apphcations for credit (indexed)
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Experian EMEA/Asia Pacific

Operational review

Experian EMEA/Asia Pacific delivered
another goed performance, reflecting
very high growth rates in Central,
Southern and Eastern Europe, South
Africa and Asia Pacific balanced by
slower growth in more mature
markets such as Western Europe

Organic sales grawth

Total sales growth

Credit Services

includes consumer credit bureaux in ten countries,
business iformation bureaux in four countnes and
transaction processing, mainly in France

Credrt Services sales grew by 5% at constant exchange
rates over the year, with organic growth of 4%

Sales in transaction processing strengthened during the
year as the business benefited from the first time
contrbution from a number of contract wins, particularly
in business process outsourcing These include multi-year,
muiti-million eura contracts with EDF, French Ministry of
Labour, GIE Sesam Vitale and the French Ministry of
Foreign Affairs In addiion, Expenan has extended its
customer base in cheque processing and now acts for all
top six French banks Transaction processing which is a
relatively mature actwity, accounts for nearly two-thirds of
Credit Services sales tn EMEA/Asia Pacific

There were excellent performances from the consumer
credit bureaux, particularly in Central, Southern and
Eastern Europe and South Afnca, driven by growth in
demand for credit and value-added products The
acquisition earlier in the year of a business and consumer
credit bureau n Estoria has further extended Expenan’s
geographic reach in the Nordic region, enhanang the
service offering to clients aperating across the region
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Decision Analytics

Includes credit analytics, decision support software
and fraud solutions sold in over 60 countries around
the world

Sales fram Decision Analytics showed excellent progress,
with growth of 21%, 18% on an organic basis

Experian Decision Analytics is recognised by major clients
around the world for its global products and local
presence in key markets in addition to delivering good
growth in core markets across Continental Europe, there
was significant progress during the year in emerging
markets such as Russia, Turkey and Eastern Europe
Expenian also secured its first major client win in India,
ICICI Bank, for behavioural scoring In Japan, there was a
significant contract win with GE Finance and other
domestic clients, and in China Expenan secured a
cantract to deliver software solutions and cansulting io
ICBC bank, one of Chinas teading banks

Demand for fraud prevention solutions continues to
accelerate with, for example, material new multi-year,
multi-mithon eura client wans i Spain

591m

Total EMEA/AsI2 Paciiic sales
were $591 million, up 8%
at constant exchange rates

Marketing Solutions
Includes business strategres, data integrity (QAS) and
other marketing services around the world

Sales increased by 23% in the penod with organic¢
growth of 9% There was a 14% contribution from
acquisitions, princaipally in Business Strategies (FootFall)
Growth reflects high value contract wins by QAS In
Australia and New Zealand, and good progress by
Business Strategies

Financial review

Total sales were 3591m, up 8% at constant exchange
rates compared to the same perod last year Organic
growth was 7%

EBIT was $74m, up 11% at constant exchange rates
from a year ago, giving an EBIT margin of 12 5%
(2006 ¥2 3%) Margin improvement prinapally
reflected operating leverage in Decision Analytics from
the growth in sales, and efficiency improvements in the
French bank back office activity, partially offset by
Investment In new markets

12 months to 31 March 2007 2006 Growth' Organic

$m $m % growth'
%

Sales

- Credit Services 450 410 5 4

- Decision Analytics 95 76 21 18

- Marketing Sotutions 46 36 23 g

Total EMEA / Asia Pacrfic 591 522 8 7

EBIT - EMEA / Asia Pacific 24 b4 Lk

EBIT margin 125% 12 3%

' Growth at constant FX rates

Experan central activities

Following the demerger, central activities costs are
expected to be about $52m in a full finanal year
In the year to 31 March 2007, the reported costs
of central activities were 347m (2006 $31m)
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Financial review

Demerger

Cn 10 October 2006, the separation of Experian Group
Limited and Home Retall Group was completed by way of
demerger As pait of the demerger, Expenan Group Limited
became the ulumate holding company of GUS plc The
demerger transaction has been accounted forin
accordance with the UK GAAP principles of merger
accounung, which are not in conflict with IFRS and reflect
the economic substance of the transactton The distribution
to GUS plc shareholders of shares in Home Retall Group plc
has been accounted for as a dvidend in specie In the
financial statements In addition the resulis of Home Retall
Group have been represented as discontinued

Sales
Group sales from continuing operations grew by 14%
from $3,064m 10 $3,481m

Profit

Benchmark profit before tax for conunuing operations
rase by $87m to $714m The increase in benchmark
profit is largely a result of the 14% increase In sales from
continuing operaiions Profit before tax from
discontinued operations decreased by 74% to $228m
principally because the prior year includes a fult year of
the Home Retall Group results

Taxation

The Group's effective rate of tax for the year was 22 4%,
based on benchmark profit This compares to 17 5%
last year

Shareholder return and dividends

Foliowing the demerger and equity 1ssue completed in
Qctober, Expenan now has approximately 1,022m
Ordinary shares In 1ssue The number of shares 10 be
used for the purposes of calculating basic earnings per
share going forward 15 1,006m after deducting own
shares held

Basic earnings per share were 49 9c in the year to

31 March 2007 The basic earnings per share for the
prior year of 107 Sc includes 59 1c¢ related to
disconunued operations Benchmark earmings per share
increased to 59 7¢ from 54 5¢ last year The Board has
announced a dwidend of 11 5¢, giving a divtdend of 17¢
for the full year The dwidend for the year I1s covered 3 S
times from benchmark earnings

Share price and total shareholder return

On 6 Qctober 2006 shares in GUS plc ceased 1o be listed
on the London Stock Exchange's market for listed
securities Trading in shares in Expenan Group Limited on
the London Stock Exchange commenced on 11 October
2006 On that day, Experan Group Limited also raised
£800m by way of a share offer at an effer price of

560p per share

The share price of Expertan ranged from a low of 559 5p
to a high of 631 5p dunng the penod since fisting On
31 March 2007, the mid market price was 585 5p, gwing
a market capitalisation of $11 7bn at that date

Shareholders’ funds

Shareholders’ funds amount to $2,107m, eguvalent to
$2 06 per share, a decrease of $3,347m in the year This
principally reflects the reduction of net assets following
the demerger of Home Retall Group (decrease of
$5.,627m) offset by the proceeds of the eguity 1ssue
{increase of $1,441m)

Cash flow and net debt

The Group’s free cash flow before acquisitions,
divestments and dwidends was $577m compared with
$574m in 2006 Capital expenditure in 2007 was
$275m, 363m higher than last year Capital expenditure,
which included accelerated spend of $20m on data
centre consolidation, was equivalent to 121% of the
depreciation charge in 2007 Free cash flow was used to
fund acquisitions of $118m, the purchase of other
financial assets and invesiment 1n associates of $42m
and dividends of $401m (principally the final dividend
pad by GUS plc) Cash cutflow from exceptional items
amounted to $98m After proceeds from disposals of
businesses of $258m, net cash inflow for the year was
$176m Net debt at 31 March 2007 decreased by
$2,029m to $1,408m, down from $3,437m at

31 March 2006

Acquisitions

Acquisttion expendiiure amounted to $118m, including
deferred and contingent consideration on prior year
acquisitions

Liquidity and funding

The maturity, currency and interest rate prefile of the
Groups borrowings are shown in note 26 to the finanoal
statements The matunity profile 15 spread over the next
seven years, to avoid excessive concentration of re-
financing needs At 31 March 2007 undrawn committed
borrowing faclities totalled $2,450m

Treasury and risk management

The Group’s Treasury functicn seeks to reduce
exposures to foreign exchange, interest rate and
other finanaial nisks, to ensure sufficient
hquidity s available to meet foreseeable

needs and to invest cash assets safely and
profitably It does not operate as a profit
centre and transacts only in relation 1o

underlying business requirements It d

aperates policies and procedures which £

are periodically reviewed and approved m
by the Board and are subject to regular -
Group Internal Audit reviews

v

At the tme of the
. demerger Experan
raised £800 milhon 10
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2007 2006

Group cash flow sm $m
EBIT for continuing aperations 825 727
Depreciation 237 204
Capital expenditure (275) (212)
Change in working capital 5 (12)
Retained In associate (22) (20)
Share option charge within benchmark prefit 34 30
Operating cash flow 804 717
Interest {106) (1n
Corporation tax (121) (32)
Free cash flow 577 574
et cash outflow from exceptionals (98) )]
Acquisiions (118} {1,420
Purchase of other financial assets and investment In associates (42) (an
Disposal of subsidiary 258 643
Didends (401) (508)
Net cash flow 176 (759)
Foreign exchange movements 166 {20)
Other investing related cash flows 121 618
Movement tn cash and cash equivalents (continuing) 453 {161)
Net debt flow of discontinued activities 32 {188)
Movement 1n cash and cash equivalents 495 (349)

Currency nsk management

The Group's reported profit can be significantly affected by
currency movements In the year to 31 March 2007
approximately 35% of the Group’s EBIT from continuing
operations was earned in currencles other than the

US dollar In order to reduce the impact of currency
fluctuations on the value of mvestments in overseas
countries, the Group has a policy of borrowing in Sterling
and Euros, as well as in US dollars, and of entering into
forward foreign exchange contracts in its key overseas
currencies The Group's prncipal borrowings were
onginally undertaken in Stering Dunng the year ended 31
March 2007, the Group continued to enter into forward
foreign exchange contracts to sell the US dollar and the
Euro against Sterting Additienally, the Group has a pohcy
of hedging foreign currency denominated transactions by
entering into forward foreign exchange contracts

Interest rate risk management

The Group's inierest rate exposure 15 managed by the use
of fixed and floating rate borrowings and by the use of
interest rate swaps to adjust the balance of fixed and
floating rate llabiliies The Group also spreads the
duration of its borrowings 10 smooth the impact of
interest rate fluciuations

Credit nisk
The Group's expasure to credit nisk 1s managed by
dealing only with banks and financial nstitutions with

strong credit ratings, within limits set for each
organisation Dealing activity 15 closely controlled and
counter-party posttions are monitored regularly

Interest costs

At $146m net finance costs were $44m lower than last
year The changes i caprtal structure resufting from the
settling of intra-group lending prior to the demerger, the
demerger itself and the IPO mean that the pnior year's
tnterest cost 1s not comparable with the current year's
The reported net interest ine benefits from a credit to
interest of $16m relating to the excess of the expecied
return on pension assets over the Interest on pension
iabilities (2006 $9m)

At 31 March 2007, Expenan had net debt of $1,408m,
including the net proceeds from the equity 1ssue In
October 2006 of $1,441m

Assurming the 31 4bn equity had been raised at 1 April
2006, the pro forma net nterest expense would have been
$65m (H1 $30m, H2 $35m), Including a similar

pension credit

For the year to March 2008, Experian expects a net interest
expense, Including the pension credit, in the region of
$70m, based on acquistion spend since the year-end and
forecast cash flows
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Financial review cont

Exceptional items

The only costs treated as exceptional (tems are those
asscciated with the disposal, demerger or closure of
businesses All other restructuning costs have been
charged against EBIT in the divisians in which they were
incurred

The exceptional items during the year were Costs incurred
relating to the demerger of Experian and Home Retal
Group, the charge on early vesting and modification of
share awards at demerger, costs Incurred in the closure
of UK Account Processing and a gain arising i an
assocate from partial disposal of 1ts subsidiary

Other adjustment items

IFRS requires that, on acquisition, specific intangtble
assets are identified and recognised separately from
goodwill and then amortised over their useful economic
Ives These include items such as brand names and
customer lists, to which value 1s first attributed at the time
of acquistion The Group has excluded amortisation of
these acguisition intangibles from its definition of
Benchmark PBT because such a charge 15 based on
uncertain judgements about therr value and economic life

A goodwaill adjustment of $14m arose in accordance with
IFRS 3 ‘Business Combinations’ following the recogniion
of a benefit in respect of previousty unrecognised tax
losses relating to prior year acquisitions The
corresponding tax benefit reduces the tax charge In

the year by $14m

Charges In respect of demerger-related equity incenuve
plans relate to one-off grants made 1o senior
management and alt other staff levels at the ume of
demerger under a number of equity incentive plans The
cost of these one-off grants will be charged to the Group
Income statement aver the five years following the
demerger, but excluded from the definiticn of
Benchmark PBT The cost of all other grants will be
charged to the Group income statement and will be
included in the definition of Benchmark PBT

An element of the Group’s dervatives is ineligible for
hedge accounting under IFRS Gamns or lpsses on these
derivatwes ansing from market movements are charged
or credited to the income statement In the year to

31 March 2007 this amounted 1o a charge of

£35m {2006 $2m)

Pensions

Note 24 to the financial statements shows the
assumptions used {(including mortalty assumptions)
together with the other disclosures required n
accordance with IAS 19

At 31 March 2007 the Group has a net surplus for all
retirement benefit schemes on an 1AS 19 basis of
$85m (2006 $31m)

Accounting policies and standards
The principal accounting policies used by the Group are
shown 1n note 2 to the financiat statements

Exceptional items and other non-GAAP measures
2007 2006
m sm
Exceptional items
Continung operations
Charge on early vesting and modification of share awards at demerger
of Expenian and Home Retal Group 23 -
Other costs incurred relating to the demerger of Experian and Home Retall Group 126 7
Costs incurred In the closure of UK Account Processing 26
Loss on disposal of businesses 2
Gain ansing In associate on the partial disposal of its subsidiary (15}
Total exceptional items 162 7
Other non-GAAP measures
Continuing operations
Amortisation of acquisition intangibles 76 66
Goodwill adjustment 14
Charges In respect of the demerger-related equity mcentive plans 24
Financing far value remeasurements 35 2
Total other nen-GAAP measures 149 68
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Use of non-GAAP measures

Expenian has identified certain measures that it believes
provide additional useful information on the performance
of the Group As the measures are not defined under
IFRS they may not be directly comparable with other
companies’ adjusted measures The non-GAAP measures
are not intended to be a substitute for, or supenor to,
any IFRS measures of performance Certain non-GAAP
measures identified by the Group are shown In note 2 10
the financial statements Further non-GAAP measures
and reconcaliations of those measures are set out below

Discontinuing activities Expenan defines discontinuing
activittes as businesses sold, closed or idenufied for
closure durning a financial year These are treated as
discontinuing actities for both sales and EBIT purposes
Prior periods, where shown, are restated to exclude the
results on discontinuing actmities This financial measure
differs from the definition of discontinued operations set

out in IFRS 5 ‘Non-current assets held for sale and
discontinued operations’ Under IFRS 5, a discontinued
operation 1s (1} a separate major line of business or
geographucal area of operations, (i) part of a single plan
to dispose of a major ine of business or geographical
area of operations, or (1) a subsidiary acquired exclusively
with a view to resale

Continuing acuvities Businesses irading at 31 March
2007 that have not been disclosed as disconunuing
activities are treated as continuing activines

Organic growth This 15 the year-on-year change In
continuing activities sales, at constant exchange rates,
excluding acquisitions {other than affiliate credit bureaux)
until the first anniversary date of consolidation

Direct business Direct business refers to Expenan’s
business exclusive of finanaal resulis of FARES

Reconahation of sales and EBIT by geography

12 months to 31 March 2007

2006

Contitnuing Discontinuing  Total

Continuing Discontinuing  Total

activities activities activities activities

Sm &m $m m $m $m
Sales
Americas 1,990 4 1,994 1,731 73 1,804
UK & lreland 843 64 907 677 81 758
EMEA/AsIa Pacific 591 - 591 522 - S22
Total sales 3,424 68 3,492 2,930 154 3,084
EBIT
Amernicas — direct business 508 (7} 501 404 6 410
FARES 61 - 61 69 - 69
Total Americas 569 (7 562 473 6 479
UK & Ireland 221 24 245 179 36 215
UK & Ireland restructuring charge (8} - (8) - - -
EMEAJASIZ Pacific 74 - 74 64 - 64
Central activities 4an 47} (31) - (31}
Total EBIT 808 17 825 685 42 727
Net interest {111 (100)
Benchmark PBT 714 627
Exceptional items (162) 7

Amortisation of acquisition intangibles (76) (66}
Goodwill adustment {14) .
Charges for demerger-related equity incentive plans (24) -
Financing fair value remeasurements (35} (2)
Tax expense of associates (9) {2
Profit before tax 394 550
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Financial review cont

Reconaliation of sales and EBIT by business segment

12 months to 31 March 2007 2006 Total Organic
$m $m growth* growth*
Sales
Credit Services 1,520 1,420 4% 3%
Deasion Analytics 392 325 16% 15%
Marketing Sclutions 728 627 13% -
Interactive 784 558 40% 23%
Total - continuing activities 3,424 2,930 14% 8%
Discontinuing activities' 68 154 na
Total 3,492 3,084 11%
EBIT
Credit Services
Direct business 420 n 11%
FARES 61 69 {11%)
Total Credit Services 482 440 8%
Decision Analytics 136 102 27%
Marketing Solutions 73 57 24%
Restructuring charge (8) - na
Total Marketing Sotutions 65 57 10%
Interactive 173 17 50%
Central activities (47) {31) na
Total - continuing activities 808 B85 16%
Discontinuing activities' 17 42 na
Total 825 727 1M%
EBIT margin
Credrit Services — direct business 27 6% 26 1%
Decision Analytics 34 7% 315%
Marketing Sclutions? 10 0% 91%
Interactive 22 1% 210%
Total EBIT margin® 218% 210%

3 EBIT margin is for continuing dlract business only, excluding FARES
4 Growth at constant FX rates

1 Discontinuing activities nclude MetaReward and UK account processing
2 Total EBIT margin for continuing divect business only excudes FARES Includes restructuring charga and central activities

Basis of preparation for pro forma
interest calculations

Equity proceeds

At demerger Expenan raised £800m of new equity For
the purposes of prepanng pro forma results, net interest
has been calculated to illustrate the impact on Group
financial performance as if this equity had been 1ssued at
1 Apnl 2006 The financial impact of this 1s a credit to
interest of $37m

Management of bank balances

In the periad prior 1o demerger, bank balances were
managed centrally on a pooled basis in accordance with
the normal treasury arrangements in graups of
companies Home Retall Group companies held bank
balances in the pool and interest thereon Is reported
within discontinued activities Experian will continue to
use poaling arrangements but the arrangements prior to
demerger result In an increase in the reported interest
cost for the year for continuing operations of $9m
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Risks and uncertainties

As descrnibed under corporate
objectives and strategy on page 19,
Experian’s vision 1s that our peopie,
data and technology become a
necessary part of every major
consumer economy around the world
The major potential risks to achieving
this are erther specific to Expernian, such
as Information security, or more
general such as the impact of
competition Risks to Experian are
antiapated and regularly assessed and
our Internal controls are enhanced
where necessary to ensure that such
nsks are appropriately mitigated

We have identified the foliowing major potential risks

Speafic risks for Experian

People

Expenan 1s dependent upon highly skilied personnel,
especially our senvor management and other expenenced
staff Loss of these people could have an adverse effect on
our ability to deliver our corporate objectives We aim 1o
provide compensation and benefits that are competitive with
other leading companies, as well as fulfiling future career
appertunities

Data

The data that Experian holds may be inappropnately used
Experian has established rigorous information security
polictes, standards, procedures, recruitment and training
schemes, which are embedded throughout our business
operations We also screen new third party partners carefully
and conduct targeted audits on ther operations The loss
and/or potental misuse of consumer data 1s addressed both
procedurally through continued Investment in T secunty
infrastructure, inctuding the signdicant use of data and
communications encryption technology around the world

Legislation or government regulations may after what data
Experian can collect and how we coffect 1t To the best of
our knowledge, we are in comphance with data protection
requiremenits in the junsdictions in which Expernan operates
We actvely monitor our collection and use of personal data,
while our legal, regulatery and government affairs
departments work closely with senior management 1o adopt
strategies to educate lawmakers and influence the public
policy debate where appropnate around the world

Technology
There could be securnty breaches of Experan’s systems !
and pracesses or our systemns could fail Qur data centres

are protected against damage from fire, powver loss, ‘
telecomrnunications failure, natural disaster, hardware or [
software malfunction, computer viruses or other purposeful

attacks, such as physical break-ins or hacking To mitigate

the nsk from insecure or unreliable IT systems, we maintain

off-site copies of all information contained in databases, run

back-up data centres, have established support

arrangements with third party vendors and have sinct

standards, procedures and traming schemes for technology

services, physical secunty, iInformation secunity and business

continuity

Other risks

Experian could face increased competition, especially in
the credit reporting industry We mitigate this nsk through
continued research and investment in people, technotogy
and products as prioritised by our strategic plan

There may be consolidation among Experian’s clients,
which may cause price compression and a reduction in
our sales and profits However, no single client accounts for
more than 3% of our sales, which reduces the probability of
this potental nsk having a significant impact on us

Acquisttions may not meet expectations Ve assess ali
acquisitions rigorousty using both in-house expertise and
that of professionat adwisors

There may be an economic downturn in one of Expenan’s

major markets, which impacts the demand for consumer

credit in particular As described on page 16, the breadth of

Experian’s portfolio by praduct, by geography, by sector and !
by client partly mitigates the impact of this nsk

The outcome of friigation could be unfavourable to
Experian We carry insurance cover against such nsks and
employ numerous expert legal personne! in-house and
retain the services of several leading legal practices around
the world to assist in the effective management and
disposal of legal proceedings

Expertian could fail to protect adequately 1ts valuable
inteflectual property nights or face claims for intelfectual
property night infringement Experian seeks patent
protection and approprate agreements regarding Its
intellectual property nghts where appropriate and feasible
and continues to monitor this situation

Further discussion of risks facing Expenan can be found in
the prospecius for the global offer, dated 14 September
2006, which 1s available on our website at

WWW exXperiangroup com
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Corporate responsibilities

Strategy and definition

Expenan 15 a fast growing business and financial success

ts a key measure of that growth However we don‘t exist
N a vacuum By measurning ourselves against other

societal impacts and targeting ourselves to Improve we

¢an ensure we have a sustainable business and thatwe -
mamntain and improve societies’ understanding and
respect for what we do

Since our listing as an independent company cn 11
October 2006, we have ungertaken a review of our
wider responsibilities, consulting refevant people within
the business anid drawing on external evaluations from
analysts and commentators As a result we have chosen
six essential responsibilties to provide the framework and
direction for our work

We believe we have a responsibility to

1 Use and protect data properly, respecting all the
relevant laws, helping evolve industry guidelines and
new legislation and ensuring a culture of setting and
complying with the highest standards of integrity

2 Create social and economic benefit through our
products services and capabilities, balancing
commercial benefit with consumers' rights and needs

3 Inform and empower consurmers and ensure that those
whe interact directly with our company recewve farr and
honest treatment

4 Be a good employer to all, establishing a set of
expecied behaviours and values, ensuring that
everyone working for us is treated faurly, given the
maxmum opporturity to fulfil their potential and that
all our workptaces are safe and healthy

5 Mimimise as far as possible the environmental impacts
associated with our business and enable employee
particpation, with a paricular concentration on the
reduction of energy use and 1ts effect on global warming

6 Play an acuve part in social and economic regeneration
In our communities, be they local, natonal or glabal

Discharging these six responsibiltbes effectively helps
reduce nsk and presents us with oppertunities In
essence, we think that taking proper account of social
1ssues makes us a better business in the long term We
are commitied to dialcgue, transparency and the need
for good quahty benchmarks and indicators of our non-
financial performance

Management and accountability

This year we appointed a Group Company Secretary,
Charles Brown, and gave hum overall responsibihty for
Corporate Responsibility {CR}, ensuring that 1t features
regularly on the Board agenda The Board’s first action
has been to approve an outline strategy in early 2007,
based on the six responsibilities above

We have appointed a Head of

Global CR, reporting te Charles

Brown, to direct and co-ordinate

efforts across the Group Expenan is

structured Into regional businesses, each

of which has appointed a CR management
champion These champions will meet regularly
chaired by the Company Secretary and led by the Head
of Globa! CR, to give strategic input and direction They
will consider risks and opportunities and ways in which
we can embed social considerations into our everyday
decisicn-making processes There is also a small network
of CR co-ordinators who are the principal contacts for
the Head of Global CR to share information about
relevant nsks and oppertunities, develop initiatives and
report performance

We have chosen six
essential responsibilities
to provide the
framewark and direction
for our CR programme

Expenan is currently fisted in the FTSE4Goed Index

We have produced a comprehensive CR Report online
(accessible via the Company website and at

www expertancrreport com) The following sections
present a summary from that docurmnent

Performance during 2007

Data managemeni- using and protecting data progerly
Experian has estabiished a lead position as the trusted
steward of sensitive consumer data We have an
obligation to protect and secure data from wrongfu!
access or misuse We have dedicated Compliance and
Information Security teams who have overall
responsibility for ensuring a culture of awareness and
comphance within the bustness In the past year, these
teams have improved physical securiiy measures and our
management of digital identity and access tec our
systemns, as well as gaining IS0 internattonal certification
More widely, we have undertaken a general programme
of employee education including defining a new gicbal
policy and have taken the lead in tndustry-wide initiatives
regarding the safe transfer of data

Products and services ~ social benefits of our services
Experan plays an important role in maintaining a heaithy
economy, and many of qur core products have strong
social benefits For example we are a leading player in
reducing fraud, in helping lenders and individuals avoid
over-indebtedness, reducing Junk mail and ensuning those
in need are targeted to receive state aid Activivies in the
past year have included

+ Development of cur predictive tools to ensure lenders
can pick up the very early signs of over-indebtedness

Establishing a Vicums of Fraud service to support those
whose identities have been transgressed

¢ Launching tools to directly help consumers better
understand how their behawiour affects their
credit rating
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Consumers — informing and empowenng consumers
During the last year, Expenan had over 25 milion direct
contacts with consumers Over half of these interactions
were providing consumers with access to their data on file,
allowing them to test, challenge or amend 1t where
appropriate This type of access Is a key part of data
pretection legislation In many countries, and we aim to
ensure that we comply fully and wholeheartedly

However, we aim 1o go much further in our work with
consumers We take very seriously the need to educate
pecple more widely, particularly about the credit granting
process and how 10 make it work for them We play a
teadership role in national organisations with a remit for
promoting financia! education, especally with the young
Training the trainers is a specal focus !n the US we have
led a national campaign 10 ensure personal finance skilis
are taught th schoels and this year gave considerable input
to a speafic programme of finanaal educatien in Texas
high schoots

The Expenan businesses that market directly to consumers
have extended the frequency and reach of customer
satisfaction surveys and have monitored and improved therr
online accessibility

Employment practice - being a good empioyer Experan
employs more than 13,000 people in 36 countries around
the world Recruiting, motivating and retaining the best
colleagues is an essential part of our competitive edge To
ensure a far and professional workplace we have a range
of employment palicies covering 1ssues such as equal
opportunities, business ethics, bullying and harassment
and whistle-blowing This year we Initiated a brand
development programme, which inciudes the development
of a consistent system of values and behaviours for
employees We invest heavily in training and development,
this year delivering more online and computer based
training than In any previous point in our history

Environmental impact - minimising our carbon foatprint
and waste Our most significant environmental impact 15
the use of energy 1n our bulldings, and the emissions of

C 02 that come from it While the amount of energy we
use relative t¢ our size may be low, we believe that all
companies have a respensibility to play their part in
meeting the challenge of chmate change We have
measured our carbon footpnint as approximately 64,000
tonnes 1In 2007 {the final, verified figure can be found in
our online report www experiancrreport com} Our
emissions from buildings have fallen this year as our
Nottingham sites, which house more than 2,000 people,
arranged to purchase all therr electncity needs from
renewabte sources and our four major sttes in the US
replaced inefficient heat pumps and chillers, instalied
energy saving hight bulbs, reduced might ume temperature
cantrols and controlled ighting with motion deteciors
and timers

Community - social and economic regeneration We have
a strong history of community involvement on both sides
of the Atlantic In the last year Experian invesied $1 44m
into community programmes and charitable causes and,
with the addition of funds fram the GUS Trust and the
funds raised by employees, this rose t0 $2 169m, with a
breakdown as shewn n the chart below These funds
enabled a huge range of opportunities for Expenian's
peaple to make a real contrtbution to the iife of therr
local communities and often allowed the organisatons
we worked with to leverage considerably more funding
from ather sources

Expernian’s community investment

Cash donations from Expernan
Value of employee time volunteered
value of gifts in kind

Community management €osts
Total from Experian

Employee fundraising
GUS Trust Donauons

$729,000
$157,000
$332,000
$222,000
$1,440,000

$212,000
$517,000

Total value including funding
gven by others

§2,169,000

This year saw us launch a new US-UK collaborative
project, involving seven schools from the US and UK
Students in each school created a set of Chnstmas card
designs to be used by Experian, at the sarne time raising
funds for charity Save the Children A spin off from the
praject (s an electronic pen pal scheme between the
schools, which we have facilitated via a secure

anline envirconment

We also define our ‘community’ more widely As a
responsible member of the business and finance
commurity, we have sponsored the UK Natichal Debtline
and the Ciuzens Advice service and the Money Advice
service 1n Scotland In the US we support Cali for Action
and the National Consumer's League of Idenuty

Theft Hotline
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Board of directors

Executive directors

John Peace (58}
Chatrman

John Peace began his career in 1970 at the
tormer GUS plc, where he held several
seniof IT management positions befare co-
founding CCN n 1980 This was the
company formed by GUS to market
information services to retailers and other
lending organisations In 1991, he was
appointed Chief Executive of CCN which
was by then ane of Europe s largest
information services companies During the
mid-nineties, CCN was combined with a
number of other US and European
businesses to form a global information
services organisation called Experian with
John Peace as its Chief Executive worldwide
John Peace joined the Board of the former
GUS plc in 1997, becoming Group Chief
Execuwve 1n January 2000 In June 2002

he was appointed Chairman of Burberry
Group plc, in advance of its parual flotatian
by GUS in July 2002 John Peace 15 also
Chairman of the Board of Governers of
Mottingham Trent University Deputy
Chairman of $tandard Chartered with effect
from 1 August 2007 and a Fellow of the
Royat Society of Arts

Non-executive directors

Fabiola Arredondo {40)
Non-Executive Director

Fabiola Arredondo 1s the Managing Partner
of Siempre Holdings, a private nvestment
firm based i the US Prior to this she held
senior operaung positions at Yahoot!, the
BEC and Berielsmann A G She s currently
a Non-Executive Director of Bankinter S A
the World Wildlife Fund, and Sesame
Warkshop and was formerly a Non
Executve Director of BQC Group plc and
Intelsat Corparation Fabicla has a BA
degree from Stanford Universsty and an
M3B& from the Harvard Business School

Don Robert {48)
Chuef Executve Officer

Don Robert graduated from Oregon State
University with 8 degree in Business
Administration He began his career with
U'S Bancorp, a mutt state bank holding
company where he held positions of
Increasing responsiiiity over 15 years From
there he joined Credeo Inc, the largest
specialist credit reporting company in the
US as President In 1995 Credeo was
acquired Dy First Amenican Corporation and
over the next six years Don Robert held
positons as Executive Vice President of
Morgage Cngination Services and President
of First Amenican’s Consurner Information
and Services Group In 2001, Don Rebert
Jarned Experian from First Amernican
becoming Chief Executve Officer of Experian
North America in December 2002 in
February 2005 he took responsibility for
Expenan globally as Chief Executive Officer
of Expenan Group Don Robert joined the
Board of the former GUS plc in Apnil 2005
His other business appointments :nclude
Cirector of First Advantage Corporation
member of the Chapman Unwversity Board of
Counsellors and past Chauman of the
Consumer Data Industry Association

Laurence Danon {51)
Nan-Executive Director

Laurence Danon was the President and CEQ
of Pantemps SA the french department
stare chain untl January 2007 She led the
buyout of Printemps from PPR, Europe’s
largest non-food retader, in 2006 Pnov to
Printernps Laurence held various semor roles
at Tota! Fina Elf She began her career
working for the French Government She is a
Non-Executive Director of Diageo Plc and
Plastic Omnium SA

Paul Brooks {53)
Chuef Financizl QOfficer

Paul Brooks graduated frorm Cambndge
University with an economics degree and
went on to quaify as a Chartered
Accountant with KPMG  He then joned 1C
where he worked for the Plastics Division in
Brussels and Corporate Reporting Group in
London After five years with GKN's
Industrial Services Division mostly spent as
Drsisional CFO in the USA, Paul Brooks
jomned Inchcape, latterly as inchcape
Marketing Services Finance Director, based in
Singapore He joined Expenan in Apnl 1999
as Finance Cirector of Expenian Internatienal
and was appointed Global Chief Financial
Othicer in October 2001

Roger Davis {50)
Non-Executive Director

Roger Dawis spent some eight years at
Barclays, latterly as the CEO of the 45 0G0
strong UK Banking operation and as a
member of the Board of Barclays Plc Prior to
that he spent some ten years in investment
banking in London and in various posiions
in Asia for Flermings and later BZW Roger 15
Chairman of the Remuneration Commitiee
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Non-executive directors

Sean FitzPatrick (58)
Non-Executive Director

Sean FiizPanck 1s currently non-executive
Charman of Angle Insh 8ank Corporation
plc, having retired as CEO of that
orgarusation Iin January 2005 He 15 also the
Non-Executive Charman of Smurfit Kappa
PLC, a past President of the Insh Bankers
Federation and & Non-Executive Director of
Aer Lingus Group plc and Greencere Group
plc Sean 1s a Chartered Accountant

Sir Alan Rudge (69)
Non-Executive Director

Sir Alan Rudge was Deputy Chief Executive
of BT untd November 1997 and Chairman of
WS Atking until March 2001 He joined the
Board of the former GUS plcin 1997 and
until March 2005 was President of CELTEL
International BY and a Non-Executive
Director on the Board of SESA AG He s
cusrently Chairman of the ERA Foundation
Lt and Pro Chanceltor of Surrey University
Sir Alan 1s the Senior Independent Director
of Expenan He has a PhD in Electrical
Engmeerning and s a Fellow of the Royat
Society and the Royal Academy of
Engineenng He is a past President of the
Institution of Electnical Engineers and past
Cihairman of the Engineening and Physwcal
Scrences Research Counail

Alan Jebson (57}
Non Execuuve Director

Alan Jebson retred in May 2006 as Group
Chief Operating Officer of H$BC Holdings
Plc a position that included responsibinty for
IT and Global Resourcing During a long
career with HSBC, Alan held various
positions in 1T in¢luding the position ot
Group CIO His roles included responsibility
for the Group s international systems,
including the consolidation of HSBC and
Midland systems following the acquisstion of
Midland Bank in 1993 He 15 a Non-Exacutive
Director of Vodafore Group Plc and of
McDanald Dettweiler in Canada Alznis a
Fellow of the Insutute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales and 15
Charman of the Audit Commitiee

Dawid Tyker {54)
Non-Executive Director

Dav:d Tyler graduated in 1974 from
Cambrdge University, where he read
Economics Following 11 years with Unilever
he joined County NatWest where he held a
number of sermor financial control roles He
then warked for Christie's International from
1889 to 1996 as Finance Director and as
President of Chnstie’s Amenca Dawd Tyler
was Group Finance Director of the former
GUS plc from February 1997 until 1ts
demerger wn October 2006 He s now a
Nan-Executive Director of Burberry Group plc
and Reckrtt Benckiser plc He 15 a Fellow of
the Chartered Instriute of Management
Accountants and a Member of the
Associauon of Corporate Treasurers

Company Secretary
Charles Brown FCIS

Audniors
PricewaterhouseCcopers LLP

Registered office

22 Grenwille Street

St Relier

larsay

JE4 BPX

Registered No 93905

Regstrars

Lloyds TSB {Jersey} Serwices Limited

PO Box 63
11-12 Esplanade
St Helier

lersey

JE4 8PH

Audit Comrmittee

Alrn jebson {Chamman)
Fabiola Arredonda
Laurence Danon

Roger Davis

Sean FitzPatnck

Sir Alan Rudge

Dawid Tyler

Remuneration Commitiee
Roger Dawis {Charmarn)
Fakucla Arredondo
Laurence Dancn

Sean FitzPatnck

Alzn Jebson

Sir Alan Rudge

Dawvid Fyler

Nominauon Committee
John Peace {Chairman)
Fatnola Arredondo
Laurence Danon

Roger Gavis

Sean FitzPatnck

Alan Jabson

Don Robert

Sir Alan Rudge

Dawid Tyler
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Directors’ report

The directors present therr report and the audited finangial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2007

Demerger

On 10 October 2006, GUS pic (now called Expenan
Finance pic} separated 1ts Expenan business from 1ts Home
Retail Group business by way of demerger As part of the
demerger, Expenan Group Limited became the ultimate
holding company of GUS plc and related subsidiartes and
shares in GUS plc ceased to be listed on the London Stock
Exchange on 6 October 2006 Expertan Group Limited
was Incorporated and registered on 30 June 2006 under
the Companies (lersey) Law 1991 as a public company
limited by shares Shares in Experian Group Limited were
admitted to the UK Listing Authonty's Official List and
trading on the London Stock Exchange's market for listed
secunties commenced on 11 Ociober 2006

Principal activities and business review

Experian ts a global leader in providing informaton
solutions to business clients and consumers It helps
organisations to find new customers and develop and
manage existing relationships by providing data, decsion
making solutions and processing services It also helps
consumers to understand, manage and protect ther
personal infermation and make more informed purchase
decisions A review of the results for the year and an
indication of future developments apnear on pages 16 10
37 Research and development investment has been a
high prionty for Expenan i driving growth, particularly in
relauon o product development Research expenditure
totalled $5m dunng the year 10 31 March 2007 (and the
amount charged to the Group income statement in the
year was $5m)

Profit and dividends

The Group income statement on page 60 shows a profit
for the fimancial year to 31 March 2007 of $463m The
directors have announced the payment of a second
interim dividend of 11 5 US cents per ordinary share to be
pad on 27 July 2007 to shareholders on the register on
29 June 2007 An intenm dividend of 5 5 US cents per
ordinary share was paid on 2 February 2007 giving a total
dividend for the year of 17 0 US cents per ordinary share

Directors

The names and biographical details of the directors are
shown on pages 38 and 39 Particulars of directors’
remuneration, service contracts and their interests in the
Ordinary shares of the Company are shown 1n the repert
on drectors’ remuneration on pages 47 to 58 There were
no changes in the directors’ interests in the Company’s
Ordinary shares between the end of the financial year
and 22 May 2007

Geoffrey Moore and Stephen Ranalow, the directors on
incarperation of the Company on 30 June 2006, resigned
on 6 July 2006 John Peace, Paul Brooks, Don Robert and
Dawd Tyler were appointed directors on 6 July 2006 and

Sir Alan Rudge was appointed on 6 September 2006
Fabiola Arredondo, Laurence Danan, Roger Dawis and
Alan Jebson joined the Board on 1 January 2007 Sean
FitzPatrick was appointed to the Board with effect from
1 Apnl 2007

in accordance with the Company's Articles of Assocation,
all the directors retire at this year's Annual General
Meeting, being the first annual general meeting after their
appointment  Each of them, being ehgible, offer
themselves for election The Board proposes to carry out
the first formal evaluation of 1ts performance, 1ts
commitiees and its members duning the year ending 31
March 2008 In the meantime the Board 1s satisfied that
the performance, contnbution and commitment of the
directers is such that they ment election Any director who
15 5o elected will retire at least every three years and

unless he or she has agreed 1o retire, he or she shall be
ehgible for re-election

Buring the year, the Company maintained hability
tnsurance and third party indemnification prowisions for s
directors and officers

Acquisitions

The Group made a number of acquisitions i the year
under review, detalls of which are included in note 30 10
the finanaial statements on page 110

On 19 Apnl 2007 the Company announced 15 Intention
subject to regulatory approval, 10 acquire Hitwise, a
{eading internet marketing intelligence company for
$240m The Company announced the acqusitions of
Ematling Selution, a leading French permission-based
emall marketing company, and the Tallyman collections
management software business from Taigentra, a
software sclutions company, on 3 May 2007 and 11 May
2007 respecuvely

Substantial shareholdings

As at 22 May 2007, the Company had been notfied of
the foliowing interests in its 1ssued ordinary share caprtal
or voung nghts

Percentage of

Direct/ Number of 1ssued share
Date of indirect  orcdinary shares/  capitalivoting
Not:fication Shareholder interest (1) voting nghts (1) nghts {1)
5 February 2007 Legal and General  Direct 51,238,042 501 %

Group plc

(1) Until 20 January 2007 substantial sharehelders were required 10 notfy therr interests in
accordance with the Company s Aruictes of Association and thereafter following
implementation ot the EU Transparency Dwectwe effected by the financial Services
Authority s Disclosure and Transparency Rules also their voung nghts in accordance with

those rules

Save for the above, no person has notfied any interest of
3 per cent or more or any non-material interest equal to
or more than 10 per cent of the 1ssued ordinary share
capital or in the voung nghts of the Company
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Share capital

Detalls of changes to the Company's ordinary share capital
in the period to 31 March 2007 are set out in ncte J to
the Company's financial statements on page 127

Own shares

The existing authornity for the Comnany to purchase its
own shares, which expires at the end of this year's Annual
General Meeting was given at an Extraordinary General
Meeting held on 13 September 2006 and permitied the
Company 1o purchase, In the market, up to 149,900,000
of its own shares Details of the new authonty being
requested are contained in the accompanying circular 1o
shareholders There s no concept of treasury shares under
lersey company law and therefore the Company would
cancel any shares 1t buys back under this authority

The Company did not utlise this authonty to make any
purchases of its own shares during the penod under
review

Detalls of the shares in the Company held under the GUS
ESOP Trust, the Experian Group Limited Employee Share
Trust and the Expenian UK Approved All-Employee Plan
Trust are set out in note K to the Company's financial
statements on page 128

Donations

Dunng the penod the Group donated 30 7m to chantable
causes Funds from the GUS Trust dispersed through
Expenan during the vear totalled $0 5m

In addiien 1o cash contributens, the Group's employees
are encouraged to give their tme and skills for the benefit
of a varety of charitable causes

Duning the year the Group made no EU poliucal
donations

Employment of people with disabilities

People with disabilities whether registered or not, have
equal opportunities when applying for vacancies, with due
regard to their aptitudes and abilities In addition to
complying with iegrslative requirements, procedures are in
place to ensure that disabled employees are fairly treated
and that therr training and career development needs are
carefully managed For those employees becoming
disabled dunng the course of therr empleyment the
Group 15 supportive whether through retraining or
redeployment, so as to provide an opportunity fer them
to remain with the Group

Employee invelvement

The Group Is intent on motivating and keeping staff
informed on matters that concern them n the context of
thair employment and involve them through local
consultative procedures Where there are recognition
agreements with trade unions, the consultation process 1s
established through natienal and local trade union
representatives and threugh joint consuliaton
commitiees Information on matters of concern to
employees and about the finanaial and economic factors

affecting the Group’s performance 1s also disseminated
through management channels, conferences, meetings,
publications and internet sites

Employees are actively encouraged to become
shareholders in Expenan through the provision of Save As
You Earn and other All Employee share plan arrangements
which are intended 1o align the interests of employees
with those of shareholders

Creditor payment

For all trade creditors, it 1s Group policy to -

« Agree and confirm the terms of payment at the
commencement of business with that suppher,

» Pay in accordance with any contract agreed with the
supplier or as required by law and

» Review continually the payment procedures and laise
with suppliers as a means of elminating difficulties and
matntaining a good working relationship

Trade creditors of the Group at 31 March 2007 were 36
days based on the ratio of Group trade crediters at the
end of the year to the amounts invaiced dunng the year
by trade creditors The Company has no trade creditors

Annual General Meeting

The first Annual General Meeting of the Company will be
held at the Four Seasons Hotel, Simmonscourt Road,
Dublin 4, Ireland at 9 30 am on Wednesday, 18 July 2007
Shareholders who are unable to attend n person may
watch a web broadcast of the event on the Group’s
website www experiangroup com and may

submit questions beforehand via email to
agmguesticns@experiangroup com or on the prepaid card
sent to shareholders The guestions will be addressed at
the meeting, via the website or indwidually as appropriate
The notice of meeting 1s Included in a separate crcular to
shareholders which accompanies this annual report It s
also available on the Group’s website

WWW experiangroup com

Auditors

The auditors, PricewaterhouseCoopers LLF, were
appointed by the Board on 6 July 2006 and have
indicated their wallingness to continue In office

A resclution that they be re-appointed will be proposed
at the Annual General Meeting

By Order of the Board
Charles Brown
Company Secretary
22 May 2007

Corporate Headguarters
Newenham House
Northern Cross
Malahide Road
Dubhn 17

Registered Office
22 Grenville Street
St Helier

Jarsey JE4 8PX
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Corporate governance

Combined Code

The Board of Expenan s responsible for the Group's
system of corporate governance The Board 1s commutted
1o good governance and to maintaining the highest
standards of integrity in all the Group's actwities Thes
statement describes how the Company has applied the
main and supporting principles set out In Section 1 of the
Combined Code on Corperate Governance published by
the UK Financial Reporting Counall in july 2003 and
amended In July Z006 (the “Code”) Expenan complied
with the Code’s provisions throughout the penod from
listing on 11 Ocober 2006 until 31 March 2007 except
that (1) John Peace did not meet fully the independence
criteria set out in the Code on his appointment as
Chairman, (2) the Board and s committees did not for
the whole period comply with the requirements in respect
of the number of independent non-executive directars,
and (3} no formal evaluation of the Board’s performance
or that of 1ts committees or individual directors’
perfarmance was undertaken These matters are
explained later in this statement

The Board

At the date of this report, the Board consists of a
Chairman, a Chief Executive Officer a Chief Financial
Officer and seven non-executive directors The names and
biographical details of the directors are shown on pages
38 and 39 of this report

The Chairman, John Peace, did not meet fully the
Independence critena set out In the Code on his
appointment as he was previously the Group Chief
Executive of GUS plc The nominaton committee of GUS
plc which recommended his appeintment was strongly of
the opinion that his appointment was 1n the best interests
of Experian and its shareholders in view of hus unrvalled
experience of Experian's business and markets and the
need for the Chairman 1o have a close working
relationship with Expenan’s Chief Executve Officer and rts
experienced global management team As a consequence,
the posttion was not openly advertised and external
search consultants were not instructed The Board of
Expenan endorses this view

Don Robert and Paul Brocks remained Chief Executive
Officer and Chief Financial Officer of Experian respectively
following demerger alsa on the recommendation of the
nomination commitiee of GUS plc Mr Robert served on
the Board of GUS plc They both had extensive knowledge
and experence of the husinesses from the period prior 1o
the demerger in October 2006 and had demonstrated
excaptional skills and leadership in therr current roles

Six of the seven non-executive directors are determined by
the Board to be independent In character and judgment
with no relationships or crcumstances which could affect,
or appear to affect, ther judgment Dawid Tyler was the
Group Finance Director of GUS plc and so 1s not
considered independent The non-executive directors are
appointed for three-year renewabie terms Sir Alan Rudge
ts the senior independent director Four of the
independent non-executive directors were apgpointed with
effect fram 1 January 2007 and a fifth was appointed
with effect freom 1 Aprit 2007 The Company therefore
comphed with the Code’s requirement that not less than

half the Board {excluding the Charman) compnse
independent non-executive directors from 1 January 2007
cnwards

The Board plans to have six scheduled meetings each year
and may meet more frequently as required It had three
scheduled meetings and one ad-hoc meeting In the
penod from listng until 31 March 2007 One of these
meetings tock place in Costa Mesa in California,
otherwise they were held in Dublin, Ireland It 1s Inevitable
that there will be accasions when crcumstances anse to
prevent directers from attending meetings In such
crcumstances, the usual practice 15 for the absent director
10 review the Board papers and convey any views on
specific 1ssues to the Chairman The tme commiment
expected of non-executive directors Is nat restricted to
Board and Commuttee meetings They are avalable for
consuftation on specific 1ssues falling within therr
particular fields of expertise and additional time 1s spent
visiting the Group's busimesses and meeting informally
with the Chairman and executive directors Together the
non-executive directors bring an cbjective viewpoint and
range of expenence to the Company which ensures that
no indwvidual or group of individuals 15 able to dominate
the Board's decision making

There is a formal scnedule of matters specifically reserved
to the Board for decision The Board establishes overall
Group strategy, approves the Group’s aperating budget
and montters performance through the receipt o monthly
reperts and management accounts The approval of
significant acquisitions and divestments 1s a matter
reserved for the Board although it delegates to the Boards
of the Company’s principal operating subsidianes the
responsibility for approving smaller acquisitions and
disposals The monetary imits of such delegations are
formally documented and the exercise of such delegated
autheorities are reported to the Board at each of its
meetings There are aisc authority levels covenng capital
expenditure which can be exercised by the Boards of the
Company’s principal operating subsidianes Beyond these
tevels of authorty, projects are referred to the Board for
approval Other matters reserved for the Board include

= Approval of intenim and annual financal statements
* Treasury polices

¢ Internal controls and risk management

¢ Succession planning

» (oprporate responsibifity

The dmsion of responsibilities between the Charrman and
the Chief Executive Officer 1s clearly established, set cut in
wriong and agreed by the Board The Chief Executive
Officer 1s responsible for day to day management and
performance of the Group’s businesses The Chairmans
role 1s to ensure good corporate governance which
includes leading the Beard and ensuring its effectveness
in all aspects of its role For scheduled Board meetings,
the agenda :ncludes reports from the Chief Executve
Officer and the Chief Financial Officer The January
meeting focuses on strategy, the March meeting deals
with the approval of operating budgets for the coming
financial year, while the May and November meetngs
cover the approval of preliminary and interim financial
statements respectively Members of senior management
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below Board level are often invited to make presentations
to the Board and partiapate in certain aspects of the
strategy review

The Chairman, with assistance from the Company
Secretary, ensures that the Board 15 supplied in a timely
manner with informatien in a form and of a qualty 10
enable 1t to discharge 1ts duties The practice 15 to have
the agenda and supporting papers crculated to the Board
one week before each meeung Additional information s
also provided 10 directors including monthly management
accounts irrespective of whether or not a Board meeting 15
scheduled for that month Arrangements are made for
non-executive directors to wisit the Group's businesses to
see their operatons at first hand and have the
opportunity 1o discuss them with local management

The Chairman and the non-executive directors plan to
meet, at least annually, as a group without the executve
directors present At the conclusion of such meetings, the
Charman will withdraw so that, under the leadership of
the sentor iIndependent director, the non-executive
directors have the opportunity to discuss any approprate
issues and, at least annually, will appraise the Charrman's
perfarmance, taking account of any views expressed by
the executive directors

There 15 in place a procedure under which the directars, in
furtherance of their dutes, are zble to take independent
professional advice i necessary, at the Companys
expense The Company Secretary s responsible for
ensuring that Board procedures are followed and all
directors have access to his advice and services

All directors receive 2n induction prograrmme on Joining
the Board which takes into account their particular
experience and background The process includes
information on the Group, 1ts actvities and operating
procedures, meetings with senior management and site
visits Additiona! training and updates on parucular 1ssues
pertinent to their role as a director are arranged for
arectors as appropiiate Two days were set astde for
induction and traiming prior to the Board meeting held in
January 2007

The Company Secretary 15 responsible for adwsing and
supporting the Charrman and the Board on alf corporate
governance matters, a respensibility he dischargas in part
through his membership of the Corporate Governance
Committee

A farmal evaluavon of the performance of the Board and
1ts commitiees s 1o be conducted in the year ending 31
March 2008 Consideration was given t¢ carrying out an
evaluauon earlier but with four of the directors not being
appointed until 1 January 2007 12 was decided that an
evaluation during the year would not have been
appropriate The process will include the indvidual
appraisal of each director The Charman will be
responsible for these appraisals except his own which will
be the responsibility of the senior sndependent director

All directors are subject to election by shareholders at the
first opportunity after thew appointment, if appomnted by
the Board of Directors and, thereafter, re-elecuon at least
every third year in accordance with the Company's Articles
of Association Being the first year since the demerger all
the directors will be retinng at the Annual General
Meeting and standing for election While a formal Board
evaluation has not bean carned out, the Chairman and
the Board are satisfied that the performance, contribution
and commitment of each director 1s such that they
recommend each director for election

The letters of appointment for non-executive directors,
including the Chairman, are available for inspecuon by
any person at the Company’s registered office during
normal business hours and at the Annual General
Meeung (for 15 minutes prior to the meeting and durnng
the meeting}

Board committees

The Board has appointed a number of commitiees
including the following pnincipal committees Nomination
Committee, Remuneranon Committee and Audit
Committee The terms of reference of each of the
principal Board commutiees are avallable on request and
can be viewed on the Company’s website at

www expenangroup ¢com Further detaiis of these
committees including their membership and remits are set
out below In order to ensure that undue reliance 1s not
placed on particular indwiduals, 2ll the non-executive
directors are currently members of each of the prinapal
Board committees

The agtendance of directors at meeungs of the 8oard and
the principal Board cornruttees of which they are
members was as foltows for the penod from listing untl
31 March 2007

Board Board Nomination Remuneration Audit
(Scheduled) {Ad-hoc) Committee Committee Commitlee

lohn Peace 3/3 on 212 Nfa N/a
Don Robert 3/3 on 2/2 N/a N/a
Paul Brooks 3/3 11 N/a N/a N/a
Fabiola Arredondo 2/2 0/0 N 212 2/2
Laurence Danon 202 0/0 11 22 212
Roger Davis 272 0/0 11 212 272
Alan Jebsen 272 o/ 11 272 212
Sir Alan Rudge 313 on 272 2 3/3
Dawvid Tyler 3/3 in 212 272 3/3

Sean FitzPatnck was appointed to the Board with effect from 1 Apnt 2007
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Nomination Committee

The Board has established 2 Nomination Committee
which teads the process for Board appointments and
makes recommendations to the Board The members of
the Normination Committee are currently John Peace
{Chairman), Don Robert (Chief Executive Officer) and the
seven non-executive directors The Committee 1s chatred
by John Peace except in respect of any matter concerning
the chairmanship of the Company when the senior
Independent director takes the chair The Company
Secretary is the Secretary to the Commuttee It meets at
least twice each year

The Nomination Commuttee has written terms of
reference covering the authonty delegated to ¢t by the
Board fts duties include revtewing regularly the
compaosition {including the skills, knowledge and
expenence reguired} of the Board and making
recommendatiens to the Board with regard to any
changes, giving full consideration 1o succession planning
for directors and other senior executives, and identifying
and nominating, for the approval of the Board candidates
to fill Board vacances as and when they arise

Following the demerger, the Committee first metin
November 2006 when 1ts members were John Peace
(Chairman), Don Robert (Chief Executive Officer) and the
two non-executive directors As intended on demerger
and in accordance with best practice reflected in the
Code, the Committee recommended the appointment of
five iIndependent directors to bring an appropriate balance
to the Board The Board subisequently approved the
recommendations with the result that Fabola Arredondo,
Laurence Dancn, Roger Davis and Alan Jebson were
appointed as addimonal directors with effect from

1 January 2007 and Sean FitzPatnick was appointed as a
direcior with effect from 1 Apnil 2607 All five new
independent non-executive directers have been appointed
10 the Nomunation Committee Two specialist search
companres were used In the process to identify the
additional non-executive directors

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises the seven non-
executive directors including Dawid Tyler who 15 not
considered ndependent Roger Davis 1s the Charrman of
the Committee The Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
are Invited to attend Committee meetings and both
attended all of the Committee meetings in the pericd
since sung Fabiola Arredondo, Laurence Danon, Roger
Daws, Alan Jebson and Sean FitzPatrick were all appamnted
as members of the Committee following their
appomtment as directors In the penod from listing to 31
March 2007, the Committee met twice The Company
Secretary 1s the Secretary to the Commuttee and the
Group HR Director and Global Head of Reward usually
attend The application of corporate governance principles
in relation to directors remuneration 1s described in the
report on directors’ remuneration on pages 47 to 58

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises the seven non-executive
directors including David Tyler who 15 not considered
independent Alan Jebson is the Chairman of the

Committee Fabiola Arredondo, Laurence Dancn, Roger
Dawis, Alan Jebson and Sean FitzPatnck were all appointed
as members of the Commuttee following ther
appointment as directors Although not stetctly in
accordance with the Code, David Tyler's membership of
the Committee provides significant recent and relevant
financial experience and an in-depth knowledge of
Experan’s business, with im having been the Group
Finance Director of GUS plc from February 1997 until the
demerger The other members of the Committee bring a
wide range of international business experience from
positions at the highest level worldwide (the direciors’
biographical details appear on pages 38 and 39) The
Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial
Officer are normaily invited to attend Committee meetings
and each attended all of the meetings held in the penod
from demerger untd 31 March 2007 The Company
Secretary 15 the Secretary to the Committee

The main role and respeonsibilities of the Commitiee are
set out In written terms of reference which are reviewed
annually The Committee’s princaipal oversight
responsibilities include internal contrel and nisk
management, internal audit, external audit (including
auditor independence} and financial reporung

The Commuttee wilt meet not less than three umes a year
In the period from listing untif 31 March 2007, it met
three tmes The external auditors, the Executive Vice
President, Risk Management and the Head of Global
Internal Audit generally also attend Audit Committee
meetings [n addivon, the Committee meets the external
auditors and the Head of Global Internal Audit without
management present

The Audit Committee has a structured programme hinked
to the Groups financial calendar During the period under
review, the Commuttee undertook the following activities

¢ Reviewed the Interm Results Announcement and
considered reports from the external auditors
identifying any accounting or judgmental issues
requiring its attention

» Reviewed and approved audit plans for the external and
internal auditors,

» Consigered quarterly nsk and assurance reports and
mnternal audit reports on the resuits of internal audit
reviews, significant findings, management audit plans
and timeliness of resolution,

¢+ Reviewed reports on the Group's risk management
process and nisk profile,

s Reviewed, at each scheduled meeting, a report on any
material litigation involving Group companies,

* Reviewed presentations on nisk and its identification
management and contral in Expenan with senior
management, and

+ Reviewed arrangemenis by which Group employees
may, In confidence, raise concerns about possible
improprieties in financial reporung or other matters

One of the pnmary responsibilities of the Audit
Comnuttee 15 to make recommendations to the Board in
relation to the appointment, re-appointment and removal
of the external auditors A number of factors were taken
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Into account by the Commitiee in assessing whether to
recommend the external audiors for re-appointiment
These included

» The quality of reports provided 1o the Audit Commitiee
and the Board and the quality of adwvice given,

+ The level of understanding demonstrated of the Groups
businesses and 1ts sectors and

» The objectivity of the external auditors” views on the
controls around the Group and therr ability to co-
ordinate a global audit working to tight deadlines

Following the completion of the first year-end audit
process, the Commuttee will assess the effacuveness of the
external audht process covening all aspects of the audit
service provided by the Company's external auditors The
Committee will also review a report on the externat
auditors’ own quality control procedures

The Committee recognises that auditor independence Is
an essential part of the audit framework and the
assurance it provides Non-audit fees paid to the
Comgpany's auditors, PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, in
respect of the period under review exceeded the audrt fee
and included fees relating to the demerger The
Committee has established control processes 1o safeguard
the cbjectvity and independence of the external auditors
and to ensure that the independence of the audit work
undertaken by the external auditors 1s not compromised

The Commitiee has established a policy covening the type
of non-audit work that can be assigned io the external
auditors The auditors may only provide such services
provided that such advice does not conflict with their
statutory responsibilities and ethical guidance These
Services are

s Further assurance services - where the external auditors
deep knowledge of the Groups affairs means that they
may be best placed to carry out such wark This may
include, but 15 not restricted to, shareholder and other
arrculars, regulatory reports and work In connection
with acquisitions and divestments

Taxation services - where the external auditors’
knowledge of the Group's affairs may provide
significant advantages which other partes would not
have Where this 15 not the case, the work 1s put out 10
tender

« General - In other arcumsiances, the external auditors
may prowide services, provided that proposed
assignments are put out to tender and decsions to
award work are taken on the basis of demonstrabte
competence and cost efiectiveness However, certain
areas of work are speaftcally prohibited including work
related to accouniing records and financial statements
that will ultmately be subject to external audit,
management of, or significant iInvolvement in, internal
audit services any work that could compromise the
independence of the external auditors, and any other
work that 1s prohibited by UK ethical guidance

The Audit Committee Charrman's pre-approval 1s required
before the Company uses non-audit services that exceed
financial imits set cut in the policy

The Commitiee receives half-yearly reports providing
detatls of assignments and related fees carnied out by the
external auditors in addition to therr normal work Fees in
respect of such assignments carried out In the year under
review are set out In note 5 10 the financial statements on
page 81

Corporate Governance Committee

In addition to the principal Board committees the Board
has established a numnber of other committees including a
Corporate Governance Cemmittee with wntten terms of
reference 1o asstst in 1ts momtoring of corporate
governance Issues The Committee’s respensibilities
inctude keeping under review all legislative, regulatary and
corporate governance developments that might affect the
Company's operations and makang recommendations 1o
the Board i relation 1o them The members of the
Corporate Governance Commitiee are tohn Peace
{Chairman), Don Robert (Chief Executive Officer), Sir Alan
Rudge {the seniar independent directer) and Charles '
Brown {Cempany Secretary)

Accountabiity and Audit

The Board acknowledges that 1t 1s responsible for the
Group’s system of internal control and for reviewing 1ts
effectiveness Such a system 15 designed te manage rather
than elkminate the risk of fallure to achieve business
ohjecuves and can provide reasonable, but not absolute,
assurance againsi material misstatement or loss The
Board reviews annually the effectiveness of the key
procedures which have been established to provide
internal control

The Board confirms that there 1s an ongoing process for
identifying, evaluating and managing the significant risks
faced by the Group, including those rnisks relating 10
social, environmental and ethical matters This process
was in place throughout the period under review and up
to the date of approval of the Annual Report and meets
the requirements of the Code Far certain joint
arrangements, the Board places refiance upon the systems
of internal control operating wathin the partners
infrastructure and the obligations upon pariners' Boards
relating to the effectiveness of theirr own systems In the
Board’s view, the information 1t received was sufficient to
enable 1t to review the effectiveness of the Group's system
of internal control in accordance with the ‘Internal Control
Revised Guidance for Directors’ contained in the Cade
The Audit Committee has kept under review the
effectiveness of this system of internal control and has
reported regularly 1o the Board

The key procedures, which operated ithroughaut the year,
were as follows

Risk assessment

« The Group set out its objectives clearly as part of 1ts
ptanming process and organisation design These
objectives were then incorporated as part of the
ptanning cycle and supported by the use of both
financial and non-financial key performance indicators
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Risks were methodically antioipated, dentrfied, assessed
and appropriately mitigated as part of an enterprise
wide risk management process operating throughout
the Group on an ongoing basis

Senlor management made presentations on risk to the
Audit Committee, which reported reguiarly to the Board
on the risks facing the Group’s business

The Audit Cemmittee has delegated responsibility from
the Board for considering operaticnal, financial and
compilance risks on a regular basis and receved its
annual repart on the controls over these nsks This
ncluded nsks ansing from social, environmental and
athical matters

Control environment and control activities

* The Group has established procedures for deiegated
authonty which ensure that decisions that are
significant, either because of their value or the inherent
degree of risk, are taken at an approprate level

The Group has implemented appropriate strategies to
deal with each significant risk that has been dentified
These strategies include internal controls, Insurance and
specialised treasury instruments

» The Group sets out principtes, policies and standards to
be adhered to throughout its business These include
nsk idenufication, management and reporting
standards, ethical principles and practice, accounting
policies, treasury policy, mformation secunty palicy and
pchicy on fraud and whistleblowing

Information and communication

» The Group has a comprehensive system of budgetary
control, including monthly performance rewiews, for
each major business These reviews are at a detailed
ievel within each region and global business line and at
a high level for the Board

* On a monthly basis the achievement of business
objectives, both financial and non-financial, was
assessed using a range of performance indicaters These
indicators were regularly reviewed to ensure that they
remain relevant and relable

* The Group had whistleblowing procedures in place for
employees to report suspected improprieties

Monitoring

« Arange of procedures were used to monitor the
effective application of internal control in the Group,
including managemert assurance, through the ongoing
risk management process, and independent assurance,
through internal audit reviews and reviews by specialist
third parties

e The \nternal audit department’s responsiblities include
reporting to the Audit Committee on the effectiveness
of internal control systems, focusing en those areas
considered to be of greatest nisk to the Group

+ Follow-up processes were used to ensure there was an
appropnate 1esponse 10 changes and developments in
nsks and the control environment

Relations with shareholders

The Company recognises the importance of
communicating with 1ts shareholders and dees this
through 1ts Annual and Intenm Reports, at the Annual
General Meating ("AGM") and through the processes
described below

Although most shareholder contact 1s with the Chief
Executive Officer and the Chief Financal Officer,
supported by management specialising in investor
relations, 11 15 the responsibility of the Board as a whole to
ensure that a sausfactory dialogue with shareholders
takes place

At gach of its scheduled Board meetings, the Board
reviews a report of all important or relevant issues raised
by shareholders during the course of meetings and
discussions with them Additionally, the Board {and in
particular, the non-executive directors) obtains an
independent insight Into the views of major shareholders
through research commussioned with a third party adviser
across a balanced sample of Expenan’s shareholders The
latter typically control some 20 to 30 per cent of the
Company’s 1ssued share capital The findings of the
research are presented 10 the Board by the third

party adviser

There is a direct line of communication to the Chairman
avallable to shareholders particularly If there are 1ssues of
concern, whether about performance, strategy or
governance S Alan Rudge, the senior Independent
director, 1s also avallable should shareholders have
concerns which contact through the normal channels of
the Charrman, the Chief Executive Officer and Chief
Financial Officer fails 1o resolve or for which such
contact 15 Inappropriate Shareholders are also offered
the opportunity to meet the Company's NON-executive
directors

Shareholders who do not support a particular AGM
resolution do net always seek engagement with
companies 1o explain therr actions or request further
information The Company waould be keen to understand
therr reasons for any lack of support and to have a
dialogue with shareholders on these issues 1ts policy,
therefore, Insofar as is practicable, would be 1o seek
engagement with shareholders on such 1ssues

Directors, including the Chairmen of the Audit
Remuneration and Nominatian Committees, will
attend the AGM and will be available 10 answer
shareholders’ questions

Voting at the AGM wil! be by way of poll The results of
votng at the AGM will be announced and details of the
votes will aiso be added to the Group's webstte,

WWW experiangroup com, as soon as possible after
the meeting
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Report on directors’ remuneration

1 Remuneration Committee

11 Role

The Remuneration Commuttee has responsibility for

« recommending Expenan's policy on the remunerauon of Senicr Management,

+ determiring the remuneration level and structure for executive directors and approving that of selected executives who report to the
executive directors,

« communicating to shareholders on remuneration pclicy and the Committee’s work on behalf of the Board,

+ reviewing and recommending the design of the Group’s share schemes

The remuneration of non-executive directors and the Chairman 1s a matter reserved for the Board as a whele No direcior 1s involved 1n any

discussions as to his or her own remuneration

The Remuneration Commitiee has wntten terms of reference which are available on request from the Company Secretary and are also

published on the Group's website www expernangroup com

1 2 Membership and meetings

Since the date of demerger of GUS plc, the Remuneraticn Committee has comprised the following non-executive directors

Roger Davis (Chairman, appoirted 1 January 2007)

Fabiola Arredondo (appointed 1 January 2007)

Laurence Danon {appointed 1 January 2007}

Alan Jebson (appointed 1 January 2007)

Sir Alan Rudge (appointed 6 September 2006)

Dawid Tyler (appointed & July 2006)

Sean FizPatrick joined the Committee from 1 Apnl 2007, his date of appointment

in the period from listing on 11 October 2006 to 31 March 2007, the Commyttee has met twice Attendance at these meeungs 1s se. out in

the corporate governance statement on page 43

13 Adwisers

In making its dectsions, the Committee consults with the Chairman, the Chief Executive Officer, the Group HR Drrector and the Global

Head of Reward who are invited 10 attend meetngs of the Committee as and when appropriate They are not permitted to partiapate In

discussions or decisions relating to ther aown remuneraton

The Committee has access to independent consultants to ensure that it receives independent advice

Towers Perrin, Kepler Associates (Kepler) and Linklaters have been the principal adwisers to the Committee in the period under review

providing market information and genera! remuneration advice

A full list of the advisers who provided data or consulting services to the Committee duning the year, together with details of other services

provided by them to the Company, can be found on the Experian website

2  Remuneration policy

The Remunerauon Commitiee of GUS plc reviewed the remuneration policy for executive directors prior to the demerger of the Company
The Remuneration Committee of Experian Group Limited has determined that the policy remains appropnate for the coming vear The
remuneratan pelicy will be regularly reviewed by the Committee

The Remuneration Committee aims to have in place a3 remuneration policy for the Company which 1s consistent with its business objectives,
and which can

1 pay market-competiiive base salary levels but no higher than this,

2 provide compettive performance-related compensation which influences performance, and helps attract and retain executives by
providing the cpportunity to earn substantial rewards for outstanding performance leading to long-term shareholder vafue,

3 apply demanding performance conditions to deliver sustained profitable growth (n all our businesses, thereby aligning incentives to
shareholders’ interests,

4 prowvide a balanced portfolio of incentives - bonus, options and shares which align both short term {one year) and longer term (thres
years plus) performance such that sustainable growth and value are delivered,

5 provide accountability and transparency and align with the interests of shareholders,
& delwer competiive benefits to underpin the other components of the remuneration package

Consistent with the policy the Committee reviews the elements of the remuneration package relative 1o other comparable orgamsations
and other companies of similar size and scope 1o Expenan Performance-retated incentives are targeted at upper quartile levels for
outstanding performance to produce a highly leveraged package If the Company's growth objecuves are attained The Company 1s
committed to performance-related pay at all levels within the organisation All employees are encouraged (o participate as sharehotders in
the Company
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2 1 Remuneration of executive directors

The remuneration package s weighted towards the performance-
related elements of the package In faw value terms, the properion
of total pay {excluding pensions and benefits) which 15 vanable 15
appreximately 71 per cent, as illustrated

The Remuneration Committee selects performance measures that
align with the Groups strategic goals and that are transparent and
clear to both directors and shareholders Each element in the
reward package is designed 1o support the achievement of
different Company abjectives, as illustrated below

Element Purpose Delivery Policy
(a) Base salary - Reflects the competitive market - In cash -~ Individual contribution
salary level for the indwidual - Monthly - Reviewed annually
and therr role ~ Penstonable
— Takes account of personal
contnbution, sk and performance
(o) Annual bonus/ - Rewards the achievement of ~ Cashv/deferred - Profit befare tax
Co-invastment Plan arnual finanaal targets shares I1s the key measure
- Provides opportunity to re-invest — Annual

bonus in Experian shares

with matching opportunities
Aligns with shareholder

interests through delivery in shares

—~ Non-pensicnable

(¢) Expenan
Performance
Share Plan

Aligns with shareholder interests
through delivery of shares

Rewards sustained growth in
shareholder value and out-perfarmance
compared to peers

Acts as a retention tool as demerger
awards are released five years after
date of grant

Shares, subject
to performance
conditicns

Relative wotal
shareholder return
againsi a tallored
comparator group
measured over a
three-year penod
subject to sahisfactory
overall financial
performance

- Profit before tax

over a three-year period

(d) Expenan Share
Option Plan

Direct ink to growth objectives
through EPS growth hurdle and to
value creation through share

price increase

Aligns with shareholder interests
through delivery of shares

Acts as a retention tool as options
vest equally on third and fourth
anntversary of date of grant

- Shares under
option, subject to
performance
conditions

- EPS growth measured over
a three year period

(e) Sharesave

Oppertunity to Invest In Expernian
shares over three or five year savings
penod

— Shares under
option bought
with accumulated
savings at the end of
the savings perod

—~ Employees must
be in emplayment on
gualifying date
in order 10 parucipate

(f) Pension

To provide market compettive
post-retirement benefits

- Monthly
contrnibutions

- Defined bensfit scheme
— US 401k (defined
contribution) arrangements
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{a) Base salary and benefits

To ascertain the job's market value, external remuneration consultants annually rewiew and provide data about market salary levels and
advise the Remureration Committee Executive directors’ salaries are benchmarked against a rmid-market level of main board executive
directors from the comparator companies in the FTSE 100 index and other global comparators which reflect the market in which we recrun
talent Before making a final deasion on individual salary awards, the Committee assesses each director's contnbuuion to the business, 10
reflect indwvidual performance and experience

in addition to base satary, executive directors recewve certain benefits in kind induding a car or car allowance, private health cover and hfe assurance
(b) Annual bonus and Co-nvestment Plan

Annual bonuses are awarded for achieving profit growth targets We believe that inking incentives to profit growth helps to resnforce our
growth objectives Targets are calibrated by Kepler using benchmarks that reflect stretching internal and external expectauons Benchmarks
include broker earnings estmates earnings estimates for competitors, straight-ime profit growth consistant with median/upper quarule
shareholder returns over the next three to five years, latest projections for the current year, budget, strategic plan, tong-term financial goals

2006/07 bonus

For bonuses paid in respect of the year ended 31 March 2007, executive direciors were ehgible for an annual incentive wizh a target of 50
per cent of salary and a maximum of 100 per cent of salary for substantially exceeding targets Actual bonuses awarded were midway
between target and maximum level This ts reflective of strong performance against targets The executive directors will be entitied to
parucipate 1n the final cycle of the GUS Co-investment Plan as invitations to participate were 1ssued prior 1o the confrmation of the
demerger Partiapants in the GUS Co-investment Plan receive a matching award of shares which nises on a shding scale up t0 2 i tor
maximum perfarmance The matching awards will vest three years following the date of grant There will be no further awards under the
GUS Co-investment Plan

2007/08 bonus

As disclosed in the demerger shareholder circular 1t was agreed that for annual bonuses paid in respect of the year ending 31 March 2008, the
maximum bonus cpportunity for executive directors would increase 10 200 per cent of base salary This level of annual bonus would only be
paid if Expenan’s financial performance surpassed stretching financial targets and hence would only be payable if exceptional results were
delivered to shareholders The extension 1o the banus opportunity for the executive directors was intended to recognise the global market in
which Expenan operates and to place a larger proportion of the executive dectors’ total remuneration at sk and accompanied the reduction
of the matching opportunity under the Expenian Co-tnvestment Plan to 1 1 (previously 2 1 under the GUS Co-investment Plan) Executive
directors will not participate In the Expenan Co-investrent Plan for the 2007/08 fiscal year and any bonus payment will be made tn cash

2008/09 bonus

For annual bonus earned in respect of the 2008/09 fiscal year, executive directors will be offered their first opportunity since the demerger
to defer receipt of their bonus and invest it In Experian shares (“Invested shares”) under the Experian Co-investment Plan The release of
the Invested shares will be deferred for three years Participants will have dividend and voting nghts in respect of the invested shares The
number of invested shares acquired on behalf of the executive will be matched with an additional award of shares ("matching shares” )
The release of these matching shares to partic:pants will be subject to the achievement of a performance condition

The release of these shares will be deferred for three years including the onginal bonus deferral Dwidends will be accrued on these awards
if an executive resigns during the three-year peniod hesshe will forfeit the nght to the matching shares and the asscciated dividends

{¢) Expenan Performance Share Plan

The Expenan Performance Share Plan was approved by GUS shareholders at the EGM on 29 August 2006 An imitial award was made to
participants, including the executive direciors on 11 October 2006 There wall be no further awards to executive directors under this plan
untl June 2009 Performance shares are ‘free’ €xpenan shares for which no exercise price 1s payahle The award 15 communicated to
participants as an allocation of shares which are subject 10 a performance condiion which 1s measured over a three-year performance
period wiih a five-year vesting perniod Dividends will accrue on these awards

For the above demerger awards granted in October 2006, the performance condition Is in two separate parts, 50 per cent of the award
will be subject to achievement against a shiding scate of growth in proiit before tax (PBT) The threshold for vesting will be growth 1n PBT of
7 per cent per year at whech 25 per cent of this part of the award will vest nising, on a straight-line basis, te 100 per cent of this part of the
award vesung at a growth in PBT of 14% per year

The rematning 50 per cent of the award will vest according to the performance of Expenan’s total shareholder return {TSR) relative to the
following group of peer companies

Acxiomn Fair saac Harte-Hanks
Alhance Data Systems Fidelity National Financial IAC/Interactive Corp
Bisys Group Fimalac Moodys

Capita Group First Amencan Reuters Group
Choicepeint First Data Thomson

Dun & Bradstreet Fiserv Total System Services
Equifar Global Payments
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This bespoke comparator group consists of Expernian’s main competitors In the business areas and countries in which the Group operaies
This part of the award will not vest If Expenan's total shareholder return (defined as share price movement plus reinvested dividends) 15
below the median return for the comparator group Cnce Expenan achieves median performance, 25 per cent of this portion of the award
may vest nsing on a straight-line basis to 100 per cent of this part of the award vesting for upper quartile performance or better This can
be summarnsed as follows

% of performance shares
subject to the TSR

Expenian TSR ranking performance condition
In the peer group that will vest
1st - 6th 100%

7th 85%

8th 70%

9th 55%

10th 40%

T11th 25%

12th - 21st 0

The Commuittee considers that these are appropnate measures as they akgn the long-term interest of partucipants with those of
sharehclders and prowide both internal (PBT) and external (TSR} focus for participants

(d) Expenan Share Opuon Plan

The Expenan Share Option Plan (ESCP) was approved by GUS shareholders at the EGM on 29 August 2006 1t 1s intended to align
sharehelder and parucipant interests through share pnice growth Options will vest subject to the satisfaction of a stretching £PS target
which will be set prior to options being granted No awards wil! be made to executive directors under the plan until June 2009

For each of the long term incentive plans, external consultants will be used to calculate whether and the extent 10 which the performance
conditions have been met

(e) Experian Sharesave

All executive directors and employees of Experian Group and any partcipaung subsidianes are eligible to participate in Sharesave if they
have been employed by Expenan for a qualifying period Sharesave provides an opportunity for employees 1o save a regular monihly
amount which at the end of the savings pencd may be used to purchase shares under option

{f) Pensicns

Pensions are offered in line with competitive practice The retirement age for directars 1s 60 under arrangements which broadly provide a
pension of two thirds of final salary, ife assurance and il health and dependants’ pensions incentwve payments (such as annual bonuses)
are not pensionable

The UK Finance Act 2004 made major changes to the taxation and regulation of occupational pension schemes and 1o the benehits which
occupaticnal pensien schemes may provide The Company has had arrangements in place for a number of years which were designed 1o
ensure that UK directors who were affected by the 1989 HM Revenue and Customs earnings cap were placed in broadly the same pasiuon
as those who were not With the agreement of the trustees of the scheme, the Company decided 1o retain a notional earnings cap for 115
existing and future employees, with the exception of new senior executives who will be pensioned on full basic salary up 1o the Lifetime
Allowance

The Company has put security t place for the unfunded pension entitlements of UK executives affected by the earnings cap by
establishing Secured Unfunded Retrement Benefits Schemes (SURBS) Further details are provided under the disclosure of the arrangements
for each director

{g} Service contracts

Each executive director has a rolling service contract which can be terminated by the Company giving twelve months' notice In the event
of terminaiton of the direcior's contract, any compensation payment 1s calculated in accordance with normal legal principles, including the
application of mingation to the extent approprate in the ¢rrcumstances of the case

50 | Expenan Annual Report 2007




3 Performance graph

The Committee has chosen to illustrate the totai shareholder return ('TSR') for GUS plc until demerger and Expenan Group Limited against
the FTSE 100 Index for the pertod since listing on 11 October 2006 to 31 March 2007 The FTSE 100 Index 1s the most approprate index

against which TSR should be measured, as it 1s a widely used and understood index of leading UK companies The performance graph 1s
shown below
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The graph shows that at 31 March 2007 a hypathetical £10C invested in GUS and subsequently, Experian on 31 March 2002 would have generated a 1o1al return of
£174 cormpared with a gan of £143 «f invested in the FTSE 100 Index

4  Non-executive directors’ remuneration poficy

The Board’s pclicy on non-executive directors’ remuneration 1s that

» Fees should reflect indiwdual responsibilities and membership of Board Committees

* Remuneratton should be in ine with recognised best practice and sufficent to attract, motivate and retain high calibre non-executives
+ Remuneration should be a combinauon of cash fees (paid quarterly) and Expenan shares (hought annually in the first quarter of the financial year)

+ Non-executive directors are obliged to comply with a shareholding requirement explained below Any tax lizbility connected to these
arrangements 1S the responsibility of the individual director

+ Non-executve directors do not receve any benefits in kind with the excepiton of the Chairman who has the use of a company car and
private healthcare

The fees of non-executive directors were reviewed on therr appointment to the Board and will next be reviewed in 2008 Fees will be
reviewed In the light of market practice in FTSE 100 companies and anticipated number of days worked, tasks and responsibilives

Base Fee €106,154
Seruor independent Director €19,437
Chatr of Remuneraton Commitiee €23,922
Chatr of Audit Committee €31,398

Experian requires 1ts non-executive directors to build up a helding in the Company s shares equal to one times ther annuaf fee One quarter
of therr annual fee 15 used to purchase shares in the Company each year untl they reach this holding They are included in the table of
directors’ interests on page 58 Non-executive directors do ngt particapate i executive share schemes or other employee share scheme
arrangements Non-executives do not have service contracts but each has a letter of appointment No non executive director's letter of

appointment provides for any termsnation payment Each appointment is for a renewable three year term but may be terminatad by either
party on ene month's written notice
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The information set out In sections 5 10 10 below has been subject to audit
5 Annual remuneration

The foliowing table shows an analysis of the emoluments of the individual directors for the full year ended 31 March 2007

Salary and Annual Total Total
Fees™ bonus Benefiis? 2007 2006
‘000s ‘0005 000s ‘000s '000s
Chairman
iohn Peace v 1875 £875 £34 £1,784 £1,181
Executive directors
Don Robert $1,300 3937 $104 £2,341 $2 393
Paut Brooks # $596 $532 1242 $1,370 $1,068
Non-executive directors
Fabiola Arredondo ® €27 - €1 €28 -
Laurence Danon ® €33 - - €33 -
Roger Dawis ® €39 - - €39 -
Alan Jebson €40 - €1 €41 -
Sir Alan Rudge © €88 - €1 €8% £68
David Tyler £545 £545 £20 £1,110 £735
Former directars
Sir Victor Blank £358 - £31 £389 £197
John Coombe ® 64 - - f£64 £60
Andy Hornby £43 - - £43 £58
Frank Newman # £43 - - £43 £58
Qliver Stocken ™ £64 - - f64 8

The following shares were purchased for the former non-executive Directors of GUS plc over the two day penod 20 and 27 july 2006 The

value reported below 1s included within the remuneration reported In the above tabie

No of Value
shares L
Sir Victor Blank™ 18,000 179,252
John Coombe® 4,000 39835
Andy Hornby®™ 2,500 24,897
Frank Newman® 2.500 24,897
Olver Stocken™ 4,000 39,835
Hotes
1 Nan sxaci.ive ditectors recens an addinonal ree of 598 per ip to attend Board Meetngs where sueh artendance Invoives Inter<ontnental travel from their home jocalron [or the pencd URdet renew | ahbi a Aredonda did nat
receve 1his allow ince as ne travel 1o Lhe Board Meeting dd not include surh teavst
7 Benel 4 u pxerytive dirgelarg include povale tesl b tare company car and tuel dllewvance whi e apphcabile
3 John Peace was appointed Charrman of Expenan Group Limited on & July 2006 Un J 31 December 2006 Fe was alio Group Cheet Executive of GUS pk The figures in this able recresent fus salary oerehis and ¢ et ‘ees tor
e wnow of the hnancal year ansd were 0a d by Expenan finance ple {formerly GUS gk his employer i respect of his employnent in 1h s penad  He did Add receve o separ € bee as Cnarman ot Expreaan Gioup Lirited or ine
yedr ending 31 March 2007 Dunnhg the yedr under revew John Peace served as non-executive Chavman of Burberry Group plc He did not recerve any addidana mmuneaiion 1or thesa sernced W e tect Ire 5 —prd 2007
Expenan Group Limiled wil pav s 0HCIONS #e5 From this date his fee i £450 000 per gnnu™ From « Aprd 2007 he 15 not ebguble 1or 3 performance boNUS Penson contrbusons of further long term ngen ive awards dul wall
€00 e 10 r ewe 4 COrpany CF beoe’s and covivage undet the ComDany's private healthiare arrangements
a Dor Roberl and Paul Brooks were apoemied to the Board of Experian Groun Limited on & July 2006 Don Roben remams a Director of fxperian Fingrcw pkt The figures 10 the lawe represenit sums paid for the whole ol the bnancied
yrar These sums wrre pard by thew respective employsrs Expenan Graur: Dmited pays drecrors fees of €106 154 pir annum tand pra rata for ihe year endma 31 March 2007) @ rasgact of they serures &t etor of Exneron
Group Linnted Suchi fees 1o m part of and are nol sdttlional 1o the remuneration set pul n the lad'e Duning the year under review Dan Rober served A5 a ron axecotve dime'n of First Advantage $arper inan tnr weich be
receved a fee 81 USEST 000 Benaht payme s to Paul Brosrs mdude payments for rousing whiSt he was on expa fiate assgnment in the US
5 bamou Aredondo Laurence Danon ROGEr Davs and Alan #Ds0n were appaied to the Baard of Expet.an Group Lmied 00 1 Janudry 2007 The hgures i the (able mepreser  the r bes and ¢ pentes from Ik date =5 1
permusu e under Jersey Law the Company has metl he ost of e tax paymeri 00 her tassble bavel expenses where apolicable
o it Alan Rudae wit d a3 the sen0r dent Director on € 2006 Prof 10 1S e wat & non executive dwacior of {US olc untd 11 October 2006 The Ligures i n 4 table represert brs femy v=d edunic for
e whaee 0f thes inanoal year AS 15 pPImissiDie unoed ey 1aw the Company has met the cott of 1he tax paymenl o his lasable Davel expenses where appicable
7 Dawvid Tder was appianted 1o e Bowrd of Expenan Group Limited on 6 July 2006 Unul 31 March 2007 he was Growp Finanea Director of GUS pic The haures in ihn jablt represent ne Sd4lary beref 18 and chregior et s 101 1np
whie of he hnancal year and were paid Oy Experan fnance plc (formerly GUS ple) s employer in respect of his employrent in this penod He did not recewve a separate fee o5 a director ¢f Lapenan Group Linited 1ot the o
ending 3% March 2007 Dunng the year under review Daviel Tyier senepd a5 nan-exeqy,bve diector of Burberry Group pic He did not racewe any acddil one  remuneration [or nesa service Wath eftect froe s 1 aprt 200 I v e
ceased to be an evecutve director of GUS pi tngw Expenan Finance plc) by reason ot redundancy  his coninkt provades tor @ notice penod of 2 months of conlracios' bay 1o keu ol 0o e i 12 mon oy Contrattaa! oy an
redundancy inoudes pawe wilary (£545 000} car and fuel allowance (£ 18 200) These payments wese made in Apnl 2007 From 1 Apnl 2007 Expetan Groun Limied Wil nay N ror -geecutns drecior s lee Th gy 106 54
From 1 Ap 4 2007 ne 1§ ro pe ehgibie 1or a perormance DONLS ENS0N CONINDLUDONS of Turlher long term iIncenive awards
8 Sor Vigtor Blank recgoed as Charman ot GUS pic on 11 December 2006 Jonn Coombe Arndy Homby Frank Newmman and Olver Stocken resgned as threctons of GUS pic on 11 De.oper 2006 Tha lupy a5 11 trg 1338 BF fveid

the s fees up to ths date

Transitton arrangements on demerger of GUS plc

The Chairman, the executive directors and one of the non-executive directors have existing long-term ingeniive plan awards previously
approved and issued by GUS plc These existing long-term incentive plan awards include share options as described in secuon B, awards
under the GUS Parformance Share Plan as described in section 8 and awards under the GUS Co-mvestment Plan and Experian
Reinvestment Plan as descnbed in section 9

Each of these iong-term incentive pian awards was subject to transiienal arrangements on demerger of GUS plc Each award under the GUS

plans has been agjusted 1o an equivalent number of Experian awards based on the GUS plc and Expenan Group Limited share price at demerger

Simiiarly the share option exercise price of exisung GUS awards has been adjusted to the equivalent exercise price for each Expenan share

Sections &, 8 and 9 of the report on directars remuneration detait the opening GUS awards at 1 Aprd 2006 and the ¢hanges to the
orniginal GUS awards on demerger
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6 Share options

Details of options granted to executive directors, under the Group's executive share option schemes are set out in the table below

Opuons Toal
Number of granted Gus Options numper
options at pre- Cptions Criginal share rolled Cpuons Newr o7 options
1 Apri 2006 demerger  exercised Gus price on overnto  exercised Expenan at 3
or date of  (over GUS prior 1o exarcise date of Expenan  following exercse Date from which March
appaintment  plc shares)  demerger price exercise shares  demerger pnce exercisable/expiry date 2007
Chairman
John Peace™
110601 195,854 - - 8127 - 348,032 - 344 8p 11 06 04-29 09 07
06 06 02 89 540 - - 653 0p - 176,882 - 3675p 06 06 05-29 09 07
1906 03 99,185 - -  675%5p - 178,251 - 3B0p 19 06 06-29 09 07
1906 03 4,441 - - 6755 - 7,600 - 3947p 19 06 06-25 09 07
010604 93,919 - - 8092p - 166,894 - 4534p 010607-2909 07
310505 03,768 - - 8385p - 166,625 - 483 1p 310505-29 09 07
020606 - 94 492 - 9260p - 167,912 - 5211p 02 06 06-25 09 07
1,210,196
Executive directors
Don Robert?
1906 03 145,196 - 145,196 6755p 9701p - - - -
010604 134,850 - - 809 2p - 239,699 - 4554p 111006-31 05 11
310505 74,334 - - 8585p - 132,091 -  4831p 310508-3005 15
020606 - 74,949 - 9260p - 133,184 - 5Zilp 02 06 09~0106 16
504,974
Paul Brooks
190603 31997 - 31887 &750p 967 1p - - - -
021203 28,054 - - 757 0p - 49,852 - 4260p 021206-011209
021203 4,418 - - 7570p - 7,851 -  4260p 021206-0112 13
010604 28,515 - - 8092p - 50 671 - 4554p 010607-31G514
010604 3,707 - - 8092p - 6,344 - 4729p 01 0607-3105 14
310505 33,409 - - 8585p - 59,368 - 483 1p 310508-3005 15
02 0606 - 30,885 - 9260p - 54,883 - 5211p 02 06 05-0106 16
228,968
Non-executive directors
Dawid Tyler®
06 06 02 58,192 - -  B530p - 103,407 - 3675p 06 06 05-0506 12
190603 57,7135 - ~ B755p - 102,595 - 3801p 1906 06-1806 13
19 06 03 4,447 - -  6755p - 7,600 - 3947p 190606-18306 13
010604 58,082 - - BOS2p - 103,272 - 4554p 010607-310514
310505 58,241 - -~  B585p - 103,494 - 483 1p 310508-3005 15
020606 - 58,855 -  9260p - 104,585 - 5211p 02 06 09-01 0616
524 893

Hates

1 The expiry tfaie on kohn Peace's :oled aver opbons 1s subsect 20 byl extension tor requlatory reasors
H Optons granted to Don Roberl pror ta his date of appomtment to the Board of GUS n Apri 2005 wee granied under tne GUS Horth Amenca Stock Option Pan The 2005 and 2006 grants wens tmads s thee e GUS Ev 2ulwe

Shate Op on Schemre

K © vod Tyler was ebg bie to exchanae s outions and avwards for squdlent opDORS and awards over Experan whaced on the Sime Haws as Q1her pArlCipants 10 the s nt GUS pans Brceptl it he was nolsigba 0 parlis pode n
Ihe Fxpenan Aemvesiment Flan To the exiprt Thal e ontions were (ofle] Over the new poLens wEl DOt vesl ar lapie m CoNNeCtion with tis lermnalikin of empioyment I respert ot such epoans. Oand Tyer will De trea o0 5 4
good 'edver tor the purposes al the reievant plar tules 1f peE ceases 1o ba a nan exncutive drector of he Compary Extept a3 a rewit of voluntary resgnanon or Acons weicn wot id Const U & qrost miscarduct 1w re pvsnt

DEf OrMANCE £ONd D% APRYY

4 Ngontions ware granted 1o STecUTive dreg Of5 an demerger
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Report on directors’ remuneration cont

The GUS exercise prices represent the average of the middle market quotations of a GUS share as derived from the Daily Official List of The
London Stock Exchange for the three immediately preceding dealing days to the date on which options were onginally granted Opuions
granted under the GUS Executive Share Gption Schemes which were granted before 2005 were exchanged for equivalent options over
Experian shares Unvested options granted in 2005 and 2006 (other than options granted under the GUS 1998 Approved Executive Share
Opuon Scheme) were automatically exchanged for equivalent options over Experian shares The performance condition 1or opuions granted
i 2005 and 2006 1s based on the growth of Expenan’s Earmings per Share 1n excess of the UK Retall Price index from the date of demerger

The market price of Expernian Group Limited shares at the end of the financial year was 585 5p, the highest and lowest prices during the
financial year were 631 5p and 559 5p respectively

SAYE share option scheme
Details of awards to directors under the GUS plc SAYE share option scheme are as follows

Opuons Total
granted GuUs Opuons number
pre QOptions Onginal share rolled Ogptions hew of options
tNumber of  demerger  exercised GuUs price on - over nto exercised Expenan ar 31
opucns at  (over GUS pRGr to exercise date of Experian  following exercise Date from which March
1 Apnl 2006 plc shares})  demerger price exercise shares  demerger price exerasablefexpiry date 2007
Chairman
John Peace 4,394 - 4,394 384 0p 1009p - - - 01 05 06-31 10 06 -
Executive directors
Paul Brooks 1,454 - - 648 0p - 2,488 - 3786p 010907-2902 08 2 488
Non-executwe directors
David Tyler 4,394 - 4,394 384 0p 1035p - - - 0105 06-31 1006 -
Former directors
Sir Victor Blank 4,394 - 4,394 384 0p 1035p - - - 010506-31 1006 -
Olwer Stocken 4394 - 4,394 384 Op 1035p - - - 01 0506-31 1006 -

Hores

1 Paul Brooxs 8,0 pariaipaled in e LS s 423 plan whils he was bawd 0 e US He correndy hoids 2796 shases under the 2005 plan cycle and 463 shares under the 2006 plan cycle in add bon fo Rgse m iF ybawe | e
7 Expenan ESOP Trust

As at 31 March 2007, the executwe directors were, together with other employees of the Experian Group, discretionary beneficianes under
the Expenan Group birmited Employee Share Trust and, as such, each director 1s deemed to be snterested 1n 13,419,683 ordinary shares in
Experian Group Limited held by the trustee of the Trust
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8 GUS Performance Share Plan

In june 2006, executive directars receved a share award under the GUS Performance Share Plan (PSP) wrth a face value of one umes salary
On demerger, these awards were automatically rolled cver into Experian shares As approved by GUS shareholders at the EGM, awards
equivalent to two times salary were made to executive directors on demerger in October 2006 Both awards are cutlined below For awards
granted under the rolled over GUS Periormance Share Plan awards the performance condition 15 based on Total Shareholder Return (TSR}
against the comparator group adopted by Expenan (see 2 1¢ above) since the demerger Rolled over awards will not vest If Experian’'s total
sharehalder return (defined as share price movement plus reinvested dividends) 15 below the median return for the comparater group For
these rolled over awards only, once Experian achieves median performance, 40 per cent of the award may vest rising on a straighi-line basss
1o 100 per cent of the award vesting for upper quartile performance or better

Plan GUS Awards Plan  Experian Total plan
Plan shares shares share Share ralted shares share shares
Plan shares awarded released price on price on @ver Into awarded frice on hela a, 31
awarded atl UL o PHioF 10 date of daie of Experian on date of Normal March
1 Aprl 2006 demerger  demerger award release shares  demerger award vesting date 2007
Chairman
John Peace”’
1906 03 103,626 - 103,626 6755p 9288p - - - June 2006
0106 04 93,9819 - 79,831 B092p 9636p - - - lune 2007
310505 93,768 - - 8585p - 166,625 - - May 2008
02 06 06 - 94,492 -  9260p - 167,912 - - june 2009
334,837
Executive direciors
Don Robert
1906 03 26,615 - 265619 6755p 9288p - - - June 2006
0106 04 22,481 - 16,108 8092p 9636p - -~ - June 2007
310505 74 334 - - B585p - 132,09 - - May 2008
02 06 06 - 74,949 - 9260p - 133,184 - - June 2009
1130 06 - - - - - - 246,698 560 Op Oct 2011
511973
Paul Brooks
19 06 03 16 059 - 16,059 6755p 928 8p - - - June 2006
106 04 16,111 - 13,694 8092p 9636p - - - June 2007
310505 16,704 - - 8585p - 29,683 - - May 2008
(02 06 06 - 15,442 - 9260p - 27,440 - - June 2003
111006 - - - - - - 132,837 560 Op QOct 2011
189 960
Non-executive directors
David Tyler™
1906 03 62,176 - B2,176 6755p 928 8p - - - June 2006
010604 58,082 - 49,369 809 2p 963 6p - - - June 2007
310505 58,241 - - 8535p - 103,494 - - May 2008
02 06 06 - 58,855 -  9260p - 104,585 - - June 2009
208 079

Naies

1 On damerner awiards mads Lnder the 2004 GUS Performancs Share Plan were automa.cally transterred 10 partoipan,t 1nese awards vested a1 BS per tant of tne onginal award GUS Perurmange si-are Fan gwards made m 2005

and 006G wire ceplaced wilh an mganaser { gWard Ot EXDALAN snames

2 As Jokn Prace + pnoioys w th Exper 4n Firance pic (formedy GUS oo enged on 31 March 2007 ynder The rles of tne Flan all outsianding awvards will ves sLppee I he oeclormarce condmor o= Ieonnr g wesing da »
snecitied n 1m0 table and wid be me pro-rared to 31 Maren 2007 Discosures wit be made w reupect af vesting al the aporopriate bme

3 Dav 1) Tylers awards wees rolird over on tae hasis descnbad in foatnole 3 e ihe $hare Opuons table on page 53

4 Urder Fe Fian fueh parlicipan § are antited 10 dradend equivalents on release of awards under the 2004 GUS Performance Share Plan as follows John Peare (ol B4 Don Rober 128769 payl Brool 320 €18

and Dawnd Tyler £33 496
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Report on directors’ remuneration cont

9 GUS Co-investment Plan and Experian Reinvestment Plan

Awards to direciors under the 2004 and 2005 cycles of the GUS Co-investment Plan and North Amenca Co-investrnent Plan were
reinvested In awards under the Expenian Reinvestment Plan and North America Reinvestment Plan at demerger as approved by GUS
shareholders at the EGM Awards under the 2006 cycle were automatically rofled over into equivalent awards over Expenan shares under
the rules of the GUS Co-investment Plan The share price on the date of award was 560p Release of matching shares under the Experian
Retnvestment Plan 1s subject 1o the achievement of performance conditions®, the retention of reinvested awards and continued
employment No further awards will be made under the Reinvestment Plan

For the year ending 31 March 2007 Don Robert and Paul Brooks recewed a bonus of 72 per cent of base salary and chose to invest the
whole of thetr bonus under the GUS North Amenica Co-investment plan The invested shares deferred under these arrangements are not
reflected in the table below as this report was published pricr to the actual share purchase The related matching shares under thase
arrangements are aiso not shown in the table below They are not released until the expiry of a three-year penied and the nght 1o the
raatching shares 1s forfeited If a director resigns before then

Investrd

Ongin st Cngnil an Awards
Gy GUS Iyt stens Matching Maiching rolled over
invesird Matching shares sharey GUY shang Sharpd. Shars into Re- Apegal F perin Tots pln
shares A} shares A arantec oraned pode on released pre on Expenan Expenan  wves ment Re-  srare prue A
1 Apnl 1 Apnd [Z3 TR phae 1o date af pror tofon date o plan Matching Matchmg  umvestinent on daw e ng 2 HMarzh
2006 2006  demerger demerger awaltd  demeger releasa shares shates Avad Feiard of awnd aate 200
Charrman
John Peace'!
200603 49689 195858 - - - 245547 929 Qp - - - - lune 2006
7106 04 42178 166 256 - - - - - 72392 195438 - 3720386 560 Op Oct 2011
130605 44 111 173 875 - - - - - 75712 308976 - 387 361 560 Op Oct 2011
12 06 06 - - 22124 33562 918 0p - - 22,124 59 640 - - 560 Op lune 2009
1592 029
Executive direclors
Don Robert
200603 36 257 56 191 - - - 92 4438 429 0p - - - - June 2006
11 0604 78512 157024 - - - - - 139,516 279032 83709 - 560 Op O 201
130605 83109 166 219 - - - - - 147685 295371 886112 - 560 Op Oct 2011
12 06 06 - - 68480 136960 9180p - - 121683 2431378 - - 56G0p June 2009
2949879
Paul Brooks
200603 i7 348 27933 - - - 45279 929 0p - - - - June 2006
i1 0604 29 212 5B 424 - - ~ - - 51910 103820 331460 - 56G Op O 2014
13 06 05 29 827 59 654 - - - - - 53003 106005 318016 - 560 Op Qct 2011
12 0606 - - 31072 B2 145 918 0p - - 55215 110432 - - 560 Op June 2008
1109860
Mon-execulive directors
David Tyler”
200603 25049 114 501 - - - 143 550 929 Op - - - - June 2006
110604 25347 99 754 - - - 125061 984 3p - - - - 560 Op Qct 2006
130605 27279 107 528 - - - 134807 984 3p - - - - 560 Op Qct 2006
12 06 06 - - 13 742 20 846 913 Op - - 13 742 37043 - - 560 Op June 2009
50785

Notes
1 Invesing shares for kabn §eace and David Tyler were purchased with the bonus net of tax Toe malching share awardy are made oh & Gross bass and are ta ed at the pont o vesting invested snares {or Don Rane 1 and §aul #irmoky
were purchased we he Boaus aross F Lax

2 Iohn Peste was gran #d 4 matthma award ovet Fapenan snares whch wall vest after 1hiee years of he concaues ta be Cherman of Esperan subyect to the good lpaves reawors o uded in the nres Detais o 1 3 dward Wers
4 sdosed i 1he snareholder arcuar dated 26 Juty 2006

3 Tne Lirst 50% of 4 M4 ching sward under (he Expenan Remvestment Plan wilt vest subject fo satstaction of # pertormante tondibon relative 1o a shdind scale ot giowth m Experan Group's piot | hefoee 4 Dves s tnree year prnod
The threshald ‘or vesting will bs growth i PBT ol 7% per annum a1 which 30% of ths part of the matchmg award will vest nsihg an a stragnt hae tasis 1o 100% at his par of the ow 1 d vestng at ¢ ow non PRIt 14% ner
Sanum T parl ol thi matckng award will wodl in iwo equal tranches on the towrth and it snniversanes of grant The remaning 50% of the matcieng award will pe tme-cased ang wil ves 35 ¢ S0 6 1 pa tof
maichng asard o IMe Iue anraversary of grant and 4% 10 25% 0n each o1 the tourth and fifln annnersanes of grani

a4 Lol Fbers 200< and 2005 GUS Co-vivestment Pan awatts vestad al the Ume o the demerger and Ne dol n01 et thite awards David Tyler s 2006 GUS Co-nvestmen Plan awards were iolod awer g0 the Bast esonbed n
togtnote 3 1o the Shase OpLoNS 1able on page 53

5 Unoe+ e Fan raes Darl ODants are ertried 1o daadend eqavalents on reiegse o 1he maichag share awards under tne 2003 GUS Co-nvittment Fan as follows John Peace £223 219 Don Robert 355 095 Paul P ooxs §25 354
and Davd Yyler £135717
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10 Executive directors’ annual pension

Don Robert 1s provided with benedits through a Supplementary Executive Returement Plan (SERP} which 1s a detined benefit arrangement in
the US The figures below are in respect of tus SERP entitlement  He also participates in a defined contribution arrangement and the
employer contnbutions 1o this arrangement dunng the year were $9,423

Pau! Bracks 15 a member of the registered Expenan Pension Scheme (formerly the GUS Pension Scheme)  His benefits within the Scheme
are restncted by an earmings cap  Mowever, benefits in excess of this cap are provided for through the Experian Limited SURBS (Secured

Unfunded Retrement Benefits Scheme) The pension figures below reflect both his registered and non-registered entitlement

The table below provides the disclosure of the above directors' pension entitlements in respect of benefits irom registered schemes and

non-regisie red arrangements

Additional
Accrued Accrued Change In pension earned to ‘Transfer value
pension at pension at Transfer Transfer transfer value 31 March 2007 of the increase
31 March 2007 31 March 2006 value at 31 value at {less director's {net of inflation} {less director's
Name per annum per annum March 2007 31 March 2006 contnbutions) per annum contributions)
{1 (2} (3 {4) (5) (6) (7)
3000 pa $'000 pa $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 pa $'000
Don Robert 252 204 4,006 3257 748 41 649
£000 pa £000 pa £900 £'000 £'000 £000 pa £000
Paul Brooks 74 62 995 784 203 10 130

John Peace s a member of the registerad Expenan Pension Scheme  His benefits are not restricted by an earmings cap, and therefore the

pension figures in the table below reflect his registered Scheme benefits

Dawid Tyler 15 a member of the registered Expenan Pension Scheme His benefits within the Schemne are restnicted by an earnings cap
However, benefits In excess of this cap are provided far through the GUS pic SURBS {although part of this promise will be prowided for by a
funded arrangement, which was closed to future contnbutions on 1 Apnl 2002)  The pension figures below reflect both his tunded and
unfunded entitlements and the additional year in respect of his leaving service agreement

As Massrs Peace and Tyler took immediate retirement from the registered Expenian Pension Scheme with effect from 31 March 2007, the

figures shown in the table below gve detalls of their pre-commutation, early retirement benefits payable from 1 April 2007

Six former directors of GUS plc have been recewing unfunded pensions from the Company for a number of years At demerger the
pensions of three of the farmer directors were transferred to the SURBS that provides secunty for the unfunded pensions of executives
affected by the HMRC earnings cap (see section 2 1{f)) Two of the pensions were transferred into the registered Scheme on 1 October
2006 and a payment of £107,900 (calculated by the Scheme actuary) was made by the Company to the Scheme  The total unfunded

pensions paid to the former directors was £445,646 (2006 £429,596)

Change in Additienal Transfer value

Pension in Accrued Transfer Transter transfer value penston accrued to  of the increase

payment at pensian at value at value at (less director's 31 March 2007 {less director's

Name 1 Apni 2007 31 March 2006 31 March 2007 31 March 2006 contributions) (net of mflation}  contributions)
4} (2) (3) {4) (5} (6) (7}

£7000 pa £'000 pa £2000 £000 £ 000 £000 pa £'000

John Peace 487 467 9,645 7,655 1,990 46 9
David Tyler 156 142 3,40% 1,871 1514 39 834

Hotes

Columns {13 and (21 repreent the deterred penson o which The d recior would have been entlled had they 1 the Group at 31 March 2007 and 2006 respectvely ocep1in (ne cases of Messes Peate and Trer waers coiL—n (1}
represens the early repremen pension pavable fom t April 2007

Column {3} 15 the transier vaue af the persion in cotumn (1) calculate d as at 31 March 2007 ased on tactors supahet) by the actuary af tne celevant group peasror scheme i aucomrance with UK a~uane! go donce no e GHIT

Calumn (2315 he aqunvatent ransler valus but calculated a5 at 31 March 2006 on Ihe assumnpha « that the direc or lett service at hat date

Column {5) 18 the change m Tramsler value of accrued Hensbn duiing the year net of contnbu ons Uy e director

Cohurtn 16) 13 The ncreate in CRNSON butl LD dUnng the year recogrisng () the accrual rare foe the addi,ongl 3enace based on be cenvonable salary in force ab he yedr end a0 (m) whete ADPFCEnD & e emedl of “ay awes ¢ €3

Gnftaticn adgisied) (erms. on e pauan alneady earned at the start of the year i Mesus Prace and Fer's cases the addiionat penson rtpheseils the ncrease m immieda s DEmon «4 N a wInee bur int 4 o

Colymn (7 represen.s the tramfar uaue of .he persion in (oluma (6}

The disclosures in columns (13 ta {5} are equivalent to those requined by tre UK Dirgctors Remuneranion Report Requlatons and those in golumng () and (7) are those reguired by 1he Uk Lsting Aulnor vy L g Ru'e
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Report on directors’ remuneration cont

11 Directors' service contracts

In accordance with Don Raberts service agreement with Expenan Services Corporation (ESC) dated 7 August 2006, if his employment (s
terminated by ESC without cause he 1s entitled to the following severanice payments continued payment of monthly salary for 12 manths from
the termination date, 12 months’ partiipaten in welfare benefit plans in which he parucipated dunng his employment, and 2n annual bonus
based on a 100% achievement of objecuves payatle in equat monthly instalments for 12 months The same amounts are payable by ESC in

Don Robert terminates the contract §) following matenal breach by ESC, or {i} for Good Reason following change of conwrol of ESC Good Reason
mezns dunng the six manth penod following a change of control, a matenal and substantial adverse reduction or change in Don Robert's posiien

Don Robert's service agreement also provides for the following payments to be made if the agreement terminates in the event of Don Robert s
death (in addition to payments due but unpaid before death), a pro rata annual bonus for the bonus year to the termination date hased on
ESC's performance (n that bonus year, and a lump sum equal to 12 months’ base salary to be paid no later than 90 days after the date of
death If the employment i1s terminated due to Don Robert's disability he 15 entitled to the bonus as described immediately above (in
additon to payments due but unpaid before the termination) Any deferred compensaton obligations with respect 1o Don Robert will be
governed \n accordance with the relevant plan rules

In his service agreement dated 2 Apnl 2007 upon termination of employment at the absolute discretion of Expenian Group Limited,

Paul Brooks may be paid base satary alone pension contributions and benefits in kind {excluding bonus or incentive payments unless the
Company n 1ts absolute diseretion determines otherwise) In heu of six months' notice {where notice 15 gwen by Paul Brooks) or 12 months'
notice (where notice I1s given by Experian Group Limited)

Save for the benefits described above, the service contracts of each of the executive directors do not provide for any benefits on the
termination of employment

12 Combined Code

The constitution and operation of the Remuneraton Commuitee are tn accordance with the prinaiples of good governance and the
Combined Code on Corporate Governance published by the Financial Reporting Counail

13 Shareholding guideline

Each of the executive directors meets the Committee’s guideline that, as a minimum, the Chief Executive Officer should hold the eguivalent
of two times his base salary in Experian Group Umited shares and other executive directors one umes therr base salary, including shares
heid under the Co-investment and Reinvestment plans

14 Directors' Interests

The beneficial interests of the directors, together with non-beneficial interests, in the Ordinary shares of the Company are shown below
Share options granted to directors, awards under the Performance Share Plan and the contingent interests in maiching shares under the
Co-investment and Reinvestment Plans are shown on pages 53 to 56 The directors have no interests in the debentures of the Company
or in any shares or debentures of the Company's subsidiaries

Expernan Group Limited GUS shares at
31 March 2007 10 October 2006

Chairman
John Peace 745,943 884,126
Executive directors
Don Robert” 369,943 240,449
Paul Brooks™ 103 709 103,709
Non-execulive directors
Fabiola Arredondo - -
Laurence Danon - -
Roger Davis 20,000 -
Alan Jebson - -
Sir Alan Rudge 13,585 12,585
Dawvid Tyier 590,069 580 068
HNaes

1 for regulatory purposes 45 at 22 May 2007 there had been no changes in Ihe above miterests

2 The number o [ upenar, Snares tor Don Robert and Paul Brocks refiects shares awarded 1o them under the legacy GUS Horth Amenca Co-nvestment Fan i ey af annual banus
Don Robert and Paul Brooxs have an unconditronal rght to recene Experian Shares 2 the end of ihe relevart three-year deferral pefiod Prior 1o recenpt they 30 not have dandend or vonng nger s ¢ rasoect 2 suen ghare

On behalf ¢f the Board Remuneration Committee

Charies Brown
Company Secretary
22 May 2007
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Statement of directors’ responsibilities

The directors are respansible for preparing the Annual Report and the Group financial statements in accordance with applicable law and
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union, and for prepaning the Company financial statements
and the Report on Directors’ Remuneration in accordance with applicable law and United Kingdom Accounung Standards (Unrited Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice}

The directors are responsible for preparing financial statements for each financial year which give a true and fair view, in accordance with
IFRSs as adopted for use in the Eurapean Union of the state of affairs of the Group and the profit or loss of the Group and a true and farr
view, 1 accordance with United Kingdom Generatly Accepted Accounting Practice, of the profit or loss of the Company for that penod

The directors consider that in preparing the financial statements on pages 60 to 132 appropniate accounung policies have been consistently
appled supported by reasonable and prudent judgments and esumates, that the Group financial statements comply with iFRSs as aaopted
for use in the European Urion and, with regard to the Company’s financial statements that all accounting standards which they consider
applicable have been followed

The directors are responsible for ensunng that proper accounung records are kept which disclose, with reasonable accuracy at any ime  the
finanoial position of the Group and the Company and which enable them to ensure that the Group financial statements comply with
applicable law and Article 4 of the I1AS Regulation and the Company financial statements and the Report on Directors’ Remuneration comply
with the Companies (lersey) Law 1991 as applicable They are aiso responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Company and the Group
and for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other rregularities

The Company has a website which contains up to date information on Group activities and pubhshed financial results The directors are
responsible for the maintenance and integnity of statutory and audited information on the Company's website Jersey legislation, and Urited
Kingdom regulation, governing the preparation and disseminaticn of financial statements, may differ from requirements in other junsdictions

Relevant audit information

As at 22 May 2007, so far as each director 15 aware there 5 no relevant audit information, being informauon needed by the auditors in
connection with prepanng their report, of which the auditors are unaware and each director has taken all steps that he/she ought to have
taken as a director Iin order to make himself/herself aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the auditors are aware of
that information

Going concern

After making enguiries, the directors have formed a judgment at the time of approving the financial statements that there 1s a reasonable
expectation that the Group and the Company have adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future For
this reason they continue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial statements
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Group income statement

for the year ended 31 March 2007

2007 2006
(Represented)
(Note 2)
Notes Ussm UsSsm
Revenue 3 3,481 3,064
Cost of sales {1.681) {1,507}
Gross profit 1,800 1,557
Distribution Costs {301) (272
Administrative expenses {1,026) (699)
Cperating expenses (1.327) (971)
Operating profit 473 586
Finance income 103 146
Finance expense {249) (248)
Net financing costs 8 (146) (10
Share of post tax profits of associates 67 66
Profit before tax 3 394 550
Group tax expense 9 (68) (92)
Profit after tax for the finanaal year from continuing operations 326 458
Prafit for the financial year from discontinued operations 10 137 806
Profit for the financial year 463 1,064
Attributable te
Equity shareholders in the parent company 462 1,018
Minonty interests 1 a5
Profit for the financial year 463 1064
Earnings per share 12 cents cents
- Basic 49 9 07 %
- Diluted 493 iD> 8
Earnings per share from continuing operations 12 cents cents
- Basic 351 48 4
~ Diluted 347 476
Non-GAAP measures 2007 2006
Reconciliation of profit before tax to Benchmark PBT ussm Ustm
Profit before tax 3 394 550
exclude exceptional items 7 162 7
exclude amortisation of acquisition intangibles 7 76 66
exclude goodwill adjustment 7 14 -
exclude charges m respect of the demerger-related equity incentive plans 7 24 -~
exclude financing fair value remeasurements 7 35 2
exclude tax expense on share of profit of associates 3 g 2
Benchmark PBT - continuing operations 3 714 627
Benchmark earnings pet share from continuing operations 12 cents cents
~ Basic 597 545
- Dituted 591 536
cents cents
Full year divedend per share 11 170 575
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Group balance sheet

at 31 March 2007

2007 2006
{Represented)
(Note 2)
Notes Ussm Ustm
Non-current assets
Goodwill 13 2,219 5342
Other intangble assets 14 804 926
Property, plant and equipment 15 519 1,670
Investment 1n associates 16 286 225
Deterred tax assets 27 103 547
Retirement benefit assets 24 85 31
Trade and other recewables 18 11 89
Other financia) assets 25 74 158
4,101 £ 988
Current assets
inventories V7 4 1,538
Trade and other recewables 18 794 1,830
Current tax assets 17 207
Other financial assets 25 53 10
Cash and cash equwvalents 19 07 385
1,775 3,970
Current lizbilities
Trade and other payables 20 (1,031) (2,421)
Loans and borrowings 21 (1,025) (303)
Current tax habilities (166) (481)
Provis:ons 23 (9) {155)
Other financial liabilities 25 - (37}
{2.231) {3,397)
Net current {labilities)/assets (456) 573
Non-current habilities
Trade and other payables 20 {52} (144)
Loans and borrowings 21 (1.348) (3 599)
Deferred tax liabilities 27 (68) (350
Provisions 23 {30) -
Other financial habihities 25 {40) (14)
{1,538) (24107
Net assets 2,107 5 454
Equity
Share capnal 28 102 83
Share premium 28 1,435 16 250
Retained earnings 28 16,341 5 683
Other reserves 28 {15,773) (t6 575)
Total shareholders’ equity 2,105 5.452
Minority interests n equity 28 A 2
Total equity 28 2,107 5454

The financial statements on pages 60 to 119 were approved by the Board of Directors on 22 May 2007 and were signed on its behalf by

John Peace

Director
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Group statement of recognised income and expense

for the year ended 31 March 2007

2007 2006
(Represented)
{Note 2)
UsSm US§m
Net income/{expense) recogrused directly Iin equity
Cash flow hedges (10} )
Net investment hedge 84 (16}
Reversal of Home Retall Group net invesiment hedge 4 -
Fair value gans on available for sale financial assets - 4
Actuarial gains in respect of defined benefit pension schemes 65 13
Currency transtation differences 465 (239)
Recycled cumulative exchange loss in respect of divestments - 5
Tax (charge)credit in respect of emns taken directly to equity {7) 9
Net income/(expense) recognised directly in equity {note 28) 601 {428}
Profit for the financial year 463 1064
Total iIncome recognmsed for the year 1.064 636
Total Income recognised for the year attnibutable to
Equity shareholders in the parent company 1,063 609
Minority interests 1 27
Total income recognised for the year 1,064 636
Cumulative adjustment for the implementation of 1AS 39 attributable to
Equity shareholders in the parent company - 18
Minority interests - 4
Total - 22
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Group cash flow statement

for the year ended 31 March 2007

2007 2006
(Represented)
{Note 2)
Notes Ussm usSsm
Cash generated from operations 29(a} 942 874
Interest paid 29(b) (133) (179)
Interest receved 27 68
Ddends received from associates 39 48
Tax paid (121) (32)
Net cash infiow from operating activities 754 779
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plani and equipment (114} (62}
Purchase of other intangible assets (161) (150}
Purchase of other financial assets and investments in associates (42} (41)
Acquisition of subsidiaries, net of cash acquired 29(0) {118) (1420
Disposal of subsidianies 29(d) 258 643
Net cash flows used in investing activities {177) {1 030)
Cash flows from finanung activities
Purchase of ESOP shares (75) (65)
Issue of Grdinary shares 1,525 52
Receipt of share option proceeds and sale of own shares 59 36
New borrowings 29(e} - 647
Repayment of borrowings 29(e) {1,423) (63)
Capital element of finance lease rental payments (4} (2)
Net receipts from denvatves held to manage currency profile 39 i3
Equity dividends paid {401) (508)
Net cash flows (used in)/generated from financing activities (280) 110
Exchange and other movements 166 (20)
Net increasef{decrease) in cash and cash equivalents - continuing operations 463 {161)
Net increase/{decrease) in cash and cash equivalents - discontinued operations
Net increase/f{decrease} in cash and cash equivalents — discontinued operations 550 {188)
Cash held by Home Retail Group at demerger {518) -
32 (188}
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 495 (349)
Movement in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash eguivaients at 1 Aprl 139 433
Net increasef{decrease) in cash and cash equivalenis 495 (349)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the finanaal year 29(H 634 139
Non-GAAP measures 2007 2006
Reconahation of net increase/{decrease) in cash and cash equivalents to movement 1n net debt Lssm ussm
Net debt at 3 Apnl - as reported (3.437) {2,688}
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 495 (345}
Decrease/(increase) in debt 1,427 (658}
Debt held by Home Retail Group at demerger 435 -
Exchange and other movements (inctuding movements in respect of debt) (328) 258
Net deht at the end of the financial year (note 22} {1,408) (3437)
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Notes to the Group financial statements

for the year ended 31 March 2007

1 Corporate information

Experian Group Limited (the 'Company’), which is the ultimate parent company of the Expenan Group, 1s incorporated and registered in Jersey
under the Jersey Companies Law as a public company limited by shares The shares of the Company are listed on the London Stock Exchange's
market for listed securities (‘the Londen Stock Exchange’) Expenan 1s a business services group

The consolidated finannial statements for the Group were approved by the Board on 22 May 2007

2 Basis of preparation and significant accounting policies

Basis of preparation

The Group financial statements are presented in US Dollars as this 1s the maost representative currency of the Group's operations The fmancial
statements are rounded to the nearest million They are prepared on the historical cost basis modified for the revaluation of certain financial
instruments The principal exchange rates used In prepanng the Group financial statements are set out in note 4

In comphance with the requirements for companies whase shares are listed on the London Stock Exchange, the financial statements of Experian
Group Limited are included within the Greup annual report and they are set out on pages 121 to 132 These are presented 1n Pounds Sterling as
that 15 the functional currency of that Company In determining its functional currency, the directors have taken account of the fact that the
assets and habilities and cash flows of Experian Group Limited are pnimarily denominated i Pounds Sterling The Company has elected to prepara
1ts financial statements under UK accounting standards

The consolidated financial statements of Expenan Group Limited and its subsidiary undertakings {'Expenan’) are prepared in accordance with
international Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS} as adopted for use in the European Union (the 'EU7) These are those standards, subsequent
amendments and related interpretations 1ssued and adopted by the International Accounting Standards Board {1ASB) that have been endorsed
by the European Union Although Expenian Group Limited 15 incorporated and registered in Jersey under the Jersey Companies Law the Group
financial statements include disclosures sufficient to comply with those parts of the UK Companies Act 1985 applicable to companies reporting
under IFRS

On 10 October 2006, the separaticn of Experian and Heme Retal Group was completed by way of demerger As part of the demerger, Experian
Group Limited became the ultimate holding company of GUS plc and related subsidiaries and shares in GUS pic ceased to be listed on the
London Stock Exchange on 6 October 2006 Trading of shares in Expenian Group Limited on the Londen Stock Exchange commenced on

11 October 2006

The demerger transaction falls outside the scope of IFRS 3 'Business Combinaticns’ Accardingly, following the guidance regarding the selection
of an appropriate accounting policy provided by 1AS 8 'Accounting policies, changes in accounting estimates and errors’, the transaction has been
accounted for in these financial statements us:ng the principles of merger accounting set out 1n FRS 6 *Acquisitions and Mergers' and UK
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice {UK GAAP) This policy, which does net conflict with IFRS, reflects the economic substance of the
transaction The distribution to GUS plc shareholders of shares in Home Retadl Group plc has been accounted for as a dividend in specie in these
financial statements

In accordance with the requirements of merger accounting, the comparative information 10 these Group financial statements has been extracted
from the GUS Group’s statutory financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2006 Those financial statements incorporated the results of
GUS plc and s subsidiary undertakings for the financial year then ended with the exception of Homebase where the GUS Group included its
results for the financial year to the end of February This was done to facilitate comparabiity to avesd distortions related to the timing of Easter

The statutory financial statements of GUS plc for the year ended 31 March 2006 were reported 1n Pounds Sterling but, to provide comparability
with the presentation currency of the Group, they are now represented 1in US Dollars

in addion this information has been further represented as follows

{a) the results of Home Retall Group have been reclassified as a discontinued operation in the Group income statement and the Group cash
flow statement as required by IFRS 5 ‘Non-current assets heid for sale and discontinued operations’,

(b) there has been a reallocation of costs between cost of sales and operating expenses in the Group Income statement to reflect the policies
adopted in the preparation of the histoncal financial information for the Experian prospectus which provides a more appropriate
classification of such items The effect of this 1s to increase cost of sales and reduce operating expenses for the year ended 31 March 2006
by US$112m, with no effect on reported profit for the financial year, and

(c) there has been a reclassification of dervatives in the Group cash flow statement in order to more fairly state operating cash flows and to
reflect the approach acdopted in the preparation of the historical financial informatien for the Expenan prospectus The effect of this has
been to increase net cash inflow from operating activities by US$70m, to reduce net cash flow generated from financing actwiues by
US$50m and to separately report an outflow for exchange and other movements of US$20m The reduction in net cash flow generated
from financing actvmities comprises a reduction of US$63m in the cash inflow from new borrowings and a US$13m reclassification to
separately identify net receipts from dervatives held 1o manage the Groups currency profile
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2 Basis of preparation and significant accounting polictes (continued)

Significant accounting policies
The pnnapal accounting policies apphed n the preparation of these financial statements are set out befow These policies have been consistently
applied to both years presented, unless otherwise stated

Basis of consolidation

Subsidiaries
Subsidianies are fully consolidated from the date on which control 1s transferred to the Group They cease 1o be consolidated from the date that
the Group ne longer has controt Under the requirements of IFRS 3 all bustness combinations are accounted for using the purchase method

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gams on transactions between group companies are eiiminated on consolidation Unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred

Accounting polictes of subsidiaries are consistent with the policies adopted by the Group for the purposes of the Group’s consohidation The
consohdated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Company and 1ts subsidiary undertakings for the financial year
ended 31 March 2007

A list of the significant investments 10 subsidiaries, including the name, country of incorporation and proportion of ownership intergst s given in
note O to the parent company financial statements

Associates
Associates are entities over which the Group has significant influence but not ¢ontrol, generally achieved by a shareholding of between 20% and
50% of the voting nghts The equity method 1s used to account for investments in associates and investments are initiafly recognised at cost

The Group’s share of net assets of its associates and loans made to associates are inciuded in the Group balance sheet The Group's share of its
associates’ post-acquisition after tax profits or losses 1s recognised in the Group income statement, and its share of post-acquisition movements in
equity 1s recognised in the Group’s equity The cumulative post-acquisition movements are adjusted against the carrying amount of the
investment The carrying amount of an investment in an associate Is tested for impairment by comparnng its recoverable amount to its carrying
amount whenever there 15 an indication that the imvestment may be impaired

Revenue recognition

Revenue represents the fair value of the sale of goods and services to external customers, net of value added tax and other sales taxes, rebates
and discounts, inciuding the provision and processing of data subscsiptions to services, software and database customisation and development
and the sale of software licences, maintenance and related consulting services

Revenue in respect of the provision and processing of data s recognised in the year 1n which the service 1s prowided Subscrption revenues, and
revenues in respect of services to be provided by an indeterminate number of acts over a specified penod of time, are recognised on 2 straight
line basis over those periods Customisation, development and consulting revenues are recognised by reference to the stage of compietion of the
work Revenue from software licences is recognised upon delivery Revenue from maintenance agreements I1s recegnmised on a straight line basis
over the term of the maintenance period

Where 2 single arrangement comprises a number of individual elements which are capable of operating independently of one another the total
revenues are allocated amongst the individual elements based on an esumate of the fair value of each element Where the elements are not
capable of operating independently, or reasonable measures of {air value for each element are not available, total revenues are recogrised on a
straight fine basis over the Ncontract period

Faremgn currency translation

Presentation currency
The Group s financial statements are presented in US Dollars

Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded n the functional currency of the relevant Group entity at the exchange rate prevailing on the date
of the transaction At each balance sheet date, monetary assets and habilities denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the exchange
rate prevailing at the balance sheet date Translation differences on monetary items are taken to net finanang costs In the Group 1ncome
statement except when deferred in equity, as qualifying net investment hedges or cash flow hedges

Translaton differences on non-monetary available for sale finanaal instruments are reported as part of the fair value gain or loss 1n equity

Group undertakings

The results and financial position of Group undertakings whose funcuonal currenctes are not US Dollars are translated into US Dollars as follows
» Assets and habilities are translated ai the closing rate at the balance sheet daie,

¢ Income and expenses are translated at the average exchange rate for the year {unless this average 1s not a reasonable approximation of the

cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case income and expenses are translated at the rate on the dates of
the transactions), and

* All resulting exchange differences are recognised as a separate component of equity
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Notes to the Group financial statements

for the year ended 31 March 2007

2 Basis of preparation and significant accounting policies (continued)

On consolidation, exchange difierences anising from the translation of the net investment in foreign entities, and of borrowings and other currency
instruments, prmarily foreign exchange contracts, designated as hedges of such investments, are taken to equity Tax charges and credits
attributable to those exchange differences are taken directly to equity When a foreign operation 1s sold, such exchange differences are recogrised
M the Group income statement as part of the gain or foss on sale Goodwill and fair value adjustments anising on the acquisition of a foreign entity
are treated as assets and habilities of the foreign entity and are translated at the closing rate

Share-based payments

IFRS 2 ‘Share-based Payment' applies to equity instruments, such as share options granted since 7 November 2002 The Group elected to adopt full
retrospective apphcation of the standard on all share options and awards granted to employees before 7 November 2002 but not vested at the date
of transition to IFRS (1 Apni 2004)

The Group has a number of equity settled, share-based compensation plans These include awards in respect of shares in Expenan Group Limited
made at or after demerger together with awards previously made in respect of shares n GUS plc which were rolled over into awards in respect of
shares in Experian Group Lirmited at demerger The fair value of eptions and shares granted s recognised as an expense In the ncome statement on
a straight line basis over the vesting penod after taking mto account the Group's best esimate of the number of awards expected to vest The
Group revises the vesting estimate at each balance sheet date Non-market performance conditions are included in the vesting estimates Expenses
are incurred over the vesting period Farr value 1s measured at the date of grant using whichever of the Black-Scholes Monte Carlo model and
closing market price 1s most appropniate to the award Market based performance conditions are included In the fair value measurement on grant
date and are not revised for actual performance

Goodwilf

Goodwill 1s the excess of the fair value of the censideration payable for an acquisition over the fair value of the Group’s share of wentifiable net
assets of a subsidiary or associate acguired at the date of acquistion Fair values are attributed to the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities that existed at the date of acquisition, reflecting their condition at that date Adjustments are made where necessary te bring the
accounting polictes of acquired businesses iINto aignment with those of the Group

Goodwill on acquisitions of subsidianes 1s separately recognised 1n the balance sheet Goodwill on acquisitions of associates 1s included in the
carrying amount of the investment Goodwill is stated at cost less any impairment Goodwill 1s not amortised but 15 tested annually for impairment
An imparrment charge 1s recognised for any amount by which the carmying value of goodwill exceeds 1ts recoverable amount

Goodwill 1s ailocated to cash generating units {'CGUs’) and monntered for internal management purposes by geographical segment The allocation
1s made to those CGUs or groups of CGUs that are expected to benefit from the business combination 1n which the goodwill arose Where the
recoverable amount of the CGU 1s less than its carrying amount, Including goodwili, an imparrment !oss 1s recognised 1n the Group income
statement

Gans and losses on the disposal of an entity include the carrying amount of goodwill relating to the entity sold, allocated where necessary on the
basis of relative fair value

Other intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired as part of an acquisition of a business are capitalised separately from goodwall, If those assets are identifiable, separable
or ansing from legal nghts and therr fair vaiue can be measured rehably intangible assets acquired separately from the acquisition of a business are
caprtalised at cost Certain costs incurred 1n the developmental phase of an internal project are capitalised as (ntangible assets provided that a
number of critena are satisfied These include the technical feasibility of completing the asset so that it 1s available for use or sale, the availability of
adeqguate resources to complete the development and to use or sell the asset and how the asset will generate probable future economic benefit

The cost of other intangible assets with finite useful economic or centractual lives 1s amortised over those fives The carrying values of intangibie
assets are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying values may not be recoverable If impaired
the carrying values are written down to the hgher of fair value less costs to sell, and value-in-use Value-in-use 15 determined by reference to
projected future income streams using assumptions in respect of profitabiity and growth

Research expenditure 15 charged in the Group income statement 10 the year in which 1t i1s ncurred

Databases and computer software

Databases
Caprtahsed databases comprise the fair value of databases acquired as part of a business combination or the data purchase and dats capture costs
of internally developed databases

Databases are held at cost and are amortised on a straight ine basis over three to seven years

Computer software
Acquired computer software licences are capitalised on the basis of the costs incurred to acguire and bring into use the specific software Computer
software licences are held at cost and are amortised on a straight line basis over three to five years

Costs that are directly associated with the production of identifiable and unique software products controlied by the Group, and that will generate
economic benefits beyond one year, are recognised as intangible assets Computer software development costs recognised as assets are amortised
on a straight line basis over three to five years Other costs associated with developing or maintaining computer software programmes are
recognised as an expense as incurred
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2 Basis of preparation and significant accounting policies {continued)

Acquisiion mtangibles

Trade marks and licences
Trade marks and licences are carned at cost and are amortised on a straight line basis over their contractual fives, up to a maximum penod of 20 years

Trade names
Legally protected or otherwse separable trade names acguired as part of a business combination are capitalised at fair value on acquisiion and
amortised on a straight ine basis over three to erght years based on management’s expectations to retan trade names within the business

Customer relationships
Contractual and non-contractual customer relationships acquired as part of a business combination are capitaiised at fair value on acquisition and
amortised an a straight line basis over three to eight years based on management's estimates of the average lives of customer relationships

Completed technelogy
The fair value of completed technology acauired as part of a business combination 1s capitafised as an intangible asset Completed technology 15
held at fair value on acquisition and amortised on a straight line basis over three to eight years based on the expected life of the asset

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment 15 held at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment in value

Land 15 not depreciated
Equipment on hire or lease 1s depreciated over the lower of the usefu! life and penocd of the lease

Depreciation 5 provided on other property, plant and equipment at rates calculated to depreciate the cost, less estimated residual value based on
prices prevailing at the balance sheet date of each asset evenly over its expected useful Ife as follows

* Freeheld properties are depreciated over 50 years,
* {easehold premises with lease terms of 50 years or less are depreciated over the remaining pencd of the lease, and
* Plant, vehicles and equipment are depreciated over two to ten years according to the estimated life of the asset

Contingent consideration

where part or all of the amount of purchase consideratron 1s centingent on future events, the cost of the acguisition initially recorded includes a
reasonable estmate of the fair value of the contingent amounts expected to be payable in the future The cost of the acquisition 15 adjusted when
revised estimates are made, with corresponding adjustments made 1o goodwill until the ultimate outcome 15 known

Where part or all of the amount of dispasal consideration 1s contingent on future events, the disposal proceeds initially recorded include a
reasonable estimate of the fair value of the contingent amounts expected to be recewable in the future The proceeds are adjusted when revised
estimates are made, with cerresponding adjustments made to debtors, and profit and loss on disposal unti! the utimate outcome 15 known

Trade receables
Trade receivables are imitialty recogrised at fair value and carned at the lower of fair value (oniginal inveice amount) and recoverable amount Where
the time value of money is matenal, recewvables are carned at amortised cost

A provision for impairment of trade recewvables is established when there 15 objective evidence that the Group will not be able to collect all amaunts
due according to the onginal terms of recewvables Any charge or credit in respect of such provisions I1s recogrised n the Group income statement
The cost of any recoverabie trade recevables 1s recognised in the Group income statement immediately

Available for sale assets

Avallable for sale assets are non-dervative financial assets that are either designated to this categoey or not classified in any of the other financial
asset categories Avaifable for sale assets are carned at farr value and are included 1n non-current assets unless management intends to dispose of
the assets within 12 months of the balance sheet date Unrealised gains and losses on avallable for sale assets are recognised directly in equity On
disposal or impairment of the assets, the gamns and losses in equity are recycled through the income statement At each balance sheet date the
Group assesses whether there 1s objective evidence to suggest that available for sale assets are impaired In the case of equity securities, a significant
or prolonged decline in the fair value of the secunty below its cost 15 considered In determining whether the secunity 1s impaired If any such
evidence exists, the cumulative loss 1s removed from equity and recognised in the Group Income statement Imparrment losses recognised in the
Group Income statement on equity INstruments are not subsequently reversed through the Group income statement

Borrowings and borrowing costs

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred Borrowings are subsequently stated at amortised cost untess they
are part of a fair value hedge accounting relationship tnitial differences between the proceeds of fixed rate borrewings and the redemption values
are recognised in the tncome statement over the penied of the borrowings using the effective interest rate method Borrowings that are subyject 1o a
fair value hedge accounting relationship are measured at amortised cost adjusted for the change in fair vatue attnbutable to hedged nisks

Borrowings are classified as non-current to the extent that the Group has an unconditicnat nght to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12
months after the balance sheet date

Increrental borrowing costs which are directly attnbutable to the issue of debt are capitahsed and amorused over the expecied iife of the
borrowing using the effective interest rate method All other borrowing costs are expensed i the year in which they are incurred
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2 Basis of preparation and significant accounting pelicies (continued)

Accounting for dervative financial mstruments and hedging actvities

The Group uses denvative financiat instruments 1o manage its exposures 1o fluctuations in foreign exchange rates, interest rates and social
security obligations in respect of share-based payments Dervative instruments utilised by the Group include nterest rate swaps, cross currency
swaps, forward foreign exchange contracts and equity swaps

Derwvatives are recognised at cost, being the farr value at the date a contract 1s entered into and are subsequently remeasured at their {fair value

Amounts payable or receivable in respect of interest rate swaps are recognised as adjustments to net financing costs over the penod of the
contract The interest differential reflecied in forward foreign exchange contracts is taken to net financing costs

Dervative assets and liabilities are classified as non-current unless they mature within 12 months after the balance sheet date

The method of recognising the resultng gamn or toss depends on whether the denvative 15 designated as a hedgimg instrument, and, if so, the
nature of the hedge relationship The Group designates certain derivatives as

* Farr value hedges - hedges of the fair value of recognised assets or iabilities or a firm commitment, or
* Cash flow hedges - hedges of highly probable forecast transactions, or
* Net investment hedges — hedges of net investments in foreign operations

The Group documents the relationship between hedging instruments and hedged tems at the hedge inception, as well as its sk management
objective and strategy for undertaking vanous hedge transactions The Group alsc documents its assessment, both at hedge inception and on an
ongoing basis, of whether the derwvatives that are used in hedging transactions are highly effective in offsetting changes in farr values of hedged
items This effectiveness testing 1s performed at every reporting date throughout the life of the hedge to confirm that the hedge has remained
and will continue to remain highly effective Movements on the hedging reserve In equity are shown in the Group statement of recogmised
income and expense

Hedge accounting 15 discontinued when the hedging instrument expires or 15 sold, terminated or exercised or no longer gualifies for hedge
accounting

Fair value hedges

Changes in the fair value of dervatives that are designated and qualfy as far value hedging instruments are recorded in the Group income
statement, together with any changes in the farr value of the hedged asset or hability that are attributable to the hedged nsk The ineffecuve
portion of a far vaiue hedge 15 recognised in net financing costs in the Group income statement

Cash flow hedges

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of dervatives that are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges are recognised in equity The
gain or {oss relating to the ineffective portion 1s recognised immediately within cost of sales or operating expenses, as appropriate, 1n the Group
Income statement

Amounts accumulated in equity are recycled in the Group income statement in the penod when the hedged iterm will affect the income
statement However when the forecast transaction that 1s hedged results in the recognition of a non-financial asset or hability the gains and
losses previously deferred in equity are transferred from equity and included in the initial measurement of the cost of the asset or hability When a
hedging instrument expires or 1s soid, or when a hedge no tanger meets the cniteria for hedge accounting, any cumulative gain or loss existing in
aquity at that time remains In equity and 1s recognised when the forecast transaction 1s ulumately recogrised in the Group income statement
When a forecast transaction 1s no longer expected to occur, the cumulative gain or loss that was reported in equity 1s transferred immediately to
the Group income statement

Net investment hedges

Any gain or loss on the hedging instrument relating to the effective pertion of the hedge of a net investment in a foreign operation 15 recognised
in equity, the gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion 15 recognised immedsately 1n net financing cests in the Group income statement
Gamns and losses accumulated in equity are included in the Group inceme statement when the foreign operation 1s disposed of

Non-hedging dervatives

Changes in the fair value of any derivative instrument that does not qualify for hedge accounting are recognised immediately in the Group
income statement Costs in respect of derivatives entered into in connection with National insurance habilities on employee share incentive
schemes are charged as an employment cost, other changes are charged within financeng fair vaiue remeasurements in the Group income
statement

Derwatives embedded in other financial mstruments or other host contracts are treated as separate dernvatives when their nisks and characteristics
are not closely related to those of host contracts, and the host contracts are not carned at fair value with unrealised gains or losses reported In
the Group income statement

Farir value estimation

The fair value of financal iInstruments traded n organsed active financial markets 15 based on quoted market prices at the close of business on
the balance sheet date The approprate quoted market price for financial habilities 1s the current offer price and for financial assets the current
bid price
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2 Basis of preparation and significant accounting policies (continued)

The fair value of finanaial instruments for which there 1s no quoted market pnce 1s determined by a variety of methods incorporating assumptions
that are based on market conditions existing at each balance sheet date Quoted market prices or dealer guctes for similar instruments are used for
long-term debt Other techniques, such as estimated discounted cash flows, are used to determine fair value for the remaining financial
Instruments

The fair value of interest rate swaps 15 calculated as the present value of the estirmated future cash flows The fair value of forward foreign exchange
contracts 15 determined using forward foreign exchange market rates at the balance sheet date The nomenal value less estimated credit adjustments
of short-term trade receivables and payables are assumed to approximate to their farr values The fair value of financial habilities 1s esumated by
discounting the future contractual cash flows at the current market interest rate that 1s available to the Group for similar financial instruments

financiaf nisk management

The Group's activities expose 1t to a vanety of finanaial nisks market nsk including currency risk and interest rate nisk, credit nsk and hguidity nsk
The Group's overall nsk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potental adverse
effects on the Group’s financial performance The Group uses dernvative financial tnstruments to hedge certain risk exposures

The Group's Treasury function seeks to reduce the Group’s exposure to foreign exchange, interest rate and other financial nsks It also ensures
surplus funds are managed and contrelled in & prudent manner which will protect capital sums invested and ensure adequate short-term lquidity
whilst maximising returns It does not operate as a profit centre and transacts only in relation to underlying business requirements It operates
policies and procedures which are penodically reviewed and apgroved by the directors and are subject to regular Group internal Audrt reviews

Up to and including the year ended 31 March 2006, the Group transacted pnmarily in Pounds Sterling The hedging and nsk management
strategtes pursued for the years then ended reflected this Pohicies adopted since demerger reflect the significance of its US Dollar operations

Market risk

Foreign exchange rnisk
The Group cperates Internationally and 1s exposed to foreign exchange nisk, pnmarily with respect to Pounds Sterhing and the Euro Foreign
exchange nisk arises from recognised assets and liabilies and net investments in foreign operations

The Group has investments in foreign operations, whose net assets are exposed to fereign currency translation risk Currency exposure ansing from
the net assets of the Group's forergn cperations 1s managed primanly through borrowings denominated in the relevant foreign currencies and the
use of forward foreign exchange contracts

Interest rate risk

The Group has a pelicy of normally mamtaining between 30% and 70% of net debt at rates that are fixed for more than cne year The Group’s
interest rate exposure 15 managed by the use of fixed and floating rate borrowings and by the use of interest rate swaps to adjust the balance of
fixed and floating rate habilities it also mixes the duration of (s borrowings to smooth the impact of interest rate fluctuations

Credrt risk

In the case of deposits and dernivative financial instruments, the Group 1s exposed to a credit risk, which results from the non performance of
contractual agreements on the part of the contract party This credit nsk 1s mirimised by a policy under which the Group only enters into such
centracts with banks and financial institutions with strong credit ratings, within imits set for each organisation Dealing actwity 1s closely controlled
and counterparty positions are monitored regularly The general credit nisk on derwvative financial instruments utilsed by the Group 1s therefore not
censidered to be significant There 1s no significant concentration of credit nsk with respect to trade and other recewvables as the Group has a large
number of customers, internationally dispersed, with no concentration on particular tndustries or markets The Group has implemented policies that
reguire appropriate credit checks on petential customers before granting credit The maximum credit risk of financial assets 15 represented by the
carrying value of the asset net of any apphcable prowsion for impairment

Liquidity nisk
The Group maintans long-term committed facihties that are managed to ensure 1t has sufficient available funds for operations and planned
expansiens

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that are not subject to amortisation are tested annually for impairment Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable An smparment loss is recognised for the
amount by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount The recoverable amount 15 the higher of an asset's fair value less costs
to sell, and valve-in-use For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable
cash flows {CGUs)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, term and call deposits held with banks and other short-term highly hquid investments with ongsnal
maturities of three months or less Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current liabilities on the Group balance sheet For the purposes
of the Group cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents are as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts
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2 Basis of preparation and significant accounting policies (continued)

Deferred tax

Deferred tax 15 prowided n full on temporary differences ansing between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the
Group financial statements However, If the deferred tax anses from iniial recognition of an asset or kability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss, it 1s not accounted for Deferred tax assets and
habiities are calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset 1s realised or the liability 1s settled, based on the tax
rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it 1s probable that future taxable profit will be avalable against which the temporary
differences can be utiised

Deferred tax 15 provided on temporary differences ansing on investments in subsicdiaries and associates, except where the timing of the reversal of
the temporary difference 15 controlied by the Group and it 15 probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future

Provisions
Provisions are recognised when

* The Group has a present tegal or constructive obligation as a result of past events,
* It 1s more hkely than not that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obhgation, and
* The amount has been reliably estimated

Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be
required in setifement 15 determined by considering the class of cbligations as a whole A provision i1s recognised even If the hkelihood of an outflow
with respect to any one item included in the same ¢lass of obligation may be small

If the effect of the ume value of money 1s material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that
reflects current market assessments cf the uime value of money and, where appropriate, the risks specific 1o the liabity Where discounting 15 used
the increase in the provision due to the passage of time 15 recogrused as an interest expense

Where the Group expects a provision to be reimbursed, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset when the reimbursement s certain

Leases

Finance leases

Leases of property, plant and equipment where the Group has substantially all the nsks and rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases
Finance leases are capitalised at the lease’s nception at the lower of the fair value of the leased property and the present value of the mimmum
lease payments Each lease payment 1s allocated between the kability and finance charges so as to achieve a constant rate on the finance balance
outstanding The corresponding rental obligations, net of finance charges, are included in other payables The interest element of the finance cost 1
charged in the Group income statement over the lease penod so as to produce a constant peniodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the
hability for each penod

Operating leases
Leases in which a significant portion of the nsks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as operating leases

Payments made under operating leases are charged (n the Group income statement on a straight ine basis over the perniod of the lease Incentives
from lessors are recognised as a systematic reduction of the charge over the perod of the lease

Emplayee benefits

Defined benefit pensron arrangements

The pension Lability recognised in the Group balance sheet, in respect of such arrangements 15 the present value of the defined benefit obligation
at the balance sheet date less the farr value of plan assets, together with adjustments for past service costs The defined benefit obligatian 1s
calculated annually by independent gualified actuanes using the projected unit credit methed

The present value of the defined benefit obligation 15 determ:ned by discounting the estmated future cash outflows using market yields available at
the assessment date on high-guality corporate bonds that are denominated in the currency in which the benefits will be paid and that have terms
to matunty consistent with the estimated average term of the related pension liability

Actuanial gains and losses anising from experience adjustments and changes In actuanal assumptions are recognised immediately 1n the Group
staternent of recognised incame and expense

Past service costs are recognised immediately in the Group income statement, unless the changes to the pension plan are conditional on the
employees remamning in service for a specified penod of tme (the vesting period) In this case, the past service costs are amortised on a straight ine
basis over the vesting pernicd

The pension cost recogrused In the Group income statement compnses the cost of benefits accrued plus interest on the defined benefit abhgation
less expected return on the plan assets over the year

Defined contribution pension arrangements
The assets of defined contribution schemes are held separately from those of the Group in independently administered funds The pension cost
recogrused in the Group income statement represents the contributions paid by the Group to these funds over the year
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2 Basis of preparation and signtficant accounting policies {continued)

Other post-employment obligations - Post-retirement healthcare costs

The Group operates schemes which provide post-retirement healthcare benefits to certain retired employees and therr dependent relatives The
pnncipal scherme relates to {ormer employees in the UK and under this scheme, the Group has undertaken to meet the cost of post-retrernent
healthcare insurance for all ehgeble former employees and their dependants whe retred prior to 1 April 1994

The expected cost of these benefits 15 calculated using an actuarial methodology similar to that for defined benefit pension arrangements Actuarial
gains and losses ansing from expenence adjustments, and changes 0 actuarial assumptions, are recogrused in the Group statement of recognised
income and expense The oblgations are valued annually by independent qualified actuanes

Cnitical accounting estimates and assumptions

In prepanng the Group financial statements, management 15 required 1o make estimates and assumptuons that affect the reporied amount of
revenues, expenses, assets and habilities and the disclosure of contingent hiabiliies The resulting accounting esumates, which are based on
management’s best judgment at the date of the Group financial statements, will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results The
estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabihiues within the
next financial year are discussed below

Taxes

The Group 1s subject to taxes in numerous junsdictions Significant judgment 1s required in determining the worldwide provision for income taxes as
there are many transactions and calcuiations for which the ultmate tax determination 15 uncertain during the ordinary course of business The
Group recognises liabilities based on estimates of whether additional taxes will be due Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different
fram the amounts that were irutially recorded, such differences will impact on the results for the year and the respective incomne tax and deferred
tax provisions in the year in which such determination 15 made

Pension benefits

The present value of the defined benefit obligatians depends on a number of factors that are determined on an actuanal basis using 2 number of
assumptions The assumptions used in determining the defined benefit obligations and net pension costs include the expected long term rate of
return on the relevant plan assets and the discount rate Any changes i these assumptions may impact on the amounts disclosed in the Group's
balance sheet and income statement

The expected return on plan assets Is calculated by reference to the plan nvestments at the balance sheet date and 1s a weighted average of the
expected returns on each main asset type (based on market yields available on these asset types at the balance sheet date)

The Group has determined the appropniate discount rate at the end of each year This 1s the interest rate used to determine the present value of
estimated future cash outfiows expected to be required to settle the defined benefit obligations In determining the appropnaie discount rate, the
Group has considered the market yields of high-gqualty corparate bonds that are denominated in the currency in which the benefits will be paid,
and that have terms to matunty consistent with the estimated average term of the related pension liability

Cther key assumptions for defined benefit obligations and pension costs are based in part on market conditions at the relevant balance sheet dates
and addiional informatien s disclosed in note 24

Fair value of denvatives or ather financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market {for example, over-the-counter denvatives) 1s determined by using
valuation techniques The Group uses its judgement 10 select a variety of methods and makes assumptions that are matnly based on market
conditions existing at each balance sheet date

Goodwill
Goodwill 15 allocated to CGUs and monitored for wnternal management purposes by geographical segment The allocation 15 made to those CGUs or
groups of CGUs that are expected 1o benefit from the business combination in which the goodwill arcse

The Group tests goodwall for imparrment annually or more frequently if events or changes In circumstances indicate that the goodwili may be
impaired The recoverable amount of each CGU 1s determined based on valus-in-use caiculations

These calculations reguire the use of cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved by management, looking forward up to five years
Cash flows are extrapolated using estimated growth rates beyond a five year period The growth rates used do not exceed the long-term average
growth rate for the businesses in which the segment operates

Key assumptions used for value in-use calculations for all CGUs are

* Budgeied gross margin

* Weighted average real growth rate of 2 25% used to extrapolate cash flows beyond the budget perrod and
* Pre-tax discount rate of 11 4% applied to the pre-tax cash flow projections

Management deiermines budgeted gross margin based on past performance and its expectations for the market development The weighted
average growth rates used are consistent with the forecasts included in industry reports The discount rates used reilect the Group's post tax
weighted average cost of capital of 8%
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2 Basis of preparation and significant accounting poliaes (continued)

Share-based payments

The Group has a number of equity settled share-based payment arrangements 1n existence The assumptions used 1n determining the amounts
charged in the Group income statement include judgements in respect of performance conditions and length of service together with future
share prices, dividend and interest yields and exercise patterns

Critical judgements

Management has made certain judgements in the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies set out above that have a significant effect
cn the amounts recognised in the Group financial statements These include the classification of transactions between the Group income
statement and the Group balance sheet These accounting policy descriptions indicate where judgement needs exercising

The most significant of these yjudgements 15 1n respect of intangible assets where certam costs incurred in the developmental phase of an internal
project are capitalised if a number of criteria are met Management has made certain judgements and assumptions when assessing whether a
project meets these critena, and on measuring the costs and the economic Iife attnibuted to such projects On acquisition, specific intangible
assets are identified and recognised separately from goodwill and then amortised over their estimated useful lives These include such iems as
brand names and customer lists, to which value s first attributed at the tme of acguisition The capstalisation of these assets and the related
amortssation charges are based on uncertain judgements about the value and economic life of such items The economic lives for intangible
assets are estimated at between 3 and 7 years for internal projects, which include databases, internal use software and internally generated
software, and 2 and 10 years for acquisition intangibles

Recent accounting developments
The following accounting standards, amendments and interpretations 1ssued by the tASB and the International Financial Reporting Interpratations
Commmuttee {'IFRIC’) are effective {or the Group's accounting perieds beginning on or after 1 Apni 2007

« |FRS 7 ‘Frnancial Instruments Disclosures' and amendments to IAS 1 'Presentation of Finanaal Statements - Capial Disclosures’,

s |FRS 8 "Operating segments‘('),

» |AS 23 'Amendment 1o {AS 23 ‘Borrowing Costs’,
o |FRIC 8 *Scope of IFRS 27,
¢ [FRIC 9 'Re-assessment of embedded dervatives’,

* {FRIC 10 ‘Intenm financial reporting and smpanment’'’,

* IFRIC 11 *IFRS 2 - Group and Treasury Share Transactlons"'),

* IFRIC 12 ‘Service Concession Arrangements‘("

(™) These standards are stli subject to adoption by the EU

These changes are not expected to have a matenal effect on the results and net assets of Expenian A number of the developments will lead to
additional disclosures

Use of non-GAAP measures

The Group has identified certain measures that it believes will assist understanding of the performance of the business The measures are not
defined under IFRS and they may not be directly comparable with other companies” adjusted measures The non-GAAP measures are not
intended to be a substitute for or superior to, any IFRS measures of performance but management has included them as they consider them to
be important comparables and key measures used within the business for assessing performance

The foliowing are the key non-GAAP measures wdentified by the Group

Benchmark Profit before Tax (‘Benchmark PET’)

Benchmark PBT 1s defined as profit beiore amortisation of acquisiion intangibles, goodwill impairments, charges in respect of the demerger
related equity incentive pians, exceptional items, financing fair value remeasurements and taxation It inciudes the Group’s share of assocuates’
pre-tax profit

Earmings before Interest and Tax ('EBIT")
EBIT 15 defined as proiit before amortisation of acquisiion intangibles, goodwill impairments, charges in respect of the demerger-related equity
incentive plans, exceptionzl items, net financing costs and taxason It ncludes the Group’s share of associates’ pre-tax profit

Benchmark Earnings per Share (‘Benchmark EPS’)
Benchmark EPS represents Benchmark PBT less attributable taxation and minority interests divided by the weighted average number of shares in
issue, and 1s disclosed to indicate the underlying profitability of the Group

Exceptional tems

The separate reporting of non-recurning exceptional 1tems gives an indication of the Group's underlying performance Excepucnal items are those
ansing from the profit or loss on disposal of businesses or closure costs of material business units All other restructuning costs are charged
against EBIT in the segments in which they are incurred

Net debt
Net debt 15 calculated as total debt less cash and cash equivalents Total debt includes loans and borrowngs {(and the farr value of dervatives
hedging loans and borrowings), overdrafts and obhgations under finance Jeases Interest payable on borrowings is excluded {rom net debt
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3 Segmental information

A business segment 15 a group of assets and operations engaged in providing products or services that are subject to risks and returns that are
different from these of other business segments A gecgraphical segment 15 engaged i providing products or services within a particulas
econemic environment and 1s subject to nisks and returns that are different from those of segments eperating in other economic environments

Inter-segment transactions are entered inte under the narmal commerazl terms and conditions that would also be avadable to unrelated third
parties There 15 no matenal impact from inter-segment transactions on the Group’s resulis

Segment assets consist primarily of property, plant and equipment, intangible assets including goodwill inventones, dervatives designated as
hedges of future commercial transactions, and recewables They exclude tax assets, cash, iInvestments and dervatives designated as hedges of
borrowings which are inctuded within Central actevities

Segment liabilities compnse operating habiities (including denvatives designated as hedges of future commercial transactions) They exclude items
such as tax, borrowings and related hedging denvatives which are included within Centrat activities

Capntal expenditure comprises additions to property, plant and equipment and mtangible assets, excluding additions resufting from acquisitions
through business combinations

The primary and secondary segmental reporting fermats for Experian are outhined below In addit'on the segmental infermation includes
discontinued operations These comprise the businesses of Home Retail Group, Burberry and Lewis which were all indnwidual segments for GUS
plc but were either demerged from or sald by GUS plc priar te the flotation of Expenan

Additional information in respect of discontinued operations 15 shown in note 10

Primary reporting format for Experian - geographical segments
At 31 March 2007, Experian 1s organised on a worldwide basis into three core geographies

* Americas (North Amenica and South Amenica),
¢ UK & Ireland, and
» Europe, Middle East and Afnca {('EMEA'VAsIa Pacific

In addition unallocated corporate head office costs, which include costs ansing from finance, treasury and other global functions, are reported as
Central activities

Secondary reporting format for Experian — business segments
Experian operates across four key business segments

= Credit Services,

+ Decsion Analytics,

* Marketing Solutions, and
* |nteractive

In addition unallocated corporate head office costs, which include costs anising from finance, treasury and other global functions are reported as
Central actvities

Credit Services acquires, procasses and manages large and complex databases containing the credrt histories of consumers and businesses and
also operates business processing outsourcing services, mainly in France, helping banks and other clients with back office functions

Decision Analytics builds on the Credit Services database information and helps clients by applying analytical tools and software 1o convert data
held nternally and other data into usable business infermation

Marketng Solutiens helps clients to acquire new customers and to manage their relationships with existing customers By appending hundreds of
charactenstics 1o the credit and markeung data held in databases, Marketing Sofutions prowides chents with informauon designed to assist them
in matching the right offer or product to the relevant customer using the most appropriate communication channels

Interactive helps customers to understand and manage ther own financial information and assets as well as to make more informed purchase
decisions in areas such as financial services, shopping and education and to connect them with companies over the internet
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3  Segmental information (continued)

Geographical segments

(a) Income statement
Year ended 31 March 2007

Cantinuing operations

Americas UK & EMEA/ Central Total Discontinued Total
Ireland Asia Pacific actvies continuing  operations3 Group
USsm US$m USSm Ussm Ussm ussm Ussm
Revenue!
Total revenue 1,994 907 591 - 3,492 5,468 8,960
Inter-segment revenue? - an - - (11) - {11
Revenue from external customers 1,994 896 591 - 3,481 5,468 8,949
Profit
Operating profit/(loss) 432 176 68 (203) 473 212 685
Net financing tncome/{costs) - - - (146) (146) 16 (130)
Share of post-tax profits of associates &7 - - - 67 - 67
Profit/{loss) before tax 499 176 68 (349) 394 228 622
Group tax expense (68) (21) (159)
Profit for the financial year 326 137 463
Reconahation from EBIT to Profit/{loss)
before tax - continuing operations
EBIT 562 236 74 (a7 825
Net interest - - - (111} (111
Benchmark PBT 562 236 74 (158} 714
Exceptional items (note 7) 15 (26) - {151} (162)
Amertisation of acquisition intangibles (45) (27) (4} - (76)
Goodwll adjustment (14) - - - (14)
Charges 0 respect of the demerger-
related equity incentive plans (10 (7) (2} (5} (24)
Financing fair value remeasurements - - - {35} {35)
Tax expense on share of profit of associates (9} - - - (9}
Profit/(loss) before tax 499 176 68 {349) 394

1 Revenue from continuing operations arose principally from the prowision of services Revenue from discontinued operations arose pancipally
from the sale of goods Revenue within the UK & Ireland geographical segment includes US$11m of inter-segment revenue with discontinued

cperations

2 inter-segment revenue represents the provision of services between Experian and discontinued operations

3 Additicnal information on discontinued operations, which compnse Home Retail Group, together with a tax charge m respect of disposals, 15
shown in note 10 The results of discontinued operations are in respect of businesses aperating withtn the UK & Ireland geographical segment
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3  Segmental information (continued)

{b) Balance sheet at 31 March 2007

Continuing operations

Americas UK & EMEA/ Central Total

Ireland Asia Pacific activities Group

Usim ussm Ussm Ussm Ussm

Total segment assets 2,776 1,082 614 364 4,846
Less segment hatnhiues (535) (318} {195) (169) (1,217)
Segment net assets 2,241 774 19 195 3,629
Net debt (1,408)
Tax {114)
Group net assets 2,107

Segment net assets for Central activities represents corporate head office balances including retrement benefit assets and denvauve assets

and habilities
(c) Other Continuing operations
Americas UK & EMEA/ Central Total Discontinued Total
Ireland Asia Pacific activities continuing operations Group
Us$m USEm UsSsm UsSsm Ustm UsSsm Ussm
Benchmark PBT 1s stated after
charging
Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment {note 15) 36 29 12 2 19 134 213
Amortisaton of mtangble assets
(note 14} 147 59 20 - 226 1" 237
Benchmark PBT includes
Share of profit of associates 61 - - - 61 - 61
Segment net assets includes
Goodwill 1,376 524 319 - 2,219 - 2,219
Investment in assoclates 277 - 9 - 286 - 286
Capiial expenditure 168 67 a0 - 215 173 448
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3 Segmental information (continued)
Geographical segments

(a) income statement

Year ended 31 March 2006 Continuing operations
Americas UK & EMEA/ Central Total Discontinued Total '
Ireland Asia Paarfic acuviues centinuing operations? Group
Ussm Ustm US$m Ussm UsSm Us$Sm ussm
Revenue?
Total revenue 1,804 758 522 - 3,084 11,086 14,170
Inter-segment revenua? - (20} - - (20) - (20)
Revenue from external customers 1,804 738 522 - 3,064 11,086 14,150
Profit '
Operating profit/{loss) 365 197 62 (38) 586 835 1,421
Net financing income/(costs) - - - (102 {102) 33 (69)
Share of post-tax profits of associates 66 - - - 66 - 66
Profit/{loss} before tax 431 197 62 {140) 550 868 1,418
Group tax expense (92) (262) {354)
Profit for the finanaal year 458 606 1.064

Reconcliation from EBIT to Profit/{ioss)
before tax - continuing operations

EBIT 479 215 64 (31) 727
Net interest - - - (100) {100)
Benchmark PBT 479 215 64 (131) 627
Exceptional 1tems (note 7} - - - N @
Amortusation of acquisibon intangibles (46) (18) (2) - (66)
Financing fair value remeasurements - - - {2} (2)
Tax expense on share of profit of associates  (2) - - - (2)
Profit/{loss) before tax 431 197 62 (140) 550

1 Revenue from continuing operations arose princpally from the provision of services Revenue from discontinued cperations arase principally
from the sale of goods Revenue within the UK & Ireland geographical segment includes U5$20m of inter-segment revenue with
discontinued operations

2 Inter-segment revenue represents the prowision of services between Expenan and discontinued operations

3 Discontinued operations comprise the businesses Home Retail Group, Burberry and Lewss The most significant of these segments, Home Retail
Group, princaipally operated in the UK & Ireland geographical segment Discontinued operations include the results of Homebase for the year
ended 28 February 2006 Additional information on disconunued operations 1s shown in note 10
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3 Segmental information {continued)

{b) Balance sheet at 31 March 2006 Continuing pperations
Americas UK & EMEA/ Central Total Discontinued Total
ireland Asia Pacific actuvities continuing operations Group
Usim Ustm Ussm uUssm Ussm Ussm UsSsm
Total segment assets 2,727 S06 501 408 4,542 7.196 11,738
Less segment Hiabihties {503) (251} (162) (119) {1,035) (1,735) (2,770)
Segment net assets 2224 655 339 289 3,507 5,461 8,968
Net debt (3.437)
Tax (77)
Graup net assets 5.454

Segment net assets for Central activities represents corporate head office balances including retirement benefit assets and derwative assets
and Labilities

(c) Other Continuing operations
Americas UK & EMEA/ Central Total Discontinued Total
Ireland Asia Paaific activities continuing cperations Group
Ussm Us$m USSm Ussm Ussm Us$m ussm

Benchmark PBT 1s stated after

charging
Depreciation of property, plant and

equipment {note 15) 36 20 11 3 70 243 313
Amortisation of intangible assets

(note 14) 143 a1 16 - 200 32 232

Benchmark PBT includes
Share of profit of associates 68 - - - 68 - 68

Segment net assets includes

Goodwill 1356 441 273 - 2,070 3,272 5.342
Investment 1IN associates 225 - - - 225 - 225
Capital expenditure 129 43 32 8 212 494 706
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3  Segmental information {(continued)

Business segments

{a) Income statement
Year ended 31 March 2007

Contlnumg operations

Credrt Decision Marketing Central Total Discontinued Total
Services Analytics Solutions Interactive actvities  continuing operations? Group
Ustm Ussm UsStm ussm Ussm Ussm Ussm ussm
Revenue!
Total revenue 1,584 392 728 788 - 3,492 5,468 8,960
Inter-segment revenue? (11 - - - - (11) - (4R}
Revenue from external customers 1,573 392 728 788 - 3,481 5,468 8,949
Profit
Operating profit/(loss) 402 130 28 135 {222) 473 212 685
Net financing income#{costs) - - - - {146) {146) 16 (130)
Share of post-tax profits of
associates 67 - - - - 67 - 67
Profit/{loss) before tax 468 130 28 135 {368) 394 228 622
Group tax expense {68) (91} {(159)
Profit for the financia! year 326 137 463
Reconcihation from EBIT to
Profit/{loss) before tax -
continuing operations
EBIT 505 136 64 167 47) 825
Net interest - - - - {111) {111)
Benchmark PBT 505 136 64 167 {158) 714
Exceptional 1tems {note 7) (11) - - - {151) {162)
Amortisation of acquisition
intangibles {18) (1} (27 (32 - (76)
Goadwill adjustment - (5) )] - - (4
Charges in respect of the demerger-
related equity incentive plans? - - - - (24) {24)
Financing farr value
remeasurements - - - - (35} (35
Tax expense on share of profit of
associates 9) - - - - (9}
Profit/{loss) before tax 469 130 28 135 (368) 394

1 Revenue from continuing cperat:ons arose principally from the provision of services Revenue from discontinued operations arose principally
from the sale of goods Revenue from Credit Services included US$11m of inter-segment revenue with discontinued operations

2 Inter-segment revenue represents the provision of services between Expenan and discontinued operations

3  Disconunued operations comprise Home Retall Group Additional information on discontinued operations is given in note 10

4 No allocation by business segment 15 made for charges in respect of the demerger-related equity incentive plans as the underlying data s
maintained only to provide an allocation by geographical segment
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3  Segmental information (continued)

Year ended 31 March 2006

Continuing operattons

Credit Decision  Marketing Central Total Discontinued Total
Services Analytics Solutions Interactive activities  continuing operations3? Group
uUssm Ustm Usim UsEm Ussm Ussm UsSsm ussm
Revenue!
Total revenue 1,504 325 627 628 - 3.084 11,086 14,170
Inter-segment revenue? (20) - - - - (20) - (20)
Revenue from external customers 1,484 325 627 628 - 3,064 11,086 14,150
Profit
Operating profit/{loss) 395 102 4 86 (38) 586 835 1,421
Net financing inceme/{costs) - - - - {102} {102) 33 (69)
Share of post-tax profits of associates 66 - - - - 66 - 66
Profit/(loss) before tax 461 102 41 86 (140) 550 868 1,418
Group tax expense (92) {262) {354)
Profit for the finanual year 458 606 1.064
Reconciliation from EBIT
to Profit/(loss) before tax -
continuing operations
EBIT 477 102 57 122 (31) 727
Net interest - - - - (100) {100)
Benchmark PBT 477 102 57 122 (131) 627
Exceptional tems {note 7) - - - - 0! N
Amortisation of acquisition
intangibles (14} - (16) (36) - (66)
Financing fair value
remeasurements - - - - (2) 2)
Tax expense on share of profit
of associates {2) - - - - 2)
Profit/(loss) before tax 461 102 41 86 (140} 550

1 Revenue from continuing oparations arose principally from the provision of services Revenue from discontinued operations arose pnncipally
irom the sale of goods Revenue from Credit Services inctudes US$20m of inter-segment revenue with discontinued operations

2 Inter-segment revenue represents the provision of services between Expernian and discontinued operations

3 Discontinued operations comprise the businesses Home Retail Group, Burberry and Lewis which were ali individual segments Discontinued
operations Include the results of Homebase for the year ended 28 February 2006 Additional infarmatien on discontinued operations 1s given in

note 10
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3  Segmental information {continued)

2007 2006
(b) Total segment assets Ussm usim
Continuing operations
Credit Services 1,871 1652
Decision Analytics 293 242
Marketing Soluticns 993 893
Interactive 1131 1,174
Central activities 558 581
Total continuing operations 4,846 4,542
Discontinued operations - 7,196
Total 4,846 11738

Total segment assets for Central activities at 31 March 2007 represents corporate head office balances including retirement benefit and derivative
assets In addition to those assets reflected in the geagraphical analysis, all Group properties are included within Central actwities as they are not

allocated by business segment

2007 2006
(¢) Capital expenditure UsSm Ustm
Continuing operations
Credit Services 182 132
Decision Analytics 9 i1
Marketing Solutions 64 48
Interactive 20 13
Central activities - 2
Total continuing operations 275 212
Discontinued operations 173 494
Total 448 706
4  Foreign currency
The principal exchange rates used were as follows
Average Closing

2007 2006 2007 2006 2005
Stering to US Dollar 189 179 196 174 188
Euro to US Doliar 129 122 133 122 130

Assets and flabilities of undertakings whose functional currency 15 not the US Dollar are translated into US Dollars at the rates of exchange ruling at
the balance sheet date and the income statement 15 transiated into U3 Dollars at average rates of exchange (unless this average 1s not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates prevaling on the transaction dates, in which case income and expenses are translated at the

rates on the dates of the transactions)
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5 Expenses

2007 2006
Ussm UsStm
{a) Expenses by nature
Profit before tax rs stated after charging
Net operating lease rental expense 102 91
Depreciation of property, plant and eguipment 79 70
Amortisation of intangible assets 226 200
Wriie down on disposal of property, plant and equipment and intangibles 10 -
Employee benefit costs {(note &) 1,327 1,128
Research expenditure 5 5

Amortisation of intangible assets s charged to administration expenses, except for the amortisation of databases which is charged to cost of sales

{b) Fees payable to the Company’s auditor

Fees payable to the Company's auditor for the audit of the parent company and

Group financial statements 1 1
Audit of the financial statements of the Group’s UK and overseas subsidianies, pursuant to jegislation 2 1
Other assurance services, pursuant to legislation, including fees for the review

of the Group's intenim statement 2 3
Taxauon services 4 5
Servsces in respect of the demerger 19 -
All other services, including regulatory, comphance and treasury related sernces 2 2
Total fees payable to the Company’s auditor and 1ts assocsates for other services 29 1"
The guidelines covening the use of the Company's auditor for non-audit services are set out In the corporate governance statement on page 45
6 Employee benefit costs and employee numbers
{a) The aggregate employee costs for the continuing operations of the Group compnise

2007 2006

Notes ussm Ustm

Wages and salanes 1,025 899

Souial secunty costs 161 148

Share-based payments 3 91 35

Pension costs — defined benefit plans 24 17 26

Pension costs — defined contributton plans 24 33 27

Total continuing operations 1.327 1,128
(b} The average number of employees (inciuding executive directors) in the continuing eperations of the Group comprise

2007 2006

Full time Full ume

Full time Part time equivalent Full time Part time equivalent

Americas 5,230 201 5,330 4,756 167 4,879

UK & lreland 3,745 189 3,840 3,452 201 3,553

EMEA/Asia Pacific 3,248 226 3,361 3,283 229 3,367

Central acimitres 95 4 57 74 - 74

Total continuing operations 12,318 620 12,628 11,575 587 11,873

Included in the Central activities headcount in 2007 are 25 full tme employees, performing group finance and administration tasks, who had

previcusly been reported within the UK & ireland segment

Experian Annual Report 2007 | 81




introduction | Business review | Governance | Financial statements

Notes to the Group financial statements

for the year ended 31 March 2007

6 Employee benefit costs and employee numbers (continued)

{¢) Remuneration of key management personnel

2007 2006

ussm Ussm

Salaries and short-term employee benefits 16 13
Retrement benefits 4 2
QOther long-term benefits - 2
Share-based payments 28 1
Total continuing operations 43 28

Key management personnet comprses the board of directors, shown on pages 38 and 39, and certain senior management The amount ncluded in
respect of share-based payments includes operating and exceptional costs for previous GUS awards and the one-off demerger awards

Further detads of the remuneration of directors are given in the auditable part of the report on directors’ remuneration on pages 52 to 57

Information on transactions with related parties is set out In note 35

7 Exceptional and other non-GAAP measures

2007 2006
ussm Ussm
Exceptional items
Continuing operations
Charge on early vesting and modification of share awards at demerger of Experan and Home Retail Group 23 -
Other costs incurred relating to the demerger of Experian and Home Retail Group 126 7
Costs incurred in the closure of UK Account Processing 26 -
Loss on disposal of businasses 2 -
Gain ansing 1n associate on the partial disposal of its subsidiary {15) -
Total exceptional items 162 7
Other non-GAAP measures
Continuing cperations
Amortisation of acquisition intangibles 76 66
Goodwilt adjustment 14 -
Charges 1n respect of the demerger-related equity incentive plans 24 -
Financing fair value remeasurements (note 8) 35 2
Total other non-GAAP measures 149 68

Exceptional items
Other costs of U5$126m {2006 US$7m) incurred relating to the demerger of Expenan and Home Retail Group comprise legal and professional fees
in respect of the transaction, together with costs in connection with the cessation of the corporate functions of GUS plc in 2007

In Apai 2006, Expenan announced the phased withdrawal from large scale credit card and loan account processing in the UK The full cost of
withdrawal of US§26m has been charged in the year, and 1s made up of a cost in cash of US$28m less the benefit of a US$2m pension curtalment
credit The loss on the disposal of businesses pnmanly related to the sale of a minonty stake in Expenan’s South African business

First American Real Estate Solutions LLC (‘FARES ) recognised a gain of US$77m on the partial disposal of its Real Estate Solutions division as part of
the consideration for the acquisition of 82% of CoreLogic Solutions, Inc Expertan recognised US$15m, 1ts 20% share of the gain A deferred tax
charge of US$6m has been included in the FARES result in respect of this gain

Other non-GAAP measures

IFRS requires that, an acquisition, spectfic intangible assets are identified and recognised separately from goodwill and then amorused over their
useful economic hives These include items such as brand names and customer bsts, to which value 15 first attnibuted at the ume of acquisition The
Group has excluded amortisation of these acquisition intangibles from its definition of Benchmark PBT because such a charge is based on uncertain
judgements about therr value and economic life

A goodwill adjustment of US$14m arose under IFRS3 ‘Business combinations’ on the recognition of previously unrecognised tax losses on prior
years’ acquisitions The corresponding tax benefit reduces the tax charge in the year by US$14m

Charges in respect of the demerger-related equity incentive plans refate to one-ofi grants made to sermor management and at all staff levels at the
time of the demerger, under a number of equity incenive plans The cost of these one-off grants will be charged to the Group mmcome statement
over the five years following flotation but excluded from the definition of Benchmark PBT The cost of all other grants will be charged to the Group
income staterment and will be included in the defimtion of Benchmark PBT

An element of the Group’s dernivatives 1s ineligible for hedge accountng under IFRS Gains or losses on these denvatives ansing from market movements
are credited or charged 1o financang fair value remeasurements within Finance income and Finance expense in the Group income statemeant
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8 Net financing costs

2007 2006
USSm Ustm
{a) Net financing costs comprise
Interest income
Bank deposits 10 5
Loan notes (note 18) 1 14
Interest differentials on dervatives 17 45
Expected return on pension scheme assets 68 54
Interest iIncome 96 118
Financing fair value gains
Fair value gains on non-hedqing derivatives 7 23
ineffective pcruion of net investment hedges - 5
Financing fair value gams 7 28
Finance income 103 146
Interest expense
Bank loans and overdrafts 41 64
Eurobonds and notes 112 107
Commitment and facility utilisation fees 2 2
Interest expense on pension scheme liabikities 52 45
Interest expense 207 218
Finanaing farr value losses
Ineffective portion of fair value hedges of borrowings 5 5
Fair value losses on non-hadging dervatives 26 -
Foreign exchange transaction losses 1 25
financing fair value losses 42 30
Finance expense 249 248
Net financing costs 146 102
{b} Net interest expense included 1n Benchmark PBT comprises
Net financing costs 146 102
Less financing fair value remeasurements {(35) (2)
Net interest expense included in Benchmark PBT 111 100
(c) Financing fair value remeasurements included 1n net financing costs compnise
Financing far value gains 7 28
Financing fair value losses {42} (30
Charge in respect of financing fair value remeasurements (35) (2)
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9 Tax expense

2007 2006
UsSm Ussm
{a) Analysis of expense recognised in the Group Income statement
Current taxation
UK Corporation tax on income for the year {13) 45
Adjustments in respect of prior years {1} (4
(14} 41
Non-UK taxation
Cverseas tax on inceme for the year 38 i
Adjustments in respect of prior years {6} {7
Total current tax charge for the year 18 51
Deferred tax
Ongination and reversal of temporary differences 53 54
Adjustments in respect of prior years (4) {13)
Total deferred tax charge fer the year 49 41
Total tax expense in the Group income statement 68 92
The tax expense Comprises
UK taxation {45) 36
Qverseas taxation 113 56
Tota! tax expense In the Group ncome statement 68 92
(b) Tax reconciliation
Profit before tax 394 550
Plus tax on share of profits of associates 9 2
Adjusted profit before tax 403 552
Adjusted prafit before tax multiphed by the standard rate of Corporation tax in the UK of 30% (2006 30%) 121 166
Effects of
Adjustments to tax charge n respect of prior years {11 (24)
Income not taxable (10) (11}
Expenses not deductible 39 45
Utlisation of previously unrecognised tax losses (16} (2}
Tax on share of profits of associates {9) {2)
Differences in tax rates {34) (54)
Other adjustments {9) (28)
Drsposal of businesses (3) 2
Jotal tax expense in the Group iIncome statement 68 92

The effective tax rate for the year of 17 3% (2006 16 7%), after adjusting for the net income from associates, 15 lower than the standard rate of
corporation 1ax 10 the United Kingdom (30%) The differences are explained above

{c) The effective rate of tax on Benchmark PBT
The effecuive rate of tax based on Benchmark PBT of US$714m (2006 US3627m}i1s 22 4% (2006 17 5%)

{d) Tax on 1tems charged to equity

In addition to the amount charged to the Group income statement tax amounting to US$7m (2006 US$9m credit) has been charged directly to
equity, relating mainly to share schemes, actuanal gains and losses on retirement benefit obligations and foreign exchange This includes & credit of
US$1im (2006 USSnil} in respect of current taxation and a charge of US$18m {2006 credit of US39m) in respect of deferred taxation

(e) Factors that may affect future tax charges
In the foreseeable future, the Group’s tax charge will continue to be enfluenced by the profile of profits earned in the different countries in which
the Group's businesses operate and could be affected by changes in tax faw

84 | Expenan Annual Report 2007




10 Discontinued operations

The results for discontinued operations were as follows

2007 2006

ussm Ussm
Revenue
Home Retall Group (including Wehkamp) 5,468 10,206
Burberry - 244
Lewis Group - 36
Total revenue 5,468 11 086
Operating profit
Home Retail Group (including Wehkamp)} 212 619
Burberry - 168
Lewis Group - 9
Total operating profit 212 796
Net financing income 16 33
Profit before tax of discontinugd operations 228 829
Tax charge (74) (262)
Profit after tax of discontinued operations 154 567
Gains/{losses) on disposal of discontinued operations
Profit on disposal of Lewss Group - 64
Loss on disposal of Wehkamp - (34}
Profit on disposal of shares in Burberry - 18
Costs incurred relating to the demerger of Burberry - (9
Gains on disposals - 39
Tax charge in respect of disposals {(17) -
{Loss)/profit after tax on disposals {17) 39
Profit for the financial year fram discentinued operations 137 606

In May 2005, the Group announced the sale of its remaining 50% interest in Lewis Group Limited and in December 2005 dvested its remaining
65% nterest in Burberry Group plc In January 2006, the Group sold Wehkamp, the leading home shopping brand in the Netherlands These
operations were classified as discontinued in the financial statements of GUS plc for the year ended 31 March 2006 In October 2006, the net assets
of Home Retail Group were distnbuted by way of a dvidend in specie As a result, these operations have been reclassified as discentinued

The tax charge In respect of disposals related to taxation assets no longer recoverable following earlier disposals
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10 Discontinued operations {(continued)

Earnings before interest and taxation of discontinued businesses are stated after charging

2007 2006
Ussm ussm
Cost of sales 3,589 7,034
Operating expenses
Distribution costs 1,361 2,335
Adrirustrative expenses 306 921
Operating expenses 1,667 32558
The cash flows attributable to discontinued operations comprise
From operating activities 705 539
From investing activities {168) (711}
from financing actmvities (3) (7}
txchange and cther movements 16 (9}
Less cash held by Home Retall Group at demerger (note 30(b}) {518) -
Net increaseXdecrease) in cash and cash equivalents in discontinued operations 32 {188)
11 Dividend
2007 2007 2006 2006
cents cents

pet share UsStm per share Us§m
Amounts recognised and paid as distnbutions to equity holders during the year
Interim 55 55 172 147
Final 403 346 366 361
Ordinary dwvidends paid on eguity shares 458 401 538 508
Dividend in specie relating to the demerger of Home Retall Group {note 30{(b)) 5,627 -
Dividend In specie relating to the demerger of Burberry Group plc - 513
Full year dividend for the year ended 31 March 2007 17.0

A dwdend of 11 5 cents per Ordinary share will be paid on 27 July 2007 to sharehoiders on the register at the close of business on 28 June 2007
and 15 not included as a liability in these financiat statements

Unless shareholders elect by 2§ June 2007 to recewve US Doliars, their dividends will be paid in Sterling at a rate per share calculated on the basis of
the exchange rate from US Dollars to Sterling on & July 2007

Pursuant to the Income Access Share arrangements put in place as part of the demerger, sharehalders in Expenan Group Limited are able to elect to
recewve their dividends from a UK source (the ‘IAS electton’) Shareholders who held 50 0CC or fewer Expenian shares () on the date of admission of
the Company's shares to the London Stock Exchange and (1) in the case of sharehoiders who did not own shares at that ume, on the first dvidend
record date after they became shareholders in the Company, unless they elect otherwise, will be deemed to have elected ta recewve therr dividends
under the IAS arrangements Shareholders who hold more than 50,000 shares and who wish to receive ther dividends from a UK source must
make an 1AS eiection All elections remain in force indefinitely unless revoked

The Expenan Group Limited Exployee Share Trust and the GUS ESOP Trust have waived therr entitlement to dividends 1n the amount of US$4m
(2006 US$7m) The GUS ESOP Trust did not waive 1ts entitlement to the dividend in specie

The dwidends in respect of the year ended 31 March 2006 were received by shareholders of GUS pic The final dvidend paid in August 2006 and
the drvidend in specie relating to the demerger of Home Retall Group were received by shareholders of GUS plc
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12 Basic and diluted earmings per share

The calculation of basic earnings per share 1s calculated by dmding the earnings attributable o ordinary shareholders of the Company by a weighted

average number of Ordinary shares 1n 1ssue dunng the year (excluding own shares held in Treasury in the penod prior to the demerger and own shares

hetd in ESOP trusts, which are treated as cancelled)

The calzulation of diluted earnings per share reflects the potential dilutive effect of employee share incentive schemes The earnings figures used in

the calculattons are unchanged for diluted earnings per share

The weighted average number of Ordinary shares in 1ssue during the year ended 31 March 2007 includes Ordinary shares of GUS plc in issue to the
date of the demerger and the Ordinary shares of the Company in issue thereafter The weighted average number of Ordinary shares in issue during
the year ended 31 March 2006 comprises Ordinary shares of GUS pic in 1ssue and reflects the effect of the share consohidation that teok place at

the date of the Burberry demerger in December 2005

2007 2006
Basic earnings per share cents cents
Continuing and discontinued operations 439 107 5
Exclude discontinued operations (14 8) 59 1)
Continuing operations 351 484
Add back of exceptional and gther non-GAAP measures, net of tax 246 61
Benchmark earnings per share from continuing operations — non-GAAP measure 59 7 545
Diluted earnings per share
Continuing and discentinued operations 493 1058
Exclude discontinued operations (14 6) (58 2)
Continuing operations 347 a7 6
Add back of exceptional and other non-GAAP measures, net of tax 244 60
Benchmark diuted earnings per share from continuing operations - non-GAAP measure 591 536
2007 2006
£arnings Ussm Ussm
Continuing and discontinued operations 462 1,018
Exclude discontinued operations (137} {560)
Continumng operations 325 458
Add back of excepuional and other non-GAAP measures, net of tax 229 %8
8enchmark earnings — non-GAAP measure 554 516
2007 2006
m m
weighted average number of Ordinary shares in 1ssue during the year 9273 946 7
Dilutive effect of share incentive awards %9 150
Diluted weighted average number of Ordmnary shares in 1ssue during the year 9372 9617
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13 Goodwll

Home Retal
Expenan Group Total
Ussm Us$m ussm

AU Y April 2006 2070 3,272 5,342
Differences on exchange 93 286 379
Additons through business combinations (note 30 (a)) ra - 71
Reduction in goodwil! relating to tax losses {14) - {14)
Demerger of Home Retall Group {note 30(b}} - (3,558} {3.558)
Disposals (1) - (1)
At 31 March 2007 2,219 - 2,219

In accordance with IFRS 3, the goodwill balance has been reduced by US$14m on the recognition of tax losses on prior year acquisivons A goodwill
adjustment of US$14m has been charged to offset the recognition of a credit in the tax charge for the year The goodwill adjustment has been
excluded from Benchmark PBT

Home Retalt

Experian Graup Other Total

usim ustm ussm ussm

At 1 Apnl 2005 1,012 3,455 215 4,682
Differences on exchange (48} (183} (n (242)
Additions through business combinations 1,124 - 9 1,133
Disposals - - (213 (213)
Transfer to acquisition intangibles (18) - - {18)
At 31 March 2006 2,070 3,272 - 5,342

Expenian goodwilt at the balance sheet date has been allocated to CGUs as follows Amencas US$1,376m (2006 US$1,356m), UK and lreland
US$524m (2006 US$441m) and EMEA/Asia Pacific US$319m (2006 US$273m) Further detalls of the principles used in determining the basts of
allocation and annual impairment testing are given In note 2

14 Other intangible assets

Internaliy
Internal use generated Acquisition
Databases software software intangtbles* Total
ussm Ussm Ussm Ussm ussm
Cost
At 1 Apnl 2006 585 355 165 529 1,634
Differences on exchange 24 26 16 24 90
Additions through business combinations (note 30 (a)) 2 - - 18 20
Cther addstions 102 75 42 - 219
Demerger of Home Retall Group (note 30 (b)) - {308) - - {308}
Disposals 47 (11) (5) - (63)
At 31 March 2007 666 137 218 571 1.592
Amortisation and impairment losses
At 1 Apnl 2006 353 180 90 85 708
Differences on exchange 20 16 9 5 50
Charge for the year 92 45 24 76 237
Demerger of Home Retal Group (note 30(b)) - {150) - - {150)
Disposals @7) £)] {1) - (57)
At 31 March 2007 418 82 122 166 788
Net Book Value at 31 March 2006 232 175 75 444 926
Net Book Value at 31 March 2007 248 55 96 405 804

* Acquisition intangibles represents trade marks and licences, trade names, customer relationships and completed technology
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14 Other intangible assets {continued)

Internally
Internal use generated Acquisition
Databases software software  intangibles® Total
USsm us$m Ussm usim Ussm
Cost
At 1 Aprl 2005 516 370 145 130 1,161
Differences on exchange (14) {20) (9} {13) {56)
Additions through business combinations 2 - - 392 394
Other additions 95 70 34 2 2
Transfer between assets - - - 18 18
Disposat of subsicharies - 27 - - 27
Disposals (14) (38) (3} - (57)
At 31 March 2006 585 355 165 529 1,634
Amartisation and impairment losses
At 1 Apnl 2005 290 184 76 20 570
Differences on exchange (12) (10) (5) (1 (28)
Charge for the year 88 57 21 66 232
Disposal of subsidiaries - (13 - - (13)
Disposals (13) (38) (2 - (53)
At 31 March 2006 353 180 %0 85 708
Net Book Value at 31 March 2005 226 186 69 11¢ 591
Net Book Value at 31 March 2006 232 175 75 444 926
* Acquisition intangibles represents trade marks and hcences, trade names, customer relationships and completed technology
15 Property, plant and equipment Leasehold properties Assets
Freehold Long Short Plant & In course of
properites leasehold leaseheld equipment  construction Total
ussm usim usim UsSsm Usim Usim
Cost
At 1 Apnl 2006 397 13 684 2159 54 3,307
Drfferences on exchange 34 1 51 175 4 265
Additions through business combinations (note 30 (a)) 3 - - 1 - 4
Additions 13 3 32 181 - 229
Transfers between assets - - 22 - (22) -
Demerger of Home Retall Group {note 30 (b)) {160) On {666) (1,907} (36) {2,7886)
Disposals - - (t:9] 46) - (54)
At 31 March 2007 287 - 115 563 - 965
Depreciation
At 1 Apnl 2006 60 318 1,255 - 1,637
Differences on exchange 3 - 29 100 - 132
Charge for year 8 1 26 178 - 213
Demerger of Home Retall Group {note 30 (b)) (16) (5) (347) {1.119) - (1,487)
Disposals - - 7 a2y - {49}
At 31 March 2007 55 - 19 372 - 446
Net Book Value at 31 March 2006 337 9 366 904 54 1,670
Net Book Value at 31 March 2007 232 - 96 191 - 519
Experian Annval Repor1 2007 | 89




Introduction | Business review | Governance | Financial statements

Notes to the Group financial statements

for the year ended 31 March 2007

15 Property, plant and equipment (continued)
Leasehold propertres

Assets
Freehold Long Short Flant & n course of
properties leasehold leasehold equipment  constructicn Total
Usim Us$m us$m Ussm UsS$m ussm
Cost
At 1 Apnl 2005 564 3 778 2,467 62 3,874
tifferences on exchange (25) - (44) (160} (5) (234)
Additiens through business combinations - - - 14 - 14
Additions 55 5 91 331 23 505
Transfers between assets - 5 (16} 11 21 (21)
Disposal of subsidianes {193} - {118) {295) {s) (611)
Disposals (4) - ) (209} - {220)
At 31 March 2006 397 13 684 2159 54 3,307
Depreciation
At 1 April 2005 109 - 347 1,458 - 1,914
Differences on exchange (5) - (25} (95) - {125}
Transfers between assets - 4 7 - - (3)
Charge for the year 13 - 34 266 - 313
Impairments - - 2 21 - 23
Disposal of subsidiaries (55) - (29) (193) - (277)
Disposals (2) - (4) (202) - (208)
At 31 March 2006 60 4 338 1,255 - 1,637
Net Book Value at 31 March 2005 455 3 431 1,009 62 1,960
Net Book Value at 31 March 2006 337 9 366 904 54 1,670

The Group leases plant and equipment under a number of finance lease agreements At the end of each of the leases the Group has the option (o
purchase the equipment at a beneficial price The net book value of assets held under finance leases and capitalised in plant and equipment is
USsnil (2006 US$7m)

16 Investments In associates

2007 2008
Ussm ustm

Cost
At t Apnl 225 208
Add:tions 33 12
Impairment of trade or other recewvables - 7
Share of profit after tax including a pre-tax exceptional gain of US$15m (note 7) 67 66
Dwidends receved {39) (50)
Disposals - 4
At 31 March 286 225

Investments in assooates at 31 March 2007 include goodwill of US$219m (2006 US5186m} The Group's share of cumulative retaned profits of
assocated undertakings at 33 March 2007 15 US$127m {2006 US399m}

The Group's principal interest in associated undertakings 1s a 20% helding of First Amernican Real Estate Solutions LLC {‘'FARES'), a US partnershtp
There are no other material interests in associated undertakings At 31 March 2007, the Groupss share of the assets of FARES amounted to
US$477m (2006 US$374m) and its share of llabiities 1s US$200m (2006 US$155m) The Group's share of revenue for the year ended 31 March
2007 15 US$249m (2006 US$254m), and its share of profit after tax US$67m (2006 USS66m)

First Amenican Corporation, which holds the balance of the capital of FARES, has the nght to acquire from Experian its interest in FARES, at a
purchase price pursuant to a specified formula based on the after tax earmings of FARES First Amenican may only exercise this nght after November
2008 Experan can elect to delay completion of the transactton for a maximum perniod of 24 months {ollowing First Amencan Corporation giving
notice

The imparrment of trade or ather recevables of US$7m in the year ended 31 March 2006 related to AA GUS Finanoal Services NV an associated
underiaking of Home Retall Group
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17 Inventories

2007 2006

UsSm Ustm

Work in progress 2 2
Finished goods 2 1,536
4 1,538

Inventories at 31 March 2007 are stated net of impairment provisions of US$nil (2006 US$197m) The impairment provision at 31 March 2006
related to inventones held by Home Retail Group

18 Trade and other recevables

Current Non-current Current Non-current
2007 2007 2006 2006
ussm ussm Usim Ussm

Trade recevables
Instalment recevables - - 618 S8
QOther trade recewvables 574 - 641 7
Total trade recevables 574 - 1,259 65
Amgunts owed by associates 3 - 2 -
VAT recoverable 1 - 17 -
Deferred consideration receivable - - 244 -
Other prepaymenis and accrued income 216 11 308 24
794 ia 1,830 a9

Current trade recewvables are stated net of prowisions of US$30m (2006 US$187m, of which US$162m related to Home Retad Group} Noa-current
trade raceivables are stated net of provisions of US$nil (2006 US$9m, which wholly related to Home Retail Group)

Instalment recevables at 31 March 2006 were in respect of Home Retarl Group and the effective interest rate thereon for that year was 7 7%

The deferred consideration in respect of the disposal of the home shopping and Reality businesses was received in full in Apnl 2006 from March UK
umited Interest income of US$1m (2006 US$14m} arose in the year in respect of this consideration

The analysis of the maturity profile for financial assets included within non-current items 1s given in note 26

19 Cash and cash equivalents

2007 2006
ussm Usim
Cash at bank and in hand 364 233
Short-term [nvestments 543 152
907 385

The effective interest rate for cash and cash equivalents at 31 March 2007 15 4 4% (2006 2 7%)

20 Trade and other payables

Current Non-current Current Non-current
2007 2007 20086 2006
Us$m ussm Ussm Ussm
Trade creditors 193 - 809 -
VAT and other {axes payable a2 - 125 -
Social security costs 75 - 75 -
Accruals 653 17 1,156 64
Other creditors 68 35 256 80
1031 52 2,421 144

The analysis of the matunity profile for financial iabiiies included within non-current items 15 given 10 note 26
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21 Loans and borrowings

Current  Non-current Current Nan current

2007 2007 2006 2006

ussm ussm Usim USim

€548m 4 125% Euronctes 2007 751 - - 688
£350m 6 375% Eurobonds 2009 - 721 - 620
£334m 5 625% Euronotes 2013 - 627 - 595
Perpetual Securmies {issved by Home Retail Group) - - - 386
Bank loans - - 50 1,308
Cverdrafts 273 - 245 -
1.024 1,348 285 3,597

Present value of obligations under finance leases 1 - 8 2
1,025 1,348 303 3,599

During the year ended 31 March 2007, 4 125% Euronctes 2007 with a notional value of €20m and 5 625% Euronotes 2013 with a notional value

of £16m were redeemed

The effective interest rate of Euranotes and Eurcbonds approximates to the nominal rate indicated above The effective interest rate of the Perpetual
Securities 15 4 6% (2006 4 6%} The effective interest rate for overdrafts at 31 March 2007 15 4 3% (2006 4 9%) and for bank loans al 31 March

2006 was 39%

All the berrowings of the Group shown above are unsecured Finance lease obligations are effectively secured as the rights to the lessed assets

revert to the lessor in the event of default
The analysis of the maturity profile for non-current items 15 given 1n note 26

2007 2006
The miimum lease payments payable under finance leases comprise Us$m USsm
Mot later than one year 1 8
Later than one year and not later than five years - 2
Total mimimum lease payments 1 10
Future finance charges on finance leases - -
Present value of finance leases {as shown above} 1 10
The present value of finance ieases consists of
Not later than one year 1 g8
Later than one year and nat later than five years - 2
Total present value 1 10

0On 12 July 2006, GUS pic entered into a S-year multi-currency revolving credit facility of U$32,450m Qn 17 November 2006, Experian Group Limited

acceded to thrs facility as 2 borrower and a guarantor At the balance sheet date there were no drawings made under this facility

At 31 March 2007 the Group had undrawn committed borrewing facilities of 15%2,450m {2006 US$923m) of which US$nil (2006 US$174m;
expires within one year of the balance sheet date and US$2,450m (2006 US3749m) exprres more than two years after the balance sheet date These

facilities are in place for general corporate purposes Including the financing of acquisitions

22 Analysis of net debt - non-GAAP measure

2007 2006
UsS$m ussm

Cash and cash equivalents (net of overdrafis) 634 139
Derwvatives hedging loans and borrowings {6) 81
Cebt due within one year {729) {49)
Finance leases 1) {10)
Debt due after more than one year {1,306) (3 598)
Net debt at the end of the financial year {1,408) (3,437)
Contining operations (1,408) (3277
Discontinued operations - {160)
Net debt at the end of the financal year {1,408) (3,437)

92 | Expenan Annuat Report 2007



23 Provisions

Home Retail

Restructuring Group
provision provisions Total
ustm Ussm usém
At 1 April 2006 - 155 155
Differences on exchange 2 12 14
Amouni charged in the year 37 12 43
Utlised - 7 (7)
Impact of discount rate movement - 2 2
Demerger of Home Retaii Group (note 30 (b)) - {174) (174)
At 31 March 2007 39 - 39
Disclosed within Non-current liabilities 30 - 30
Disclosed within Current hiatulities g - 9
At 31 March 2007 39 - 39

Home Retail

Group
provisions Total
Ustm us$m
At 1 Apnl 2005 167 167
Differences on exchange {14} {14}
Amount charged in the year 24 24
Utiised (24} (24)
Impact of discount rate moverment 2 2
At 31 March 2006 155 155
Disclosed within Non current habilities - -
Disciosed within Current habilities 155 155
At 31 March 2006 155 155

The restructuning provision at 31 March 2007, disclosed within current habilities, included the full cost of the restructuring cost of UK Marketing
Solutions which is expected to be utihsed in the year ended 31 March 2008 The restructuring provision at 31 March 2007 of US$30m disclosed
within non-current habilites compnised the anvcpated future costs of the withdrawal by Expenian from large scale credit card and loan account
processing in the UK, in respect of which there was a charge of US$28m in the year This provision comprises the estimated costs of redundancy
and certain contractual obligations in respect of this business and has been determined by reference to projections of the wming of withdrawal It 15
anucipated that this portion of the provision will be utilised in the period from 1 Apnl 2008 to 31 March 2010 There was no restiuctuning provision
at 21 March 2006 and na movements thereon In the year then ended

Fair values of prowsions do not matenially differ from the recognised book values

24 Retirement benefit assets/abligations

{a} Defined Benefit Schemes
The Group operates pension plans in a number of countries around the weorld and provides post-retrement healtncare inswance benefits to certain
former employees

The Group has both defined benefit and defined contribution plans A defined benefrt plan 1s a pension plan that defines an amount ot penston
benefit that an employee will recerve on retirement, usually dependent on one or more factors such as age, years of service and compensation A
defined contribution plan 1s a pension plan that defines the amount of contributions that are pa:d by the Group into an independently
adminsstered fund

Pension arrangements for the Group’s UK employees are operated prncipally through the Experian Pension Scheme (farmerly the GUS Pension
Scheme } which 1s a defined benefit scheme and the Experian Money Purchase Pension Plan {formerly the ‘GUS Money Purchase Pension Plan®)
which 15 a defined contnbution scheme in North America, benefits are determmned in accordance with local pracuce and regulations and funding 1s
provided accordingly There are no other matenal pension arrangements
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24 Retirement benefit assets/obligations {continued)

(a) Defined Benefit Schemes (continued)
The Expenian Pension Scheme has rules which specify the benefits to be pard and 1s financed accordingly with assets being held tn independently
administered funds A full actuanal funding valuation of this scheme 15 carned out every three years with intenim reviews in the intervening years

The latest full actuarial funding valuation of the scheme was carried out as at 31 March 2004 by independent, qualfied actuanes Watson Wyatt
Limited, using the projected unit credit method Under this method of valuation the current service cost will increase as members approach
retirement due 1o the ageing active membership of the scheme

Following the demerger of Home Retail Group the Argos Pension Scheme, which 1s a defined benefit scheme for Home Retall Group employees
continued to be operated by that business On demerger the pension nights of certain Home Retaill Group employees who had been members ot
the then GUS Pension Scheme were transferred to the Argos Pension Scheme Certain Home Retaill Group employees who had been members of
the then GUS Money Purchase Plan will be transferred to the Heme Retall Group Stakeholder Pension Plan in due course

Following changes introduced by the Finance Act 2004 which took effect from & Apnl 2006 (A-Day), the Expenan Pension Scheme, being the
prinaipal detfined benefit pension scheme implemented revised terms for members exchanging pension at retirement date for a tax-free lump sum
The impact of the consequent update In assumptions reduced the charge to the Group income statement for the year ended 31 March 2007 by
US$2m and increased the actual gain recognised in the Group statement of recognised inceme and expense by US$6m

Assets and labilities of overseas schemes have been transferrad through the purchase of annuitres for all liztilities of the plans

(0 The amounts recogrised in the Group balance sheet are determined as follows

UK Overseas Tatal
2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006
Ussm UsSim ussm Usim ussm Us$m
Market value of schemes assets 1,069 1952 - 68 1,069 2,020
Present value of funded schemes labilities (928) (1,852) - (68) {928) {1,920)
Surplus in the funded schemes 141 100 - - 141 100
Present value of unfunded pension arrangements (37 (42) - (6) (37) (48
Liability for post-retirement healthcare {19) {19) - (2) {19) (21}
Retirement penefit asset/(liability) recogrused in the
Group balance sheet 85 39 - (8) 85 31

During the year ended 31 March 2006 the Group put in place arrangements to secure unfunded pension benefit arrangements already in place for
certain directors and senigr managers by grantmg charges to an independent trustee over independently managed portfolios of marketable
secunties owned hy the Group The amount of assets charged in this way will be adjusted annually to keep the ratio of assets charged to the
discounted value of the accrued benefits secured in this way as close as possible to the corresponding ratio in the Group's registered pension
schemes The total value of the assets charged in this way at 31 March 2007 was US$29m (2006 US$28m) Further details of the unfunded
pension arrangements for directors appear In the repart on directors’ remuneration on page 57

() The amounts recognised in the Group profit and loss account reserve were as follows

UK Overseas Total
2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008
Ussm Usim Ussm Ussm ussm Usim
Current service cost 53 65 - 5 53 70
Curtalment gain (6) - - ~ (6) -
Interest on schemes’ liabilities 78 88 - 3 78 a1
Expected return on schemes' assets (107) {100) - (3) {107) {103}
Total charge to Group income statement 18 53 - 5 18 58
Actuanal (gam)/loss recogrised in the Group statement
of recognised income and expense {65) (a4) - 31 (65) (13}
Other charge ta profit and loss account reserve in respect
of the Argos Pension Scheme 1 - - - 41 -
Total (credit)/charge 1o Group profit and loss account reserve  (6) g - 36 (6} 45

The charge to Group income statement includes US$17m (2066 US$41m}in respect of discontinued operations The charge to profit and loss account
reserve In respect of the Argos Pension Scheme forms part of the dmdend i specie on the demerger of Home Retall Group

The curtailment gain anses from the restructuring of the UK Account Processing and the UK Marketing Solutions businesses as well as the cessation of
certain corporate funcuons in GUS plc
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24 Retirement benefit assets/obligations {continued)

(a) Defined Benefit Schemes {continued)

(u) The movements during the year in the retirement benefit asset recognised in the Group balance sheet were as follows

Overseas
2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006
ussm us$tm UsSm Usim Ussm Ustm
At 1 Apnl 39 (190) (8) 21 R {211)
Reclassification of obhgation (8) - 8 - _ _
Other charge te profit and lass account reserve
In respect of the Argos Pension Scheme (a1) - - - (41) -
Liabilities disposed wath the sale of overseas businesses - - - 45 - 45
Differences on exchange 10 9 - 1 10 10
Total amounts recogrised in the Group ingeme statement
~ as disclosed above {18) (53} - (5) (18) (58)
Actuanal gain/(loss) recognised n the Group statement of
recogmised (ncome and expense 65 a4 - (31) 65 13
Contnbutions paid by the Group 38 229 - 3 38 232
At 31 March 85 39 - 18) 85 3
(wv) The expense 15 recognised in the following hine items in the Group income statement
2007 2006
Ussm UsSim
Administrative costs (after exceptional income of US$4m (2006 USSnIl)) 17 26
Net financing thcome {16) (9)
Conunuing aperations 1 17
Discontinued operatiens 17 4
Tetal charge to Group income statement 18 58
{(v) Aciuanial gains and losses recognised 1n the Group statement of recognised income and expense are as follows
2007 2006
USsm Ussm
Gainf(less) on habilities 75 (80)
{Loss)¥gan on assets {3) 109
Continuing operations 72 29
Discontinued operations {7 {14)
Total gain included in Group statement of recognised income and expense in year 65 13
Cumulative actuanal gainAioss) included in Group statement of recognised income and expense comprises
2007 2005
Ussm Ussm
Continuing cperations 127 55
Discontinued operations (81) 74
Total cumuiative actuanial gain/{loss) included 1n Group statement of recognised income and expense 46 (19
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24 Retwrement benefit assets/obhgations (continued)

(a) Defined Benefit Schemes (continued)
(w) Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows

2007 2005

Us$m Usim
Opening defined benefit obhgation 1,989 2,026
Demerger of Home Retall Group {1.100) -
Pension hability disposed with the sale of overseas businesses - (240)
Current service cost 53 70
Interest cost 78 91
Settlement or curtailment (9} (4)
Contributions paid by employees 14 16
Contnbutions paid from outside the Group 2 -
Actuanal {gainyloss on habiliies {118) 228
Benefits paid (123} (43)
Exchange differences 198 (150)
Clesing defined benelit obhgation 984 1 989
The total defined benefit obligation of US$984m (2006 US$1,989m) includes US$928m (2006 US$1,920m) in raspect of the Group's funded
arrangements and US$56m (2006 US$69m) in respect of the Group's unfunded arrangements
(v} Changes in the market value of the plan assets are as follows

2007 2006

Ussm us$m
Opening market value of plan assets 2,020 1814
Demerger of Home Retall Group (1141) -
Pension assets disposed with the sale of overseas businesses - {185)
Expected return 107 05
Settlement or curtailiment (3) (@
Actuanal (lossigain on assets (53) 21
Contnbutions paid by the Group 38 232
Contributions paid by employees 14 16
Contnbutions paid from outside the Group 2 -
Benefits paid {123) (18)
Exchange differences 208 {141)
Closing market value of pian assets 1,069 2,020

The actual return on plan assets was US$54m (2006 US$346m)

Contributions 1n the year ended 31 March 2006 included a spectal contnbution of US$179m paid into the Argos Pensicn Scheme in March 2006

The estmated amount of coninbutions expected to be paid to the Experian pension schemes duning the next financial year 1s U5%19m by the Group

and US$7m by employees
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24 Retirement benefit assets/obligations (continued)

{a) Defined Benefit Schemes {continued)

(vm} The valuatrons used for IAS 19 have been based on the most recent actuanal funding valuations and have been updated by Watson Wyatl
Limited to take account of the requirements of 145 19 in order 1o assess the habilities of the scheme a1 31 March 2007 The principal actuanal
assumptions used to calculate the present value of the defined benef obligauons were as follows

UK schemes 2007 2006
% %

Rate of milation 31 29
Rate of increase for salanes 49 47
Rate of increase for pensions in payment and deferred pensions 31 29
Rate of increase for medical costs 65 65
Discount rate 54 49
Overseas schemes 2006
%

Rate of inflation 27
Rate of increase for salanes n/a
Rate of increase far pensions in payment and deferred pensions -
Rate of increase for medical costs 115
Discount rate 51

The main financial assumption 15 the real discount rate, 18 the excess of the discount rate over the rate of inflation f this assumption
increasedsdecreased by 0 1% the UK defined benefit obligation would decrease/increase by approximately US$17m and the annual UK current
service cost would decreasefincrease by approxirnately US$1m The discount rate 1s based on the market yields on tugh quality corporate bonds of
equivalent currency and term to the defined benehit obligations

The IAS 19 valuation assumes that mortahty will be in ing with cusrent standard iables for males and females as used at the last actuaral valuation
An allowance s also made for anucipated future improvements in Iife expectancy by assuming that the probability of death occurning at each age

will decrease by 0 25% each year i this assumption decreased by a further 0 25% per annum then the defined benefit oblgatien would increase

by U5540m and the annual UK current service cost would increase by approxmately US$3m

Overall, the average expectation of life on retirement :n normal health 15 assumed 1o be
- 19 1 years at age 65 for a male currently aged 65

- 22 2 years at age 65 for a female currently aged 65

- 19 8 years at age 65 for a male currently aged 50

- 23 1 years at age 65 for a female currently aged 50

The assumptions 1n respect of discount rate, salary increases and mortality all have a significant effect on the 1AS 19 accounting valuation Changes
to these assumptions in the light of prevailing conditions may have a significant iImpact on future valuauons

The IAS 19 valuation in respect of post retirement healthcare insurance benefits prowided to certain former Group employees additionally assumes
a rate of increase for medical costs If this assumption increased/decreased by 1 0% per annum then the obligation would increase/decrease by
US$2m and the annual UK current service cost would remain unchanged
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24 Retirement benefit assets/obligations (continued)

(a) Defined Benefit Schemes (continued)
(ix) The assets of the Group's defined benefit schemes and the expected rates of return are summarised as follows

UK Qverseas UK QOverseas
Expected Expected Expected Expected
long-term long-term long-term long term
rate of rate of rate of rate of
Fair value return  Fair value return  Fair value raturn  Faw value return
2007 2007 2007 2007 2006 2006 2006 2006
Ussm %p a ussm %pa Ustm %p a Ussm %p a
Market vaiue of schemes assets
Equities 733 81 - n/a 1,391 79 - nfa
Fixed interest securities 336 54 - n/a 578 45 - n/a
Qther - n/a - n/a 23 37 68 50
1,069 73 - n/a 1,952 68 68 50

The expected return on plan assets has been determined by considerning the mix cf returns anticipated on the assets held in accordance with the
current investment policy Expected yields on fixed interest investments and securthies are tased on gross redemption yields as at the balance sheet
date Expected returns on equity and other investments reflect the long-term real rates of return expenenced in the respective markets

(x} History of expenence gains and losses

2007 20086 2005
ussm Ussm ustm
Present value of defined benefit obligation {984) (1,989) (2 025)
Fair value of scheme assets 1.069 2,020 1,814
Net pension asset/{obligation) 85 31 (211)
2007 2006 2005
Experience adjustment ansing on defined benefit obligation
Amount — (Gain)loss {US$m} (119) 228 33
Percentage of the present value of defined benefit obligation 12 5% 11 2% 1 7%
Experience adjustment ansing on scheme assets
Amount - Lossfgain} (US3m) 53 (241) -
Parcertage of scheme assets 51% 11 6% -

(b} Defined Contribution Schemes

The pension cost represents contributions payable by the Group to such schemes and amounted to US$33m (2006 US327m)

98 t Expenan Annual Repert 2007




25 Other financial assets and habihities

Current  Non-current Current Non current
2007 2007 2006 2006
Other financial assets us$m ussm Ussm UsStm
Dernvative financaal instruments
Cash fiow hedge - foreign exchange contracts - - 3 -
Fair value hedge of borrowings — interest rate swaps - 20 - 38
Fair value hedge of berrowings - cross currency swaps 29 - - A7
Non-hedging dervatives — equity swaps - - 4 3
Non-hedging derivatives — interest rate swaps 16 3 33
Non-hedging dervatives - foreign exchange contracts P3| - - -
53 36 10 121
Available for sale assets
Listed - 38 - 37
Total other financial assets 53 74 10 158
Current  Non-current Current Nan current
2007 2007 20086 2006
Other financial liabities ussm us$m ussm Usim
Derivative finanaal instruments
Fair value hedge of borrowings — interest rate swaps - 40 - 12
Net investment hedge - foreign exchange contracts - - 23 -
Non hedging denvatives - foreign exchange contracts - - 10 -
Non-hedging dervatives - interest rate swaps - - 4 2
Total other financial habilities - 40 37 14

The cash flow hedges related to the hedging of foreign currency exposures of future purchases of inventory by Home Retall Group The hedged
cash flows were expected to occur up to one year in the future and were transferred to the Group Income statement or inventlory carrying vaiues

as applicable

The fair value of forelgn currency contracts 1s based on a companisen of the contractual and year end exchange rates The fair values of other
denvative financial instruments are estimated by discounting the future cash flows tc net present values using appropnate market rates prevaiing at

the year end
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26 Finanaal instruments

{a) Fair values of financial assets and liabilities
Set out below 1s a comparnison of carrying values and farr values of the Group's financial instruments

Carrying Fair Carrying Fair

value value value value

2007 2007 2006 2006

Us$m Us$m USIm UsSim

Trade and other recevables’ 660 660 1,611 1611

Other finangial assets 127 127 168 168

Cash and cash equivalents 907 907 385 385

Financial assets 1,694 1,694 2,164 2164
Loans and Borrowings

€548m 4 125% Euronotes 2007 751 751 688 690

£350m 6 375% Eurcbonds 2009 721 722 620 627

£334m 5 625% Eurcnotes 2013 627 630 595 589

Perpetual Securities - - 386 340

Bank {oans - - 1,358 1,358

Qverdrafts 273 273 245 245

2,372 2,376 3,892 3904

Other finanaai habiities 40 40 51 59

Trade and other payables? 766 766 2134 2,134

Financial habilities 3,178 3,182 6 077 5 089

1 VAT recoverable of US31m (2006 LS$17m) and prepayments of US$144m (2006 US3291m) are excluded from this analysis

2 VAT and other tax payable of US$42m (2006 US$125m) social secunty costs of US$75m (2006 U$$75m) and accruals of US5200m

(2006 US$231m) are excluded from this analysis
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26 Financial instruments {continued)

(b) Additional information on financial assets
The matunty profiles of financial assets are as follows

Less than 1-2 2-3 3-4 4-5 Over 5
1 year years years years years years Total
At 31 March 2007 Ussm USsm ussm Ussm ussm Ussm Ussm
Trade and other recewables? 660 - - - - - 660
QOther financial assets 53 9 23 4 - 38 127
Cash and cash eguivalents 907 - - - - - 907
1,620 9 23 4 - 38 1,694
Less than t-2 2-3 3-4 4-5 Over 5

1 year years years years years years Total
At 31 March 2006 Us$m Ussm USsm UStm UStm Ustm ussm
Trade and other recewvables’ 1,546 a0 19 5 - 1 1,611
Other financia! assets 10 57 14 42 9 36 168
Cash and cash equivalents 385 - - - - 385
1,941 97 33 47 9 37 2,164

1 VAT recoverable of US$1m (2006 US$17m) and prepayments of Us$144m {2006 US$231m) are excluded from this analysis
Analysed by currency 2007 2006
ussm Ussm
Sterling 955 1415
Us Dotltar 331 315
Euro 364 392
Qther 44 42
1,694 2,164
Analysed by interest rate profile 2007 2006
ussm Ustm
Floaung 775 387
Fixed 221 5t7
Non-interest bearing 698 1,260
1,694 2164
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26 Finangal instruments (continued)

{¢) Additional information on financial habilities
{1 The contractual repricing dates of iabilities exposed 1o interest rate nsk are as follows

Less than 1-2 2-3 3-4 4-5 Over 5
1 year years years years YEars years Total
At 31 March 2007 Ussm Ussm UStm USSm Ussm UsSsm Us$m
Loans and Borrowings
£548m 4 125% Euronotes 2007 751 - - - - - 751
£350m 6 375% Eurobonds 2009 - - 721 - - - 721
£334m 5 625% Euronctes 2013 - - - - - 627 627
Overdrafts 273 - - - - - 273
Effect of interest rate swaps?2 130 408 (272) 390 - (656) -
Other financial habtlities 40 - - - - - 40
Trade and other payables! 714 46 3 1 1 1 766
1,908 454 452 391 1 (28) 3,178
Less than 1-2 2-3 3-4 4-5 Over 5
1 year years years years years years Yotal
At 31 March 2006 UStm Ussm Ussm Ustm usim Ussm Ussm
Loans and Borrowings
€568m 4 125% Euronotes 2007 - 688 - - - - 688
£350m 6 375% Eurcbonds 2009 - - - 620 - - 620
£350m 5 625% Eurcnotes 2013 - - - - - 595 595
Perpetual Secunities - 386 - - - - 386
Bank toans 1358 - - - - - 1,358
Overdrafts 245 - - - - - 245
Efiect of interest rate swaps? 828 {762) 495 (240) 29 (609) -
Qther financial rabilites 37 2 - - - 12 51
Trade and other payables’ 2,038 55 30 - 3 8 2,134
4,503 369 525 280 294 6 6,077

1 VAT and other tax payable of US$42m (2006 US$125m} social secunty costs of US$75m (2006 US$75m) and accruals of US$200m
(2006 US$231m) are excluded from this analysis

Z  These represent the gross notional values of interest rate swaps
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26 Financal instruments {continued)

(¢} Additional information on financial habilities {continued)
(ny  Analysis of financial habilities by currency

Sterling US Dollar Euro Other Total
At 31 March 2007 UsStm Usim US$m UStm uUssm
Loans and Borrowings
€548m 4 125% Euronotes 2007 - - 751 - 751
£350m 6 375% Eurobonds 2009 721 - - - 721
£334m 5 625% Euronotes 2013 627 - - - 627
Overadrafts 4 - 269 - 273
Effect of forward foreign exchange contracts and cross currency swaps? (1,065) 1,513 (516} 68 -
Other financial habilines 40 - - - 40
Trade and other payables’ 207 409 120 30 766
534 1922 624 98 3,178
Sterling US Doliar Euro Other Total
At 31 March 2006 Usim UStm Usim Ussm Ussm
Loans and Borrowings
€568m 4 125% Euronotes 2007 - - 688 - 688
£350m 6 375% Eurcbonds 2009 620 - - - 620
£350m 5 625% Eurongtes 2013 595 - - - 595
Perpetual Securities 386 - - - 386
8ank loans 656 662 - - 1,358
Qverdrafts - - 245 - 245
Effect of cross currency swaps? (947} 755 122 70 -
Other finangal labilities 51 - - - S
Trade and other payables! 1,652 454 108 20 2,134
2953 1,871 1163 90 6,077
1 VAT and other tax payable of US$42m (2006 US5$125m), social secunty costs of US$75m {2006 US$75m) and accruals of US$200m
(2006 US$231m} are excluded from this analysis
2 These represent the gross notional values of cross currency swaps and foreign exchange contracts 1If apphicable
(m) Analysis of financial habilties by interest rate profile
Non-interest
Floating Fixed bearing Total
At 31 March 2007 ustm Ussm UStm ussm
Loans and borrowings 1,024 1,348 - 2,372
Effect of interest rate swaps! 130 (130 - -
Cther 40 - 766 806
1,194 1,218 766 3,178
Non-interast
Floating fed beanng Total
At 31 March 2006 Usim Ustm ussm Ussm
Leans and barrowings 1,603 2 289 - 3,892
Effect of interest rate swapst 825 (825) - -
Other 13 122 2,050 2,185
2441 1,586 2,050 6.077
1 These represent the gross notional value of interest rate swaps
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26 Financial Instruments (continued)

{c} Additional mformation on finanaal kabthities {continued)
(v} Analysis of finanaal labilities by maturrty profite

Less than 1-2 Z2-3 3-4 4-~5 Qver 5
1 year years years years years years Total
At 31 March 2007 Ussm UsStm Usim Usim Ussm ussm usém
Leans and Borrowings 1,024 - 721 - - 627 2,372
Other financial habilives - - - - - 40 40
Trade and other payabies! 714 a6 3 1 1 1 766
1,738 46 724 1 1 668 3,178
Less than 1-2 2-3 3-4 4-5 Over 5
1 year years years years years years Total
At 31 March 2006 Usim USsm UsSIm UsSsm Ussm Ussm ussm
Loans and Borrowings 295 1,736 646 620 - 585 3,892
Other financal habilities 37 2 - - - 12 51
Trade and other payabtes! 2,038 55 30 - 3 8 2,134
2370 1793 676 620 3 6815 6,077
1 VAT and other tax payable of U5342m (2006 US3$125m), sccial security costs of US$75m (2006 US$75m} and accruals of US$200m
(2006 US5%231m) are excluded from this analysis
27 Deferred tax
2007 2006
Ussm Us$m
The movements on the net deferred tax account are as follows
Net deferred tax assets at 1 Apnl 197 335
Differences on exchange - (22)
income staternent charge (ncte 9) (including US$5m (2006 US$68m) relating to discontinued operations) {54) (109)
Acquisition of subsidianes (2) {39)
Demerger of Home Retall Group (note 30(b)) (89) -
Disposal of subsidianes - (7)
Tax (chargedyoredited to equity {18) 9
Transfers 1 25
Other movements - 5
Net deferred tax assets at 31 March 35 197
The net deferred tax asset has been presented in the Group balance sheet as follows
Deferred tax asset 103 %47
Deferred tax habilities (68) (350}
Net deferred tax assets at 31 March 35 147
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27 Deferred tax (continued)

The movement in gross deferred tax assets and liabiities dunng the year, without taking into consideration the offsetting of balances within the

same tax junsdiction, s as follows

{a} Deferred tax assets

Share option Other
Accelerated and award Asset temporary
depreciation  Intangtbles schemes provisions Tax losses  differences Total
usim US$m ussm Ussm USSm Ussm ussm
AL 1 Apni 2006 6 164 42 a0 33 212 547
Differences on exchange - - 4 9 1 12 26
Income statement charge (1) (36) (6) 8 (€3] 24 {a2)
Acquisition of subsidiaries - - - - 5 - 5
Demerger of Home Retait Group {note 30(b} (2) - (17 (79) - (113} {211)
Transfers - - - - - (24) (24)
Tex credited/{charged) to equity - - (3) - - 6 3
Other movements - - - (2 - 2 -
At 31 March 2007 3 128 20 26 8 118 304
(b} Deferred tax kabilities
Share option Other
Property  Accelerated and award Asset temporary
valuations depreciation  Intangibles schemes provisions Tax losses  differences Total
Ussm ussm Usim Us$m usim ussm ussm Ussm
At 1 Apnl 2006 52 2] 62 1 - 6 165 350
Differences on exchange 5 4 8 - - 1 8 26
income statement charge - 2 (B) - - (2) 18 12
Acquisition of subsidianes - - 7 - - - - 7
Demerger of Home Retall Group
(note 30(b) {52) (36} (1 - - - (33) (122)
Transfers - - - - - - (2% {25)
Tax charged to aquity - - - - - - 21 21
At 31 March 2007 5 34 70 1 - 5 154 269

Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax lass carry-forwards and other temporary differences to the extent that the realisation of the related tax
benefit through future taxable profits 1s probable

The Group did not recognise deferred tax assets of US$19m (2006 US$9m including US$3m relaung to discontinued operations) in respect of losses
that can be camed farward agaimst future taxable ncame In addinon the Group did not recognise defarred tax assets of US322m (2006 UsS$78m
ncluding U$555m relating to discontinued aperations) in respect of capital [osses that can be carned forward against future taxgble gains These

losses are available indefintely

Deferred tax habilities of US$2,187m (2006 U5$2,034m including US$10m relating to discontinued cperations) have not been recogrised for the
withholding tax and other taxes that would be payable on the unremstted earnings of certain subsidiaries As the earnings are continually reinvested
by the Group no tax 15 expected 10 be payable on them in the foreseeable future

At the balance sheet date there were deferred tax assets recoverabie within the next twelve months of US$120m (2006 US$110m) and deferred
tax habilties payable wrthun the next twetve months of US$10m (2006 US$7m)
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28 Reconcalbation of movements in equity

On 10 October 2006 the separation of Experian and Home Retall Group was completed by way of demerger As part of the demerger Experian
Group Limited became the ultimate helding company of GUS plc and related subsidianes and shares in GUS plc ceased 1o be bisted on the Londan
Stock Exchange on 6 October 2006 Trading of shares :n Expenan on the London Stock Exchange commenced on 11 October 2006

As indicated in note 2 this transaction has been accounted for in these financial statements using the principles of merger accounting The
distnbunion to GUS plc sharenolders of shares in Home Retall Group plc has been accounted for as a dividend 1n specie in these financial
statements In accordance with the reguirements of merger accounting, the nominal values of the issusd share caprial at 1 Apnl 2005 and
subsequent movements to the date of demerger have been amended to reflect the capital structure of txperian Group Limited These movements
include the recognition of a share premium balance in Experian Group Lirmited on a reorganisation prior to the demerger and the subsequent
reduction of share capital and the transfer of the associated share premium account 1o retained earnings

On 11 October 2006, the Group raised US$1,441m, net of US$43m expenses, by way of a share offer The associated share premmum account 1s not
avallable for distnbution

Full details relating 1o the authonsed and 1ssued share capital of Expenan Group Limited are contained in note | 1 the parent company fmancial
statements Share capital has been translated at the historic exchange rate on the date of the transaction Since the balance sheet date, 29 605
Ordinary shares 1n the Company have been issued in connection with the exercise of share options

The dwidend in specie of US$S 627m in the year ended 31 March 2007 relating to the demerger of Home Retall Group represents the net assets
of Home Retaill Group as at the date of the demerger and an analysis of the net assets is given 1n note 30(b) The dvidend in specie 1n the year
ended 31 March 2006 related to the demerger of Burberry and represented the GUS plc Group s share of 1ts net assets

In connecticn with the demerger of Burberry and at an Extracrdinary General Meeting gn 13 December 2005, the shareholders of GUS plc approved
a consolidation of GUS shares replacing 1 823m Ordinary shares of 25p each with 880m Ordinary shares of 29 3/43p each The share consoldation
was designed to keep the GUS share price at approximately the same level, subject to normal market movements before and after the demearger of
the Group's remaining interest in Burberry Group plc For every 1,000 Ordinary shares of 25p each held immediately prior to the demerger
shareholders recewed 305 Ordinary shares of 0 05p each in Burberry Group plc and 860 Ordinary shares of 29 3/43p each in GUS plc The
associated reduction in the number of shares in GUS plc has been shown as a deduction from the number at 1 April 2005 in the following tables

There are ne significant statutory contractual or exchange control restrictions on distributions by Group undertakings

Attnbutable Equity
Number Share Share Retained Other to equity minonty Total
of shares capital premium arnings reserves holders nterests equity

Year ended 31 March 2007 m Ustm usgm Us$m Ussm ussm Ussm Usem
Balance at 1 Aprl 2006 8792 88 16 256 5,683 (16,575) 5,452 2 5,454
Profit for the financial year - - - 462 - 462 1 463
Net income recognised direcily

in equity for the financial year - - - 132 469 601 - 601
Share 1ssues pre demerger of

Home Retall Group 71 1 75 - - 76 - 76
Cancellation of treasury shares

pre demerger of Home Retall Group (8 9) (1} {178) - 178 - - -
Capital reduction - - {16 133) 16,153 - - - -
Share issues by way of Global Offer 1429 14 1,427 - - 1,441 - 1,441
Employee share option schemes
- value of employee services - - - 109 - 109 - 109
- proceeds from shares 1ssued 20 - 8 - - 8 - 3
Exercise of share options - - - (70) 129 59 - 59
Purchase of ESOP shares - - - - {75) (75 ~ (75)
Relinguishment of Home Retall Group

shares to employees and

Home Retaill Group - - - (100) 100 - - -
Equity dividends paid durning

the year {note 11} - - - (407) - {401) - {401)
Dvdend in specie relating to

the demerger of Home Retaif Group

(ncte 11} - - - (5627) - {5,627} - (5,627)
Dividends paid (o minonty

shareholders - - - - - - (1) {1
Balance at 31 March 2007 1,022 3 102 1,435 16,341 {15,773) 2,105 2 2,107
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28 Reconahation of movements i equity (continued)

Attnbutable Equity
Number Share Share  Retamned Other to equity minority Total
of shares captal  premum earnings reserves holders Interests equity
Year ended 31 March 2006 m Us$m Ustm Ussm Ussm Ussm Ussm uUssm
Balances in GUS plc Group at
1 April 2005 gra 4 478 130 5610 (445) 5,773 486 6,259
Merger accounting adjustments
to reflect new company structure
Ehmination of GUS plc capital - (478) (130) - - (608) - (608)
GUS plc shares shown at
Experian Group Limited
neminal value - 87 16,203 - (15,682) 608 - 608
Balances \n Expenian Group
Limited at 1 Apnl 2005 874 4 87 16,203 5,610 (16,127) 5773 486 6,259
Prodit for the financal year - - - 1,018 - 1,018 46 1,064
Net incomedexpense) recognised directly
in equity for the financial year - - - 10 419) (409) (19) {428)
Employee share option schemas
- value of employee services - - - 63 - 63 - 63
- proceeds from shares 1ssued 48 1 53 - - 54 - 54
Decrease in minonty interests
ansing due Lo corporate
transactions - - - - - - (495) (495)
Purchase of ESOP shares - - - - {29} {29) - (29)
Equity dvidends paid dunng the
year (note 11) - - - (508) - (508) - (508)
Diidend i specie relating to the
demerger of 8urberry Group plc (note 11) - - - {513) - (513) - {513)
Dwidends pai¢ tc minonty shareholders - - - - - - (13) (13)
QOther movements - - - 3 - 3 (3) -
Balance at 31 March 2006 8792 88 16,256 5683  {16,575) 5,452 2 5,454
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28 Reconciiation of movements i equity {continued)

IThe analysis of other reserves is as follows

Treasury Total
and ESQP Merger Hedging Translation other
shares reserve reserve reserve reserves
Year ended 31 March 2007 Ustm Us%m Ustm LS§m us$m
At 1 Apnl 2006 (496) (15,682) 14 {411) {16,575)
Cancellation of treasury shares pre demerger of Home Retail Group 179 - - - 179
Exercise of share options 129 - - - 129
Purchase of ESOP shares (73} - - - (75)
Relinguishment of Home Retall Group shares to empioyees
and Home Retall Group 100 - - - 100
Net income recognised directly in equity for the financial year - - 4 465 469
Balance at 31 March 2007 {163) (15,682} 18 54 (15,773)
Year ended 31 March 2006
Balances in GUS plc Group at 1 Apni 2005 {467) - 18 4 {445)
Creation of merger raserve - {15,682} - - (15,682)
Balances in Experian Group Limited at 1 Apri 2005 {467) {15,682) 18 4 (16,127)
Purchase of ESCP shares {29) - - - (29)
Net expense recognised directly in equity for the financial year - - 4) {415) (419)
Balance at 31 March 2006 (496) {15,682) 14 (411) (16,575)

At 31 March 2007 the balance on the Treasury and ESOP shares reserve represents the cost of shares in the Company purchased by the GUS ESOP
Trust the Expenan Group Lumited Employee Share Trust and the Expenian UK Approved All-Employee Plan Trust to satisfy certain of the Group’s
obiigations under 1ts share incentive plans During the year these trusts purchased 7 775,076 shares at a cost of US$75m

The merger reserve arose on the demerger In October 2006 and represents the diiference between the share capitat and share premium of GUS ple,
and the nominal value of the share capital of the Company before the global offer and subsequent share 155ues

Movemnents on the hedging reserve and the position at the balance sheet date reflect hedging transactions which are net charged or credited to the
Group income stalement net of related taxation

Movements on the translation reserve and the position at the balance sheet date reflect foreign currency translations since 1 Apnl 2004 which are
not charged or crediied to the Group income statement, net of related taxation
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29 Notes to the Group cash flow statement

2007 2006
UsSsm usim
{a} Cash generated from operations
Prafit after tax 326 458
Adjustments for
Tax expense 68 92
Share of post tax profits of associates (67) (66)
Net financing costs 146 102
Operating profit 473 586
Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment 10 -
Depreciation and amortisation 303 270
Goodwilt adjustment 14 -
Charge 1 respect of share incentve schemes 91 3¢
Exceptional (tems included in working capial 46 7
Increase in nveniornes (1) -
Increase in recevables {72) (36)
Increase in payables 82 i2
Dhiference between penston cantributions paid and amounts recognised in the Group income sistement (4) ]
Cash generated from operations 942 874
{b) Interest paid
interest paid on bonds, bank loans and overdrafts 133 179
Totat interest paid 133 179
(¢}  Acguisition of subsidiaries
Purchase of subsidiary undertakings (note 30(a)) (82) (1 384)
Net cash acquired with subsidiary undertakings (note 30(a)) 8 -
Deierred consideration settled on acquisitions made In previous pernods (44) (36)
Net cash outflow for acquisition of subsidiaries (118) (1 420}
{d) Disposai of subsidianes
Proceeds of disposal of shares in Burberry - 9
Proceeds of disposal of Wehkamp - 384
Proceeds of disposal of shares in Lews - 250
Receipt of deferred consideration in respect of home shopping and Reality 258 -
Cash inflow from disposal of subsidiaries 258 643
(e} Fmancng
Debt due witrun one year
Repayment of borrowings (42} 63)
Debt dug after more than one year
Repayment of borrowings (1.381) -
New borrowings - 647
Net cash flow frorn debt financing {1,423) 584
Expenian Annual Report 2007 | 109




Introduction | Business review | Governance | Francial statements

Notes to the Group financial statements

for the year ended 31 March 2007

29 Notes to the Group cash flow statement {continued)

2007 2006
ussm UStm
{f} Analysis of cash and cash equivalents
Cash at bank and tn hand 798 293
Short-term investments 108 92
Cash and cash equivalents per Group balance sheet 907 385
Overdrafts (273} (246)
Cash and cash equivalents per Group cash flow statement 634 139
Analysed as
Cash and cash equivalents - continuing operations 634 (89}
Cash and cash equivalents - discontinued operations - 228
Cash and cash equivalents per Group cash flow statement 634 139

{g) Major non-cash transactions
The Group did not enter into any new finance lease arrangements during the year (2006 US$nii)

30 Acquisitions and demerger of Home Retall Group

{a) Acquisitrons for the year ended 31 March 2007
Buning the year ended 31 March 2007, the Group made several acquisitions, none of which are considered indwidually material to the Group,
mcluding Eiger Systems a leading provider of bank validation/payment software in the UX and Ireland

tn aggregate, the acguired businesses contributed revenues of US$20m and profit after tax of US$3m to the Group ior the pericds from ther
respective acquisipion dates to 31 March 2007 1f these acguisinons had been completed on 1 Aprl 2006, further revenues of US$12m would have
been reported Due to the acquired entities using different accounting pohices prior to acquisttion, previously reporung to different period ends and
n certain cases, prepanng financial information on a cash basis pnor to acquisition, 1t has been impracticable 10 estimate the impact on Group
profit had they been owned from 1 Apnl 2008

Details of the net assets acquired and the prowsional gocdwill are as follows

Book value Fair value

Ussm usim

intangible assets - 20
Property plant and equrpment 4 4
Deferred tax assets - 5
Trade and other recewables 5 5
Cash, net of overdrafts 8 8
Trade and other payables {12) (15}
Deferved tax liabilities - M
Net assets acquired 5 20
Goodwiil 71
9N

Satisfied by

Cash 80
Acquisitson expenses 2
Deferred consideration 9
99

The fair values set out above contam ceriain provisional amounts which will be finalised no later than one year after the date of acquisiion Farr
value adjustments in respect of acqusitions made dunng the year resulied in an increase to book value of US$15m and arose principally 1n respect
of acquisiion intangibles Goodwill represents the synergies assembled workforce and future growth potenuat of the businesses acquired

Deferred consideration 1s primarily payable 10 cash up to three years afier the date of acquisiion and 1n some cases s contingent on the businesses
acquired achieving revenue and profit 1argets The deferred consideration settled during the year on acquisitions made In previous years was
uss44m
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30 Acquisitions and demerger of Home Retail Group {continued)

(b} Pemerger of Home Retaill Group
As indicated in note 2 the distribution of shares in Home Retall Group plc to shareholders in GUS plc at the date of demerger has been accounted
for as a dividend in specie This represents the Group s share of the net assets of Home Retail Group at the date of demerger which comprised

ussm
Intangible assets 3,716
Property, ptant and equipment 1,299
Deferred tax assets 211
Retirement benefit assets 41
Inventories 1,765
Trade and other recewables 1.036
Cash and cash equivalents 518
Trade and other payables {2.156)
Current tax payable (72)
Loans and borrowings (435}
Deferrad tax habilities (122}
Provisions {174)
Group 5 share of net assets of Home Retail Group on demerger 5,627

31 Share-based payment arrangements

Prior to the dererger, Expenan employees participated n share-based incentive plans in respect of the Ordinary shares in GUS ple On demerger
certain GUS awards vested early and Expenan incurred an exceptional charge of US$15m on the acceleration of these awards

On demerger, the majerity of Expenian participants’ autstanding GUS share and option awards rolled-cver into Expenan equwvalent awards A limited
number of share and share option awards remained as GUS awards and paruicpants had entitlement to one Home Retall Group share and one
Experan share in heu of each GUS share allocated Expenian rolled-over awards are share based incentive plans i respect of the Ordinary shares in
Expenian Group Limited The quantity and exercise price of grants were modified to adjust for the difference between the GUS and Expenan share
prices The roll-over resulted in an incremenial change in fair value of US$8m, which was incurred as an exceptional item  The incremental fair value
was pnmanly as a result of an assumption in respect of the higher volatlity of the Experian share price

Early vesting and modification changes have been recorded as an exceptional item (note 7)

Option and share prices are disclosed In Stering reflecting the currency 1n which the Ordinary shares of GUS plc and Experian Group Limited are
guoted

{a) Options in respect of Ordinary shares
(1t Summary of arrangements

Experian demerger plan — Experian Share Option Plan
The Expersan Share Opuion Plan mncludes awards made at and after demerger together with awards rolied-over frem former GUS plans and
arrangements were as follows

Nature Grant of options

Vesting condiions

- Service penod 3 and 4 years

- Performance/Other n/a

Expected outcome of meetng performance critena (at grant date) n/a

Maximum term 10 years

Method of settlement Share distnbution

Expected departures (at grant date) 5%

QOpuion exercise price ¢alculaticn! Market price over the 3 dealing days preceding the grant

1 Three day averages are caiculated by taking middle market quotations of an Experian Group Limited share from the London Stock Exchange
daily official Iist
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31 Share-based payment arrangements {continued)

Experian Roll-over plans (formerly GUS plans)

The arrangements in respect of former GUS plans which were 1 place in the year ended 3% March 2006 and in the penod from 1 Apnil 2006 to the

date of demerger were as follows

Arrangements

The 1998 Agproved and
Non-Approved Executive
Share Option Schemes

The North America Stock
Option Plan

Savings related share
option schemes

Nature
Vest:ng conditions

- Service period
- Performance/Other

Expected outcome of meeting performance
critena (at grant date)
Maximum term

Method of settlement

Grant of options

3 years

EPS growth performance
condition?

Condition 15 satishied

10 years

Share distribution

Grant of options

1,2 and 3 years
n/a

n/a
6 years

Share distributicn

‘Save as you earn scheme

3 or 5 years

Saving obligation over the
vesting penod

nfa

350r55years

Share distribution

Expected departures (at grant date) 5% 1 year - 0%
Z years - 15%

3years - 20%

3 yearss - 30%
5 years2 - 50%

Option exercise price calculation? Market price over the
3 dealing days preceding

the grant

Market price over the
3 dealing days preceding
the grant

20% discount to market price
over the 3 dealing days
preceding the grant

1 The performance condition for The 1998 Approved and Non-Approved Executive Share Option Schemes required average Benchmark EPS
growth 1o exceed the average growth in the general index of retail prices by at least 4% p a over a 3 year peniod The penod of assessment
commenced at the beginning of the financial year of grant This 1s not a market based performance condition as defined by 1FRS 2

2 The stated values for expected departures include participants who did not meet the savngs requirement of the scheme

3 Three day averages were calculated by taking middle market quatations of a GUS plc share from the London Stock Exchange daily official hist

) Weighted average share price

2007 2008

£ L

Weighted average share price of Expernian Group Limited ! 590 nfa
QUS ple share price at demerger 9 3¢ néa
Weighted average share price of GUS plc? 982 932

1 Expenan's weighted average share price for 2007 1s for the pened from the listing date, 11 October 2006, to 31 March 2007

2 Woeighted average share price for 2007 is in respect of the penod up to demerger

Options in respect of the Ordinary shares of Experian Group Limited and GUS plc were exercised on a regular basis throughout the periods that the
respective shares were In 1ssue

{m) Information relating to option valuation techmiques
Far the Expenan demerger plans and the former GUS plans the Black-Scholes medel 1s used to determine an appropnate vatue of the option grants
fnputs into the model are calculated as follows

Expected volatdity Experian demerger plans - As shares in Experian Group Lisuted were newly listed during the vear, there & insufficent share
price history in order to calcutate historical velatility Accordingly to arnive at a reasonable volatility assumption an analysis of the share price volaulily
of comparable companies was performed

Expected volatiity former GUS pians - Calculated as an average over the expectad hfe with an assumption made for volatiity in each year of
the expected Life Volatility in the first year was assumed (o be the same as implied volatiity on grant date Volaulity for year 4 and beyond was
assumed 1o remain at the long run (10 year observed) histonic volatiity Linear interpolation was assumed for years 2 and 3

Expected dividend yreld - Yields are based on the current consensus analyst forecast figures at the tme of grant The inputs ulilised are an
average of the forecast over the next three financial years
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31 Share-based payment arrangements (continued)

Risk-free rate — Rates are obtained from the UK Government Debt Management Office wehsite which details historical prices and yields for giit
strps

Expected gption life to exercise Experian Share Option Plans — The Experian Share Option Plans vest 50% after 3 years and 50% after 4
years The expecled hfe 15 4 years for the 50% that vest after 3 years and 4 85 years for the 50% that vest afier 4 years

Expected cption life to exercise former GUS plans - The 1998 Approved and Nan-Approved Executive Share Opuen Schemes had expected
Ives of 4 years the North Amerncan Stock Option Plan had an expected life of 3 75 years and the Savings related share optien schemes had
expected lives of either 3 or 5 years

Share price on grant date Experian Share Option Plans - The majonity of the grants were made on 11 October 2006 As this was Experians
first trading day, the weighted average pnce of trades was used For subsequent grants, the closing price on the day of grant was used

Share price on grant date former GUS plans ~ The closing price on the day the options ware granted
Optian exercse price - Exercise price as stated in the term of each award

The weightaed average estimated fair values and the inputs into the Black-Scholes medels, for the Experian Share Opticn Plans are as follows

Weighted

average

2007

Fair value (£) 126
Share price on grant date {f) 563
Exeraise price (£) 561
Expected volatiity 280%
Expected dnidend yield 33%
Risk-free rate 4 9%
Expected option life to exercise 4 43 years

The weighted average estimated fair values and the inputs Into the Black-Schotes models, for the former GUS plans, are as follows

The 1998 Approved and

Non Approved Executive The North America Stock Savings related share
Arrangements Share Option Schemes Option Plan option schemes

Weighted Weighted Weighted Waighted Weighted Weighted
average average average average average average
2007 2006 20071 2006 2007 2006
Fair value (£) 206 160 200 152 n/a 245
Share price on grant date {£} 935 853 935 848 n/a 896
Exercise price (£) 926 861 926 859 n/a 687
Expected volatihty 29 4% 27 8% 29 1% 27 4% n/a 25 5%
Expected dividend yield 35% 4 0% 35% 40% n/a 3 8%
Risk-free rate 47% 4 3% a47% 43% n/a 41%
Expected option life to exercise 4 years 4 years 3 75 years 3 75 years n/a 3 56 years

1 Waeighted average for the period up to demerger

Options over GUS plc shares granted in the peniod from 1 Apn} 2006 to demerger had a weighted average fair value of £2 03 (2006 £1 82)
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31 Share-based payment arrangements {continued)

{(iv) Reconcthation of movement in the number of share options

Weighted

Number of average

options  exercise price

m £

2006 2006

Options in respect of shares in GUS plc outstanding at the beginming of the year 278 634

New grants 23 812

Forfeitures? (15) 653

Exercised options (59 609

Expired options (0 5} 6 60

Options in respect of shares in GUS plc outstanding at the end of the year 282 690

Options in respect of GUS plc shares exercisable at the end of the year 59 641

1 For the Savings related share option schemes this ncludes non-leavers who have failed the savings requirerment

Weighted

Number of average

optlons exercise price

m |3

2007 2007

Options in respect of shares m GUS plc cutstanding at the beginning of the year 282 650

New grants 77 926

Forfeitures {0 8) 762

Exercised opticns (7 1) 571

Options in respect of shares in GUS pic at demerger 280 783

Less optons rolled-over into Home Retall Group share plans {10 3) 7 50

Less GUS awards forfeited post demerger {03) 72

Less GUS awards exercised post demerger (0 6} 729

GUS options rolled-over into Experian equivalent awards 168 806
Conversian to Expenian Group Limited awards at an average roll over ratio of 1 76 128

Expenan equivalent roll-over awards 296 456

Options in respect of shares in Expenan Group Limited granted on or after demerger 42 561

Forfeitures (0 8) 509

Exercises {146) 372

Options in respect of shares in Expenan Group Limited outstanding at the end of the year 314 473

Options m respect of Experian Group Limrted shares exercisable at the end of the year 80 389

v} Options outstanding at the end of the year
Qptions In respect of Expenan Group Limited shares outstanding at the end of the year had the following exercise prices and remaining contractual
lives

At 31 March 2007

Range of Number Weighted Weighted average remarning lives

exercise of average
prices options exercise

price! Expected Contractual

£ m £ years years

2-3 02 274 11 23

3-4 71 3n 02 36

4-5 104 467 17 60

5-6 138 533 33 17

1 To the extent that opticns have been rolled-over inte Expenan demerger plans the 2007 inputs for share price at grant date and exercise price
have been rebased to be comparable with the Expenan Group Limited share price at demerger and reflect the conseguent changes to option
terms
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31 Share-based payment arrangements (continued)

Options in respect of GUS ple shares outstanding at 31 March 2006 had the {ollowing exercise prices and remaining contractuat lives

At 31 March 2006

Weighted We:ghted average remaining lives

Range of Number average
eXErCIse of exercise

prices options price Expected Contractual

£ m f years years

0-6 52 456 07 14

6-7 1Z4 661 12 18

7-8 01 757 16 66

8-9 105 839 39 60

{b} Share awards in respect of Ordinary shares

(1) Summary of arrangements

Experian demerger share plans

The fellowing arrangements include awards made at and after demerger together with awards railed over from former GUS plans

Arrangements

Experian Reinvestment
Plan

Experran
Performance Share
Plan

Experian Free Shares Plan
and the kxpernian

UK Approved All
Employee Plan

Nature of arrangement

Vesting conditions
- Service perod

- Performance

Expected outcome of meeting

performance criteria (at grant date)

Maximum term

Method of settlement

Expected departures {at grant date)

Grant of shares

3 to 5 years

50% - Benchmark profit
performance of Group
assessed agamnst specified
targets

50% -n/a

n/a
5 years
Share distribution

5%

Grant of shares

5 years

50% ~ Benchmark profit
performance of Group
assessed against specified
targets!

50% - Distnbution percentage
determined by ranking “Total
Shareholder Return’ relative
to a comparatar group ?

52 3%
5 years
Share distribution

5%

Grant of shares

3 years

n/a

n/a
35 years
Share distribution

15%

1 The Benchmark profit performance condition for the Experian Reinvestment Plan and Expenan Performance Share Plan requires profit before
tax growth 1o at least exceed 10 - 14% over a 3 year peniod The penod of assessment commences at the beginning of the financial year of
grant This 15 not a ‘Market-based’ performance condition as defined by IFRS 2 The condition 15 apphed to half of the awarded shares

2 The Expenan Performance Share Plan Total Shareholder Return’ 1s considered a 'Market-based performance condition under IFRS 2 It has
been valued using a Monte Carlo smulation wath histonc volatilities and correlations for comparator companies measured over the three year
period preceding valuation and an implied volatiity for Experian Group Limited The fair value of awards was calculated as 52 3% of the
weighted average share price for Expenan Group Limited's first day of trading on the London Stock Exchange The condiuon is applied to haff

of the awarded shares
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31 Share-based payment arrangements (continued}

Former GUS share plans
The arrangements In respect of former GUS plans which were i place in the year ended 31 March 2006 and in the penod from 1 April 2006 to the
date of demerger were as follows

Arrangements Co-investment Plan - Matching Shares Performance Share Plan

Nature of arrangement Grant of shares! Grant of shares

Vesting conditions

- Service penod 4 years 3 years

- Performance Benchmark profit performance of Group/Division Dustnibution percentage determined by ranking “Total
assessed against specrfied targets Shareholder Return’ relative to a comparator group

Expected cutcome of meeting
performance critenia {at grant date) Participants meet target performance 50 6% for June 2006 grant
60 0% for June 2005 grant

Maximum term 4 years 3 years
Method of settlement Share distrnibution Share distnibution
Expected departures {at grant date) 7% 5%

1 The Matching Shares are a nil consideration option and have been classified as an award of shares because the nature of the award s the same

2 The Performance Share Plan performance caondition 1s considered a '"Market-based’ performance condition under IFRS 2 It was valued using a
Monte Carlo simulation with historic volatilities and correlations measured over the three year period preceding valuation On conversion tao
IFRS, the farr value of awards was calculated as 60% of the share pnice at date of grant This valuation has applied to all grants up to 31 March
2006 It was deemed necessary to re-run the Monte Carlo simulation for the year ended 31 March 2007 as Group actvity made the calculation
on conversion to IFRS inappropriate The fair value of awards granted in June 2006 was calculated as 50 6% of the share price at date of grant

The grant date for the Expenian Co-tnvestment plan and the former GUS Co-lnvestment plan 1s the start of the financial year in which pertormance
15 assessed This 15 before the quantity of the shares award 1s determined The underlying value of the award 1s known at the grani date subject 1o
the outcome of the performance condition The value of awarded shares reflects the performance outcome at the date of 1ssue to parucipants

{n} Information relating to share grant valuation technigues

The majonty of the grants were made on Experian Group Limited shares’ first day of trading on the London Stock Exchange and trading was
particularly valatle on this day The weighted average share price for that day's trading :s being used to determine the value of Expenan demerger
share awards For the former GUS plans the value of awards is determined as the observed market closing rate on the date awarded grants are
1ssued to partiapants For the Expenian Co-Investment plan and the former GUS Co-Investment plan, this occurs after the first year of performance
15 assessed The Experian demerger and former GUS Performance Share plans market-based performance conditions are inciuded 1n the fair value
measurement on grant date and are not revised for actual perfermance

Under the share awards partictpants have an entitiement to dwidend distributions from the issue date until point of vesting The observed market
rate on the day of valuation 1s considered inclusive of future dvidend distributions No modifications are made for dividend distnbutions or other
factors

{m) Reconcahiation of share awards cutstanding

Number of

options

m

2006

Share awards in respect of shares in GUS plc outstanding at the beginning of the year 49
New grants 20
Forfeitures (13
Vesting (0 6)
Share awards in respect of shares in GUS plc cutstanding at the end of the year 50
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31 Share-based payment arrangements {continued)

Number of

options

m

2007

Share awaras in faspect of shares in GUS plc outstanding at the beginning of the year 50
New grants 28
Vesting 42
Awards in respect of shares in GUS plc at demerger 36
Less awards rotled-over into Home Retaill Group share plans (07}
GUS share awards to Expenan participants at demerger 29
Conversion to Expernan Group awards at an average roll-over ratio of 1 78 23
Expenan equwalent rolt-over awards 52
Share awards In respect of Expenan Group Limited on or afier demerger 198
Forfeitures o4
Share awards in Expenan Group Limited outstanding at the end of the year 246

For Expenan demerger plans there were 19,022 982 shares granted 1n 2007 with a weighied average award farr value of £5 20 For former GUS
plans there were 2 814,465 shares granted in 2007 (2006 2 635 145), with a weighted average award fair value of £6 74 (2006 £7 69)

{¢) Modrication of GUS awards to Expertan participants

(1) Detarls of modificahon

Prior to demerger, Experian partigpants held share incentive grants with entitlement to GUS share distnibutions On demerger, the majonty o1
outstanding awards were rolled-over into plans with entitlement to Expenian Group Limited share distibuticns The quantity and exercise price of
awards were modified to maintain an equivalent compensation as the onginal GUS grants The incremental {air value of the modincation was US$8m

()} Information relating to modified options
In tatal, 16 $m GUS cptions were rolled-over inte 30 Om Expenan Group Limited options A 8lack Scholes model was used to determing the farr
value af GUS and Expenan Group Limited awards for modified grants The weighted average estimated fair values and the inputs into the Black
Schales model are as follows

Weighted average

GUS Experian

awards awards

Fair value (£} 27 164
Share pnce on madification date (f) 9490 562
Exercise price (£) 808 457
Expected volatihty 25 6% 27 6%
Expected dividend yield 37% 37%
Risk-free rate 49% 49%
Expected option life to exercise 3 48 years 3 48 years

() Information refating to modified share awards
Weighted average

GUS Experan

awards awards

Quantity modified {miliions) 49 87
weighted average farr value (f) 814 467

{d) Other share awards

Duning the year Expenan Group Limited ssued put options to a small number of employees who own an eguity interest in a subsidiary These
options vest on 31 March 2008 assuring the employees remain with the Group and they will be exercisable from that date onwards These options
are accounted tor under IFRS 2 as performance conditions are hinked to employment with the subsidiary The options will be exercisable at a value
based on 20% of the prevailing market value of the subsidiary for which these employees work and this value 1s capped at US$50m The opuion vill
be settled in Expenan Group Limited shares The expected number of shares s 122 000 The option was purchased for US30 7m by the employees
at fair value as calcutated by third party valuation specialists This valuation 15 based on the forecast revenue model of the subsidiary No cost will
anse over the vesting penod as the purchase price of the option was its market value
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Notes to the Group financial statements

for the year ended 31 March 2007

31 Share-based payment arrangements {continued)

{e) Summary of the total cost of share-based compensation in respect of Ordinary shares

2007 2006
Ussm Ustm
Share option awards 0 23
Share grant awards 72 28
Total expense recognised (all equity settled) 102 51
Associated National Insurance costs 4 2
Totai expense recognised 106 53
The expense 1s reported as follows
Empioyee cost ncluded in Benchmark PET 34 34
Charge in respect of demerger-related equity incentive plans (excluded from Benchmark PBT) 23 -
Discontinued operations 15 17
Exceptional item - charge on early vesting and modification of share awards at
demerger of Expenzn and Home Retaill Group 23 -
Exceptional itemn ~ ather costs incurred refating to the demerger of
Experian and Home Retall Group 7 -
Total expense recognised {all equity settled) 102 51
Associated National Insurance costs
included n Benchmark PET 2
Excluded from Benchmark PBT 1 -
Total expense recognised 106 53
32 Operating lease commitments — mimimum lease payments
2007 2006
UsSsm Ustm
Commitrments under non-cancellable operating leases expiring in
Less than one year 65 550
Between one and five years 150 2,153
More than five years 64 4,431
279 7144

The Group leases offices and technalogy under non-cancellable operating lease agreements These leases have varying terms, escalation clauses and

renewat rights

33 Capnital commitments

2007 2006
Ussm Usgm

Capital expenditure for which contracts have been placed
Property plant and equipment 11 34
Intangible assets - ’
11 96

34 Contingences

In the United States, there are a number of pending and threatened litigation claims invalving Experian which are being vigorously defended The
directors do net believe that the outcome of any such pending or threatened litigation will have a matenal adverse effact on the Group’s financial
positton However, as 15 inherent (n legat proceedings, there 1s a risk of outcomes unfavourable to the Group In the case of unfavourable outcomes

the Group would benefit from applicable insurance recoveries
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35 Related parties

The ulumate parent company of the Group 1s Experian Graup Lirmted which 15 incorporated n tersey The principal subsidiary and associate
undertakings at 31 March 2007 are shown in note O to the financial statements of the ultimate parent company

The following transactions were carried out with related parties of Experian

Associates

Duning the year the Group made net sales and recharges, under nermal commercial terms and conditions that would be availlable to thard parttes to
First American Real Estate Solutions LLC (*FARES'Y and s associate Fist Advaniage Corporation, of US$29m (2006 US$21m) Amounts receivable
frem FARES are shown within note 18 These amounts outstanding are unsecured and will be settled in cash No guarantees have been given or
recewved i the year No provisions have been made for doubtful debts in respect of the amounts owed by related parties

Subsidiaries
Transactions between the ultimate parent company and its subsidiaries and between subsidiaries have been eliminated on conschdation

Home Retall Group

Under the terms of the demerger agreement entered into in August 2006, the Group has contracted to provide cerlain services to Home Retall
Group on a transiional basis for a period of not more than two years after the date of the demerger The fees payable for these services are
determined on an arms length basis Since the demerger the Group has charged US$0 3m to Home Retall Group 1n respect of these services

Since the date of demerger Experian has made sales of US$10m to Home Retaill Group companies on normal commercial terms

Key management personnel
Remuneration of key management personnel 15 disclosed in note 6(c) During the year there were no matenal transactions or balances between the
Group and its key management personnel or members of thesr close families

Other related parties
There were no other matenial related party transactions Services are usually negotated with related parties on a cost-plus basis Goods are bought
on the basis of the price lists in force with non-related parties
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Report of the auditors: Group financial statements

Independent auditors’ report to the members of Experian Group Limited

We have audited the Group financal statements of Experian Group Lirmited for the year ended 31 March 2007 which compnse the Group income
statement the Group balance sheet the Group cash flow statement the Group statement of recognised income and expense and the related
notes These Group financial statements have been prepared under the accounting policies set out theren

We have reported separately on the parent company financial statements of Expenan Group Limited for the perniod ended 31 March 2007

Respective respansibilities of directors and auditors

The directors responsibilities for preparing the annual repart and the Group finanaal statements in accordance with applicable law and
Imernational Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union are set out in the statement of directors’ responsibilities

QOur respansibility 1s to audit the Group financial statements in accordance with relevant legal and regulatory requirements and International
Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland} This report, including the opirvion, has been prepared for and only for the Company’s members as ¢ body in
accordance with Article 110 of the Comparues (Jersey) Law 1991 and for no other purpose We do not in giving this opimian accept ar assume
responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report 1s shown or into whose hands 1t may come save where expressly
agreed by our prior consent 1n writing

We report to you our opinion as to whether the Group financial statements give a true and fair view and whether the Group financial statements
have been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies {Jersey) Law 1991 and Article 4 of the IAS Regulation We also report to you
whether in our opimion the informaton given in the directors’ report 1s consistent with the Group financial statements The information gven n the
directors’ report includes that specific information presented in the business review that is cross referred from the directors report

In addition we report to you if, in our opinion we have not recewved all the information and explanations we require far our audit

We review whether the corporate governance statement reflects the Company's comphance with the nine provisions of the Combined Code {2003)
specified for cur review by the Listing Rules of the United Kingdom Financial Services Authoriy, and we report if it does not We are not required to
consider whether the board s statements on internal controls cover all nsks end controls, or form an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s
corporate governance procedures or its sk and control procedures

We read other information contained in the annual report and consider whether it 1s censistent wath the audited Group finanoal statements The
other information compnses only the Group financiat highlights, the directors’ report, the chairman’s statement, the business review the neard of
directors, the unaudrted part of the report on directors remuneration, the corporate governance statement and the other items as referred to on
the contents hsting We consider the implications for our report if we become aware of any apparent misstatements or matenal inconsistencies with
the Group financal statements Our responsiilities do not extend to any cther information

Basis of audit opmion

We conducted our audit In accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK and freland) issued by the Auditing Practices Board An aucht
includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures in the Group financial statements It also includes an
assessment of the significant estimates and judgments made by the directors in the preparation of the Group financial statements and of whether
the accounting policies are appropnate to the Group’s circumstances consistently apphed and adequately disclosed

We planned and performed our audit so as 1o obtan all the information and explanations which we considered necessary in order te provide us
with sufficient ewidence to give reasonable assurance that the Group financial statements are free from matenal misstaternent, whether caused by
fraud or other rregulanty or error In forming our opinion we have also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of information in the
Group financial statements

Opinion

in our opinion

¢ the Group finangal statements give a true and fair view, In accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union, of the state of the Groups
affairs as at 31 March 2007 and of 1its profit and cash flows for the year then ended

* the Group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies (Jersey) Law 1991 and Arucle 4 of the 1AS
Regulation, and

+ the information given in the directors’ report 1s consistent with the Group financial statements

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Registered Auditors
London, United Kingdom

22 May 2007
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Parent company profit and loss account

for the period ended 31 March 2007

2007

MNaotes £m

Administrative expenses (130
Operating loss (130
Net interest income B7
Net foreign exchange gan 01
Loss on ordinary activities before taxation {4 2)
Tax on loss on ordinary activities E -
Loss for the financial penod K @2

The Company has no recogrised gains and losses other than those included 1n the profit and loss account and therefore no separate statement of

total recognised gans and losses has been presented
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Parent company balance sheet

at 31 March 2007

2007
Notes £m
Fixed assets
Tangible assets F 02
Investments in group undertakings G 59705
59707
Current assets
Debtors - due within one year H 17
Cash at bank and in hand 74
91
Current habilities
Creditors - amounts due within one year (90 1)
Net current habilities (81 0)
Net assets 5889 7
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital J 547
Share premium account J 7738
Profit and loss account K 5.061 2
Total equity shareholders’ funds 5,889 7

The financial statements on pages 121 to 132 were appioved by the Board of Directors on 22 May 2007 and were signed on 1ts behalf by

John Peace
Director
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Notes to the parent company financial statements

for the period ended 31 March 2007

A Corporate information

Expenan Group Limited {the Company’) was incorporated and registered in Jersey on 30 June 2006 under the Jersey Companies Law as a public
company imned by shares with the name New Gemiri {lersey Co} No 1 Limited The Company changed 1ts name 1o Experian Group Limited on
6 July 2006 The principal legislation under which the Company operates i1s Jersey Companies Law and regulations made thereunder

The principal activity of the Company 1s 1o act as the ulumate holding company of the Expenan Group whose principal actvity 1s business services

The shares of the Company are listed on the London Stock Exchange s market for listed securities (the ‘London Stack Exchange ) and trading in
these shares commenced on 11 October 2006

B  Basis of preparation and sigmificant accounting palicies

Basis of preparation

The separate financial statements of the Campany are presented in compliance with the requirements for companies whose shares are listed on the
tondon Stock Exchange They were approved by the Board on 22 May 2007 The Company's financial statements cover the penod from
incorporation on 30 June 2006 to 31 March 2007 They are presented in Pounds Sterling, as that (s the functional currency of the Company In
determining 1ts functional currency, the directors have determined the primary economuc envircnment in which the Company operates

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis and under the histoncal cost convention, modified for the revaluation of
certain financial instruments and in accerdance with the Companies (lersey) Law 1991 and Unized Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice (‘UK GAAP")

These separately presented Company financial statements comprise the profit and loss account, balance sheet and related notes The Company has I
taken advaniage of the exemption from prepanng a cash flow statement under the terms of FR5 1 {Revised 1996) "Cash Flow Statements  The

Company 15 also exempt under the terms of FRS 8 'Related Party Disclosures’ from disclosing transactions with other members of the kxpernan

Group

The Expenian Group bmited consolidated finanaial statements for the year ended 31 March 2007 contain financial instrument disclosures required
by IAS 32 Finanaia! Instruments Disclosure and Presentation’ and these would also comply with the disclosures required by FRS 25 ‘Financial
instruments Disclosure and Presentation * Accordingly the Company has taken advantage of the exempuon in FRS 25 not to prasant separate
financial instrument disclosures for the Company

Significant accounting poiicies
The signriicant accounting pohcies of the Company are noted below

Tangible fixed assets
Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the shorter of the estmated life of the asset and the remaining Iife of the lease

Leases
Gross rental Income recevable and payable in respect of operating leases is recognised on a straight line basis over the penods of the leases

investrments in group undertakings
Investments n group undertakings are stated at cost less provision considered necessary for any impairment

Impairment of fixed assets
Where there 15 an indication of imparrment fixed assets are subject to review for imparment in accordance with FRS 11 Impairment of Fixed Assets
and Goodwill' Any impairment 1s recognised m the year in which it occurs

Debtors and creditors
Debtors are imuially recognised at farr value and carried at the fower of cost and recoverable amount Where the time value of money 15 matenal
debtors are carned at amortised cost

Creditors are sunally recognised at farr value and carned at amortised cost if the nme value of money 1s matenat

Cash
Cash includes cash an hand deposits held at call with banks and other short-term highly hquid investments

Accounung for denvative financial instruments
The Company uses forward foreign exchange contracts ic manage its expasures to fluctuations in foreign exchange raies The interest differenual
refiected in forward foreign exchange contracts 1s taken 10 interest expense

Forward foreign exchange contracts are recognised at far value, based on forward foreign exchange market rates at the balance sheet date Gains
or tosses on forward forewgn exchange contracts are taken dwectly to net foreign exchange gans or losses in the profit and loss account

Deferred tax

Deferred tax 1s provided in respect of tming differences that have onginated but not reversed at the balance sheet date and 15 determined using the
1ax rates that are expected to apply when the uming differences reverse Deferred tax assets are recognised only 1o the extent that they are
expected to be recoverable
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Notes to the parent company financial statements

for the period ended 31 March 2007

B Basis of preparation and significant accounting polities (contnued)

ESOP Trust shares

The Experian Group Limited Empioyee Share Trust { the Trust’) 1s a separately administered trust Liabilities of the Trust are guaranteed by the
Company and the assets of the Trust mainly comprise shares in the Company The assets, labilities and expenses of the Trust are included in the
Company s financial statements as if they were the Company s own Such shares held by the Trust are shown as a deduction from equity
shareholders’ funds at cost

Share-based payments

The Group has a number of equity settled share-based compensation plans These include awards i respect of shares in the Company made at or
after demerger tagether with awards previously made i respect of shares in GUS ple which were rolled-over into awards in respect of shares i the
Company at demerger The 1ssuance by the Company of share incentives to employees of its subsidianes represents additional capital contnibutions
and therefore an increase in the Company s investment in group undertakings with a corresponding increase in equity shareholders funds

The fair value of options and shares granted 15 recognised after taking into account the Company's best estimate of the number of awards expected
1o vest The Company revises the vesting esumate at each balance sheet date and non market performance condiions are included in the vesting
estimates Amounts are recognised over the vesung period Fair value 1s measured at the date of grant using whichever of the 8lack-Scholes, Monte
Carlo model and closing market price 1s most appropriate to the award Market based performance conditions are included in the farr value
measurement on grant date and are not revised for actual performance

C Qperating loss

The operating loss 1s stated after charging

2007
{1) Staff costs £Em
Drrectors’ fees nDa
Wages and salaries 02
Total 06
{n) Fees payable to the Company's auditor and 1ts associates
Fees payable to Company s auditor far the audit of the parent company financial statements were £30,000
Fees payable to Company's auditor for the audit of the group financial statements 03
Fees payable to Company’s auditor and 1ts associates for other services
Services n respect of the demerger (included n exceptional items) 06
Total 09
{in} Excepttonal items
Costs incurred relatng 1o the demerger of Home Retall Group and Expenan 46

The Company employed an average of one employee duning the period Executive directars of the Company are employed by other companies
within the Group

Details of the remuneration of directors are given in the auditable part of the report on dwectors’ remuneration on pages 52 to 57

During the period the Company paid an interim equity dvidend of £20 4m to shareholders and there was a dividend in specie to shareholders of
£3 497 &m relating to the demerger of Home Retall Group The directors propose a further dwidend of 11 5 cents per share for the penod ended
31 March 2007 This dmvidend 1s not included as a habifity in the current year financial statements as it has not been aeclared For further details see
note 11 n the Expenan Group financial staternents
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P Net interest income 2007

fm
Interest Income
External interest income 63
Interest on amounts owed by subsichary undertakings 80
Unwind of discount on amount owed by subsidiary undertaking 07
90
Interest expense
interest on amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings 03)
Net interest 87

E Tax on loss an ordinary activities

{1) Yax charge tor the penod
There was no tax charge for the period The applicable rate of Corporation tax in treland 15 25% for investment income (12 5% for trading income)
The differences are explained below

2007

fm

Loss an ordinary activities before taxation (42

Loss on ordinary activities before tax multipled by the applicable rate of Corporation tax in Ireland of 25% (12 5% for trading income} {(11)
Effects of

Income not taxable {01

Expenses not deductible 12

Current tax charge for the penod -

{n) Factors that may affect future tax charges
tn the forseeable future the Company’s tax charge will continue to be influenced by the nature of its Income and expenditure in subseguent
accounting penods, and could be affected by changes in tax law

{m) Tax effect of exceptional items
The exceptional items included within the Company's expenses are not deductible for tax purposes
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Notes to the parent company financial statements

for the period ended 31 March 2007

2007
F Tangible fixed assats fm
Short leasehold properties
Cost
Additions 02
At 31 March 2007 02
Depreciation
At 31 March 2007 -
Net Book Value at 31 March 2007 02
2007
G Investments in group undertakings £m
Additions B122
Transfer from subsidiary undertaking 86756
Disposals {6.381 6}
Investments in group undertakings at 31 March 2007 3,106 2
Long term loan to subsidiary undertaking 2,864 3
At 31 March 2007 59705

() Addtions in the year comprised the farr value of the share incentives 1ssued to employees of subsidiary undertakings during the penod of
£23 6m and £788 6m n respect of a subscrniption for share capial in Experian Ireland Investments Limited whose principal actvity 1s to act as
an intra group finance company

() The transfer from subsidiary undertakings compnised the transfer of GUS plc and s subsidiary undertakings as part of the demerger process

{m) Dusposals comprised £3 457 6m in respect of the distribution of shares in Home Retaill Group to the Company’s shareholders by way of
dividend in specie and a capital reduction of £4,852 Om by a subsidiary undertaking settled by a long term loan with a farr vaiue of £2 863 6m
and cash of £20 4m

At 31 March 2007 the mvestment in group undertakings comprises the haldings of the whole of the 1ssued share capital of Expenan investment
Holdings Limted, Expenian ireland Investments bimited and Expenan Group Services Limited The principal activity of Expenan Group Serwices Limited
15 the provision of administrative services 1o group companies

The Compenys principal subsidiary undertakings are listed on page 132
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2007

H Debtors - due within one year £m
Amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings o1
Taxation recoverable 16
17

2007

| Creditors — amounts due within one year £m
Amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings 887
Accruals 03
Gther crediors 04
Cverdraft o7
901

At 31 March 2007 the Company had undrawn committed borrowing faailbves of £1,250m, all of which expires more than 1wo years after the
balance sheet date

1 Share capital and share premium

Number of Share Share
Ordinary shares capita premium

of US 10 cents
m im £m
At 30 June 2006 on incorporation - - -
Issued on demerger of Home Retail Group 8774 469 86287
Capital reduction on 6 October 2006 - - (8,628 7
Issued by way of Global Offer 142 9 77 7923
Global offer 1ssuance costs - - {22 8)
Allotted under share option schemes 20 01 43
At 31 March 2007 1,022 3 54 7 7738

Authorised and issued share capital

On incorporation, the authorised share caprtal of the Company was US$10,000 dmided intc 10,000 Crdinary shares of US$1 each Of such Qrdinary
shares two were ssued and were pad up n full at a cost of US$2 each On 13 September 2006 the shareholders passed special resolutions under
which each Ordinary share of US$1 each was sub-dwided :nio 10 Ordinary shares of 16 US cents each and the autherised share capiia! of the
Company was increased frem US$10 000 to US$200m by the creation of 1,999,900,000 additional Ordinary shares of 10 US cents each The 20
Ordinary shares of 10 US cents then 1n issue were converted in to Deferred shares of 10 US cents each

On 10 October 2006, the Company issued 877 444,999 Ordinary shares of 10 US cents each in connection with the demerger and on 11 October
2006 the Company issued a further 142 857,143 Ordinary shares of 10 US cents each by way of a Global Offer Subsequent 1o 11 Cctober 2006 a
further 1,979 664 Ordinary shares were allotted an the exercise of share options At 31 March 2007, 1,022,281 805 Ord:nary shares of 10 US cents
each and 20 Deferred shares of 10 US cents each had been allotted, called up and fully paid

Share premium

As a result of the issue of 877 444,999 Ordinary shares of 10 US cents, referred to above share premium of £8 628 7m arose being the excess of
the fair value of the net assets of £8,675 6m acquired over the nominal value of £46 9m of the shares 1ssued

On 10 October 2006, following the approval of the Jersey Court under Article 63 of Companies {Jersey) Law 1991, the Company reduced its share
capital This gave nse to a reduction of £8 628 7m in the share premium account and a corresponding Increase in the prefit and loss account
reserve

As a result of the Company issuing 142,857 143 Ordinary shares of 10 cents each, by way of Global Offer, at a pnice of £5 60 per share addiuional
share premium of £792 3m was created being the excess of the proceeds of the shares issued over their nominal value Related issue costs of

£22 8m have been charged against the share premium account Similarly, addional share premium of £4 3m was created in the penod when
shares were allotted under share option schemes The share premium account 1s not avallable for distnbuticn
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Notes to the parent company financial statements

for the period ended 371 March 2007

Total profit

Profit and loss

ESOP and loss account

shares account reserve

K Reserves fm £m £m
Loss for the financial period - 42) {4 2)
Transfer to profit and loss account on reduction in share capial - 86287 8,628 7
Equity diidends paid dunng the pericd - {20 4) {20 4)
Dvidend in specie relating to the demerger of Home Retail Group - (3497 5) {3,497 5)
Transfer of ESOP shares at farr value (80 1) i70 (63 1)
Purchase af ESOP shares (33 8) - (33 8)
Allotment of share options 277 - 277
Credit in respect of share incentive schemes - 236 236
At 31 March 2007 (86 0) 5,147 2 50612

ESOP shares represent the cost of shares in the Company held by the following trusts to satsfy the Group s obligations under its share incentive plans

Number of

shares

Experian Group Limited Employee Share Trust 13,419,683
GUS plc ESOP Trust 2,340,100
Expenan UK Approved All Employee Share Plan 926,565
16,686,348

A total of 6 670,514 Ordinary shares were purchased by the Trusts from the date of incorporation to 31 March 2007 at a cost af £33 6m A total of
15,080,260 shares were transferred from GUS plc to Expenan Group Limited on novation of GUS plc’s interest in the GUS plc ESOP Trust for a farr
value of £63 1m Subsequently a number of these shares have been transferred into the Experian Group Limited Exployee Share Trust

Equity dividends of £20 4m were paid to those Experian Group Limited shareholders who did not elect to receve dwidends under the Income
Access Share (1AS') arrangements In total £28 5m of dividends were paid in the post demerger penod of which £8 Tm was paid by Experian
Finance plc (formerly GUS plc) under the IAS arrangerents

L Commitments

{1} Caprtal commtments
There are no significant capital commitments relating to the Campany

{n} Operating lease commitments
The Company has an annual commitment of £0 3m in respect of the lease of the Group’s Corporate Headguarters in Ireland this commment
expires in more than five years Rental payments commence in May 2008

M Contingencies

At 31 March 2007, the Company 15 the guarantor of the retirement benefit cbiigations of the Group companies that participate in the Experian
Pension Scheme
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N Share options and awards

The Company has not repeated the disclosures reguired by FRS 20 'Share-based Payment as these are already included i note 31 of the Group
financial statements

Detalls of the unexercised options are shown below and include those options granted 1o directors of the Company Further details of options
granted to directors of the Campany are contained In the report on directors’ remuneration ¢n pages 53 and 54

2007
{1} Options and awards n respect of the Ordinary shares of the Company m
Expenian Reinvestment Plan 03
Experian Co-Investment Plan 22
Expenan Performance Share Plan 89
Experian Share Option Plan 177
Expenan North Amencan Share Option Plan 118
Experian UK Approved All Employee Plan/Free Share Plan 32
Experian Sharesave Plan 19

56 0

{u) Awards under the Expenian Reinvestment Plan

Dunng the period ended 31 March 2007 awards were made under this plan in respect of 10,445,779 Crdinary shares in the Company At 31

March 2007 awards in respect of 10 302 923 Ordinary shares remained cutstanding and, as indicated in note K shares have been purchased by the
Experian Group Limited Employee Share Trust to meet obligations under this plan These awards include thase granted to directors further details of
which are contained in the report on directors’ remuneration on page 56

During the period ended 31 March 2007 no Ordinary shares were transferred from the Trust to beneficianes of the Experian Reinvestmem Plan

(i) Awards under the Experian Co-Investment Plan

During the period ended 31 March 2007, awards were rolied-over from the GUS plc Co-lnvestment Plan into the Expenan Co investment Plan in
respect of 2 223,009 Qrdinary shares in the Company At 31 March 2067 awards in respect of 2,223,009 Ordinary shares remained outstanding
and, as indicated 1n note K, shares have been purchased by the Expenan Group Limited Employee Share Trust to meet obligations under this pian
These awards include those granted to directors, further details of which are contained in the report on directors’ remuneration on page 56

During the penod ended 31 March 2007, 763,972 Ordinary shares were transferred from the Trust to beneficianes of the Experian Co-Investment
Plan

{iv) Awards under the Experian Performance Share Plan

During the period ended 31 March 2007, awards were rolled-over from the GUS plc Performance Share Plan in respect of 2,968,004 Ordinary shares
in the Company in addition, durng the penod ended 31 March 2007 new awards in respect of 6,112,885 Ordinary shares of the Company were
made under this plan At 31 March 2007, awards in respect of 8,873 114 Ordinary shares remained cutstanding and as indicated in note K, shares
have been purchased by the Experian Group Limited Employee Share Trust 1o meet obligations under this plan These awards include those granted
to directors, further detaills of which are contained in the report on directors’ remuneration on page 55

Duning the penod ended 31 March 2007 no Ordinary shares were transferred from the Trust to beneficianes of the Expenan Performance Share Plan
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N Share options and awards {(continued)
{v) Options under the Experian Share Option Plan

Unexercised options granted under this scheme 1n respect of Ordinary shares in the Company are as follows

Number

of shares
2007 Exercise price Pericd of exercise
Agpproved 24,008 218 5p From 07 04 2003 10 06 04 2010
3,379 3580p From 11 06 2004 10 10 06 2011
50,962 381 6p From 06 G6 2005 1o 05 06 2012
161,335 394 7p From 19 06 2006 to 18 06 2013
256,078 472 9p From 01 06 2007 t0 31 05 2014
244,047 501 7p From 31 G5 2008 to 30 05 2015
80,186 514 8p From 22 11 2008 to 21 11 2015
146,459 578 5p From 11 10 2008 t0 1010 2019
Nen-Approved 40,701 211 4p From 07 04 2003 10 06 04 2010
671,751 344 8p From 11 06 2004 to 10 04 2011
54,964 357 3p From 17 12 2004 10 16 12 2011
936,272 367 5p From 06 G6 2005 10 05 06 2012
1,659,685 380 1p From 19 06 2006 to 18 06 2013
54,799 426 0p From 02 12 2006 t0 01 12 2013
2,293,658 455 ap From 01 06 2007 to 31 05 2014
21,566 487 9p From 24 11 2007 t0 23 11 2014
3,069,242 483 1p From 31 05 2008 10 30 05 2015
82,273 495 8p From 22 11 2008 to 21 11 2015
3,823,500 S211p From 02 06 2009 to 01 06 2016
4,021,593 560 Op From 11 10 2009 10 10 10 2018

17,701,458

Dunng the pericd ended 31 March 2007, 737,657 Crdinary shares were issued and 2,335 772 Ordinary shares were transferred to beneficiaries
tollowing the exercise of such share options These awards include those granted to directors, further details of which are contained in the repon
on directors’ remuneration on pages 53 and 54
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N Share options and awards (continued)
{vi} Options under the Expenan North American Share Option Plan

Unexercised oputons granted under this scheme in respect of Ordinary shares in the Company are as follows

Number

of shares
2007 Exercise price Period of exercise
21,162 344 8p From 11 06 2002 10 1006 2007
1,013,400 367 5p From 06 06 2003 1o 05 06 2008
1,341,664 380 ip From 1906 2004 1o 18 06 2009
49,852 426 0p From 02 12 2004 1o 01 12 2009
1,674,819 455 4p From Q1 06 2005 to 31 05 2010
6,326 487 9p From 24 11 2005 t0 23 11 2010
2,053,635 483 ip From 31 05 2006 to 30 05 2011
8,499 495 Bp From 22 11 200610 27 11 2011
5,664,935 521 1p From §2 06 2007 (0 01 06 2012

11,834,292

All such options are to be satisfied by the transter of already 1ssued Ordinary shares and shares have been purchased for this purpose by the
Experian Group Limited Employee Share Trust Dunng the penod ended 31 March 2007, 1,222,262 Ordinary shaies were transferred to beneficiaries
following the exercise of such options These awards include those granted to directors further detatls of which are contained in the report on
dwectors remuneration on pages 53 and 54

{vir) Options under the Expenan Sharesave Plan
Unexerased options granted under this scheme in respect of Ordinary shares in the Company are as follows

Number

of shares
2007 Exerase price Pericd of exercise
230,344 305 6p From 01 09 2007 to0 29 02 2008
157,623 296 8p From 0108 2008 1o 28 02 2005
151,007 3787p From Q1 09 2009 to 28 02 2010
14,098 386 6p From 01 09 2010 tp 28 02 2011
730,292 378 7p From 01 09 2007 10 29 02 2008
634,251 401 4p From 01 Q09 2008 1o 28 02 2009

1,917,615

During the pertod ended 31 March 2007 2 562 Ordinary shares were i1ssued and 1,239,302 Ordinary shares were transferred 10 beneficianes
following the exercise of such share options These awards include those granted to directors, further details of which are contained n the report
on directors remuneratcn on page 54

in addition 309 628 Ordinary shares were tssued 1n connection with a savings based share scheme in the United States

{viy} Awards under the Expernian UK Approved All-Employee Plan/Free Share Plan
During the period ended 31 March 2007, awards were made under this plan in respect of 3,222 065 Ordinary shares in the Company At 3t March
2007, awards in respect of 3 190,815 Ordinary shares remained outstanding

During the period ended 31 March 2007, 929,877 Ordinary shares were 1ssued to the Expenan UK Approved All-Employee Plan Trust of which
3,212 were transferred to be benefitianes of the Expenan UK Approved All-Employee Pian
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O Principal subsidiary and associate undertakings

The principal subsidiary and associate undentakings at 31 March 2007 all of which are included in the Group financial statements, are isted below

Percentage
Country of of crdinary
Incorporation shares held
Experian Finance plc {formerly GUS plc) England and Wales 100%
Experian Holdings Limited England and Wales 100%
Expenan Limited England and Wales 100%
ClarityBlue Limited England and Wales 100%
QAS Limited England and Wales 100%
Experian A/S Denmark 100%
Expenan Holdings France S A France 100%
Creditinform AS Norway 100%
Expenan North America, inc USA 100%
Consurerinfc com UsA 100%
PriceGrabber com UsSA 100%
LowerMyBills com USA 100%
Expenan Informaton Solutians inc USA 100%
Expenan Services Corporaucn USA 100%
Experian Marketing Solutions nc USA 100%
Associate
First Amencan Real Estate Salutions LLC Usa 20%

None of the above undertakings are directly held by Expenan Group Limited
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Report of the auditors parent company financial statements |

Independent auditors’ report to the members of Expenan Group Limited

We have audited the parent company financal statements of Expenian Group Limited for the period ended 31 March 2007 which comprise the
parent company balance sheet, the parent campany profit and loss account and the related notes and those parts of the report on directors’
remuneration descnbed as being audited These parent comparty financial statements have been prepared under the accounting policies set out
therein

we have reported separately on the Group financial statements of Expenan Group Limited for the year ended 31 March 2007

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

The directors’ responsibilities for prepanng the annual report, the repart on directors’ remuneration and the parent company financial stalements in
accordance with applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Pracuce) are set outin
the Statement of directors respensibilities

Our responsibility 15 to audit the parent company financial statements in accordance with relevant legal and regulatory requirements and
International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland} This repont, including the opiion has been prepared for and only for the Company's
members as 2 body In accordance with Artecle 110 of the Companies (Jersey) Law 1991 and for no other purpose We do not in giving this
opmion accept or assume respensibility for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report 15 shown or inta whose hands it may
come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in wriuing

We report tc you our opinion as 10 whether the financial statements give a true and fair view and are properly prepared tn accordance with the
Companies {lersey) Law 1991 We also report to you whether in cur opinion the information given in the drectors report 1s consistent with the
parent company financial statements

in addiion we report to you if, In our opisian, we have not recewed all the informauon and explanations we require for our audit

we read the other miormation contaned i the Annual Report and consider whether 1t 15 consistent with the audited parent company finanaial
statements This other infermation comprises only the Group financial highlights, the directors repont the charmanss statement, the business
review, the board of direciors, the unaudited part of the report on directors remuneration and the corporate governance statement We consider
the implicauions for our report f we become aware of any apparent misstatements or material inconsistencies with the financal statements Our
responsibilities do not extend to any ather nformation

We also review whether the report on directors’ remuneration complies with the reguirements of the Listing Rules of the United Kingdom Financial
Services Authonity and report to you any non compliance

Basis of audit opimon

We conducted our audit in accordance with international Standards on Auditing {UK and ireland) issued by the Auditing Prectices Board An audit i
includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts and disciosures n the parent company financial statements It also

includes an assessment of the sigmificant estimates and judgements made by the directors in the preparation of the financial statements and of

whether the accounting policies are approprate to the Company's crcumstances, consistently applied and adequately disclosed

We planned and performed our audit s¢ as to obtain all the information and explanatians which we considered necessary in order to provide us
with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance that the parent company financial statements are free from material misstatement whether
caused by fraud or other irregulanty or error In forming our opimion we also evaluated the overall adeguacy of the presentation of mfarmation in
the parent company financial statements

Opinion

In our apinion

« the parent company §mancial siatements give a true and fair view in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice, of
the state of the Companys affairs as at 31 March 2007 and of the loss for the penied then ended,

= the parent company financal statements have been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies (Jersey) Law 1991, and

» the informaten given in the direclors’ report 18 consistent with the parent company financial statements

PricewaterhouseCoapers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Registered Auditors
London Urnited Kingdom

22 May 2007

2007
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Reconciliation to the Experian Group
pro forma balance sheet at 31 March 2006

Expernan Home Retall Intra group COther Experian
Group Limmed Group balances adjustments Group
pro forma
{Note a) {Note b} {Note ¢) (iWote d}
ussm Ussm ussm Ussm ussm
Non-current assets
Goodwill 5342 (3,272) - - 2,070
Other intangible assets 926 (108) - - 818
Property, plant and equipment 1670 (1211) - - 459
Investment 1 associates 225 - - - 225
Deferred tax assets 547 (189) - - 358
Retrement benefit assets 31 (45) - 14 -
Trade and other recewables 2S (75) - - 14
Other financial assets 158 {13} - - 145
8,988 4,813) - 14 4,089
Current assets
Inventories 1,538 {1,535) - - 3
Trade and cther recevables 1,830 (2,574) 1,673 - 929
Current tax assets 207 {12} - - 195
Other financial assets 10 4) - - 6
Cash and cash equivalents 385 {228) - - 157
3,970 {4 353) 1,673 - 1,290
Current labilities
Trade and other payables (2,421} 1,502 - 2 (911)
Loans and botrowings (303} 1,822 (1,820} - (301)
Current tax habilities {481} 92 - - (389)
Provisions {155} 59 - 96 -
Other financial habilities (37} 1 - - (36)
(3 397) 3476 (1,820) 104 (1,637)
Net current assets/{habilities) 573 (877) (147) 104 {347)
Non-current habiiities
Trade and ather payables (144) 48 - - {98}
Loans and borrowings (3,599 386 - - {3,213}
Deferred tax habilities (350) 117 - - (233)
Retirement benefit obligations - - - (22) {22}
Provisions - 96 - (36} -
Other financial habiities (14) - - ~ (14)
(4,107) 647 - {(118) {3,578)
Net assets 5,454 {5,143) (147) - 164

A reconclliation between the consolidated baiance sheet of Expenan Group Limited and its subsidtary undertakings and the pro forma balance sheet

of the continuing Experian business (‘Expenan Group pro ferma ) at 31 March 2006 15 set out above

The basis on which this information has peen prepared 15 as follows

(@ As reported in the Annual Report and Financial Statements of GUS plc at 31 March 2006, represented in US$ at the exchange rate prevaiing

at 31 March 2006

{b) Extracted from the balance sheet information at 31 March 2006 contained in the 2007 Preliminary Announcement of Home Retaill Group plc
issued 1n May 2007, represented in US$ at the exchange rate prevaihing at 31 March 2006

(c} Intra group balances represent the elimmnation and reclassification of balances between Home Retall Group and Expenan as reported in the

2007 Preiminary Announcement of Home Retall Group plc

(d) Other adjustments comprise the reclassification of balances between Expenan and Home Retail Group
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Shareholder information

OCrdinary sharehoiders
There were 47,679 holders of Ordinary shares at 31

March 2007 and ther haoldings can be analysed as follows

Percentage Number of
Number of of total number Ordinary shares Percentage of
shareholders of shareholders '000s Crdinary shares
Quer 1 000,000 173 04 781,788 764
100,001 - 1,000000 432 09 144,883 142
10001 - 100000 1,216 25 36 292 36
5001 -~ 10,000 1639 34 11,216 (!
2,000 - 5000 6,568 138 20,047 20
1 - 2,000 37,651 790 28 056 27
47,679 1000 1,022 282 1000

Shareholders are further analysed as follows

Percentage NMumber of
Number of of total number Ordinary shares Percentage of
shareholders of shareholders 000s Qrdinary shares
Corporates 11,764 247 966 109 845
Indwiduals 35,915 753 56,173 5%
47,679 1000 1,022 282 1000

Experian website

A full range of investar infarmatien 15 available at www experangroup com The 2007 Annual General Meeting { AGM®) will be broadcast live on
the Internet, further details are included :n the notice of meeting and on the website

Electronic shareholder communication

Shareholders may register for Shareview an electronic communication service pravided by Lioyds TSB Registrars on behalf of the Companys

Regstrar Lloyds TSB {lersey) Services Limited Registration is via the Company's website www experiangroup com, or direct via

www experianshareview com

The service enables shareholders to access a comprehensive range of sharehelder services online, including dividend payment information the abthty
to check shareholdings, amend address er bank details and submit AGM proxy voting instructions

When registenng for Shareview shareholders can select their preferred communication methed, post or email Subject to shareholder approvai of
amendments to the Company's Articles of Association ail shareholders will recewve a written notification of the availlability on the Group s website af
shareholder documents, such as the intenm and annual reparts unless they have elected to receve either notification via emall or paper copies of

shareholder documents

Dividend Reinvestment Plan ('DRIP?)

The DRIP enables shareholders to use ther cash didends to purchase Experian shares Shareholders who wish to participate in the DRIP for the first
tme, 1n respect of the second intenm dividend to be paid on 27 July 2007 should return a completed and signed DRIP mandate form to be receved
by the Registrar, by no later than 29 June 2007 For further details please contact the Registrars at the address below

Capitail Gans Tax ('CGT' ) base cost for UK shareholders
On 10 Qctober 2006, GUS plc separated its Experian business from 11s Home Retail Group business by way of demerger Following the demerger,

GUS shareholders at 4 30 pm on Fnday 6 October 2006 were entdled 10 recewve one share in Experian Group Limited and one share in Home Retall
Group plc for every share they held in GUS ple at that tme

The previous base cost of any GUS plc shares held at 4 30pm on 6 Octaber 2006 s apportioned for UK CGT purposes in the following ratio
58 235% 10 Expenan Group LUimited shares and 41 765% to Home Retail Group pic shares (based on the closing prices of the respective shares on
thewr first day of trading after ther admission 1o the Offigial List of the London Stock Exchange on 11 October 2006)

For GUS plc shares acqusred pror to the demerger of Burberry on 13 December 2005 which are affected by both the Burberry demerger and the
subsequent separation of Expenan and Home Retall Group, the onginal CGT base cost 15 apportioned 50 604% 1o Expenan Group Limited shares,
36 293% to Home Retall Group plc shares and 13 103% to Burberry Group plc shares
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Shareholder information

American Depositary Receipts ("ADR)

Expenan has a sponsored Level 1 ADR programrne, for whech The Bank of New York acts as Deposttary The Level 1 ADR programme 1s not hsted on
a US stock exchange and trades in the over-the-counter market under the symbol EXPGY Each ADR represents one Experian Group Limited
Ordinary share For further information please contact

Shareholder Relations
The Bank of New York
PO Box 11248
Church Street Station
New York

NY 10286 ~ 1258
United States

T 1610 382 7836 (from the US 1-B88 BNY-ADRS)

Financial calendar

Second intenm ddend record date 29 June 2007

First quarter trading update 12 July 2007
Annual General Meeting> 18 July 2007
Second intenm dividend to be pad 27 luly 2007

Furst haif tracing update 10 October 2007
Intenm announcement 15 November 2007
Thid quarter tracing update January 2008
Preliminary announcement of results May 2008

* to be held at the Four Seasons Hotel Simmonscourt Road, Dublin 4, lreland 2t § 30 am on Wednesday 18 July 2007

Contacts

Corporate headquarters Registerad office
Newenham House 22 Grenville Street
Northern Cross St Helier

Malahide Road Jersey JE4 8PX
Dubln 17

Ireland Registered no 93905

T 353 1 846 9100
F 353 1 B45 9150

Registrars

Expenian Sharehoider Services
Lloyds T5B (Jersey) Services Limited
PO Box 63

11-12 Esplanade

St Heler

Jersey JE4 8PH

T 44 121 415 7586
{or 0845 601 0810 from the UK)

Text phone facility + 44 121 415 7028
{or 0870 600 3950 from the UK)
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experian

Corporate headquarters Corporate office
Expenan Group Limited Expenan

Newenham House Cardinal Place

Nerthern Cross 80 Victoria Street
Maiahide Road London

Dublin 17 SW1E 5L

irefand United Kingdem

T +353(0) 1 846 5100 T +44 (0) 20 304 24200
F +353(0) 1 846 9150 F+44 (0} 20 304 24250

Operational headquarters

Experian Experian

Talbct House 475 Anton Blvd
Talbot Strest Costa Mesa
Nottingham CA 92626
NGS80 1TH United States

United Kingdom T +1 714 830 7000

T +44 (0) 115 541 0888 F +1 714 830 2449
F +44 (0} 115 934 4905

Corporate
Responsibility
Report

www.experiancrreport com

Tris comprehensive onling report explains EXp l a I n I n g

Experian s CR strategy and how we are

managing our responsibikities in six key areas E xpe ri a n

www.explainingexperian.com

Explaining Expenan provides further insight for
investors Nt what Experian does, our products
and services and the markets we serve
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